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Our Business

Brookfield is a leading global alternative asset manager with approximately
$250 billion of assets under management.

We have over a 100-year history of owning and operating real assets with a focus on
property, renewable power, infrastructure and private equity. We offer a range of public
and private investment products and services which leverage our expertise and
experience, and provide us with a distinct competitive advantage in the markets in which

we operate.

~3(0) >7(,000 >7(00

COUNTRIES OPERATING EMPLOYEES INVESTMENT PROFESSIONALS

CANADA EUROPE & MIDDLE EAST

$23 billion AUM $32 billion AUM
~24,000 operating employees

~10,500 operating employees

UNITED STATES
$138 billion AUM
~9,500 operating employees

>

SOUTH AMERICA ASIA PACIFIC
$28 billion AUM $19 billion AUM
~19,000 operating employees ~9,000 operating employees

Brookfield is listed on the New York, Toronto and Euronext stock exchanges under the symbols BAM, BAM.A, and BAMA
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Performance Record

AS AT AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DEC. 31 2016 2015 2014 2013 20121
PER SHARE?
Net income $ 155 $ 226 $ 3.11 % 2.08 $ 1.31
Funds from operations 3.18 2.49 2.11 3.43 1.30
Dividends?
Cash 0.52 0.47 0.45 0.40 0.37
Special 0.45 — — 0.98 —
Market trading price - NYSE 33.01 31.53 33.42 25.89 24.43
TOTAL (miLLIONS)
Assets under management $ 239,825 $ 227,803 $ 203,840 $ 187,105 $ 181,400
Consolidated results
Balance sheet assets 159,826 139,514 129,480 112,745 108,862
Equity 69,688 57,227 53,247 47,526 44,338
Revenues 24,411 19,913 18,364 20,830 18,766
Net income 3,338 4,669 5,209 3,844 2,755
Funds from operations 3,237 2,559 2,160 3,376 1,356
Common equity 22,499 21,568 20,153 17,781 18,150
Diluted number of common shares outstanding? 1,002.0 1,003.3 983.2 976.6 987.0
Note: See “Use of Non-IFRS Measures” on page 11
1. 2012 adjusted to be consistent with 2013 accounting standards
2. 2012 to 2014 adjusted to reflect three-for-two stock split effective May 12, 2015
3. See Corporate Dividends on page 39
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Core Investment Principles

Our approach to investing is disciplined and straightforward. With a focus on value

creation and capital preservation, we invest opportunistically in high quality real assets

within our areas of expertise, manage them proactively and finance them conservatively

with a goal of generating stable, predictable and growing cash flows for clients and

shareholders. Our culture is anchored by a set of core investment principles that guide

our decisions and how we measure success.

BUSINESS PHILOSOPHY

Build our business and all our relationships based on integrity

Attract and retain high-calibre individuals who will grow with
us over the long term

Ensure our people think and act like owners in
all their decisions

Treat our client and shareholder money like it's our own

INVESTMENT GUIDELINES

Invest where we possess competitive advantages

Acquire assets on a value basis with a goal of maximizing
return on capital

Build sustainable cash flows to provide certainty, reduce risk
and lower our cost of capital

Recognize that superior returns often require a
contrarian approach

MEASUREMENT OF OUR
CORPORATE SUCCESS
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Measure success based on total return on capital over
the long term

Encourage calculated risks, but compare returns with risk

Sacrifice short-term profit, if necessary, to achieve long-term
capital appreciation

Seek profitability rather than growth, as size does not
necessarily add value



[.etter to Shareholders

OVERVIEW

We reported strong results in 2016. FFO for shareholders was $3.2 billion, or $3.18 per share. Results across
the board were good, with particularly strong growth in our asset management operations. Most of our U.S.
businesses performed well, with the market generally continuing to strengthen. The exceptions were those
connected to natural gas and electricity generation, which did not achieve expectations as a result of both low
water levels and pricing.

Institutional investors continue to allocate greater proportions of their funds to real assets. This enabled us to
raise $30 billion of capital for private strategies in our latest round of fundraising, which included closing what
are among the largest infrastructure and real estate funds globally. We also raised approximately $2 billion of
capital for three of our listed partnerships in 2016 to fund investments alongside our private investors.

As part of the shift to real assets, we are now starting to see greater allocations from traditional fixed income
portfolios into private credit strategies. We have been expanding our credit capabilities for many years, and
are now fundraising with meaningful capital for these strategies. Over time, this could result in the addition of
significant assets under management.

Our investing themes today continue to revolve around utilizing our competitive strengths of size, global
footprint, and operating capabilities. We are allocating capital to most of our investment markets, but
disproportionately to the emerging economies where we believe we are still buying very good value in slowly
recovering economies.

INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE

Our one-year stock performance at the time of writing, inclusive of dividends, was 26%. More importantly, we
think we added substantial underlying intrinsic value to the business, and that we are in excellent financial
shape and set up for growth in the years ahead. Fee bearing capital took a major step change upward this
year and this should enable us to grow over the next number of years.

Investment Brookfield 10-Year
Performance NYSE S&P 500 Treasuries
1 26% 26% 1%
5 14% 14% 2%
10 8% 7% 5%
15 19% 7% 5%
20 17% 7% 5%

While we are cognizant of short-term performance, we always manage our business for the long term, and
therefore focus more on those metrics. To that end, we are pleased that our returns compare well with
most investments, and are consistent with our goal of generating 12% to 15% compound returns over the
longer term.
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MARKET ENVIRONMENT

Despite all the political turmoil, most of the economies in which we participate are doing well, or are
recovering. This has set the backdrop for a very constructive environment for us to invest in.

In the United States, we continue to believe, as we have for years, that interest rates will grind upwards to the
3% to 4% range. We have not changed our overall view with the election of a new government. We do,
however, believe that we may get to the top end sooner than we otherwise might have expected, and that we
might stretch the top end of former expectations before we hit a recession and the cycle starts over. But,
should interest rates climb faster, it also means that growth is stronger than we would have otherwise
expected. In this environment, all of our investments should also do better.

Europe and the United Kingdom have extremely low interest rates, and it looks like these will exist for some
time, given the political turmoil, demographics and the underlying economies of the various countries.
Despite this, we are finding many investments that can earn high leveraged cash returns, due to the
correspondingly low borrowing rates.

South America is recovering slowly, following the shock of low commodity prices and the unwind of the
excesses from the boom. We believe Brazil has bottomed, but the political aftershocks of the government
investigations are still being worked through. Chile, Colombia and Peru, while great countries, are also each
dealing with their own set of discrete issues. From an investment perspective this has, and continues to,
present us with great opportunities in all of these countries.

India has made tremendous strides with its economy and recently reduced interest rates for the first time in
this cycle. Despite this, the loan stress across the bank system needs to be worked through, and we are
therefore being presented with great opportunities across all of our businesses. We are also using our Indian
operations to continue to expand our base in the Gulf region. We have found that our deep investor
relationships are proving extremely helpful and that our operating skills are welcomed.

China is a flashpoint for most economic prognosticators, but on the ground they continue to build out the
greatest economic transformation ever undertaken in the world. We believe that they will be successful, but
these transformations never go in a straight line. As a result, we are being very disciplined as we build our
operations and investment strategies. We continue to find interesting ways to invest, and have also made
great strides in partnering with world-class financial institutions and institutional partners in the region. These
opportunities in both investing and fundraising should continue for years.

INTEREST RATES

For years we have been operating with the expectation that interest rates will increase in the United States.
Our working assumption has been that the economy was getting stronger and that eventually interest rates
would be able to rise as a result.

With rates having been virtually zero in the U.S. for seven years, a 1% or 2% increase in interest rates on the
short or long end of the treasury yield curve means very little to a long-term return on a real asset investment.
We have assumed for years that a 10-year treasury would have a 3% to 4% yield, and we continue to base all
of our investment decisions on this.

The 10-year rate has now increased to circa 2.5%, but it is worth remembering that it is almost identical to
where it was a year ago. At that time, everyone seemed to be worried about deflation; now the concern is
about inflation.
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More important, in this cycle there have been very few sophisticated lenders or acquirers of real estate or
infrastructure that have had a different view on rates, so cap rates have been stubbornly high relative to
interest rates for one specific reason: that everyone knew interest rates were going up and no one has been
willing to reduce cap rates to levels that matched the unduly low interest rates.

Our business is positioned to thrive in a higher interest rate environment; there are three simple reasons for
this. First, and most important, we own “real return” assets that increase their cash flow generating capacity
over time, either through contractual rights, our ability to operate them better, or an expansion of the
operation. These enhancements should far outpace any extra interest costs, in particular in a more
inflationary environment. Second, we generally earn total returns on equity of 10% to 20%. This is much
greater than treasury yields and therefore a few percentage increases aren't material. And third, much of our
debt is fixed rate debt; therefore, cash flows until maturity of that debt will not change at all.

We still believe that the odds are currently stacked heavily in favour of lower-than-usual interest rates in the
U.S. for the medium term, if not longer. With $50 trillion of savings in the world that need to earn a return and
rates in many parts of the world continuing to be very low, these savings are increasingly targeted at the
returns and dependability that come from investments in the U.S. This should keep rates down for a while.

SIZE AND FLEXIBILITY OF CAPITAL MATTER

As the investment management industry consolidates, our size increasingly provides us with a strategic
advantage. Added to that is the fact that not only is our capital base large, it is also very flexible. Both of these
differentiate our franchise.

As the investment industry matures and the pools of capital grow, investors are under constant pressure to
maintain a growing number of relationships. With all of our activities ranking among the largest in the
industry, and with our ability to offer most of the investment products investors want in their real asset and
alternative portfolios, we continue to gain a strategic advantage by providing them the opportunity to deploy
large amounts of capital in multiple strategies through one relationship.

Possibly even more important than size is the flexibility of our capital when competing for transactions. Our
varied sources of capital enable us to offer both permanent capital and traditional private equity-type capital
to facilitate a transaction. This is very powerful.

First and foremost, the $30 billion plus of permanent capital on the balance sheet of Brookfield Asset
Management has no restrictions, no time limits, and no size or geographic limits. Our only restriction for
investing this capital is whether we deem it to be beneficial to our clients and our business. This often means
we are supporting transactions alongside our clients, sometimes we are bridging transactions so clients have
time to co-invest, and we regularly use it to support the start-up of new businesses.

Our four listed entities that trade on the NYSE provide us with a further source of permanent capital. These
entities have a combined enterprise value of $80 billion and equity capital of $40 billion. This equity capital is
all permanent, but each entity has a mandate laid out for its shareholders, a guide for returns to be expected,
dividend expectations and predetermined types of investments which are expected to be made by each. All of
the entities have quite a wide range of investment strategies, but by virtue of the mandates laid out for each,
this capital is slightly more restrictive than the capital on our Brookfield balance sheet.
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Lastly, the capital we raise in our private funds is invested in specific transactions alongside our listed entities.
This capital is also very flexible, but it has a time duration (most from 10 to 12 years), target return thresholds
and asset classes laid out for investors. This is the type of capital that most of our competitors utilize, so in
order to differentiate ourselves we set out to be one of the largest in each area in which we operate.

Because we believe that size and flexibility matter, we continue to build our global capital to facilitate the scale
of transactions that investors expect from us. Our goal is to continue to establish ourselves as the go-to firm
when a seller of assets needs to transact with size and flexibility.

TRISURA

For the past 10 years, we have owned a property and casualty insurance business called Trisura Guarantee
Insurance Company. Trisura Guarantee's business is writing specialty insurance policies and it has consistently
and profitably grown its operations over the years. Trisura also specializes in providing surety bonding for
smaller contractors. The business is regulated, stands on its own, and has been run very conservatively over
the years. Trisura Guarantee reinsures most of the exposures and only assumes underwriting risk in a
measured way.

This business is no longer strategic to Brookfield as we focus on our asset management operations. Rather
than pursue a sales process that would have been disruptive to Trisura Guarantee and unlikely to surface full
value, we are planning to combine this business with the rest of our small specialty insurance operations and
spin them off from Brookfield under the brand name Trisura Group.

Even though this business does not fit in Brookfield, we believe it is a great business for the shareholders of
Brookfield to own as a stand-alone company with direct access to the capital markets. This will also provide
Trisura Group with an important platform for future growth. As a result, in the next six months after
regulatory approvals are received, we intend to distribute to you an extra US$0.10 dividend for each
Brookfield share you own, in the form of Trisura Group shares.

This spin-off will be a little different than others, as we do not intend for Brookfield to keep any shares. All of
Trisura Group’s common shares will be distributed to you to own should you wish to keep your portion, or
you can sell the shares and hence receive cash. In essence, it will be an extra dividend this year that we
distribute to you. To ensure the initial success of Trisura Group, we will assist the company with its launch, but
expect to have no ongoing role after an initial period.

For your interest, the senior management team generally intends to keep our shares (some select people for
various reasons may not), and in the management partnership where we pool a number of our Brookfield
shares we may provide financial support to Trisura Group, if necessary, and as a result may in the future have
a greater interest in Trisura Group. However, please rest assured that this will be an insignificant passive
investment compared to our collective +20% active ownership of Brookfield and in no way should be
interpreted as reducing our commitment to align our interests with yours by holding the vast majority of our
individual net worth in Brookfield equity.
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PERFORMANCE ACROSS OUR BUSINESS GROUPS
Asset Management

Our asset management business contributed $866 million of FFO for the full year, as a result of a 44%
increase in fee related earnings to $712 million as well as realized carried interest, net of costs, of

$149 million. This increase reflects strong flows of capital from our clients, with total assets under
management increasing to $240 billion and fee bearing capital increasing by 16% to $110 billion. The resulting
growth in base fees and IDRs, as well as the increase in capital on which we are able to earn carried interest,
led to an annualized run-rate of fees and target carried interest for our franchise of more than $2 billion, up
36% from last year.

AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DEC. 31

(MILLIONS) 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 CAGR
Total assets under management $ 181,440 $ 187,105 $ 203,840 $ 227,803 $ 239,825 7%
Fee bearing capital 60,069 77,045 85,936 94,262 109,576 16%
Annual run-rate of fees plus target carry 750 1,006 1,204 1,489 2,031 28%
Fee related earnings 180 300 378 496 712 41%

We closed $30 billion of private funds with strong demand globally. We had final closes of our real estate fund
at $9 billion and our infrastructure fund at $14 billion - both among the largest funds of their type in the
world, and we closed our private equity fund at $4 billion. We launched Brookfield Business Partners,
establishing our fourth listed entity through an initial distribution to shareholders and a subsequent

$400 million equity issue.

In the fourth quarter, we raised our first perpetual private fund, with a first close of $1 billion for an open-
ended core real estate fund, which is already 50% invested with a seed portfolio of eight high quality office
and multifamily properties across the U.S. We expect this strategy to become a meaningful part of our real
estate business moving forward, as it scales up over the course of 2017 and beyond.

With the capital raised across our various fund strategies, we acquired a number of very high quality assets
across a variety of asset classes and geographies. This included a major hydro company in Colombia, a
pipeline system in Brazil, a toll road in Peru, portfolios of office buildings and telecom towers in India, office/
retail/hotel complexes in Seoul and Berlin, a port business in Australia, and a number of property businesses
across the U.S. and Europe. Although we highlight these large transactions, there have been many others.

Our business today increasingly generates significant free cash flow. The combination of fee related earnings
from our asset management activities and the distributions we receive from our invested capital provides us
with $2 billion of inflows to our parent company annually. After we pay our corporate costs, interest expense
and preferred share dividends, we are left with annual free cash flow of $1.5 billion that we use to reinvest in
our business, pay common dividends, and repurchase shares.

Brookfield Property Group

Our property group generated FFO of $1.1 billion in 2016, excluding disposition gains. Our share was
$738 million, and we recorded an additional $823 million of disposition gains on assets sold. FFO prior to
disposition gains increased by 23% over the prior year, driven by contributions from incremental capital
invested in our opportunistic fund strategies and strong same-property performance in our U.S. office
operations. Real estate fundamentals in the majority of our key markets remain positive, with the outlier
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being our energy-driven markets. The U.K. market hit a speed bump following the Brexit outcome in June, but
the market corrected and stabilized quickly. Overall, the positive results throughout the year positioned us
well to recently announce a 5.4% cash distribution increase in our flagship listed partnership, Brookfield
Property Partners, and at the same time reduce the payout ratio substantially.

In our office business, we continued to execute our multi-year capital recycling strategy, raising net equity
proceeds of over $2 billion from asset sales during the year. These include the dispositions of stabilized office
properties in Manhattan, London, Vancouver, Washington and Sydney. In addition to the repayment of debt
and BPY share buybacks, proceeds were used to fund our office and multifamily development pipeline. During
the course of the year we signed pre-lease commitments at four of our largest development projects:
Manhattan West in Manhattan, Brookfield Place in Calgary, 100 Bishopsgate in London and Wynyard Place in
Sydney. In total, our over 7 million square feet of active office developments are 60% pre-let. These projects
will generate an incremental $300 million of annual cash flow as they are completed over the next three years.

Our retail operations had strong same-store growth of 5% and maintained a healthy 96.5% occupancy rate.
While there has been much publicity around the distress of department store retailers, this has generally had
little to no impact on the profitability of our premier mall portfolio. In fact, we have been partnering with the
department stores on select properties to redevelop them into higher return uses. Our malls also continue
to draw strong investment interest from institutions. The best example of this was the partial sale of the
premier Fashion Show mall in Las Vegas at a $2.5 billion valuation, executed at a sub-4% cap rate. We also
successfully privatized our retail operator, Rouse Properties, which had been undervalued as a stand-alone
public company.

In our opportunistic activities, we invested capital into acquisitions through our $9 billion opportunistic real
estate fund, BSREP II. These included a number of self-storage, student housing and manufactured housing
businesses. We also expanded our global investment and operating footprint, agreeing to acquire premier,
large-scale projects in Seoul and Mumbai. Lastly, we announced a proposal to acquire the remaining equity
interest in our listed Canadian affiliate that we do not currently own. This will allow us to fully integrate our
North American office operations and further simplify our structure.

Brookfield Renewable Group

Our renewable business generated FFO of $350 million in 2016, of which our share was $180 million. Water
levels in the United States were well below long-term average during the year which affected results, while our
Canadian portfolio performed in-line with the long-term average, partially mitigating the overall impact. As
always, we manage our capital plans and growth based on how the business performs over the long term and
as result, we were still able to grow the business while maintaining a strong balance sheet and healthy
liquidity position. In early 2017, our flagship listed partnership, Brookfield Renewable Partners, announced a
5% distribution increase, the seventh increase since inception in 2011.

During the year, we completed the acquisition of Isagen, a 3,000 megawatt Colombian hydroelectric portfolio.
We are now in the process of delisting the company from the Colombian stock exchange. We also acquired,
with partners, a 34% stake in the public float of TerraForm Power, as its sponsor Sunkdison filed for
bankruptcy protection. TerraForm Power and its sister company TerraForm Global collectively own and
operate 4,000 megawatts of solar and wind assets. We are working with the companies under an exclusivity
arrangement to complete a transaction.
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In Brazil, we recently commissioned a 25 megawatt hydro facility and continue with the construction of two
other hydro projects, totalling 47 megawatts. In Europe, we continue to advance two wind projects in Ireland
totalling 43 megawatts, and are also moving our first 19 megawatts of wind in Scotland and a further

19 megawatt wind project in the Republic of Ireland towards the construction phase. In the fourth quarter we
agreed to acquire two early-stage, greenfield solar development projects representing an aggregate

120 megawatts. These projects will allow us to replenish our development pipeline and should enable us to
deliver strong growth to the business over time.

Hydro, wind and solar portfolios continue to trade hands at premium valuations across our core markets. The
levels at which these assets are transacting speaks to the continued value proposition of renewables while
simultaneously underlining the intrinsic value of our own portfolio. Despite this, we continue to identify a
range of new investment opportunities with strong return potential and where we possess competitive
advantages. Accordingly, we are focused on opportunities that require operating and development expertise,
access to large-scale capital, restructuring capabilities and a long-term counter-cyclical investment approach.

Brookfield Infrastructure Group

Our infrastructure group generated FFO of $969 million for the year, before disposition gains, of which our
share was $279 million. Results benefitted from ‘same-store’ growth of 10%, on a constant currency basis, and
the contribution from new investments acquired in 2016. Disposition gains for the year were $95 million,
reflecting our share of the gains on the sale of utility assets. Our flagship listed partnership, Brookfield
Infrastructure Partners, recently announced an 11% distribution increase, marking the eighth consecutive
increase since its inception in 2008.

Growth prospects for our business are strong, driven by ongoing organic growth initiatives and a number of
acquisitions. We have in excess of $2 billion of committed development projects underway and a majority of
this backlog will be commissioned within the next 12 to 18 months. We deployed $850 million into such
projects in 2016 and identified $1.4 billion of additional projects as we continued to replenish our backlog.

Looking ahead, we are focused on closing nearly $7 billion of transactions, all of which should be completed in
the first half of 2017. We are building out our Brazilian utility business by investing $5 billion in NTS, a large-
scale natural gas pipeline system, and approximately $1 billion over the next five years to construct 4,200 km
of new electricity transmission lines. We also recently agreed to invest approximately $600 million in India to
acquire a portfolio of over 40,000 telecommunications towers, representing approximately 10% of the
country’s towers. Similar to our existing tower business in France, this is a high quality business that generates
secure, sustainable cash flows but is expected to benefit from continued growth in the industry.

We have significant capital in our flagship listed partnership and private funds for new investments. At
Brookfield Infrastructure Partners, we recently raised almost $1 billion at the corporate level through a series
of common and preferred equity unit issuances. We also generated a further $1 billion of net cash proceeds
in 2016 from two asset sales and the partial disposition of our toehold position in Asciano, with the remainder
rolled into our ports investment.

Brookfield Private Equity Group

Our private equity operations generated FFO of $491 million for the year, of which our share was $468 million.
We generated strong results both from our directly owned operations and the businesses we now own
through Brookfield Business Partners. Our North American residential development business and our
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investment in Norbord continue to be positively impacted in the U.S. and Ontario by a strong housing market
backed by limited supply. Key fundamentals remained favourable in 2016, including increased consumer
confidence and job growth. We are also seeing a positive trend in consumer confidence in our Brazilian
residential markets, where we are now launching new projects on a selective basis.

We announced the acquisition of a 70% interest in Ambiental. This is Brazil's largest private water distribution,
collection and treatment company and we believe it is well positioned to provide a growing share of the water
and sewage improvements planned over the next two decades. We also entered into an agreement to sell our
bath and shower manufacturing business to a strategic buyer in the U.S. for a sizable gain. We acquired this
business during the U.S. housing crisis and repositioned the company, which included appointing a new
management team, redefining strategy, reducing costs, and focusing on new product development.

Earlier this year we took advantage of the volatility in capital markets and the selloff in high yield debt to
acquire equity and debt securities at attractive valuations in a number of energy related and industrial
businesses with high quality assets and solid long-term fundamentals. Given the rally in capital markets, these
investments did not lead to restructurings, so we exited most of the positions with gains.

A number of our investments have started by us acquiring debt in potential restructurings. This includes our
investment in Vistra Energy, formerly TCEH Corp., a Texas utility company. Vistra Energy recently emerged
from bankruptcy and is currently trading in the over-the-counter market. The company is led by a new
management team, boasts a much leaner and more efficient business with a strong balance sheet, and
generates significant free cash flow. We believe the future for Vistra Energy is positive, with significant upside
potential from rising energy prices in Texas which could come from both improved natural gas prices and
tightening supply and demand. We control approximately 15% of the company with institutional clients.

CLOSING

We remain committed to being a world-class alternative asset manager, and investing capital for you and our
investment partners in high quality, simple to understand assets which earn a solid cash return on equity,
while emphasizing downside protection for the capital employed. The primary objective of the company
continues to be generating increased cash flows on a per share basis, and as a result, higher intrinsic value
per share over the longer term.

Please do not hesitate to contact any of us, should you have suggestions, questions, comments, or ideas you
wish to share with us.

J. Bruce Flatt
Chief Executive Officer

February 9, 2017
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Our Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) is provided to enable a reader to assess our results of operations and
financial condition for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016. This MD&A should be read in conjunction with our 2016 annual
consolidated financial statements and related notes and is dated March 31, 2017. Unless the context indicates otherwise, references
in this report to the “Corporation” refer to Brookfield Asset Management Inc., and references to “Brookfield,” “us,” “we,” “our”
or “the company” refer to the Corporation and its direct and indirect subsidiaries and consolidated entities. The company’s
consolidated financial statements are in U.S. dollars, and are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting

Standards (“IFRS”), as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

Additional information about the company, including our Annual Information Form, is available on our website at
www.brookfield.com, on the Canadian Securities Administrators’ website at www.sedar.com and on the EDGAR section of the
U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission’s (“SEC”) website at www.sec.gov.

We are incorporated in Ontario, Canada and qualify as an eligible Canadian issuer under the Multijurisdictional Disclosure System
and as a “foreign private issuer” as such term is defined in Rule 405 under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Rule
3b-4 under the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. As a result, we comply with U.S. continuous reporting
requirements by filing our Canadian disclosure documents with the SEC; our annual report is filed under Form 40-F and we furnish
our quarterly interim reports under Form 6-K.

Organization of the MD&A

PART 1 - Overview and Outlook PART 3 — Operating Segment Results Liquidity c.oovoeeviieieieeeeeeee 63
Our Business........ccccoevevrereeeeenienennes 12 Basis of Presentation ...........cccc.cevee... 40 Review of Consolidated Statements
Strategy and Value Creation.............. 12 Summary of Results by Operating of Cash FIOWS .......ccoceviiinieiiiee 66
Economic and Market Review .......... 14 SegMeNt .....ccoevveveerieeiieeeeeeeeeeene 43  Contractual Obligations..................... 67
Basis of Presentation and Use of Asset Management ............c.ccceeenene 43 Exposures to Selected Financial

Non-IFRS Measures ....................... 16 Property .....cccceeceeveieviecieereereeeeveenene 47 Instruments...........ccceeveevreveereeneenennn. 68

PART 2 - Financial Performance Renewable Power............ccccoevveueenn. 49 PART 5 - Operating Capabilities,....
Review Infrastructure ..........coeceveereeeecrcenennes 51 Environment and Risks
Selected Annual Financial Private EQUIty......cccccoveviveiieiieine, 53 Operating Capabilities....................... 69

Information ...........ccoeveeveenieieneinnne 18  Residential Development................... 55 Risk Management.............cccccoevenenene 69
Annual Financial Performance.......... 19 Corporate Activities..........cocervrerunne. 56  Business Environment and Risks ...... 70
Financial Profile ...........c.ccccoco.... 30 PART 4 - Capitalization and Liquidity = PART 6 — Additional Information
Summary of Quarterly Results........... 37  Financing Strategy...........cccocoverveueenen. 58  Accounting Policies and Internal
Corporate Dividends...........ccccooeeneee. 39  Capitalization.........ccceovreveeeeririeeeenne 59 CoNtrolS......ocoveeeereeeeeieeeeereeeene 84

Interest Rate Profile..............c............ 63 Related Party Transactions................ 88

We provide additional information on our basis of presentation of financial information contained in the MD&A and key financial
and operating measures on pages 40 to 42 of our December 31, 2016 Annual Report.

STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS AND USE OF NON-IFRS MEASURES

This Annual Report contains “forward-looking information” within the meaning of Canadian provincial securities laws and
“forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended, Section 21E of
the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, “safe harbor” provisions of the United States Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995 and in any applicable Canadian securities regulations. We may provide such information and make such
statements in the Report, in other filings with Canadian regulators or the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission or in other
communications. See “Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements and Information” on page 169.

We disclose a number of financial measures in this Report that are calculated and presented using methodologies other than in
accordance with IFRS. We utilize these measures in managing the business, including performance measurement, capital allocation
and valuation purposes, and believe that providing these performance measures on a supplemental basis to our IFRS results is
helpful to investors in assessing the overall performance of our businesses. These financial measures should not be considered
as a substitute for similar financial measures calculated in accordance with IFRS. We caution readers that these non-IFRS
financial measures may differ from the calculations disclosed by other businesses, and as a result, may not be comparable to similar
measures presented by others. Reconciliations of these non-IFRS financial measures to the most directly comparable financial
measures calculated and presented in accordance with IFRS, where applicable, are included within this MD&A.

Information contained in or otherwise accessible through the websites mentioned does not form part of this Report. All references in this
Report to websites are inactive textual references and are not incorporated by reference.
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PART 1 - OVERVIEW AND OUTLOOK
OUR BUSINESS

Brookfield is a global alternative asset manager with approximately $250 billion in assets under management. For more than
100 years we have owned and operated assets on behalf of shareholders and clients with a focus on property, renewable power,
infrastructure and private equity. We manage a wide range of investment funds and other entities that enable institutional and retail
clients to invest in these assets.

We earn asset management income including base management fees, carried interest and other forms of performance income for
doing so. As at December 31, 2016, our listed partnerships, private funds and public securities portfolios represented $110 billion
of invested and committed fee bearing capital. This capital includes public partnerships that are listed on major stock exchanges;
private institutional partnerships that are available to accredited investors, typically pension funds, endowments and other
institutional investors; and managed portfolios of listed securities through a series of segregated accounts and mutual funds.

We align our interests with clients by investing alongside them and have over $30 billion of capital invested in our listed partnerships,
private funds and directly held investments and businesses, based on our IFRS carrying values.

Our business model is simple: (i) raise pools of capital from our clients and ourselves that target attractive investment strategies;
(i1) utilize our global reach to identify and acquire high quality assets at favourable valuations; (iii) finance them on a long-term
basis; (iv) enhance the cash flows and values of these assets through our operating business groups to earn reliable, attractive long-
term total returns; and (v) realize capital from asset sales or refinancings when opportunities arise for reinvestment or distribution
to our clients.

Organization Structure

Our operations are organized into five operating business groups. Our property, renewable power, infrastructure and private equity
business groups are responsible for operating the assets owned by our various funds and investee companies. The equity capital
invested in these assets is provided by a series of listed partnerships and private funds which are managed by us and are funded
with capital from our clients and ourselves. A fifth group operates our asset management business, which is responsible for
managing our various pools of capital, development of new products for our clients and fundraising for our various fund products.

Our balance sheet capital is invested primarily in our four flagship listed partnerships, Brookfield Property Partners L.P. (“BPY”
or “Brookfield Property Partners”); Brookfield Renewable Partners L.P. (“BEP” or “Brookfield Renewable Partners”); Brookfield
Infrastructure Partners L.P. (“BIP” or “Brookfield Infrastructure Partners”); and Brookfield Business Partners L.P. (“BBU” or
“Brookfield Business Partners”). These publicly traded, large capitalization partnerships are the primary vehicles through which
we invest our capital in our property, renewable power and infrastructure segments. During the second quarter of 2016, we
completed the formation of Brookfield Business Partners by way of a special dividend to shareholders, which is the primary vehicle
through which we own and operate the majority of the industrial and services businesses of our private equity business group. As
well as owning assets directly, these partnerships serve as the cornerstone investors in our private funds, alongside capital committed
by institutional investors. This approach enables us to attract a broad range of public and private investment capital and the ability
to match our various investment strategies with the most appropriate form of capital.

STRATEGY AND VALUE CREATION

Our business is centered around the ownership and operation of real assets, which we define as long-life, physical assets that form
the critical backbone of economic activity, including property, renewable power and infrastructure facilities. Whether they provide
high quality office or retail space in major urban markets, generate reliable clean electricity, or transport goods and resources
between key locations, these assets play an essential role within the global economy. Additionally, these assets typically benefit
from some form of barrier to entry, regulatory regime or other competitive advantage that provide for relatively stable cash flow
streams, strong operating margins and value appreciation over the longer term.

We currently own and manage one of the world’s largest portfolios of real assets. We have established a variety of investment
products through which our clients can invest in these assets, including both listed entities and private funds. We invest our own
capital alongside our clients, ensuring a meaningful alignment of interests.
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We are active managers of capital. We strive to add value by judiciously and opportunistically reallocating capital to continuously
increase returns. Our track record shows that we can add meaningful value and cash flow through “hands-on” operational expertise,
whether through the negotiation of property leases, energy contracts or regulatory agreements, or through a focus on optimizing
asset development, operations or other activities. Our operating business groups include over 70,000 employees worldwide who
are instrumental in maximizing the value and cash flows from our assets. As real asset operations tend to be industry specific and
often driven by complex regulations, we believe operational experience is necessary in order to maximize efficiency, productivity
and returns.

We prefer to invest when capital is less available to a specific market or industry and in situations that tend to require a broader
range of expertise and are more challenging to execute. We believe these situations provide more attractive valuations recognizing
also that they may appear out of favour and generate lower initial returns. We maintain development and capital expansion
capabilities and a large pipeline of attractive opportunities. This provides flexibility in deploying capital, as we can invest in both
acquisition and development initiatives, depending on the relative attractiveness of returns.

We strive to finance our operations on a long-term, investment-grade basis, and most of our capital consists of equity and stand-
alone asset-by-asset financing with minimal recourse to other parts of the organization. We utilize relatively modest levels of
corporate debt to provide operational flexibility and optimize returns and strive to maintain excess liquidity at all times in order
to respond to opportunities as they arise. This provides us with considerable stability, improves our ability to withstand financial
downturns and enables our management teams to focus on operations and other growth initiatives.

As an asset manager, we create value for shareholders in the following ways:

*  We offer attractive investment opportunities to our clients through our managed funds and entities that will, in turn, enable
us to earn base management fees based on the amount of capital that we manage and additional performance-based returns
such as incentive distributions and carried interest. Accordingly, we create value by increasing the amount of fee bearing
capital under management and by achieving strong investment performance that leads to increased cash flows and asset
values.

*  We are able to source large scale capital from multiple sources. We invest significant amounts of our own capital alongside
our clients. This differentiates us from many of our competitors, creates a strong alignment of interest with our clients, and
enables us to create value by directly participating in the cash flows and value increases generated by these assets in addition
to the performance returns that we earn as the manager.

»  Our operating capabilities enable us to increase the value of the assets within our businesses, and the cash flows they produce.
Through our operating expertise, development capabilities and effective financing, we believe our specialized real asset
experience can help ensure that an investment’s full value creation potential is realized. We believe this is one of our most
important competitive advantages as an asset manager.

*  Weaim to finance assets effectively, using a prudent amount of leverage. We believe the majority of our assets are well suited
to support an appropriate level of investment-grade secured debt with long-dated maturities given the predictability of the
cash flows and tendency of these assets to retain substantial value throughout economic cycles. This is reflected in our return
on net capital deployed, our overall return on capital and our cost of capital. While we tend to hold our assets for extended
periods of time, we endeavour to own our businesses in a manner that maximizes our ability to realize the value and liquidity
of our assets on short notice and without disrupting our operations.

»  Finally, as an investor and capital allocator with a value investing culture and expertise in recapitalizations and operational
turnarounds, we strive to invest at attractive valuations, particularly in situations that create opportunities for superior valuation
gains and cash flow returns.
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ECONOMIC AND MARKET REVIEW
(As at March 8™, 2017)

The predictions and forecasts within our Economic and Market Review and Outlook are based on information and assumptions
from sources we consider reliable. If this information or these assumptions are not accurate, actual economic outcomes may differ
materially from the outlook presented in this section. For details on risk factors from general business and economic conditions
that may affect our business and financial results, refer to Part 5 — Operating Capabilities, Environment and Risks.

Overview and Outlook

In 2016, the year began with weak inflation across most of the developed world due to falling commodity prices and modest
economic growth. This supported further interest rate cuts (Europe and Australia), reduced expectations for rate hikes (U.S.), and
even new policies targeting interest rate levels (Japan). Meanwhile, many countries in Latin America were dealing with above-
target inflation and high interest rates due to a combination of weakening currencies and weather-related events (Colombia, Brazil,
and Peru). As the year progressed, inflation began returning to target, aided by a rebound in commodity prices and firmer growth
(developed countries) and stabilizing currencies (Latin America). Overall, real GDP growth was slightly lower in 2016 than 2015,
with the U.S. slowing to 1.6% year over year and Eurozone slowing to 1.7%. Latin America also saw a modest slowdown, with
many countries growing by 1.5 to 2.5%, except for Peru (3.9%) which outperformed and Brazil (-3.6%) which remained in a
recession. The outlook for growth in 2017 is brighter, as many countries ended the year stronger than they started. However, it
also looks riskier from a geopolitical perspective, with major elections in Europe (France and Germany), the start of Brexit
negotiations, and uncertainty related to U.S. trade and foreign policy. We expect developed markets to continue averaging close
to 2% growth, and the developing countries to recover to a faster pace than what was seen in 2016.

United States

The U.S. economy grew by 1.6% in 2016, slightly below the 2.2% average from 2009-2015. Consumer spending remained the
primary growth driver, but unlike recent years, investment growth was weak. Nonetheless, the second half of the year was much
stronger than the first half, and there is solid momentum heading into 2017. The labour market remains very strong, with the
unemployment rate down to 4.8%, initial jobless claims below 250 thousand (40-year low), and the number of discouraged workers
nearly back to pre-crisis levels. This is very close to what the Federal Reserve considers to be full employment, and it is supporting
strong wage growth and helping push inflation back to the Fed’s 2% target. Inflationary pressures could build in 2017, particularly
if the new administration increases spending, cuts taxes, or raises import tariffs. In this context, we expect to see multiple rate
hikes this year as the Fed’s targets are met. Interest rate divergence with other developed nations should continue to support a
strong USD. Meanwhile, momentum in the housing sector stalled in 2016 after several years of strong growth, and annual housing
starts of approximately 1.2 million remains below our estimate of the sustainable range (1.4 to 1.6 million). We continue to see
upside to housing starts in 2017. Overall, real GDP should continue to grow by 2-3%, barring any major policy disruption.

United Kingdom

Real GDP in the U.K. grew 2.0% in the fourth quarter and by 1.8% overall in 2016. Growth continues to defy forecasts for a sharp
downturn in the wake of Brexit, but inflation has risen quickly from 0.4% in June to 1.9% in January, as the GBP depreciation
(-10% on a trade-weighted basis) is being passed on to consumers. Inflation will likely exceed the Bank of England’s 2% target
early in 2017 and could impact consumption, the primary driver of growth, if real purchasing power erodes. Year-over-year job
growth averaged 1.7% through the first nine months of 2016, but slowed to just 1% in the fourth quarter. Despite the uncertainty
related to Brexit, industrial production and manufacturing grew faster in the second half of the year, aided by the weaker pound.
The outlook for 2017 is mixed, but consumer spending will likely be the key. If consumption holds up despite higher inflation,
growth should remain solid and the Bank of England may need to consider a rate hike. Alternatively, if consumption weakens,
growth could slow abruptly, as some originally expected. Longer term, if Brexit leads the U.K. to become a more closed nation,
in terms of both immigration and trade, it will have lower growth potential.

Eurozone

Eurozone real GDP grew steadily at 1.7% in the fourth quarter, and 1.7% overall in 2016. Germany and Spain both outperformed
the region in 2016, growing by 1.8% and 3.0%, respectively. Italy and France were laggards, growing at 1.0% and 1.2%. Countries
that were initially hit the hardest during the Euro crisis are now outperforming, as job growth in Spain and Ireland was more than
double the Eurozone average in 2016 (2.7% vs. 1.3%). Despite some progress in 2016, structural issues remain in the region, with
budget deficits in the 2 to 5% range and debt-to-GDP ratios in the 100 to 140% range. Italy, Portugal, Spain and France are not
making progress towards reducing government debt levels. This leaves some countries, particularly Italy and Portugal, with debt
ratios over 130% of GDP, susceptible to rising interest rates. While the ECB is keeping downward pressure on regional interest
rates, global rate movements can still push Eurozone rates higher, as seen in the fourth quarter. 2017 will be a major year for
European politics, with elections in France and Germany, and potentially in Italy after a failed referendum in December led the
Prime Minister to resign. Rising popularity of anti-EU parties continues to be a key risk.
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Brazil

Brazil’s economic contraction continues to slow, with real GDP declining 2.5% year over year in the fourth quarter and 3.6%
overall in 2016. Brazil looks to be on track to resume growth in 2017 after a deep two-year recession. Net exports continue to
rise, while the contractions in consumption and investment have slowed. Inflation declined sharply from 10.7% last January
to 5.4% this January. In response, the central bank has cut interest rates by 200 bps since October, and further cuts will provide
relief to public finances, consumers, and businesses. The government’s primary deficit stood at 2.5% of GDP in November, while
the budget deficit (which includes interest payments) remains wide at 9.3% of GDP. As the central bank lowers interest rates,
financing costs and the budget deficit will be substantially reduced. A virtuous cycle of lower inflation and lower interest rates
will also help stimulate investment. The unemployment rate rose to 12% in December, with job cuts particularly acute in
manufacturing and construction. However, this significant slack in employment could lead the economy to outperform in the
coming years once growth returns. The Lava Jato corruption investigations continue, and upcoming plea bargain testimonies are
a key short-term uncertainty for the markets and popular sentiment. However, this challenging period has placed pressure on the
administration to accelerate economic reforms, which are now underway. This leaves Brazil, with its large and growing middle
class, well placed to grow sustainably in the medium and long term.

Canada

Growth in Canada rebounded to 1.4% in 2016 after growing by 0.6% in 2015. The pain in the energy sector has begun to ease
with global oil prices rising back to the $50-55/barrel level and investment may positively contribute to growth again in 2017 after
declining for two years. There continues to be disparities in performance between provinces, with Alberta and Saskatchewan
shedding a combined 500k jobs in 2016, while the diversified economies of Ontario, Quebec, and British Columbia added
2.2 million. Overall, substantial slack remains in the economy, and Canada should continue to grow at a slower pace than the U.S.
The Bank of Canada will likely maintain an accommodative monetary policy to keep the CAD weak and support the economy
until it is operating closer to full capacity. A key risk remains high consumer debt levels and high housing prices in Toronto and
Vancouver — a correction in housing prices would lead to weaker growth.

Australia

Australia grew by 2.5% in 2016, but slowed in the second half, growing by 1.9% in Q3 and 2.4% in Q4. Growth is being driven
by a combination of higher export volumes (LNG, coal, and iron ore), steady consumer spending and higher government spending
on major infrastructure projects. Offsetting some of the growth was a steep decline (-35%) in mining investment. Higher commodity
prices and export volumes led to Australia’s first trade surplus in three years in the fourth quarter. Employment started the year
strong, growing 2.1% year over year in the first half of 2016, but slipped in the second half of the year to 1.1%, with all of the
growth coming from part-time jobs. A similar story was seen in retail sales volumes, which grew by 2.7% year over year in the first
half of 2016 before slipping to 1.7% in the second half. The housing sector remained a key driver of consumption and investment
in 2016 as prices continued to rise, but a surge in housing starts — paired with high household debt levels — creates a risk of a
correction in the next couple of years. Given these risks, and fairly benign inflation, the central bank will look to keep interest
rates low.

China

China reported real GDP growth of 6.7% in 2016, aided by a surge in government-directed credit (total social financing) of 16%.
The credit boost lifted the real estate market, with prices in Tier 1 cities rising 28% in 2016. It also supported a recovery in key
industrial indicators, including investment (+8%), housing starts (+8%), and industrial power consumption (+2%). However,
corporate debt levels have risen to 175% of GDP, the highest of any major economy, which poses a risk. The transition from
investment-driven economy to consumption-driven is still in its early stages, and the economy may experience some volatility
along the way. Despite the risks ahead, China’s growing middle class continues to spend more, with retail sales growth remaining
above 10%. China is also seeking to compete in higher value-added sectors, and its R&D spending (2.1% of GDP) is nearly on
par with the OECD average (2.4% of GDP). China faces a declining working-age population in the coming years, so growth should
slow down, but continued productivity gains will support sustained economic development.

India

India’s official real GDP grew by 7.5% in 2016 and remains one of the fastest growing developing countries in the world. Inflation
continued to decline — reaching a five-year low of 3.2% in January — supported by lower food prices following last year’s strong
harvest. In response, the central bank has started to cut interest rates. India introduced a sales tax reforms bill in Q3, which should
improve inter-state trade flows and tax collection. The November decision to withdraw the largest denominated bills from circulation
(86% of the total) faced logistical challenges in its rollout, particularly in India’s largely cash-based informal economy. While this
could dampen activity in the near term, it should accelerate financial sector formalization and support continued growth
in the country.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND USE OF NON-IFRS MEASURES

Basis of Accounting

We are a Canadian corporation and, as such, we prepare our consolidated financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”), as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board. We are listed on the Toronto
Stock Exchange, New York Stock Exchange and Euronext. The following discussion contains a summary of two key IFRS
accounting policies that we believe are particularly relevant to users of our financial statements. Our significant accounting policies
are described in Note 2 to our consolidated financial statements, which also contains a summary of judgments and estimates.

Election of Fair Value Accounting

We account for a number of our assets at fair value including our commercial properties, renewable power facilities, and certain
of our infrastructure and financial assets.

We classify the vast majority of the property assets within our office, retail and opportunistic portfolios as investment properties.
We have elected to record our investment properties at fair value, and accordingly changes in the value of these assets are recorded
as fair value changes within net income on a quarterly basis. Depreciation is not recorded on investment properties.

Our renewable power facilities, certain of our infrastructure assets and hospitality assets within our property portfolio are classified
as property, plant and equipment and we have elected to record these assets at fair value using the revaluation method. Unlike
investment properties, these assets are fair valued on an annual basis and changes in value are recorded as revaluation surplus
within other comprehensive income and accumulated within equity. Depreciation is determined on the revalued carrying values
at the beginning of each year and recorded in net income.

A significant portion of our infrastructure operation’s assets such as public service concessions are classified as intangible assets
and reflect the fair value of the regulatory rate base or other characteristics at acquisition. These intangible assets are carried at
amortized cost, subject to impairment tests, and are amortized over their useful lives.

Property, plant and equipment and inventory included within our private equity and residential development operations are typically
recorded at amortized historic cost or the lower of cost and net realizable value. Other intangible assets and goodwill are recorded
at amortized cost or cost.

Financial assets, financial contracts and other contractual arrangements that are treated as derivatives are recorded at fair value in
our financial statements and changes in their value are recorded in net income or other comprehensive income, depending on their
nature and business purpose (i.e. whether a security is held for trading, classified as available-for-sale, or whether a financial
contract qualifies for hedge accounting or not). The more significant and more common financial contracts and contractual
arrangements employed in our business that are fair valued include: interest rate contracts, foreign exchange contracts, and
agreements for the sale of electricity.

Equity accounted investments follow the same accounting principles as our consolidated operations and accordingly, include
amounts recorded at fair value and amounts recorded at amortized cost or cost, depending on the nature of the underlying assets.

Consolidated Financial Information

We consolidate a number of entities even though we hold only a minority economic interest. This is the result of our exercising
control, as determined under IFRS, over the affairs of these entities due to contractual arrangements and our significant economic
interest in these entities.

As a result, we include 100% of the revenues and expenses of these entities in our consolidated statements of operations, even
though a substantial portion of the net income in these consolidated entities is attributable to non-controlling interests. On the
other hand, revenues earned and expenses paid between us and our subsidiaries, such as asset management fees, are eliminated
in our consolidated statements of operations; however, these items impact the attribution of net income between shareholders and
non-controlling interests. For example, asset management fees paid by our listed partnerships to the Corporation are eliminated
from consolidated revenues and expenses. However, as the common shareholders are attributed all of the fee revenue while only
attributed their proportionate share of the listed partnerships’ expenses, the amount of net income attributable to common
shareholders is increased with a corresponding decrease in net income attributable to non-controlling interests.
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Interests in entities over which we exercise significant influence, but where we do not exercise control, are accounted for as equity
accounted investments. We record our proportionate share of their net income on a “one-line” basis as equity accounted income
within our Consolidated Statements of Operations and “two-lines” within Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income as
equity accounted income that may be reclassified to net income and equity accounted income that will not be reclassified to net
income. As a result, our share of items such as fair value changes, that would be included within fair value changes if the entity
was consolidated, are instead included within equity accounted income.

Certain of our consolidated subsidiaries and equity accounted investments do not utilize IFRS for their own statutory reporting
purposes. The comprehensive income utilized by us for these entities is determined using IFRS and may differ significantly from
the comprehensive income pursuant to the accounting principles reported elsewhere by the investee. For example, IFRS provides
areporting issuer a policy election to fair value its investment properties, as described above, whereas other accounting principles
such as U.S. GAAP may not. Accordingly, their statutory financial statements, which may be publicly available, may differ from
those which we consolidate.

Use of Non-IFRS Measures

We disclose a number of financial measures in this Report that are calculated and presented using methodologies other than in
accordance with IFRS. These measures are used primarily in Part 3 of the MD&A. We utilize these non-IFRS measures in managing
the business, including performance measurement, capital allocation and valuation and believe that providing these performance
measures on a supplemental basis to our IFRS results is helpful to investors in assessing the overall performance of our businesses.
These financial measures should not be considered as a substitute for similar financial measures calculated in accordance with
IFRS. We caution readers that these non-IFRS financial measures may differ from the calculations disclosed by other businesses,
and as a result, may not be comparable to similar measures presented by others. Reconciliations of these non-IFRS financial
measures to the most directly comparable financial measures calculated and presented in accordance with IFRS, where applicable,
are included within Part 3 of this MD&A and elsewhere as appropriate.
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PART 2 — FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW
SELECTED ANNUAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(MILLIONS, EXCEPY PER SHARE AMOUNTS) Change
Condensed Statements of Operations 2016 2015 2014 2016 vs2015 2015vs2014
REVENUES ... $ 24411 §$ 19913 §$ 18,364 $ 4,498 $ 1,549
DIIECT COSES..cuvimiviieiiriiieierieertcet et (17,718) (14,433) (13,118) (3,285) (1,315)
Gross margin1 ............................................................. 6,693 5,480 5,246 1,213 234
Other income and gains ............cccceeiviveeenininieiccninnen. 482 145 190 337 (45)
Equity accounted inCOMe.........cccecevveereenieenieenenienne 1,293 1,695 1,594 (402) 101
Expenses

TOEETESE ..ttt (3,233) (2,820) (2,579) (413) (241)

COIPOTALE COSLS ...cevevevnirrenieeeeieneieeeieiee e 92) (106) (123) 14 17
Fair value changes.........c.cccoeveveeenneerinnnecnneereeeennns (130) 2,166 3,674 (2,296) (1,508)
Depreciation and amortization.... (2,020) (1,695) (1,470) (325) (225)
INCOME tAXES ..ot 345 (196) (1,323) 541 1,127
NEt INCOME ...t 3,338 4,669 5,209 (1,331) (540)
Non-controlling interests ..........cecevveverirrererereerenenes (1,687) (2,328) (2,099) 641 (229)
Net income attributable to shareholders................ $ 1,651 $ 2,341 3,110 (690) $ (769)
Net income per share..................cccoevevrieeiririeeennnnnn $ 155 § 2.26 3.11 0.71) $ (0.85)
1. Gross margin is defined on page 20
Condensed Statements of Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Revaluation of property, plant and equipment........... $ 824 § 2,144 $ 2,998 3 (1,320) $ (854)
Foreign currency translation ..........c.cccceceveerecneenne. 1,236 (3,461) (1,717) 4,697 (1,744)
Financial contracts and other .............cccocooeeiniiins 496 (475) (483) 971 8
Equity accounted investments............co.coeceveerennenne 430 515 223 (85) 292
Taxes on above ItemS.........cceerueireeneerieieeeceeeneene 173) (448) (610) 275 162
Other comprehensive income (10Ss)........ccecereeueeenee. 2,813 (1,725) 411 4,538 (2,136)
Non-controlling interests ..........c.cevevveereerenccnennes (1,992) 945 (110) (2,937) 1,055
Other comprehensive income (loss)

attributable to shareholders........................... 821 (780) 301 1,601 (1,081)
Comprehensive income

attributable to shareholders............................. $ 2472 $ 1,561 $ 3411 $ 911 $ (1,850)
Selected Balance Sheet Information Change
(MILLIONS) 2016 2015 2014 2016vs2015 2015 vs 2014
Consolidated aSSetS .........ccveveerverrerierieriereriereseeeenens $ 159,826 $ 139,514 § 129,480 §$ 20,312 § 10,034
Borrowings and other non-current financial

TH@DILITIES. o vevevevercerceceecee et 72,650 65,420 60,663 7,230 4,757
EqQUILY ..o 69,688 57,227 53,247 12,461 3,980

Dividends declared for each class of issued securities for the three most recent years are presented on page 39.
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ANNUAL FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The following section contains a discussion and analysis of line items presented within our consolidated financial statements. We
have disaggregated several of the line items into the amounts that are attributable to our seven operating segments in order to
facilitate the review. The financial data in this section has been prepared in accordance with IFRS for each of the three most
recently completed financial years.

Overview
2016 vs. 2015

Consolidated net income for the year ended December 31, 2016 was $3.3 billion compared to $4.7 billion in 2015. Gross margin
increased by $1.2 billion, attributable to new businesses and developments that were acquired or completed during the year and
operational improvements across our businesses, including the commencement of new leases and improved pricing in our panel
board business. The acquisitions and developments also led to increases in interest expense and depreciation of $413 million and
$325 million, respectively.

Fair value changes were a loss of $130 million in 2016, whereas we recorded fair value increases of $2.2 billion in 2015. Fair
value changes relating to our investment properties were a gain of $1.0 billion due to value increases, primarily in our opportunistic
property portfolios. Appraised values in our core office portfolios were consistent with the prior year end as the strengths in some
markets offset weaknesses in others. Furthermore, the impact of rising interest rates on our discount rates was offset by de-risking
of certain properties through leasing activity and the general compression of spreads between interest and capitalization rates for
commercial properties. We recorded appraisal gains in our opportunistic properties due to improvements in projected cash flows
and reviews of comparable transaction metrics for certain opportunistic asset classes. Investment properties appraisal gains were
offset by the impact of impairments on certain financial assets that are valued based on stock market prices and certain non-core
manufacturing businesses that have been classified as held for sale.

Income taxes represented a net recovery as a result of a reduction in the effective tax rate on certain property assets following a
change in ownership structure. Equity accounted income declined by $402 million, primarily due to a decrease in the amount of
fair value gains recorded in these entities. We also recorded a higher level of other income and gains, largely due to gains on the
disposition of hospitality properties during the year.

Net income attributable to common shareholders totalled $1.7 billion, or $1.55 per share, compared to $2.3 billion, or $2.26 per
share in 2015. The decline of $641 million in the amount of net income attributable to non-controlling interests reflects the overall
decline in net income, as well as a reattribution of income related to carried interest earned.

2015 vs. 2014

Consolidated net income for the year ended December 31, 2015 was $4.7 billion, compared to $5.2 billion in 2014. Gross margin
increased by $234 million as the contribution from acquired assets, completed developments and new leases in our commercial
office portfolio was largely offset by a lower contribution from our renewable power operations, due to below average generation,
and reduced deliveries in our residential operations, as well as the absence of contributions from assets sold since the 2014 period
and the impact of foreign currency. A $1.5 billion decline in fair value changes compared to the prior year, combined with a higher
provision for depreciation and amortization, was partially offset by a reduction in deferred income taxes. Lastly, a larger proportion
ofnetincome was attributable to non-controlling interests which further reduced net income attributable to Brookfield shareholders.

Fair value changes declined from 2014 to 2015. Appraisal gains on investment properties held within consolidated subsidiaries
totalled $2.2 billion, which were $991 million less than the prior year. In addition, gains arising within fair value changes on the
value of warrants we hold in General Growth Properties Inc. (“General Growth Properties” or “GGP”) were $556 million lower
in the current year. Income taxes in 2015 includes a $464 million deferred income tax recovery on a change in the effective tax
rates of some of our commercial properties, and an overall lower level of deferred income taxes associated with the lower level
of investment property fair value gains.

Net income attributable to shareholders decreased by $769 million from 2014 to $2.3 billion in 2015 or $2.26 per share. Much of
the increase in revenues net of direct costs relates to acquisitions within consolidated funds in which Brookfield has a lower
economic interest while the decrease in fair value changes occurred within our property operations in which we have a higher
ownership interest.
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Foreign Currency Translation

The most significant currency exchange rates that impact net income are shown in the following table:

Average Annual Rate Change
2016 2015
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DEC. 31 2016 2015 2014 vs 2015 vs 2014
Australian dOLAT.............ooouiiieiiie e 0.7441 0.7523 0.9023 % (7%
Brazilian real..........ccoooeieieiiieiiie e 3.4904 3.2776 2.3469 6)% (40)%
British pOUNd..........ccooiiiiiieiieiceiceeeeee e 1.3554 1.5285 1.6478 (11D)% N%
Canadian dOMAr.............oooviiiiiiieeeeeeeeeee e 0.7555 0.7832 0.9057 4)% (14)%

The average annual foreign exchange rates relative to the U.S. dollar for the more significant currencies that impact our business
were lower for the year ended December 31, 2016, than that of 2015 and 2014. As a result of these rate variations, the U.S. dollar
equivalents of the contributions from our subsidiaries and investments in these regions, particularly in the U.K., were lower in
2016 than in 2015 and 2014, all else being equal. From time to time, we mitigate the impacts of movements in foreign exchange
rates through the use of financial contracts, where it is economically feasible to do so.

Statements of Operations
Revenues and Gross Margin

The following table presents consolidated revenues and gross margin, which we have disaggregated into our operating segments
in order to facilitate a review of year-over-year variances. Gross margin is calculated as revenues less direct costs as presented in
our Consolidated Statements of Operations. Acquisitions, dispositions, changes in the basis of presentation, such as between
consolidation or equity accounting following changes in control, can impact revenues and direct costs concurrently, as can foreign
currency fluctuations; accordingly, analysis of revenues less direct costs (i.e. gross margin) on a segmented basis can facilitate
analysis by presenting the net impact of these items.

Revenues from our property and infrastructure assets tend to be relatively consistent between periods because they are largely
determined by contractual arrangements, whereas renewable power revenues can be impacted by changes in water availability
and wind conditions. Revenues within our private equity business generally vary in line with changes in the level of economic
activity, with the exception of our construction operations that can fluctuate significantly with the award of large contracts.

Revenue Gross Margin Change
MILLIONS) e PGS 2016 2015 2016 2015 Revenue Miigffl
ASSEt MANAZEMENL ... $ 1,320 $ 9221 $ 877 $ 544 $ 399 $ 333
PrOPEItY ..ot 6,338 5,444 3,306 2,779 894 527
Renewable POWET.........coeuivueirieieiieeeeceeeeeeienae 2,474 1,632 1,429 1,072 842 357
INfrastructure. ......co.eeeeieieieeeeeeeeeee e 2,414 2,126 1,230 1,236 288 (6)
Private equity ....cceeceeceeeeieienieseseeeeeee e 9,962 8,580 772 642 1,382 130
Residential development...........c.coceeeireiiiineenenne 3,019 2,329 196 253 690 (57)
Corporate activities.......... 235 78 181 54 157 127
Eliminations and adjustments' ... . (1,351) (1,197) (1,298) (1,100) (154) (198)
Total consolidated..............cooveveveuieerereeeeeeeceeae $ 24411 $ 19913 $ 6,693 $ 5480 $ 4498 § 1,213

1. Adjustment to eliminate asset management fee revenue and carried interest, interest income earned from entities that we consolidate and revenues earned on
construction projects between consolidated entities. See Note 3 to our consolidated financial statements
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Revenue Gross Margin Change

MILLIONS) o ED PEC 3 2015 2014 2015 2014 Revenue Mﬁi;fﬁ
Asset Management ........coeeeeeevenienienienieneeeeeeenennen $ 921 $ 771 $ 544 § 399§ 150 $ 145
PrOPEItY . c.eueeeieieeee et 5,444 5,010 2,779 2,382 434 397
Renewable POWET.........cccoevveuinieinieiiinicenicrecenene 1,632 1,679 1,072 1,149 47) (77)
Infrastructure 2,126 2,193 1,236 1,202 (67) 34
Private quity ..ccooeeveeereeirieieeeie e 8,580 6,158 642 442 2,422 200
Residential development...........c.coveeeennieirennnenenes 2,329 2,912 253 2,519 (583) (2,266)
Corporate aCtivities........coveerveireenieerienieenieereenienens 78 199 54 108 (121) (54)
Eliminations and adjustments’....................cc...c....... (1,197) (558) (1,100) (2,955) (639) 1,855
Total consolidated.............ccevvevveviinriirieeeriereeienenne. $ 19913 $ 18364 $ 5480 $ 5246 $ 1,549 3 234

1. Adjustment to eliminate asset management fee revenue and carried interest, interest income earned from entities that we consolidate and revenues earned on
construction projects between consolidated entities. See Note 3 to our consolidated financial statements

Asset Management
2016 vs. 2015

Revenues in our asset management operations increased by $399 million or 43% in 2016 due to a $257 million increase in base
management fees and incentive distributions and a $129 million increase in carried interest on the monetization of investments
in our private equity and property private funds. Base management fees from funds increased by $186 million to $495 million, as
these fees benefitted from a 44% increase in fee bearing capital driven by new fund commitments. Listed partnership fees increased
$58 million due to a 15% increase in capitalization from higher market pricing and new issuances of debt and equity, in addition
to the launch of BBU which had a capitalization of $2.3 billion at the time of the initial spin-off. Incentive distributions increased
by $32 million, reflecting our participation in our listed partnerships’ unitholder distribution increases in 2016. Gross margin
increased by $333 million to $877 million due to the aforementioned increases in revenues, which were partially offset by higher
direct costs driven by the expansion of our operations.

2015vs. 2014

Revenues in our asset management operations increased by $150 million or 19% in 2015 primarily due to a $155 million increase
in base management fees. Base management fees from private funds increased by $93 million or 38%, including $83 million of
fees earned on new fund commitments. We also earned an additional $24 million of incentive distributions reflecting our incentive
participation in our listed partnerships’ unitholder distribution increases in 2015. In addition, we realized $49 million (2014 —
$8 million) of carried interest on the monetization of properties. Gross margin increased from $399 million to $544 million as the
increases in fees were partially offset by $36 million of additional costs associated with the expansion of our operations as well
as incentive compensation paid on the realization of carried interest.

Property
2016 vs. 2015

Revenue increased by $894 million or 16% mainly as a result of incremental capital allocated to higher yielding opportunistic
investments and same-property growth in our core office business. Acquisitions contributed an additional $612 million of revenues
in the year, primarily through our opportunistic funds. These included the acquisition of an office portfolio in Brazil, a self-storage
portfolio, a student housing portfolio and the privatization of a U.S. regional mall business. Same-property growth in our core
office portfolio contributed $39 million in revenue driven by the commencement of new leases, particularly at the Brookfield
Place New York redevelopment project. Merchant development sales increased revenues and gross margins by $296 million and
$117 million, respectively. These increases were offset by the disposition or partial disposition of mature assets within our core
office and retail portfolios. Gross margin increased by $527 million or 19% to $3.3 billion due to the redeployment of capital in
higher margin asset classes, including self-storage and student housing, a full year of contribution from our U.K. resort business,
and higher rental income following the renovation program within our multifamily portfolio.
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2015 vs. 2014

Acquisitions within our property operations increased revenues and gross margins by $803 million and $552 million, respectively,
in comparison to 2014. Acquisitions in 2015 include a large U.K. resort operator and multifamily properties in the U.S. Margins
in our property operations increased significantly in 2015 due to the acquisition of a large triple net lease portfolio in the second
half of 2014, which incurs minimal direct costs. The contribution from these investments and same-property growth in occupancy
and rental rates in our office portfolio, particularly in Lower Manhattan, was partially offset by the effects of lower exchange rates
on results from our foreign operations and the elimination of $176 million of revenues and $104 million of gross margins following
the disposal of assets throughout the year. Significant dispositions in 2015 included office properties in Melbourne, Australia,
Washington, D.C. and Boston.

Renewable Power
2016 vs. 2015

Revenues and gross margin increased by $842 million and $357 million compared to the prior year, respectively, primarily due
to acquisitions in Colombia, Brazil and Pennsylvania, which contributed $882 million of additional revenues. The impact of
stronger hydroelectric generation in Canada and Brazil, coupled with improved wind generation in Brazil were offset by lower
pricing in our North American and Brazilian hydroelectric portfolios, as well as the impact of foreign exchange on our non-U.S.
denominated operations. Gross margin increased by $357 million as the increase in revenues from acquisitions were partially
offset by the associated increase in direct costs of $470 million.

2015 vs. 2014

Generation from facilities acquired and completed developments coming online increased revenues by $202 million in 2015,
compared to 2014. This positive variance was more than offset by lower generation from assets held in both periods, reduced
pricing and negative foreign currency variation. Lower hydrology conditions in the northeast U.S. and in Brazil, and lower overall
wind conditions, reduced revenues from assets held throughout both periods by $84 million during the year. In addition, North
American electricity pricing decreased relative to the prior year, which reduced revenue by $42 million in aggregate. Gross margin
decreased by $77 million, reflecting the decline in revenue as well as an increase of $30 million in direct costs over the prior year,
primarily due to costs associated with newly acquired facilities.

Infrastructure
2016 vs. 2015

Revenues in our infrastructure operations increased by $288 million in 2016 compared to 2015. The increase in revenue is primarily
due to acquisitions and internal growth initiatives completed over the past 12 months which contributed $380 million of additional
revenues, net of dispositions. Acquisitions in 2016 include a ports business in Australia, North American gas storage, and toll
roads in India and Peru. Completion of expansion projects also contributed to revenue growth, in particular from projects completed
within our U.K. regulated distribution business and district energy operations. This increase was partially offset by the impact of
lower currency exchange rates on revenues at non-U.S. subsidiaries. Gross margin decreased by $6 million, reflecting direct costs
of $325 million from businesses acquired in 2016 and $50 million in costs associated with higher volumes were partially offset
by the aforementioned increases in revenues.

2015 vs. 2014

Revenues in our infrastructure operations declined by $67 million in 2015 compared to 2014. Improved volumes across our
businesses, along with higher rates and tariff increased revenues by $180 million from 2014. These increases were more than
offset by the impact of lower currency exchange rates on revenues at non-U.S. subsidiaries. Gross margin increased by $34 million
compared to 2014 as increased costs of $53 million from businesses acquired in 2015 and $24 million in costs associated with
higher volumes were more than offset by a decrease from the depreciation of the non-U.S. dollar currencies in which we operate
and a decrease of $25 million resulting from cost reduction programs.

Private Equity
2016 vs. 2015

Revenues increased by $1.4 billion as a reflection of earnings from entities which were acquired throughout 2015 that now have
contributed revenues for the full year, namely in our other industrial operations segment which included an infrastructure support
business acquired in June 2015 a graphite electrode manufacturing operations acquired in August 2015, and our palladium business
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acquired in August 2015. Revenues in our construction services operations increased 14% from $3.8 billion in 2015 to $4.4 billion
in the current year as a result of an increased level of activity in Australia and the U.K. Furthermore, our directly held panel board
business benefitted from higher pricing and volume in the North American oriented strand board (“OSB”’) market throughout the
year, increasing revenue by $368 million. This increase in revenue combined with the aforementioned increase in activity at our
construction services operations contributed to higher gross margins, partially offset by lower margins on an Australian contract;
this resulted in an overall increase of $200 million in gross margin compared to last year.

2015 vs. 2014

The increases in revenues are substantially attributable to the businesses acquired throughout the year, including a U.S. industrial
manufacturing operation, an infrastructure products manufacturing operation and a Canadian palladium mine. Revenues at our
directly held panel board operations decreased by $103 million or 7% in 2015, primarily due to lower prices partially offset by a
4% increase in shipment volumes. Revenues from our construction services operation increased by $1.0 billion as a number of
large projects commenced during the year. A large percentage of revenues and costs are earned and incurred in non-U.S. dollars,
therefore the decline in the value of local currencies reduced the translated value of gross margins by $19 million. Other business
services revenues increased by $873 million as a result of the acquisition of an integrated facilities management business during
the first quarter of 2015. This increase was partially offset by reduced volumes in our residential real estate services business, where
revenues decreased by $193 million.

Residential
2016 vs. 2015

Revenues for the year increased by $690 million while gross margins decreased by $57 million. We delivered 43 projects in our
Brazilian operation, compared to 25 in the prior year, which increased revenue by $466 million. This increase in revenue was
more than offset by higher selling costs and corporate overhead, which resulted in a reduction in gross margins. In our North
American operations, we experienced 537 additional home closings and a 7% overall increase in the average home selling prices
based on the product mix of homes sold, however, these were offset by lower land gross margins as a result of decreases in average
selling prices based on the product mix of lots sold.

2015 vs. 2014

Revenues from our Brazilian operations decreased by $691 million compared to 2014; we delivered fewer projects in 2015 due
to a slowing economy in Brazil and delivery dates for a number of projects that were moved to future quarters due to construction
and permitting delays. The decline in the Brazilian currency also reduced the translated value of revenues by $364 million. In our
North American business, revenues increased by $67 million due to increased housing sales volumes, particularly in the U.S.,
although these were partially offset by the mix of deliveries being more weighted to lower priced homes and the decreased impact
of'the lower Canadian dollar on sales in our Canadian operations. Gross margins also declined compared to 2014 with the increased
proportion of lower-priced product sold.

Corporate Activities

2016 vs. 2015

Revenues increased as a result of higher level of investment gains within our financial asset portfolio compared to 2015.
2015 vs. 2014

Revenues declined due to reduced level of investment gains within our financial asset portfolio compared to 2014.
Other Income and Gains

Other income and gains in 2016 included gains on the disposition of a portfolio of hospitality assets and hospitality trademarks
of $108 million and $131 million, respectively, as well as a $67 million gain from a partial disposition of a toehold position in
publicly traded securities.
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Equity Accounted Income

Equity accounted income represents our share of the net income recorded by investments over which we exercise significant
influence. The following table disaggregates consolidated equity accounted income to facilitate analysis:

Change
(FI\(/I’&H*O%)EARS ENDED DEC. 31 2016 2015 2014 2016 vs 2015  2015vs2014
Property operations
General Growth Properties...........ccccccveveneenen. $ 476 $ 526 $ 1,006 $ 50) $ (480)
Canary Wharf .........cccovveennneincccnenees 10 461 — (451) 461
Other property operations.............c.cceeeeveenene 445 600 387 (155) 213
Infrastructure Operations ..........c..ccceeeevecrvenenne 314 125 81 189 44
Private equity and other ..........c.coccccovvvneecnennen. 48 17) 120 65 (137)
$ 1,293 § 1,695 § 1,594 § (402) $ 101

Our share of GGP’s equity accounted income was $476 million this year, compared to $526 million in 2015. GGP’s income,
excluding fair value changes and depreciation and amortization, in 2016 was $430 million, which increased by $34 million
compared to 2015 due to a 5% improvement in operating results on a same-store basis, partially offset by the absence of income
from asset dispositions. GGP recorded fair value gains of $21 million in the year, as asset values remained relatively consistent
year over year. Our share of GGP’s equity accounted income in 2015 decreased by $480 million compared to 2014, of which
$466 million was due to a reduction in the level of fair value gains recognized by GGP.

Our share of Canary Wharf’s equity accounted income was $10 million in 2016. Income earned from Canary Wharf’s operating
activities increased by $55 million to $154 million. This increase was partially offset by $126 million of unrealized losses on
interest rate swap contracts, as a result of changes in long-term interest rates. We commenced equity accounting for our interest
in Canary Wharf in February 2015 when we increased our ownership from 22% to 50%. Our share of Canary Wharf’s equity
accounted income in 2015 included appraisal gains of $332 million related to increases in the value of Canary Wharf’s investment
property portfolio since acquisition.

Equity accounted income from other property operations, which consist mainly of core office properties, decreased from
$600 million in 2015 to $445 million in 2016 due to the absence of net income from a U.S. regional mall business which we had
equity accounted for in the prior year but began consolidating following its privatization in July 2016.

Infrastructure equity accounted income for the year includes a $103 million transaction gain recognized in the second quarter of
2016 on the privatization of our Brazilian toll road investment. The gain was determined based on the difference between the cost
paid for our additional interest and our IFRS carrying value of this business.

Equity accounted income from private equity and other investments in 2016 increased by $65 million as the prior year’s results
included valuation charges on oil and gas reserves by investee companies and inventory impairments on equity accounted Brazilian
residential projects.

Interest Expense

The following table presents interest expense organized by the balance sheet classification of the associated liability:

Change
(FI\(/I’&H*O%)EARS ENDED DEC. 31 2016 2015 2014 2016 vs2015 2015vs2014
Corporate BOITOWINGS ........ceirveveviiriereeiiereeeeeanes $ 241§ 225 $ 228 $ 16 $ 3)
Non-recourse borrowings
Property-specific mortgages.........c.ccceeevveereennnn 2,498 2,124 2,047 374 77
Subsidiary borrowings 307 330 272 (23) 58
Subsidiary equity obligations ............cocceeecereirennne 187 141 32 46 109
$ 3233 §$ 2,820 $ 2,579 $ 413 ' $ 241

The majority of our borrowings are fixed rate long-term financing. Accordingly, changes in interest rates are typically limited to
the impact of refinancing borrowings at current rates or changes in the level of debt as a result of acquisitions and dispositions.
Borrowings are generally denominated in the same currencies as the assets they finance and therefore, the overall increase in the
value of the U.S. dollar in this period, compared to the prior year, resulted in a decrease in the translated value of the interest
expense on non-U.S. dollar denominated borrowings.
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Interest expense on property-specific mortgages during the year increased by $374 million over the prior year and included
$366 million of interest on additional borrowings associated with acquisitions, particularly within our property, infrastructure and
renewable power operations. We continue to refinance maturing obligations and, in certain instances, increased the notional level
of borrowings, albeit at reduced rates.

Interest expense on subsidiary borrowings decreased by $23 million largely due to repayments of credit facilities throughout the
year. In addition, our Brazilian residential operations continued to reduce the level of borrowings throughout the year, decreasing
interest expense.

Subsidiary equity obligations carrying charges increased by $46 million as a result of the interest incurred during the year on the
BPY preferred equity units issued in the second quarter.

Fair Value Changes

The following table disaggregates fair value changes into major components to facilitate analysis:

Change

fﬁ{iz}g\gfﬂs ENDED DEC. 31 2016 2015 2014 2016vs2015 2015vs 2014
Investment properties . $ 960 $ 2,275 $ 3,266 $ (1,315) § (991)
General Growth Properties warrants ...................... (110) (30) 526 (80) (556)
Investment in Canary Wharf.........c..cccocoecininnnne — 150 (283) (150) 433
Private equity investments. .........ccccoeerueereneenencns (665) (120) 230 (545) (350)
Redeemable Units.........c.cceveveereniceecnniecennieeene (40) ) 319 (38) (321)
Transaction related gains — 232 (€20 (232) 263
Impairments and other .........c.ccoeevennecinneercnennes (275) (339) (353) 64 14

$ (130) $ 2,166 $ 3,674 S (2,296) $ (1,508)

Investment Properties

Our investment properties are recorded at fair value with changes recorded in net income. The following table disaggregates
investment property fair value changes by asset type:

Change
MLLIONG T FNDED DEC. 31 2016 2015 2014 2016 vs 2015 2015vs2014
COrE OFfICE ovveeeeieeeir et $ 51 $ 1,638 $ 2937 § (1,587) $ (1,299)
Opportunistic and other .............cccccevvcviiviccinnnns 909 637 329 272 308
$ 960 S 2275 § 3,266 $ (1,315) § (991)

Our investment properties are recorded at fair value, generally determined using discounted cash flow analysis or, in limited
circumstances, direct capitalization rates. External appraisals and market comparables, when available, are used to support our
valuations.

Office property appraisal gains in the year totalled $51 million, compared to $1.6 billion in the prior year. The appraisal gains
reflect lower discount rates as a result of de-risking in our portfolio through leasing activity. The impact of rising interest rates
was offset by the general compression of spreads between interest rates and capitalization rates for commercial properties. This
was partially offset by lower pricing assumptions for projected lease renewals, particularly in commodity-based markets. Appraisal
gains in 2015 related to a reduction in capitalization and discount rates as a result of improving markets within our New York,
London, Toronto and Australian core office portfolios, and a positive impact on cash flow from leases signed during the period.
In 2014, the office appraisal gains were primarily as a result of a decline in capitalization and discount rate as a result of improving
economic conditions in the U.S.

We recorded fair value gains of $909 million in opportunistic and other properties which consist of our industrial, multifamily,
hospitality and other portfolio. We have been investing additional capital into this property class over the last three years, increasing
the asset base on which we record fair value increments. The gains were mainly driven by improved leasing activity in certain
industrial properties, higher projected cash flow in our multifamily and triple net lease portfolios, and lower terminal capitalization
rates due to operational improvements and review of comparable transactions. We also recorded fair value gains on the recently
acquired self-storage business, in which occupancy has increased since acquisition. Additionally, directly held investment
properties generated $283 million of gains as a result of improved performance at our multifamily services.
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We discuss the key valuation inputs of our investment properties on page 31.
General Growth Properties Warrants

We hold warrants that are convertible into approximately 75 million common shares of GGP. The share price declined by 8% in
the current year, resulting in a $110 million loss. A smaller decline in share price in 2015 generated a $30 million loss in the prior
year. This loss was partially offset by our share of the mark-to-market decrease of $36 million on the warrant liability by GGP,
which is included in equity accounted income.

Investment in Canary Wharf

We commenced equity accounting for our investment in early 2015 after increasing our interest from 22% to 50% and since that
time our share of valuation gains are recorded in equity accounted income. We recognized a $150 million revaluation gain in 2015
based on the price paid when we acquired our additional interest in Canary Wharf. In 2014 we recorded increases of $319 million,
in the value of this investment, which related to increases in the value of Canary Wharf’s development activities, as well as the
impact of lower discount rates on the valuations of its commercial office properties.

Private Equity Investments

In the fourth quarter of 2016, a company owned within our private equity operation emerged from a multi-year restructuring
process and our investment in debt securities of the company was converted into equity. The extinguishment of the debt and
establishment of the equity as a new financial asset resulted in a reclassification of the prior unrealized fair value losses of
$447 million that had previously been recorded in OCI resulting in an impairment loss being recorded in net income in the current
year. The impairment losses also included $81 million of fair value changes recorded in the current period for these securities.

During the second quarter of 2016, we recognized a $106 million impairment relating to certain non-core assets in an investee
company that have been classified as held for sale. The impairment was based on the difference between the expected sale price
of the assets and our IFRS carrying value.

Transaction Related Gains

Included in 2015 are two significant transaction related gains. First, in January of 2015 we acquired natural gas production facilities
in western Canada valued at $652 million for gross consideration of $481 million, including debt financing. Secondly, in February
2015 we acquired the remaining 50% interest in an integrated real estate management services business, increasing our ownership
to 100%. We commenced consolidation of the business which required us to revalue our existing 50% investment to the acquisition
cost resulting in a $101 million gain based on the excess of the transaction value over our IFRS book value.

During the first quarter of 2014 we disposed of a partial interest in a private equity investee company, resulting in the de-
consolidation of the business from our results and revaluing our retained interest based on its quoted market price. This gave rise
to a $230 million revaluation gain.

Impairment and Other

We recognized $85 million of impairments in 2016, compared with $79 million in 2015 and $121 million in 2014, related primarily
to development inventory at our Brazilian residential operations, which are experiencing weaker market fundamentals. This has
resulted in a decrease in margins relating to cost overruns and a slowing consumer demand. Additionally, we recognized $92 million
of provisions on projects under development at these operations in 2016, compared with $97 million in 2015 and $87 million in
2014.

Other fair value changes also include mark-to-market losses on financial contracts used to offset foreign currency and interest rate
exposure.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization includes the depreciation of property, plant and equipment, as well as the amortization of intangible
assets. The two largest contributions to depreciation and amortization come from our renewable power and infrastructure facilities.
Many of the assets in these businesses, with the exception of intangible assets, are revalued annually with changes recorded in
OCI, but are depreciated in net income. Depreciation is based on their carrying value at the beginning of each year. We do not
record depreciation on assets that are classified as investment properties (e.g. commercial office and retail properties) or biological
assets (e.g. our timberlands and agricultural assets). The amount of depreciation and amortization is generally consistent year over
year with large changes typically due to the addition or removal of depreciable assets, as a result of acquisitions, development and
disposition activities, the revaluation of carrying values and the impact of foreign currency revaluation on non-U.S. assets.
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Depreciation and amortization is summarized in the following table:

Change
fgﬁE%EN‘ngRS ENDED DEC. 31 2016 2015 2014 2016 vs 2015 2015vs2014
Renewable POWET.........cccoiviiireiieeeeereeeeene $ 805 $ 638 $ 566 $ 167 $ 72
Infrastructure 466 390 395 76 5)
Private equity 389 337 225 52 112
PrOPEItY.c.ceeeiieceeee e 311 267 261 44 6
OBRET ..ottt 49 63 23 (14) 40

$ 2,020 $ 1,695 $ 1,470 $ 325§ 225

The increase in depreciation and amortization each year is driven by acquisitions and development projects, as well as increases
resulting from our annual revaluation process. In 2016, the increase primarily relates to the following: our acquisitions of
hydroelectric portfolios in Colombia and Pennsylvania in our renewable power operations; a U.S. gas storage business and Indian
and Peruvian toll roads, as well as investments in internal growth capital projects, in our infrastructure operations; a full year’s
contribution from assets acquired throughout the prior year in our private equity operations; and the acquisition of a U.S. hospitality
asset in our property operations. These increases were partially offset by the impact of depreciation eliminated on the previously
sold infrastructure assets and the impact of foreign exchange on our non-U.S. dollar denominated operations.

Income Taxes

We recorded an aggregate income tax recovery of $345 million in 2016, compared to a provision of $196 million in 2015 and
$1.3 billion in 2014.

The two largest factors contributing to the variance between 2015 and 2016 were the effect of a reorganization of the ownership
of certain property assets that resulted in a reduction in the applicable tax rates and the statutory decrease in the tax rates in the
U.K., which together reduced our deferred tax expense by $1.0 billion in the current year. Additionally, we recorded lower fair
value gains on our investment properties in 2016 compared to 2015, which resulted in a reduction in the associated deferred income
taxes. The prior year included a $464 million deferred income tax recovery arising from a change in tax laws in the first quarter
of that year that affected our North American office property operations.

Income tax expense includes current taxes of $213 million (2015 — $132 million) and a deferred tax recovery of $558 million
(2015 — expense of $64 million). The current tax provision represents the portion of the provision that gives rise to a current tax
liability. The deferred tax provision arises from income that is subject to tax in future periods (commonly referred to as timing
differences) and the utilization of existing tax assets such as accumulated tax losses.

In our case, the deferred tax provision relates principally to fair value gains, which are not taxable until the assets are sold, and
therefore do not give rise to a current tax liability, as well as the depreciation of assets that are depreciated for tax purposes at rates
that differ from the rates used in our financial statements.

Our income tax provision does not include a number of non-income taxes paid that are recorded elsewhere in our financial
statements. For example, a number of our operations in Brazil are required to pay non-recoverable taxes on revenue, which are
included in direct costs as opposed to income taxes. In addition, we pay considerable property, payroll and other taxes that represent
an important component of the tax base in the jurisdictions in which we operate, which are also predominately recorded in direct
costs.
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Our effective income tax rate is different from the Canadian domestic statutory income tax rate due to the following differences:

Change
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DEC. 31 2016 2015 2014 2016 vs 2015 2015 vs 2014
Statutory inCome tax rate ..........coeeevveveererrerererereenenenes 26 % 26% 26% — % —%
Increase (reduction) in rate resulting from:
Change in tax rates and new legislation.................. 35) 1n 4 24) (15)
International operations subject to different
EAX TALES .ovevevinrieveeeenreretctre et ereie e rebee e enene ) (@) 5) 2 2)
Taxable income attributed to non-controlling
INEETESTS vttt ?2) 6) ®) 4 1)
OtheT .o 4 2 — 2 2
Effective income tax rate ... 12)% 4% 20% (16)% (16)%

The most significant change in our annual effective tax rate was a change in tax rates arising from the reorganization of certain
of our U.S. property operations and a reduction of the U.K. tax rate, which resulted in a reduction in the effective tax rate. The
lower tax rates are applied to cumulative timing differences, such as fair value gains, and resulted in a $900 million reduction of
deferred income tax liabilities that is recognized in the current period even though many of the timing differences occurred in
prior periods.

We operate in countries with different tax rates, most of which vary from our domestic statutory rate and we also benefit from tax
incentives introduced in various countries to encourage economic activity. Differences in global tax rates gave rise to a 5% decrease
in our effective tax rate compared to a 7% reduction in 2015. The difference will vary from period to period depending on the
relative proportion of income in each country.

As an asset manager, many of our operations are held in partially owned “flow through” entities, such as partnerships, and any
tax liability is incurred by the investors as opposed to the entity. As a result, while our consolidated net income includes income
attributable to non-controlling ownership interests in these entities, our consolidated tax provision includes only our proportionate
share of the tax provision of these entities. In other words, we are consolidating all of the net income, but only our share of their
tax provision. This gave rise to a 2% and 6% reduction in the effective tax rate relative to the statutory tax rate in 2016 and 2015,
respectively.

Non-controlling Interests

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of net income of consolidated entities that is attributable to other investors. Non-
controlling interests totalled $1.7 billion in 2016 compared to $2.3 billion in 2015 and $2.1 billion in 2014, representing 51%,
50% and 40% of consolidated net income, respectively, in each of these years. The change in the proportionate interest reflects
the acquisitions of assets and business within fund entities in which we have a differing ownership interests as well as changes in
the amount of income generated within entities with different ownership levels. On June 20, 2016, we completed the spin-off of
BBU resulting in a decrease of ownership in our private equity operations, as these operations were previously wholly owned.

In 2016, net income decreased in certain operations where we have a higher ownership, particularly in our office properties where
we recorded a lower level of fair value gains compared to 2015 and 2014, and increased in certain operations where we have a
higher ownership, particularly our infrastructure operations. We recorded $149 million of realized carried interest in the period,
which resulted in the reattribution of income from non-controlling interests to common equity.

Other Comprehensive Income (“OCI”)

Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment

The following table summarizes revaluations of property, plant and equipment:

Change
fﬁ{ig}g‘gfﬂs ENDED DEC. 31 2016 2015 2014 2016vs 2015 2015vs2014
Renewable POWET........ccoeiveiiiieiieceeeceecee $ 333 §$ 1,305 $ 1,966 $ ©972) $ (661)
INfrastruCture. . ..c.covevvevirieirieieicerceece e 396 688 708 (292) (20)
Property and other...........cccoccveriincininiinccnee 95 151 324 (56) (173)

$ 824 § 2,144 § 2,998 § (1,320) $ (854)
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Revaluation gains on property, plant and equipment totalled $824 million in 2016, compared to a $2.1 billion recorded in 2015
and $3.0 billion recorded in 2014. Revaluations of property, plant and equipment are primarily influenced by changes in estimated
future cash flows and discount rates. Estimated future electricity prices are the primary determining factor of future cash flows in
our renewable power operations. In our infrastructure operations, future cash flows are impacted by regulated rates of return on
rate bases in our utility assets and tariffs or capacity charges in our transport and energy assets, while expected hotel stays and
room rates increase or decrease cash flows in our hospitality assets within our property operations. In 2016, revaluation gains
were driven by contributions from growth capital deployed and expansion, as well as higher projected cash flows, partially offset
by the impact of rising long-term interest rates on our discount rates. In 2015 and 2014, long-term return expectations decreased,
evidenced by comparable asset sales, resulting in an increase in valuations of these assets. Additionally, in each year expected
future cash flows increased at most of our operations as a result of expansion projects, business growth and inflation-linked revenue
assumptions.

We discuss the key valuation inputs on page 34.

Financial Contracts and Other

The following table presents the components of financial contracts and other:

Change
MLLIONG T FNDED DEC. 31 2016 2015 2014 2016 vs 2015 2015vs2014
Financial contracts and power sales agreements...... $ (113) $ 22) $ (301) $ o1 3 279
Available-for-sale securities .............ccoceeeiriruenennne. 649 (485) (105) 1,134 (380)
Revaluation of pension obligations ............cccccceueeee (40) 32 7 (72) 109
$ 496 $ (475) $ (483) $ 971 § 8

Losses on financial contracts reflect market position of hedge-designated trades at year end. In 2016, fixed-rate swaps in our
renewable power operation incurred higher losses due to improving power prices compared to the prior year. The losses in 2014
were a result of declining interest rates on the value of our interest rate contracts.

Changes in the fair value of financial investments that are designated as available-for-sale are recorded through OCI unless we
believe that a permanent impairment in value has occurred in which case a provision is recorded in net income. The available-
for-sale securities reflects a reclassification of $447 million related to unrealized losses previously recorded in OCI on the
restructuring of debt securities to net income. The available-for-sale losses in 2015 include the unrealized losses on
the aforementioned securities.

Foreign Currency Translation
We record the impact of changes in foreign currencies on the carrying value of our net investments in non-U.S. operations in OCI.

Changes in the value of currency contracts that qualify as hedges are also included in foreign currency translation. The following
table disaggregates the impact of foreign currency translation on our equity by the most significant non-U.S. currencies:

Change

fg{iz}g\fgfﬂs ENDED DEC. 31 2016 2015 2014 2016 vs 2015 2015 vs 2014
Australian dollar...........ccccevereicenneennneeneeeees $ 203) $ (496) $ 392) $ 293§ (104)
Brazilian real........c.cocoveeeinnieiinnieeee e 1,314 (2,432) (736) 3,746 (1,696)
British pound..........cccocevieinininnneeeeeene (1,434) (360) (327) (1,074) (33)
Canadian dollar..........cccecveneiiniinineeeee e 286 (1,415) (922) 1,701 (493)
OBhET ..ottt 397 (349) (337) 746 (12)

360 (5,052) (2,714) 5,412 (2,338)
Currency hedges.......coeeeeieieieiienieneneneneneeeceene 876 1,591 997 (715) 594

$ 1236 $  (3461) $  (1,717) $ 4697 $  (1,744)

Currency hedges include financial contracts that we utilize to manage foreign currency exposures as well as foreign currency debt,
which we have elected as a hedge. We hedged the majority of our exposure on the British pound and, accordingly, currency hedging
gains include gains on these contracts. We typically do not hedge our Brazilian real equity due to the high cost associated with
these contracts, which produced the majority of our net foreign currency translation gain in 2016 and loss in 2015.
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Equity Accounted Other Comprehensive Income

The following table disaggregates consolidated equity accounted OCI to facilitate analysis:

Change
fgﬁz%%‘gf“s ENDED DEC. 31 2016 2015 2014 2016 vs 2015 2015vs2014
INTTASTIUCHUTE. ..ottt e eeeeeeneeae $ 486 $ 303§ 164 $ 183 § 139
Renewable POWeT.........cccocevveininiiincineicieccniee 9 76 58 (67) 18
PrOPEItY ..o 8 54 11 (46) 43
Private equity and other (73) 82 (10) (155) 92

$ 430 $ 515§ 223§ 85 $ 292

Equity accounted OCI in our infrastructure operations includes revaluation surplus recorded within our Chilean transmission
investment, our Brazilian toll road portfolio and, commencing in 2016, our European communications infrastructure investment.
During 2016, the increase of $183 million mainly relates to an uplift in the property, plant and equipment revaluation of the
European communications investment, resulting in a higher equity accounted OCI compared to the prior year.

In 2015, we purchased a western Australia oil and gas investment within our private equity operations and entered into financial
contracts to lock in the price of its scheduled production. The decrease in commodity prices resulted in an $85 million gain on
these contracts in that year. In 2016, the unrealized gains were reclassified into the income statement as the contracts were settled,
resulting in a reduction in OCI. Additionally, we sold part of the business in 2016 which further decreased the previous unrealized
gains.

FINANCIAL PROFILE

Consolidated Assets

The following table presents our consolidated assets at December 31, 2016, December 31, 2015, and December 31, 2014:

Change
(MILLIONS) 2016 2015 2014 2016 vs 2015 2015 vs 2014
Investment Properties.......cecverververreruerererereeeeruennens $ 54,172 $ 47,164  $ 46,083 $ 7,008 $ 1,081
Property, plant and equipment ...........c.cccceeerererenienene 45,346 37,273 34,617 8,073 2,656
Equity accounted investments............cc.cccecevuerrenuencne 24,977 23,216 14,916 1,761 8,300
Cash and cash equivalents ...........ccccoeeereeinenncnenenn. 4,299 2,774 3,160 1,525 (386)
Financial assets 4,700 6,156 6,285 (1,456) (129)
Accounts receivable and other............cccceeevieeennnnne. 9,133 7,044 8,845 2,089 (1,801)
INVENTOTY .viiieiiiciei e 5,349 5,281 5,620 68 (339)
Intangible assets........cccevereeieieiieniineneneneeeeeeene 6,073 5,170 4,327 903 843
GOOAWILL .. 3,783 2,543 1,406 1,240 1,137
Deferred income tax asset.........occceveoeruereeriereneeneencns 1,562 1,496 1,414 66 82
Assets classified as held for sale 432 1,397 2,807 (965) (1,410)

$ 159,826 $ 139,514 $§ 129,480 $§ 20,312 $ 10,034

Consolidated assets at December 31, 2016 were $159.8 billion, an increase of $20.3 billion since December 31, 2015 and an
increase of $10.0 billion from December 31,2014 to 2015. The increase is primarily due to higher carrying values of our investment
properties, property, plant and equipment and equity accounted investments which are discussed below and are predominantly
due to acquisitions during the year. Our assets also increased as a result of the appreciation of the Brazilian real against the U.S.
dollar, partially offset by a decrease in the value of the British pound.

We present our consolidated balance sheets on a non-classified basis, meaning that we do not distinguish between current and
long-term assets or liabilities. We believe this presentation is appropriate given the nature of our business strategy.
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Foreign Currency Translation

The most significant currency exchange rates that impact our balance sheet are shown in the following table:

Year-end Spot Rate Change
AS AT DEC. 31 2016 2015 2014 2016 vs 2015 2015 vs 2014
Australian dollar..............ccooovveeieeiieeeeeeeeeeeeee 0.7197 0.7287 0.8172 )% (1D)%
Brazilian real............c..ccoovviviiiiieieieeeceeeeeee 3.2595 3.9604 2.6504 18 % (49)%
British pound..........cccoveeinnieinecee e 1.2357 1.4736 1.5578 (16)% 5)%
Canadian dollar..............cccooovioieiiiieeeeeeeeeeeee 0.7439 0.7227 0.8608 3% (16)%

As at December 31, 2016, our IFRS net equity of $22.5 billion was invested in the following currencies: United States dollars —
57%; Brazilian reais — 15%; British pounds — 13%; Australian dollars — 9%; Canadian dollars — 4%; and other currencies — 2%.
From time to time, we utilize financial contracts to adjust these exposures.

Investment Properties

The following table presents the major contributors to the period-over-period variances for our investment properties:

AS AT AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DEC. 31
(MILLIONS) 2016 2015

Balance, beginning of year

$ 47,164 $ 46,083

Acquisitions and additions 10,810 6,932
DISPOSTHONS ... (4,612) (5,924)
Fair value ChANES ........covoiiiiiiieee ettt 960 2,275
Foreign currency tranSlation ........c.c.eeueceririeueininieteineeretcent ettt reb ettt s bbb s e seaeseeaene (150) (2,202)
TOtAl CRAINEE. ...c..ceiiinieiiceetee ettt ettt sttt ettt ettt ene 7,008 1,081
Balance, €nd OF YEAT......c..ciiiiiiiirieee ettt $ 54,172 $ 47,164

1. Includes reclassification of investment properties that are held for sale

Acquisitions and additions of $10.8 billion include $9.2 billion of acquisitions within our property operations. Significant
acquisitions in 2016 include a mixed-use property in South Korea, a U.S. self-storage business, a U.K. student housing portfolio
and the reclassification of properties within a retail mall business in the U.S., which was equity accounted prior to our acquisition
of full control during the year. Additions represent capital expenditures on existing properties and development projects.

Dispositions in the current year include mature office properties such as properties in Sydney and Vancouver and the sale of partial
interest in a building in New York. Dispositions also include the reclassification of $165 million of properties to assets held for
sale as at year end, including two industrial assets in France, a portfolio of multifamily assets in the U.S. and several triple net
lease assets in the U.S.

The fair value of investment properties is generally determined by discounting the expected future cash flows of the properties,
typically over a term of 10 years, using discount and terminal capitalization rates reflective of the characteristics, location and
market of each property.

The key valuation metrics of our investment properties are presented in the following table on a weighted-average basis,
disaggregated into the principal operations of our Property segment for analysis purposes. The valuations are most sensitive to
changes in cash flows, discount rates and terminal capitalization rates.

Opportunistic
Core Office and Other' Weighted Average
AS AT DEC. 31 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Discount rate..........cceceeevevverenenne 6.7% 6.8% 7.6% 7.2% 71% 6.9%
Terminal capitalization rate........ 5.6% 5.7% 7.6% 7.6% 6.2% 6.0%
Investment horizon (years)......... 12 11 10 8 11 11

1. Valuation metrics for opportunistic and other as at December 31, 2016 includes Rouse, which was consolidated following our privatization of the business in the second
halfof2016. Rouse was previously equity accounted and thus was not included in our valuation metrics for consolidated investment properties in the prior year. Excluding
the impact of Rouse, discount rate, terminal capitalization rate and investment horizon in opportunistic and other were 7.3%, 7.4% and 9 years, respectively
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In determining the fair value of investment properties, management uses external information and observable conditions, where
possible, supplemented by internal analysis, as required. The determination of fair value requires the use of estimates, which have
been applied in a manner consistent with that in the prior year. There are currently no known trends, events or uncertainties that
we reasonably believe could have a sufficiently pervasive impact across our businesses, which is diversified by asset class,
geography and market, to materially affect the methodologies or assumptions utilized to determine the estimated fair values
reflected in this report. Discount rates and capitalization rates are inherently uncertain and may be impacted by, among other
things, movements in interest rates in the geographies and markets in which the assets are located. Changes in estimates across
different geographies and markets, such as discount rates and terminal capitalization rates, often move independently to one another
and not necessarily in the same direction or to the same degree. Furthermore, impacts on our estimated values from changes in
discount rates / terminal capitalization rates and cash flows are usually inversely correlated as the circumstances that typically
give rise to increased interest rates (i.e. strong economic growth, inflation) usually give rise to increased cash flows at the asset
level.

The following table presents the impact on the fair value of our investment properties as at December 31, 2016 from a 25 basis
point change to the relevant unobservable inputs. For properties valued using the discounted cash flow method, the basis point
change in valuation metrics relates to a change in discount and terminal capitalization rates. For properties valued using the direct
capitalization approach, the basis point change in valuation metrics relates to a change in the overall capitalization rate.
e 2016
Core office

UNIEEA SEALES.......eveieiteteee ettt ettt ettt ettt s e st e s et es e e b et ea e s et es e st s esesen e ea b esene s esenene et eseseneseebeneneasesenenea $ 780
CANAAA ...ttt ettt ettt h et a ket a A et ekt e Rt ke n e R e A e Rt ek en e e R et en e b entes et e st e be s st b eneebensenenee 285
AAUSETALIA ..ttt ettt ettt ettt et e b e st et b e s e s e st s e b st s ent ek e s e st b en s ek e s e st esen s et e he st esenseseesenteb et eneebeneenens 122
BIUTODC. ..ottt ettt et et e s te st e et e et et e s e e st e b b e b e Rt Rt e Rt e st e Rt e st e s b et e etees e et e eseeneensentensenseaseeneeneeneas 21
BIAZIL ...ttt ettt bttt s bt et bea e bt ket e Rt R et bt et e n e ke e e st et ent et et eneeteneenens 9
Opportunistic and other
OPPOTTUNISEIC OFFICE ... eviuiitiiitieicictit ettt ettt ettt b et ettt e s e se e b e st ebe s eseebeseese s eseesessesesseseesessenenns 200
Opportunistic retail... 373
Industrial................... 63
IMUTEAIMUILY ...ttt s ettt b s e e b e st et e s ese s ess et e s essesess et e s essesessesseseseesesseneeseneanens 174
TIIPLE NEE LEASE.....veuvivieeieeieiieteteet ettt ettt et et e st e et e e teeteete e e ess e aebesbeebeeseeseessessessasbasbeeseessessessessessensessessesseaseaseaseas 188
SIE=STOTAZE .....veveeveeteeieet ettt ettt ettt et et et et e et e eteeveeteeaeeseess e s e se b e eseeaeetsesseaseab e s e beereeteeteeteereeatent et et eteeteeaeereereenes 62
STUACTIE ROUSINE ...ttt ettt ettt ettt b ettt se b e st et e s ese b esaese s eseebessese s esaesesseseesessesesseseesessenenne 25
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Property, Plant and Equipment

The following table presents the major components of the period-over-period variances for our property, plant and equipment
(“PP&E”), disaggregated by operating business group for analysis purposes:

Private Equity

AS AT AND FOR THE Renewable Power Infrastructure Property and Other Total

YEARS ENDED DEC. 31

(MILLIONS) 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Balance, beginning of year ... § 19,738 $19,970 $ 8,338 $ 9,061 $ 5316 $ 2,872 $ 3,881 $ 2,714 $37273 §$ 34,617
Acquisitions and additions..... 6,099 1,444 1,618 571 874 2,708 162 2,081 8,753 6,804
DiSpoSitions’ .......cc.vvvvrrnne 12) (298) ) (536) 26 (71 (160) (192) 155)  (1,097)
Fair value changes.................. 317 1,324 388 654 82 161 — (67) 787 2,072
Depreciation............cc.ooeeeeuenn. (803) (612) 372) (338) (244) (189) (340) (337) (1,759)  (1,476)
Foreign currency translation.. 1214 (2,090) 418)  (1,074) (402) (165) 53 (318) 447 (3,647)
Total change........cc.ccooovennnnnne. 6,815 (232) 1,207 (723) 336 2,444 (285) 1,167 8,073 2,656
Balance, end of year............... $26,553 $19738 $ 9,545 $ 8338 $ 5652 $ 5316 $ 3,596 $ 3,881 $45346 §$ 37,273

1. Includes reclassification to held for sale

We measure PP&E in our renewable power and infrastructure operations, as well as hospitality properties within our property
operations, using the revaluation method, which results in these assets being fair valued at the end of each fiscal year, and then
depreciated quarterly, based on the carrying value. PP&E within our private equity and other operations is carried at amortized
cost.

The impact of foreign exchange led to an increase in PP&E in the current year of $447 million due to positive foreign currency
revaluation on non-U.S. assets, predominantly on those denominated in Brazilian reais and Colombian pesos, partially offset by
the impact of the British pound on U.K. assets.

In determining the fair value of PP&E, management uses external information and observable conditions, where possible,
supplemented by internal analysis as required. The determination of fair value requires the use of estimates, which have been
applied in a manner consistent with the prior year. There are currently no known trends, events or uncertainties that we reasonably
believe could have a sufficiently pervasive impact across our businesses, which is diversified by asset class, geography and market,
to materially affect the methodologies or assumptions utilized to determine the estimated fair values reflected in this report.
Discount rates and capitalization rates are inherently uncertain and may be impacted by, among other things, movements in interest
rates in the geographies and markets in which the assets are located. Changes in estimates across different geographies and markets,
such as discount rates and terminal capitalization rates, often move independently to one another and not necessarily in the same
direction or to the same degree. Furthermore, impacts on our estimated values from changes in discount rates / terminal capitalization
rates and cash flows are usually inversely correlated as the circumstances that typically give rise to increased interest rates (i.e. strong
economic growth, inflation) usually give rise to increased cash flows at the asset level.

Renewable Power

Acquisitions and additions of $6.1 billion within our renewable power operations include a 3,032 megawatts (“MW”’) hydroelectric
portfolio in Colombia, a 51 MW hydroelectric portfolio in Brazil and a 296 MW hydroelectric portfolio in Pennsylvania.

The revaluation of property, plant and equipment in our renewable power operations resulted in a $317 million increase in the
recorded fair value, primarily attributed to the timing of operating cash flows being realized earlier compared to the prior year
and operational improvements in our Brazilian business, offset by expansion of discount rates in North America.

Valuations of our renewable power assets are impacted primarily by discount rates and long-term power prices. Discount rates
are based on after-tax cost of capital and reflect whether revenues are subject to long-term contracts or spot market pricing.
Projected cash flows are based on in-place contracts and expected market prices for non-contracted power. Forward market prices
are used for the first four years and thereafter prices are determined using internal projections that reflect our view of future market
capacity, cost of capital, costs of fuel for competing forms of generation and competitive attributes of renewable power. Our long-
term view of electricity prices reflects our views on the cost of developing new renewable power facilities, expected to be primarily
wind facilities to meet future demand growth by the year 2023. This year is viewed as the point when generators in North America
and Europe must build additional capacity to maintain system reliability and provide an adequate level of reserve generation based
on the anticipated retirement of older coal fired plants and the Environmental Protection Agency emission compliance deadlines.
We determine future prices by applying a discount to estimated new-build wind prices to determine renewable electricity prices
for hydroelectric facilities. Our generation facilities in Brazil are held under concessions and authorizations which have a fixed
maturity date and accordingly, we do not ascribe a terminal value to these assets under IFRS, although we believe these concessions
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will be renewed upon maturity. Our estimated future electricity prices in Brazil are based on a similar approach as applied in North
America using a forecast of the all-in cost of hydroelectric and wind development. The key valuation metrics of our hydro and
wind generating facilities at the end of 2016 and 2015 are summarized below.

North America Brazil Europe
AS AT DEC. 31 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Discount rate
Contracted . 4.8% -55%  4.7%-5.4% 9.2% 92% 4.1% —5.0% 5.0%
Uncontracted ........c.ccceoveuenneee. 6.6% —72%  6.4%—-7.1% 10.5% 10.5% 5.9% — 6.8% 6.8%
Terminal capitalization rate' ... 6.3% —6.9%  6.3% — 6.9% n/a n/a n/a n/a
Exitdate......ccoooveiieieiieiee. 2036 2035 2031 2033 2031 2031

1. The terminal capitalization rate applies only to hydroelectric assets in North America

The following table presents the impact on fair value of property, plant and equipment in our Renewable Power segment as at
December 31, 2016 from a 25 basis point change in discount and terminal capitalization rates, as well as a 5% change in electricity
prices:

AT e 2016
25 bps change in discount and terminal capitalization rates'
INOITH AINIEIICA. ...ttt ettt b bt s bt e skt s bt e s bt ne e s bt e et seneenenesen $ 963
BIAZIL..c.et bbbt b etk b bttt b et et b ekt be bttt 50
BUTODE ..ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt e st e n et e b b ekt e Rt eR e e Rt e st e st et e teeheeRe e Rt e Rt e st e st et et e beeneeneeneenes 20
5% change in electricity prices
INOTER ATTIEIICA. ...ttt ettt ettt et e st et e st e b et ese e s e st es e s es e b enees e s eseesanses e s eneesens et e s entesenseseesensesenseneanan 832
BIAZIL..c. et bbb bRt h Rt h ek a et b sttt A b st et b et ettt s et betene e 70
BIUTOPE ...ttt bttt a bt h bt h e h et et h ARttt E ARt ket ekt en e ket ebenhe st et et e s e teneenens 20

1. Terminal capitalization rate applies only to hydroelectric assets in in North America

Terminal values are included in the valuation of hydroelectric assets in the United States and Canada. For the hydroelectric assets
in Brazil, cash flows have been included based on the duration of the authorization or useful life of a concession asset without
consideration of potential renewal value. The weighted-average remaining duration at December 31, 2016 is 15 years (2015 —
18 years). Consequently, there is no terminal value attributed to the hydroelectric assets in Brazil.

Infrastructure

Additions in our Infrastructure segment include investments in internal growth capital projects, as well as the acquisition of an
Australian ports business ($229 million) and a U.S. gas storage business ($825 million).

We revalue our infrastructure assets on an annual basis using discounted cash flow analysis, which includes estimates of forecasted
revenues, operating costs, maintenance and other capital expenditures. Discount rates are selected for each asset giving
consideration to the associated revenue streams and geography where they are located. The $388 million increase in value of our
infrastructure assets was primarily due to growth capital deployed in the year, higher cash flows in our U.K. regulated distribution
business and increased volumes following the completion of development initiatives across the portfolio.

The key valuation metrics of our utilities, transport and energy operations are summarized below:

Utilities Transport Energy
AS AT DEC. 31 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Discount 1ate ........cceevevvevverrerrenreereenennes 7% —12% 8% —12% 10% —17% 11% - 15% 9% — 14% 10% — 15%
Terminal capitalization multiples........ 7x — 18x 8x — 17x 8x — 14x 10x — 14x 10x — 12x 7x — 12x
Investment horizon / Termination
valuation date (years) .......c.cccceoevueuennne 10-20 10-20 10-20 10-20 10 10

Property
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Property PP&E primarily consists of hotel and resort operations. The overall increase of $336 million primarily relates to the
acquisition of a 5.4 million square foot mixed-use complex in South Korea with $303 million of PP&E, as well as the acquisition
of a U.S. hospitality asset for $197 million.

Key valuation assumptions for our hospitality operations included a weighted-average discount rate of 10.2% (2015 — 10.0%),
terminal capitalization rate of 7.4% (2015 — 7.4%) and investment horizon of six years (2015 — seven years).

Private Equity

PP&E in our private equity operations decreased by $285 million, primarily relating to the reclassification of certain operations
to assets held for sale. In addition, PP&E at our Canadian oil and gas properties decreased due to a change in the asset retirement
obligation (“ARO”). We recorded a change in the timing of future remediation costs, resulting in a lower ARO liability and a
corresponding reduction to the PP&E balance.

Equity Accounted Investments

The following table presents the major components of the period-over-period variances for our equity accounted investments,
disaggregated by operating business group for analysis purposes:

Property
Private

AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED Canary Renewable Equity and
DEC. 31,2016 (MILLIONS) GGP Wharf Other Power Infrastructure Other Total
Balance, beginning of year ......... $ 7215 $ 3,400 $ 6,879 $ 197 3 4,690 $ 835 $§ 23216
AddItions.........coeeveevenirireneene — — 607 — 1,666 93 2,366
Dispositions’ ...........cc..ccoovvcerennnnn. — (1,465) — — (126) 1,591)
Share of net income (loss)........... 476 10 445 — 314 48 1,293
Share of other comprehensive

income (1088)...covevevereveevccnnnnene 4 “) 7 9 486 (72) 430
Distributions received.................. (266) _ (242) 6) (85) (76) (675)
Foreign currency translation

and Other.........oovviieinicininns 24 (540) 78 6 275 95 (62)
Total change..........ccccoovvevvivinnns 238 (534) (570) 9 2,656 (38) 1,761
Balance, end of year.................... $ 7,453 % 2,866 $ 6,309 $ 206 $ 7,346 $ 797 $ 24,977

1. Includes reclassification of equity accounted investments that are held for sale

Our largest equity accounted investments are within our property operations and include a 29% interest in GGP with a carrying
value of $7.5 billion at December 31, 2016 and our investment in Canary Wharf at $2.9 billion. Certain of our investee entities,
including GGP and Canary Wharf, carry their assets at fair value, in which case we record our proportionate share of any fair
value adjustments. Changes in the carrying values of equity accounted investments typically relate to the purchase or sale of shares
and our share of their comprehensive income, including fair value changes, and are reduced by our share of any dividends and
other distributions.

Equity accounted investments increased by $1.8 billion during the year ended December 31, 2016 primarily as a result of
investments we have made throughout the year of $2.4 billion, as well as our share of net income of $1.3 billion and revaluation
gains in OCI of $430 million. Additions mainly included investments in a Brazilian toll road, a North American gas transmission
business and an Australian ports and logistic business. These increases were partially offset by dispositions throughout the year,
including a portfolio of hospitality assets in Germany and two industrial assets in the U.S. Furthermore, we completed
the privatization of a U.S. regional mall business during the year, resulting in these assets being consolidated and, therefore, a
reclassification of our $354 million previously held equity accounted interest.

Financial Assets

Financial assets decreased by $1.5 billion since December 31, 2015 primarily as a result of commencing equity accounting and
consolidating investments in an Australian logistics operation and a North American gas storage business that were previously
classified as financial assets, following increases in our ownership interests. We also recorded a valuation decline in a private
equity financial asset investment.
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Accounts Receivable and Other

Accounts receivable and other assets increased by $2.1 billion. Our private equity operations balance increased by over $300 million
primarily due to increased project volumes in our construction services and facilities management business. Our Brazilian
residential operations balance increased by $418 million as a result of higher home closings late in the current year as compared
to the prior year. Acquisitions during the year throughout all our businesses have further increased the balance by $1.0 billion,
particularly from our Colombian hydroelectric plants, North American gas storage business and our Peruvian toll roads.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets increased by $0.9 billion compared to December 31, 2015, which is primarily due to the acquisition of toll road
businesses in Peru and India.

Goodwill

Goodwill increased by $1.2 billion compared to December 31, 2015 due to $808 million of goodwill arising from the acquisition
of hydroelectric facilities in Colombia, $210 million on the acquisition of an Australian ports and logistics business and
$139 million on the acquisition of a toll road business in Peru.

Assets Classified as Held for Sale

Assets classified as held for sale as at December 31,2016 included industrial assets in Europe and several portfolios of multifamily
and triple net lease assets in the United States. The decrease of $965 million in the year is primarily a result of completion of sale
of assets that were previously classified as held for sale as of last year end.

AtDecember 31,2015 assets classified as held for sale included $775 million of investment properties, which was mainly comprised
of two office properties in Sydney and Vancouver, as well as a portfolio of industrial assets near the U.S.-Mexico border, two
multifamily assets in the United States, and $580 million of infrastructure assets including a Canadian electricity transmission
utility and a U.K. regulated distribution business.

Borrowings and Other Non-Current Financial Liabilities

Assets and liabilities are disaggregated into current and long-term components in the relevant notes to our consolidated financial
statements.

Change
f}\jléglgﬁg}“ 2016 2015 2014 2016 vs 2015 2015 vs 2014
Corporate BOITOWINGS .......cveveerevereerieieeeieieeeeeeeeeeeeees $ 4,500 $ 3936 $ 4,075 % 564 $ (139)
Non-recourse borrowings
Property-specific borrowings ..........cccceveevvenuencne 52,442 46,044 40,364 6,398 5,680
Subsidiary borrowings.........cccceeeeeereeereeneeeneencnn 7,949 8,303 8,329 (354) (26)
Non-current accounts payable and other liabilities' .. 4,194 3,806 4,354 388 (548)
Subsidiary equity obligations.........c.cccceverveerreeruennne. 3,565 3,331 3,541 234 (210)
$ 72,650 $ 65,420 $ 60,663 $ 7,230 $ 4,757

1. Excludes accounts payable and other liabilities that are due within one year. See Note 16 to our consolidated financial statements for 2016 and 2015 balances

Corporate borrowing increased by $564 million due to the $867 million issuance of corporate notes during the year, partially offset
by a repayment of C$300 million of notes and the impact of foreign exchange on the Canadian dollar.

Property-specific borrowings increased by $6.4 billion during 2016 due to $5.2 billion of debt assumed on acquisitions as well as
debt arranged in individual businesses that we consolidate, partially offset by the elimination of debt associated with assets sold.
Borrowings are generally denominated in the same currencies as the assets they finance and therefore changes in the value of the
U.S. dollar during the period resulted in our non-U.S. dollar denominated borrowings increasing in value.

Subsidiary borrowings decreased by $354 million as a result of repayments of the credit facility balances outstanding at the end
of the prior year, partially offset by draws on subsidiary credit facilities to fund acquisitions and development projects, as well as
C$500 million issuance in BEP during the third quarter of 2016.

36 BROOKFIELD ASSET MANAGEMENT



Equity
Equity consists of the following components:

Non-Controlling

Common Equity Preferred Equity Interests Total Equity
fﬁlﬁlg{j‘s’)m‘* THE YEARS ENDED DEC. 31 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Balance, beginning of year................... $ 21,568 $ 20,153 $ 3,739 $ 3,549 $31,920 § 29,545 § 57,227 $ 53,247
NEt iNCOME ... 1,651 2,341 — — 1,687 2,328 3,338 4,669
Other comprehensive income (loss)..... 821 (780) — — 1,992 (945) 2,813 (1,725)
Shareholder distributions ..................... (1,074) (584) — — (1,722) (1,500) (2,796) (2,084)
Equity issuances, net of repurchase ..... (124) 926 215 190 7,649 2,371 7,740 3,487
Ownership changes and other .............. (343) (488) — — 1,709 121 1,366 367)
Total change........cccceveveveninenenieee 931 1,415 215 190 11,315 2,375 12,461 3,980
Balance, end of year.........ccocoocvvvnennns $ 22,499 $21,568 $ 3954 $ 3739 $43235 $31,920 $ 69,688 $ 57,227

Common equity increased by $0.9 billion to $22.5 billion during the year. Net income and other comprehensive income attributable
to shareholders for the year totalled $1,651 million and $821 million, respectively. We distributed $633 million to shareholders
as common and preferred share dividends, in addition to a 21% interest in BBU through a special non-cash distribution to
shareholders in the second quarter of 2016. The special dividend of $441 million was accounted for as a distribution of equity
to non-controlling interests and represented 21% of the IFRS carrying value of the net assets spun-off with corresponding
recognition of non-controlling interests.

Non-controlling interests increased by $11.3 billion in 2016. Net issuances of equity to non-controlling interests were $7.6 billion
and included $2.6 billion of equity raised in connection with the acquisition of a portfolio of Colombian hydroelectric facilities
in the first quarter and $1.4 billion of non-controlling interests issued as part of the acquisitions in our property and infrastructure
operations, which was partially offset by distributions totalling $1.7 billion.

We provide a more detailed discussion of our capitalization in Part 4 of the MD&A.

SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY RESULTS

Our condensed statements of operations for the eight most recent quarters are as follows:

2016 2015
(MILLIONS. EXCEPY PER SHARE AMOUNTS) Q4 Q3 Q2 Ql Q4 Q3 Q2 Ql
ReVenues. ......cccocevveereneeneeeeee $ 6935 $§ 6,285 $ 5973 $ 5218 $ 5538 $ 5056 $ 4923 $§ 47396
Net iNCOME......ceeveieeieieieieieiieieeeine 97 2,021 584 636 1,187 845 1,199 1,438
Net income to shareholders .............. 173 1,036 185 257 678 289 645 729
Per share -
~diluted ..o $ 014 § 103 $ 015 $ 023 $ 066 $ 026 $ 062 $ 073
= DASIC . 0.15 1.05 0.16 0.23 0.67 0.27 0.64 0.75

In the past two years, the quarterly variances in revenues were due primarily to acquisitions and dispositions. Variances in net
income to shareholders relate primarily to the timing and amount of fair value changes and deferred tax provisions recognized,
as well as seasonality and cyclical influences in certain businesses. Changes in ownership have resulted in the consolidation and
deconsolidation of revenues from some of our assets, particularly in our property business. Other factors include the impact of
foreign currency on non-U.S. revenues.

Our property operations typically generate consistent results on a quarterly basis due to the long-term nature of contractual lease
arrangements subject to the intermittent recognition of disposition and lease termination gains, resulting in relatively consistent
amounts of revenue on a quarterly basis. Our retail properties typically experience seasonally higher retail sales during the fourth
quarter, and our resort hotels tend to experience higher revenues and costs as a result of increased visits during the first quarter.
We fair value our property assets on a quarterly basis which results in variations in net income based on changes in the value of
our property portfolio.
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Renewable hydroelectric power operations are seasonal in nature. Generation tends to be higher during the winter rainy season
in Brazil and spring thaws in North America; however, this is mitigated to an extent by prices, which tend not to be as strong as
they are in the summer and winter seasons due to the more moderate weather conditions and reductions in demand for electricity.
Water and wind conditions may also vary from year to year. Our infrastructure operations are generally stable in nature as a result
of long-term sales contracts with our clients, certain of which guarantee minimum volumes. Over the last two years we have been
deploying more capital within these portfolios into businesses that benefit from increasing volumes and prices, to complement
our investments in rate-regulated assets, which may lead to more volatility but also, we believe, to growth in revenues and net
income.

Our residential development operations are seasonal in nature and a large portion is correlated with the ongoing U.S. housing
recovery and, to a lesser extent, economic conditions in Brazil. Results in these businesses are typically higher in the third and
fourth quarters compared to the first half of the year, as weather conditions are more favourable in the latter half of the year which
tends to increase construction activity levels.

The following table shows fair value changes and income taxes for the last eight quarters, as well as their combined impact on
net income:

2016 2015
{ﬁﬁ[%%%ﬁRIODS ENDED Q4 Q3 Q2 Q 1 Q4 Q3 Q2 Q 1
Fair value changes ...........ccccocoeueunence. $ @488 $ (59 $ 65 $ 352 $ 594 $§ 380 § 70§ 1,113
Income taxes 11) 992 (234) (202) (218) (145) 368 (201)
Net IMpPact.......ccceveveeerrereeenieeneennene $ (699 § 933 § (169) $ 150 § 376§ 244§ 438 § 912

Over the last eight completed quarters, the following factors caused variations in revenues and net income to shareholders on a
quarterly basis:

In the fourth quarter of 2016, the effect of overall increases in revenues across our businesses were offset by an impairment of
$530 million on certain financial assets as a result of lower valuations based on stock market prices in our private equity operations.

In the third quarter of 2016, we recognized a $900 million tax recovery which resulted from a reduction in effective tax rates
arising from the restructuring of certain of our U.S. property operations, of which $600 million was attributable to shareholders.

In the first and second quarters of 2016, revenues increased from the acquisition of our Colombian hydroelectric facilities,
opportunistic property assets and private equity investments. The second quarter of 2016 also includes $208 million of revenue
on the sale of three multifamily developments and additional revenue following an increase in the scale of our construction
operations.

In the fourth quarter of 2015, we recorded $594 million of fair value gains related to our office properties. Our revenues also
reflected completion of significant projects in our construction services business and home closings in our residential development
business.

In the third quarter of 2015, we acquired a U.K. resort operator and U.S. multifamily portfolio in our institutional private fund
which increased revenues by $146 million and $214 million, respectively, in the third and fourth quarters of 2015.

In the second quarter of 2015, we recognized a $464 million deferred income tax recovery as our office property operations
reorganized its interest in certain subsidiaries that resulted in a change in the tax rate applicable to those entities, of which
$314 million was attributable to shareholders.

In the first quarter of 2015, we recorded a higher level of fair value changes from our consolidated investment properties,
particularly office properties in Manhattan and Sydney, where strong market conditions and leasing activities increased expected
future cash flows, leading to increased appraisal values. In addition, we recognized $270 million of gains on the acquisition of
control of two businesses, of which $132 million was attributable to shareholders.
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CORPORATE DIVIDENDS

The dividends paid by Brookfield on outstanding securities by class during the past three years are summarized in the
following table:

Distribution per Security

2016 2015' 2014
Class A and B Limited Voting Shares (“Class A and B shares”)* ..........ooocveereevrrerennne. $ 052 § 047 3 0.45
Special distribution to Class A and Class B shares 0.45 — —
Class A Preferred Shares
SEITES 2 .eetieieeete et et ettt e et et e et este e et e s te e teesbeebeebeesbeeabeesbeesaeesaeerseseeaseebeeteeseenes 0.36 0.39 0.48
SEIIES 4 SEIICS 7 ..ttt ettt ettt ettt ee 0.36 0.39 0.48
SETIES 8 ..ottt ettt b ettt et ettt sbe b b ene 0.48 0.55 0.68
Series 9...... 0.75 0.74 0.86
Series 12°... — — 0.33
SETIES 13ttt ettt ettt b ettt ettt s sbe b b ene 0.36 0.38 0.47
SEIIES 147....ooeoooeeeeeeso et 0.11 1.40 1.71
SEIIES 15ttt sttt 0.23 0.24 0.38
SETIES 17 .ttt ettt ettt et ettt e bbb ene 0.90 0.93 1.08
Series 18.... 0.90 0.93 1.08
SEIIES 22%. ... ooeooieeeeesss et — — 1.20
SETIES 24 ...ttt ettt ettt ettt et ettt st sbe b b ene 0.80 1.06 1.22
SEIIES 257 ... 0.27 — —
SEIIES 26 ...ttt ettt 0.85 0.88 1.02
SETIES 28 ..ttt ettt ettt e b ettt ettt sbe b b ene 0.87 0.90 1.04
SEIIES 30 ...uiitiitieieeie ettt ettt ettt et et e et e et e e b e et e et e e b e etaeeraeers e be e taebeeraebeenes 0.90 0.94 1.09
SEIIES 32 ..ttt ettt 0.85 0.88 1.02
SETIES 34 ...ttt ettt ettt et ettt sbe b b ene 0.80 0.82 0.95
SEIIES 36 ueintiirieieeie ettt ettt ettt ettt e et et e b et e et e e sb e e et e raeers e ae e teebeebeebeenrs 0.92 0.95 1.10
SEIIES 37 .ttt ettt 0.92 0.96 1.11
SEIIES 38%.....oooeoioeeeeesi et 0.83 0.86 0.80
Series 40°...... 0.85 0.88 0.58
Series 42" 0.85 0.88 0.23
Series 44" 0.94 0.23 —

2015 and 2014 dividends to the Class A and Class B shares have been adjusted to reflect a three-for-two stock split on May 12, 2015
Actual dividend per Class A and Class B share paid in Q1 2014 was $0.13 for the period from November to February, equivalent to $0.10 on a three-month basis
Distribution of a 20.7% interest in Brookfield Business Partners on June 20, 2016, based on IFRS values

Redeemed April 7, 2014

Redeemed March 1, 2016

Redeemed September 30, 2014

Issued July 1, 2016

Issued March 13, 2014

. Issued June 5, 2014

10. Issued October 8, 2014

11. Issued October 2, 2015

ORI N R W

Dividends on the Class A and Class B shares are declared in U.S. dollars whereas Class A Preferred share dividends are declared
in Canadian dollars.
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PART 3 — OPERATING SEGMENT RESULTS
BASIS OF PRESENTATION

How We Measure and Report Our Operating Segments

Our operations are organized into our asset management business, five operating groups and our corporate activities, which
collectively represent seven operating segments for internal and external reporting purposes. We measure performance primarily
using Funds from Operations (“FFO”) generated by each operating segment and the amount of capital invested by the Corporation
in each segment using common equity by segment.

Our operating segments are as follows:

i.  Asset management operations include managing our listed partnerships, private funds and public securities on behalf of our
clients and ourselves. We generate contractual base management fees for these activities as well as incentive distributions
and performance income, including performance fees, transaction fees and carried interest.

il. Property operations include the ownership, operation and development of office, retail, industrial, multifamily, hospitality
and other properties.

iii. Renewable power operations include the ownership, operation and development of hydroelectric, wind and other power
generating facilities.

iv. Infrastructure operations include the ownership, operation and development of utilities, transport, energy, communications
and agricultural assets.

v.  Private equity operations include a broad range of industries, and are mostly focused on construction, other business services,
energy, and industrial operations.

vi. Residential development operations consist of homebuilding, condominium development and land development.

vii. Corporate activities include the investment of cash and financial assets, as well as the management of our corporate
capitalization, including corporate borrowings and preferred equity, which fund a portion of the capital invested in our other
operations. Certain corporate costs such as technology and operations are incurred on behalf of our operating segments and
allocated to each operating segment based on an internal pricing framework.

In the second quarter of 2016, we formed Brookfield Business Partners L.P. (“BBU”) and distributed a partial interest to
shareholders. BBU is the primary vehicle through which we own and operate businesses within our private equity business segment.
In connection with the formation of BBU, we realigned the organizational and governance structure of the businesses held by
BBU and changed how the company presents information for financial reporting and management decision making which resulted
in a change in the company’s operating segments. Specifically, our private equity reportable segment now includes BBU, Norbord
Inc. (“Norbord”) and certain other directly held investments; whereas at December 31, 2015, certain of the businesses within BBU
were reported within a separate service activities segment, which is no longer considered a reportable segment.

Segment Financial Measures

FFO is a key measure of our financial performance and our segment measure of profit and loss. We use FFO to assess operating
results and the performance of our businesses on a segmented basis. We define FFO as net income excluding fair value changes,
depreciation and amortization and deferred income taxes, net of non-controlling interests. When determining FFO, we include
our proportionate share of the FFO from equity accounted investments on a fully diluted basis. FFO also includes realized
disposition gains/losses, which are gains or losses arising from transactions during the reporting period, adjusted to include
associated fair value changes and revaluation surplus recorded in prior periods, taxes payable or receivable in connection with
those transactions, as well as amounts that are recorded directly in equity, such as ownership changes.

We use FFO to assess our performance as an asset manager and separately as an investor in our assets. FFO includes the fees that
we earn from managing capital as well as our share of revenues earned and costs incurred within our operations, which include
interest expense and other costs. Specifically, FFO includes the impact of contracts that we enter into to generate revenue, including
asset management agreements, power sales agreements and contracts that our operating businesses enter into such as leases and
take or pay contracts, and sales of inventory. FFO also includes the impact of changes in leverage or the cost of that financial
leverage as well as other costs incurred to operate our business.
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We use realized disposition gains/losses within FFO in order to provide additional insight regarding the performance of investments
on a cumulative realized basis, including any unrealized fair value adjustments that were recorded in prior periods and not otherwise
reflected in current period FFO, and believe it is useful to investors to better understand variances between reporting periods.

We exclude depreciation and amortization from FFO, as we believe that the value of most of our assets typically increase over
time, provided we make the necessary maintenance expenditures, the timing and magnitude of which may differ from the amount
of depreciation recorded in any given period. As noted above, unrealized fair value changes are excluded from FFO until the
period in which the asset is sold. We also exclude deferred income taxes from FFO because the vast majority of the company’s
deferred income tax assets and liabilities are a result of the revaluation of our assets under IFRS.

Our definition of FFO may differ from the definition used by other organizations, as well as the definition of FFO used by the
Real Property Association of Canada (“REALPAC”) and the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts, Inc.
(“NAREIT”), in part because the NAREIT definition is based on U.S. GAAP, as opposed to IFRS. The key differences between
our definition of FFO and the determination of FFO by REALPAC and/or NAREIT are that we include the following: realized
disposition gains or losses and cash taxes payable or receivable on those gains or losses, if any; foreign exchange gains or losses
on monetary items not forming part of our net investment in foreign operations; and foreign exchange gains or losses on the sale
of an investment in a foreign operation.

We illustrate how we derive FFO for each segment and reconcile the sum of reportable segment FFO to net income in Note 3 of
the consolidated financial statements and on page 43. We do not use FFO as a measure of cash generated from our operations.

We measure segment assets based on common equity by segment, which we consider to be the amount of common equity allocated
to each segment. We utilize common equity by segment to analyze our deconsolidated balance sheet and to assist in capital
allocation decisions.

In assessing results, we separately identify the portion of FFO and common equity by segment that relates to our primary listed
partnerships: Brookfield Property Partners (“BPY”’), Brookfield Renewable Partners (“BEP”), Brookfield Infrastructure Partners
(“BIP”) and Brookfield Business Partners (“BBU”). We believe that identifying the FFO and common equity by segment
attributable to our listed partnerships enables investors to understand how the results of these public entities are integrated into
our financial results and is helpful in analyzing variances in segment FFO between reporting periods. We also separately identify
the components of our asset management FFO and realized disposition gains included within the FFO of each segment in order
to facilitate analysis of variances in FFO between reporting periods.

Non-IFRS Measures, Operating Metrics and Other Performance Measures

In addition to FFO and common equity by segment, the following sections also utilize certain non-IFRS measures, operating
metrics and other performance measures that we employ to describe and assess our performance on a segmented basis. The
calculation of these measures may differ from others and as a result, may not be comparable to similar measures presented by
others.

Non-IFRS Measures
Total Reportable Segment FFO is a non-IFRS measure that represents the sum of FFO for all segments.

Unrealized Carried Interest is a non-IFRS measure that represents the amount of carried interest that we would be entitled to if
private funds were wound up on the last day of the reporting period, based on the estimated value of the underlying investments.
We use this measure to gain additional insight into how investment performance is impacting our potential to earn carried interest
in future periods and believe that it is useful to investors for the same reason.

Operating Metrics and Other Performance Measures
Below summarizes certain key definitions that are relevant to our business as an asset manager.

Base Management Fees are determined by contractual arrangements, are typically equal to a percentage of fee bearing capital,
and are accrued quarterly. Private fund base fees are typically earned on fee bearing capital from third-party clients only and are
typically, but not always, earned on both invested and uninvested capital. Base fees from listed partnerships are earned on the total
capitalization of the listed partnerships which includes our investment.

Carried Interest is a contractual arrangement whereby we receive a fixed percentage of investment returns generated within a
private fund provided that the investors receive a predetermined minimum return. Carried interest is typically paid towards the
end of the life of a fund after the initial capital and minimum return has been returned to investors and is subject to variability
until all investments have been monetized and minimum investment returns are sufficiently assured. We defer recognition of
carried interest in our financial statements until they are no longer subject to adjustment based on future events. We typically only
include carried interest earned in respect of third-party capital when determining our segment results.
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Fee Bearing Capital represents the capital committed, pledged or invested in the listed partnerships, private funds and public
securities that we manage which entitle us to earn fee revenues and/or carried interest. Fee bearing capital includes both invested
and uninvested (i.e. uncalled) amounts, as well as amounts invested directly by clients (co-investments). We believe this measure
is useful to investors as it provides additional insight into the capital base upon which we earn asset management fees and other
forms of compensation.

Fee Related Earnings is comprised of fee revenues less direct costs associated with earning those fees. We use this measure to
provide additional insight into the operating profitability of our asset management activities and believe that it is useful to investors
for the same reason.

Fee Revenues include base management fees, incentive distributions, performance fees and transaction fees presented within our
asset management segment. Many of these items are not included in consolidated revenues because they are earned from
consolidated entities and are eliminated on consolidation. Fee revenues exclude carried interest.

Incentive Distributions are determined by contractual arrangements and are paid to us by BPY, BEP and BIP and represent a
portion of distributions paid by listed partnerships above a predetermined threshold. Incentive distributions are accrued on the
record date of the associated distributions of the entity.

Performance Fees are paid to us when we exceed predetermined investment returns within BBU and on certain portfolios managed
in our public securities activities. BBU performance fees are accrued quarterly, whereas performance fees within public security
funds are typically determined on an annual basis, and are not subject to clawback.

Uninvested Capital represents capital that has been committed or pledged to private funds managed by us. We typically, but not
always, earn base management fees on this capital from the time that the commitment or pledge to our private fund is effective.
In certain cases, we earn fees only once the capital is invested or earn a higher fee on invested capital than committed capital. In
certain cases, clients retain the right to approve individual investments before providing the capital to fund them. In these cases,
we refer to the capital as pledged or allocated.

Below summarizes certain key definitions that are relevant when analyzing segment results.

Average In-place Net Rents are a measure of leasing performance within our property segment, and calculated as the annualized
amount of cash rent receivable from leases on a per square foot basis including tenant expense reimbursements, less operating
expenses. This measure represents the amount of cash generated from leases in a given period and excludes the impact of rent
escalations and free rent amortization.

Economic Ownership Interest represents the company’s proportionate equity interest in BPY, BEP, BIP, and BBU which can
include redemption-exchange units (REUs), Class A limited partnership units, special limited partnership units and general
partnership units in each subsidiary, where applicable. REUs share the same economic attributes with the Class A limited partnership
units in all respects except for our redemption right, which the partnership can satisfy through the issuance of Class A limited
partnership units. The REUs and general partnership units participate in earnings and distributions on a per unit basis equivalent
to the per unit participation of the Class A limited partnership units of the subsidiary. The company’s economic ownership interest
in BPY is determined after considering the conversion of BPY’s preferred equity units into limited partnership units.

Long-term Average Generation (“LTA”) is determined based on assets in commercial operation during the year. For assets acquired
or reaching commercial operation during the year, long-term generation is calculated from the acquisition or commercial operation
date. In Brazil, assured generation levels are used as a proxy for long-term average. We compare long-term average generation to
actual generation levels to assess the impact on revenues and FFO of hydrology and wind generation levels in our renewable
power segment, which vary from one period to the next.

Realized Disposition Gains/Losses include gains or losses arising from transactions during the reporting period together with any
fair value changes and revaluation surplus recorded in prior periods, and are presented net of cash taxes payable or receivable.
Realized disposition gains include amounts that are recorded in net income, other comprehensive income and as ownership changes
in our consolidated statements of equity, and exclude amounts attributable to non-controlling interests unless otherwise noted. We
use realized disposition gains/losses to provide additional insight regarding the performance of investments on a cumulative
realized basis, including any unrealized fair value adjustments that were recorded in prior periods and not otherwise reflected in
current period FFO, and believe it is useful to investors to better understand variances between reporting periods.

Same-Store or Same-Property analysis within this report represents the earnings contribution from assets or investments held
throughout both the current and prior year on a constant ownership basis. We utilize same-store analysis to illustrate the growth
in earnings excluding the impact of acquisitions or dispositions.
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SUMMARY OF RESULTS BY OPERATING SEGMENT

The following table presents FFO and common equity by segment on a year-over-year basis for comparison purposes:

Funds from Operations Common Equity by Segment

AS AT AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED
(MILLIONS) 2016 2015 Change 2016 2015 Change
Asset management ................ $ 866 $ 528 §$ 338 64 % $ 328 § 328 §$ — — %
Property .....c.coeeeeveercrinnnnenne 1,561 1,387 174 13 % 16,727 16,265 462 3%
Renewable power.................. 180 233 (53) (23)% 4,826 4,424 402 9%
Infrastructure..........cccevevuenene 374 252 122 48 % 2,697 2,203 494 22 %
Private equity .......ccccceevrveuenee 405 334 71 21 % 2,862 2,178 684 31 %
Residential development....... 63 135 (72) (53)% 2,679 2,221 458 21 %
Corporate activities ............... (212) (310) 98 32% (7,620) (6,051) (1,569) (26)%

$ 3237 § 255 § 678 26 % $ 22,499 $ 21,568 § 931 4 %

Impact of Foreign Currencies on Segment Results

Approximately half of our capital is invested in non-U.S. countries and the cash flow generated from these businesses, as well as
our equity, is subject to changes in foreign currency exchange rates. From time to time, we utilize financial contracts to adjust
these exposures. During the current year, local currencies in the jurisdictions where we hold the majority of our non-U.S. dollar
investments strengthened relative to the U.S. dollar when compared to prevailing rates in 2015. Similarly, when compared to the
prior year end, local currencies in which our equity is denominated appreciated against the U.S. dollar, with the exception of
the British pound. Other factors being held constant, currency movements, net of hedging, increased total common equity by
segment by $405 million since the prior year end and decreased total segment FFO by $25 million.

Reconciliation of Total Segment FFO to Net Income

The following table reconciles total segment FFO to net income:

(ic/[)FL THE \S’EARS ENDED DEC. 31 2016 2015
Total segment FFO.........ccccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiicccc s $ 3237 $ 2,559
Realized disposition gains recorded as fair value changes or prior periods.... (766) (847)
Non-controlling interests in FFO ..........ocociiiiiiiicece e 2,917 2,288
Financial statement components not included in FFO

Equity accounted fair value changes and other non-FFO items ..........c.ccoveeinneiinneicnncccen (458) 262
Fair value ChanGes..........c.coooiiiiiiiie e (130) 2,166
Depreciation and amOTtIZAtION ........c..e.eoueuerieieerieinieteentctetet ettt ettt et ettt sae b aeenes (2,020) (1,695)
DEferred INCOME TAXES. ... euveuiiinieierieiieteiet ettt ettt b ettt b bttt et b et ebe e neenes 558 (64)
INEE ITICOMIC ...ttt e ettt e e et e e e et et e e eeaaaeeeeeeataeeesesaaeeseassaseeeesntasesesnsssseessnseseessanens $ 3,338 §$ 4,669
ASSET MANAGEMENT
Overview

Our asset management operations consist of managing listed partnerships, private funds and public securities portfolios. As at
December 31, 2016, we managed $110 billion of fee bearing capital, of which $88 billion was from clients and $22 billion was
from the Corporation.

Listed Partnerships: We manage $49 billion of fee bearing capital through publicly listed perpetual capital entities, including BPY,
BEP, BIP, BBU, Brookfield Canada Office Properties (“BOX”) and Acadian Timber Corp. We are compensated for managing
these entities through base management fees, which are primarily determined by the market capitalization of these entities and
incentive distributions and performance fees. Incentive distributions for BPY, BEP and BIP are equal to a portion of the increases
in partnership distributions above predetermined hurdles. Performance fees for BBU are based on increases in the unit price of
BBU above a high water mark.
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Private Funds: We manage $50 billion of fee bearing capital through 38 private funds. Closed-ended private fund capital is typically
committed for 10 years from the inception of a fund with two one-year extension options. Open-ended private capital is committed
in perpetuity, however, private fund investors may redeem their capital, subject to certain provisions, including that commitment
being replaced by another client’s. Our private fund investor base consists of approximately 455 clients with an average
commitment of $110 million. We are compensated for managing these private funds through base fees which are generally
determined on both called and uncalled commitments, and are entitled to receive carried interest, which represent a portion of
investment returns provided that clients receive a minimum predetermined return.

Public Securities: We manage $11 billion of fee bearing capital through numerous funds and separately managed accounts, focused
on fixed income and equity securities. We act as both advisor and sub-advisor and earn base and performance fees.

Asset management revenues include fees earned by us in respect of capital managed for clients as well as the capital provided by
Brookfield with respect to fees earned from listed partnerships. This is representative of how we manage the business and more
appropriately measures the returns from our asset management activities. Fee bearing capital provided by Brookfield consists
largely of the Corporation’s economic ownership interests in BPY, BEP, BIP and BBU.

We do not recognize carried interest until the end of the relevant determination period under IFRS, which typically occurs at or
near the end of a fund term. Please refer to accounting policies in note 2 of our Financial Statements. We do however, provide
supplemental information on the estimated amount of unrealized carried interest that has accumulated based on fund performance
up to the date of the financial statements. Unrealized carried interest is determined as if the fund was wound up at the reporting
date, based on the estimated value of the underlying investments.

The following table disaggregates our asset management FFO into fee related earnings, realized carried interest and realized
disposition gains to facilitate analysis. We have provided additional detail, where referenced, to explain significant movements
from the prior period.

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DEC. 31
(MILLIONS) Ref. 2016 2015

Funds from operations

Fee related @arnings. .......coeeeruirieieieieiertestest ettt ettt i $ 712 $ 496
Realized carried INTEIESL..........couierieiriiirierie ettt il 149 32
Realized disposition gains 5 —

$ 866 $ 528

i. Fee Related Earnings

The following table further disaggregates fee related earnings in order to further facilitate analysis of this component of our segment
FFO:

{ﬁﬁﬂ—({)}%\l\é)EARS ENDED DEC. 31 2016 201 5
Fee revenues
Base ManagemeEnt fEES .........coeoiririeiieeieee ettt nes $ 1,005 $ 780
Incentive distributions 104 72
PerfOrmManCE fEES .....cviiiiiiiciiecicceeeeeee ettt st te e be e beebeesbeesbeesbeerbeesaeeraeeneeeraans — 2
Transaction and adVISOIY FEES' ............oovuiveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 33 18
1,142 872
DIIECE COSES AN OLHET ... es e ee s eeee e eeese e s e eeesereean (430) (376)
FEe 1elated CAIMINES ... eveueeuiteiietiieiete ettt ettt ettt ae ettt st e st et e e st e b eneebe e ese et e st ebe s eseebeneeneseneanans $ 712 $ 496

1. Transaction and advisory fees and direct costs for 2016 and 2015 have been restated to advisory fee earnings derived from business activities that are owned by BBU
and reported within our Private Equity segment

Fee related earnings increased by 44% to $712 million for the year, primarily as a result of the higher level of fee bearing capital
which gave rise to higher base management fees. Operating margins, which are calculated as fee related earnings divided by fee
revenues, were 62% for the year, compared to 57% in 2015, as we previously invested in our operations to enable us to expand
our fee bearing capital. Margins also benefitted from certain transaction fees and catch up fees received during the year that had
no associated costs.
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Base management fees increased 29% to $1.0 billion for the year compared to $780 million in 2015. Our private funds contributed
$495 million of base fees representing a 60% increase from the prior year. The increase in private fund base fees was due to higher
levels of fee bearing capital as a result of private fund capital raised in the last 12 months. Base management fees from our listed
partnerships totalled $418 million, and included $388 million of base management fees from BPY, BIP, and BEP, an increase of
$58 million from the prior year as a result of higher capitalization levels, and base management fees from BBU, which contributed
$12 million of fees after completing the spin-off on June 20, 2016.

We received $104 million of incentive distributions from BIP, BEP and BPY, representing a 44% increase from 2015. The growth
represents our share as manager of increases in unit distributions by BIP, BEP and BPY of 11%, 7% and 6%, respectively, as well
as the impact of equity issued by BIP and BEP. Both BIP and BEP’s distributions have surpassed both of their incentive distribution
hurdles and, accordingly, we receive 25% of future distribution increases by those entities. BPY pays incentive distributions of
15% as its current annual distribution of $1.18 per unit surpasses the first distribution hurdle of $1.10 per unit on an annualized
basis.

Transaction and advisory fees for the year include $21 million (2015 — $18 million) of fees earned on co-investment
transactions and a $12 million transaction fee.

Direct costs and other consist primarily of employee expenses and professional fees, as well as business related technology costs
and other shared services. Direct costs increased by 14% year over year due to expansion of our operations following the
aforementioned growth in fee bearing capital that we manage.

ii. Realized Carried Interest

We realized the following carried interest during the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, which was included in segment
FFO:

(FI\%L E%ENSEARS ENDED DEC. 31 2016 2015
Realized carried interest revenue $ 178 $ 49

Direct COStS ....ooovvevienrennnne. (29) (17)
$ 149 § 32

Realized carried interest

We realized $178 million of carried interest during the year (2015 — $49 million), or $149 million (2015 — $32 million) net of
directly related costs, as a result of dispositions in private equity and property funds that are approaching the end of the fund life,
which sufficiently reduced the risk of any clawback of these amounts.

Favourable investment performance in our private funds generated $418 million of unrealized carried interest during the year of
2016, compared with $219 million in the prior year. Of this generated carried interest, $45 million was the impact of the
overall appreciation of foreign currencies or non-U.S. dollar fund investments. Accumulated unrealized carried interest totalled
$898 million at December 31, 2016. We estimate that approximately $322 million of associated costs will arise on the realization
of the amounts accumulated to date, of which $128 million relates to the carried interest generated in the period. The amounts of
unrealized carried interest and associated costs are shown in the following table:

2016 2015
Unrealized Di Unrealized DI
ISR interest __Cots Nt imow  Cows _ Ne
Unrealized balance, beginning of year............... $ 658 $ 223) $ 435 3 488 S (174) $ 314
In-period change
Generated.........ooeveeieieieeee e 418 (128) 290 219 (66) 153
Less: realized .......cccooovvvveiininiiiniiiciiiins (178) 29 (149) (49) 17 (32)
Unrealized balance, end of year ...........cccccoeueee. $ 898 $ 322) $ 576 $ 658 §$ (223) $ 435

The funds that comprise the current unrealized carried interest have a weighted-average term to realization of six years. Recognition
of carried interest is dependent on future investment performance.
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Fee Bearing Capital

The following table summarizes our fee bearing capital:

a/sufglggg') 3 PaﬂnerIsd}llSiges(]i FII)J,I‘;:X: lt% Secﬁ;litt)ilég Total 2016 Total 20152
PLOPEITY ...vvvierereieieiercieieterete e $ 21,895 $ 22,694 $ — 3 44,589 $ 40,366
Renewable pOWeET ........cccccevivieinciiiicccne 11,796 6,894 — 18,690 11,743
INfrastructure .......c.ocveeveeeveeeeeceecieeeeee e 13,642 15,267 — 28,909 19,428
Private equity.....coccocevereireniieecreceeee e 2,042 4,769 — 6,811 5,928
OMhET ... — — 10,577 10,577 16,797
December 31, 2016 - $ 49,375 $ 49,624 $ 10,577 $ 109,576 n/a
December 31, 2015 $ 43017 $ 34,448 $ 16,797 n/a $ 94,262

1. Includes Brookfield capital of $22.0 billion (2015 — $18.2 billion) in listed partnerships and $0.3 billion (2015 — $1.9 billion) in private funds
2. The private fund fee bearing capital for 2015 has been restated to eliminate $4.7 billion of capital invested by BPY in our private funds which was subject to a fee credit
arrangement

Listed partnership fee bearing capital includes the total market capitalization of our listed issuers and also includes corporate debt
and preferred shares, net of cash, issued by these entities at the partnership level to the extent these are included in determining
base management fees.

In 2016, we closed approximately $20 billion of third-party private fund commitments including our flagship funds in property,
infrastructure and private equity strategies, which were in aggregate more than double the size of the predecessor funds. Private
fund capital includes $20 billion of third-party uninvested capital, which is available to deploy within each fund’s specific mandate.
The uninvested capital includes $8 billion for property funds, $10 billion for infrastructure and renewable power funds and $2 billion
for private equity funds, and has an average term of approximately four years during which the capital can be invested. Fee bearing
capital has a remaining average term of eight years (plus two one-year extension options on average) and includes approximately
$6 billion of co-investment capital.

Fee bearing capital increased by $19.7 billion during the year of 2016. The principal changes are set out in the following table:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DEC 31 2016 Parmorine iy Scoutiins Total
Balance, December 31, 2015 ......ooooiiiiiiiiiieeeeeee e $ 43,017 $ 34,448 $ 16,797 $ 94,262
INTIOWS .ttt ettt st b b ene s nnen 2,207 19,472 1,959 23,638
— (2,370) (4,846) (7,216)

2,300 (1,805) — 495

(2,090) — — (2,090)

4,517 — 1,090 5,607

(576) (121) — (697)

Total Chane ........coceevieiirieiiirie et 6,358 15,176 (1,797) 19,737
Sale of fixed INCOME DUSINESS ......cvevievierierierieeieieieieee et ereeeens — — (4,423) (4,423)
Balance, December 31, 2016................cccoccovviniininiincncccneees $ 49,375 $ 49,624 $ 10,577 $ 109,576

Fee bearing capital increased by $19.7 billion during the year, primarily as a result of new private fund capital, which closed
$19.5 billion of new third-party commitments. We also recorded higher capitalizations across our listed partnerships due to market
value increases and the issuance of corporate debt and equity at the partnership level.

We completed the formation and spin-off of BBU during the year, resulting in the addition of $2.3 billion listed partnership fee
bearing capital and a $1.8 billion decrease in private fund capital. The decrease in private fund capital is because the company’s
investment in our private equity funds were transferred to BBU, and we now earn fees on BBU’s capital instead.

Listed partnership inflows of $2.2 billion includes equity issued by BIP, BEP and BBU during the year. Market prices in our listed
partnerships improved, resulting in a $4.5 billion aggregate increase in the capitalization values. Increases were partially offset
by $2.1 billion of distributions to unitholders during the year and increased cash on hand at period end.

Private fund inflows of $19.5 billion include $13.7 billion in our three flagship funds, $2.0 billion in our credit funds, $2.8 billion
of co-investment capital and $1 billion in our first open-ended real estate fund. These were partially offset by the decrease in fee
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bearing capital from the launch of BBU and outflows of $2.4 billion as a result of disposition activities and the expiry of
commitments.

Public securities inflows of $2.0 billion and market appreciation of $1.1 billion in the year were more than offset by $4.8 billion
of redemptions across several fund strategies, in particular related to sub-advisory mandates. We also disposed of a low margin
securitized credit business which resulted in a $4.4 billion decrease in fee bearing capital and generated a $5 million realized
disposition gain.

Outlook and Growth Initiatives

Following the fundraising of our latest series of flagship funds in 2016, we are focused on the deployment of this capital. Successful
deployment of this capital will position us to launch successor funds over the coming years and to earn carried interest in the
future. Our private fund client base continues to grow, increasing by 33% to 455 in 2016, and we look to develop and create new
products to meet the demand from current and potential clients. We launched our first open-ended fund and broadened our credit
fund offerings this year and, going forward, will look to raise additional capital within these strategies and expand these types of
product offerings. Finally, we will continue to expand our listed partnerships by executing on their growth plans and deploying
capital accretively, leading to capital appreciation and distribution growth, which will help increase fee bearing capital and incentive
distributions.

PROPERTY

Overview

We own virtually all of our commercial property assets through our 62% economic ownership interest in BPY, which is listed on
the New York and Toronto Stock Exchanges and had an equity capitalization of $17.9 billion at December 31,2016, based on public
pricing. BPY owns property assets directly as well as through private funds that we manage. We also own $1.3 billion of preferred
shares of BPY which yield 6.3% based on their redemption value.

BPY’s operations are principally organized as follows:

Core office properties: We own interests in and operate commercial office portfolios, consisting of 142 properties totalling
99 million square feet of office space. The properties are located primarily in the world’s leading commercial markets, such as
New York, London, Los Angeles, Washington, D.C., Sydney, Toronto and Berlin. We also develop office properties on a selective
basis; active development projects consist of interests in 37 sites including totalling 11 million square feet.

Core retail properties: Our core retail portfolio consists of interests in 127 regional malls and urban retail properties totalling
125 million square feet in the United States, which are held through our 34% fully diluted equity accounted interest in GGP. Our
retail mall portfolio has a redevelopment pipeline that exceeds $300 million of development cost on a proportionate basis.

Opportunistic: We own and operate a global portfolio of property investments which are targeted to achieve higher returns than
our core office and retail portfolios. Our opportunistic portfolio consists of high quality assets with operational upside across the
office, retail, multifamily, industrial, hospitality, triple net lease, self-storage and student housing sectors.

The following table disaggregates segment FFO and common equity into the amounts attributable to our ownership interests in
BPY, the amounts represented by other property assets and liabilities, and realized disposition gains to facilitate analysis. We have
provided additional detail, where referenced, to explain significant movements from the prior period.

Funds from Operations Common Equity by Segment

f}?ﬁﬂéﬁ% FOR THE YEARS ENDED DEC. 31 Ref. 2016 2015 2016 2015
Brookfield Property Partners

EQUIty UNItS' .......vooocvoecee s i $ 635 $ 534§ 15,371 $ 14,888

Preferred Shares ..o 76 76 1,265 1,275

711 610 16,636 16,163

Other investments 27 ®) 91 102

Realized disposition GaINS..........cceeverververreereeeeiereriesienienienns ii 823 785 — —

$ 1,561 § 1,387 $ 16,727 $ 16,265

1. Brookfield’s equity units in BPY consist of 432.6 million redemption-exchange units, 50.3 million Class A limited partnership units, 4.8 million special limited
partnership units and 0.1 million general partnership units; together representing an effective economic interest of 62% of BPY
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i. Brookfield Property Partners

The following table disaggregates BPY’s FFO by business line to facilitate further analysis of the year-over-year variances in
segment FFO:

(FI\%RL THE \S’I)EARS ENDED DEC. 31 2016 2015
COT@ OFTICE ..ttt b et e a ettt st s bt eb e e bt e st et et et e b e e bt ebeebe e st enb et entenbesbesaene $ 630 $ 612
C0TE TEEALL ...ttt et b et bbbttt ettt 459 452
OPPOTTUNISLIC ..tttk t ettt s et e e bt st e st et e st bt s eseebeneeb e b e st b eneeb e be st e b e e es e b eneese e esenseneeeenee 341 245
COTPOTALE ...ttt ettt sttt et b e st b et b e s st b et e bt s et b e e e s et et b s eae st sa et ebesaeaeeaenee (463) (470)
Attributable to BPY UnithOIA@IS......cc.covuiriiiriiiiiiiciicinicc ettt 967 839
NON-CONIOIIING TNLETESES ..ottt ettt ettt sttt be et sa ettt se e saebenean (304) 271)
Segment reallocation and OThEr ...........couoiiiiiiiiiii et (28) 34)
BroOKTIEIA S INEETESE ...c.veueiinteiiitiicicieie ettt sttt sttt s a et b et se e enene $ 635 $ 534

BPY’s FFO for 2016 was $967 million, of which our share was $635 million.

Core office FFO increased by $18 million to $630 million. Same-property FFO growth of 6.6% was primarily derived from lease
commencements at Brookfield Place New York and other leasing activities throughout the portfolio. This year’s results also
included FFO of $44 million from the recognition of a previously deferred development fee which was earned during the year.
These positive variances were partially offset by the absence of FFO from recently sold assets as well as the negative impact of
foreign exchange, particularly related to FFO earned in British pounds.

We completed 5.6 million square feet of new and renewal leases during the year at an average in-place net rent of $33.82 per
square foot (“psf”), 16% higher than expiring net rents of $29.24 psf. This resulted in a 4.3% increase in average overall in-place
net rents to $33.03 psf compared to $31.67 psf at prior year end, including the impact of currency revaluation. Overall occupancy
was 92.3% consistent with the prior year. Our overall in-place net rents are currently 15% below market net rents.

We currently have 10.9 million square feet of active development projects, including Manhattan West in New York, Brookfield
Place in Calgary, as well as London Wall Place, Principal Place and 1 Bank Street in London and ICD Brookfield Place in Dubai.
These office assets are 58% pre-leased in aggregate and we estimate an additional cost of $3.1 billion (at share) to complete
construction.

BPY’s core retail FFO, which is derived from its ownership interest in GGP, remained relatively consistent as a 5% increase in
same-property FFO was offset by the absence of FFO from assets sold. Our same-property retail portfolio occupancy rate was
96.5% as at December 31, 2016, a decrease of 30 bps from December 31, 2015. Lease commencements on a same-property basis
increased in-place rents to $62.12 psf at December 31, 2016 from $60.92 psf at December 31, 2015. Average lease spreads on
signed leases commencing in 2016 and 2017 were 10% and 20% higher, respectively, than existing leases on a suite-to-suite basis.

BPY’s opportunistic assets are held primarily through private funds that are managed by us. BPY’s share of the FFO from these
assets increased $341 million from $245 million in the prior year. The increase of FFO is primarily attributable to capital deployed
in the year, including the acquisitions of our self-storage operations, a student housing portfolio, and a U.S. multifamily business.
The completion and sale of multifamily merchant development projects also contributed $31 million of FFO in the year.

BPY’s corporate expenses include interest expense, management fees paid and other costs. Corporate expenses decreased by
$7 million to $463 million, as a result of lower management fees and lower interest expense, following the repayment of the BPO
acquisition facility and subsidiary borrowings with proceeds from assets sales, partially offset by temporary drawdowns of credit
facilities to fund investments.

ii. Realized Disposition Gains

Realized disposition gains in the current year include $401 million of gains related to the disposition of office buildings in Sydney,
Vancouver and New York, a $125 million gain related to partial sale of a shopping mall in Las Vegas, a $73 million gain related
to the sale of a hotel portfolio in Germany, $59 million gain on the sale of a hospitality trademark and $165 million of net gains
on the sale of more than 130 other investments.

Common Equity by Segment

Our Property segment consists largely of investments in commercial property businesses, whose assets are comprised mostly of
investment properties that are carried at fair value and revalued on a quarterly basis. Common equity in our Property segment
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increased to $16.7 billion (2015 — $16.2 billion) primarily due to our share of BPY’s net income, which includes revaluation gains
and a $600 million (at share) deferred income tax recovery, partially offset by foreign currency revaluation and distributions paid.

Outlook and Growth Initiatives

Our property group remains focused on increasing the value of our properties through proactive leasing and select redevelopment
initiatives, as well as recycling capital from mature properties to fund new higher yielding investments, particularly in our
opportunistic property business.

In our office core business, we have approximately $6.1 billion of office developments underway and should continue to increase
earnings for the next several years as these projects are completed. We also announced a proposal to acquire, through BPY, the
remaining third-party interest in BOX, subject to approval from the BOX shareholders. This acquisition would allow us to fully
integrate our North American offices operations and further simplify our structure.

In our core retail operations, we are focused on operating and developing high quality shopping centres as these destinations
continue to provide an attractive physical location for retailers and continue to demonstrate meaningful outperformance, relative
to lower tier malls, despite a changing retail landscape.

In our opportunistic operations, we will continue to acquire properties through our global opportunistic private funds as these
generally produce higher returns relative to core strategies. These funds have a wide scope in terms of real estate asset classes
and geographic reach. Funding for these transactions will continue to include proceeds from asset sales as part of our capital
recycling program.

RENEWABLE POWER
Overview

We hold our renewable power operations primarily through a 61% economic ownership interest in BEP, which is listed on the
New York and Toronto Stock Exchanges and had an equity capitalization of $8.9 billion at December 31, 2016, based on public
pricing. BEP owns one of the world’s largest publicly traded renewable power portfolio diversified across 15 power markets in
North America, Colombia, Brazil and Europe. During the second quarter of 2016, BEP issued 23 million limited partnership units,
of which we acquired 11 million units, increasing our capital invested in BEP, and diluting our economic ownership interest from
63% to 61%.

BEP’s operations are principally organized as follows:

Hydroelectric: We own and operate 217 hydroelectric generating stations on 82 river systems in North America, Brazil and
Colombia. Our hydroelectric operations have 8,451 MW of installed capacity and long-term average generation of 20,004 gigawatt
hours (“GWh”) on a proportionate basis.

Wind energy: We own and operate 38 wind facilities in North America, Europe and Brazil. Our wind energy operations have
1,590 MW of installed capacity and long-term average generation of 2,630 GWh on a proportionate basis.

We arrange for the sale of North American power generated by BEP through our energy marketing business (“Brookfield Energy
Marketing” or “BEMI”’). We purchase a portion of BEP’s power pursuant to long-term contracts at predetermined prices, thereby
increasing the stability of BEP’s revenue profile. We sell the power under long-term contracts as well as into the open market and
also earn ancillary revenues, such as capacity fees and renewable power credits and premiums. This provides us with increased
participation in future increases (or decreases) in power prices.

The following table disaggregates segment FFO and common equity into the amounts attributable to our ownership interest in
BEP, the operations of BEMI and realized disposition gains. We have provided additional detail, where referenced, to explain
significant movements from the prior period.

Funds from Operations Common Equity by Segment

?&ﬁﬂéﬁ% FOR THE YEARS ENDED DEC. 31 Ref. 2016 2015 2016 2015
Brookfield Renewable Partners' ...............ccoocoovvovvrcinrinnn, i $ 249 § 272 $ 3,793 § 3,405
Brookfield Energy Marketing........c.ccoeceveenenninecncnnnnnn ii (69) (64) 1,033 1,019
Realized disposition gains ..........ccceceoeeerieieecieineeieeenne — 25 — —
$ 180 $ 233§ 4,826 $ 4,424

1. Brookfield’s interest in BEP consists of 129.7 million redemption-exchange units, 51.1 million Class A limited partnership units and 2.7 million general partnership
units; together representing an economic interest of 61% of BEP
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Realized disposition gains in the prior year included the disposition of two Brazilian hydroelectric facilities and the sale of a U.S.
wind facility.

i. Brookfield Renewable Partners

The following table disaggregates BEP’s generation and FFO by business line to facilitate further analysis of the year-over-year
variances in segment FFO:

Actual Long-Term
Generation (GWh)' Average (GWh)' Funds from Operations

O TS DD DEC S ) 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

Hydroelectric .......ccooevenenenenencncncnee. 17,663 14,931 20,004 16,445 § 511 3% 526

Wind energy.......cceeevveerenveenenreenneennes 2,258 2,238 2,630 2,553 98 113

Corporate and other ...........ccceeceevevennnnen. 301 493 264 319 (190) (172)
Attributable to BEP unitholders ................. 20,222 17,662 22,898 19,317 419 467
Non-controlling interests and other*........... - (170) (195)
Brookfield’s interest...........ccoceeevereeeniennnne. $ 249 3§ 272

1. Proportionate to Brookfield Renewable Partners

2. Includes incentive distributions paid to Brookfield of $20 million (2015 — $8 million) as the general partner of BEP. The prior year also includes a reallocation of
$18 million to disposition gains, net of NCI, related to the sale of a 102 MW wind facility in California and compensation for extinguished concession agreements relating
to two Brazilian hydroelectric facilities

Generation for the year totalled 20,222 GWh, on a proportionate basis to BEP, 12% below the long-term average of 22,898 GWh
and a 15% increase compared to the prior year.

Hydroelectric generation was 12% below the long-term average of 20,004 GWh and 18% higher than the prior year. The increase
in generation contributed $61 million of additional FFO. Recently acquired facilities in Colombia, Brazil and Pennsylvania
contributed 2,913 GWh of generation, and better water conditions improved generation in Brazil. This was partially offset by
lower generation in the U.S. northeast. Lower pricing across our portfolio decreased FFO by $51 million. The 2015 results included
$27 million in settlement gains relating to concession agreements for two Brazilian facilities and the delayed completion of a
hydroelectric facility.

Generation from the wind portfolio was 14% below the long-term average, and remained relatively consistent with the prior year.
Generation in our North American wind operations were flat as increases in California were offset by lower generation in northern
U.S. and eastern Canada. Lower wind conditions and pricing in Europe, which decreased results by $8 million were partially offset
by improved generation in Brazil. FFO in the previous year included a $12 million gain on the sale of a 102 MW wind facility in
California.

Corporate and other activities reduced FFO by $190 million (2015 — $172 million) and includes interest expense on corporate
debentures, preferred share distributions as well as asset management fees paid. FFO from other activities includes the receipt of
a $20 million payment during the year for co-gen assets pertaining to historic power purchase agreements in Ontario, which
partially offset these unallocated corporate costs and the increase in asset management fees paid.

ii. Brookfield Energy Marketing

Our wholly owned energy marketing group has entered into long-term purchase agreements and price guarantees with BEP as
described below. We are entitled to sell the power we purchase from BEP as well as any ancillary revenues, such as capacity and
renewable power credits or premiums.

BEMI incurred a FFO deficit of $69 million during the year compared to a $64 million FFO deficit in the prior year. BEMI
purchased approximately 7,862 GWh of electricity from BEP during the year, compared with 7,468 GWh in 2015, at an average
price of $65 per megawatt hour (“MWh”) compared with $67 per MWh in 2015, and sold this power at an average price, including
ancillary revenues, of $57 per MWh compared with $59 per MWh in 2015. The increase in volumes sold at a negative margin,
resulted in a higher FFO deficit this year.

Approximately 2,751 GWh of power sales were pursuant to long-term contracts at an average price of $76 per MWh (2015 —
$78 per MWh). The balance of approximately 5,111 GWh was sold in the short-term market at an average price of $47 per MWh,
including ancillary revenues (2015 — $50 per MWh). Ancillary revenues, which include capacity payments, green credits and other
additional revenues, totalled $74 million, adding $9 per MWh to average realized prices on short-term power sales in the current
year as compared to $12 per MWh in the prior year.
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Common Equity by Segment

Common equity in our Renewable Power segment was $4.8 billion at December 31, 2016 and increased from $4.4 billion at
December 31, 2015 primarily due to our purchase of 11 million BEP units during the second quarter in 2016 for $313 million.
The remaining increase is due to increased values of our portfolio, the contribution from earnings and the impact of foreign currency
translation, partially offset by depreciation and amortization, and cash distributions received. Our invested capital is represented
primarily by the PP&E deployed in our generation facilities. We record renewable power PP&E at fair value and revalue the assets
annually at year end.

Outlook and Growth Initiatives

We completed several acquisition and development activities during the year, including a 3,032 MW hydroelectric portfolio in
Colombia, which we estimate will contribute an additional $30 million of FFO in 2017. Our development pipeline represents over
6,000 MW of potential capacity spread across all of our regions, of which 300 MW are currently under construction or in late
stage development that we expect to contribute an incremental $45 to $50 million to BEP’s FFO when commissioned. Subsequent
to year end, we announced an agreement to acquire, subject to customary closing conditions, 100% of TerraForm Global and 51%
of TerraForm Power, collectively representing a 3,600 MW global renewable power portfolio, including wind and solar assets.
This acquisition provides a platform for investing in solar power, an attractive pipeline for growth moving forward and exposure
to new markets for our operations.

We maintain a long-term view that electricity prices and the demand for electricity from renewable sources will rise due to a
growing level of acceptance around climate change, the legislated requirements in some areas to diversify away from fossil fuel
based generation because they are becoming increasingly cost competitive. BEP has entered into long-term agreements that enable
it to sell power at predetermined prices, including contracts with BEMI. These contracts have a weighted-average term of 16 years
and represent 76% of our long-term average generation from North American operations over the next five years on a proportionate
basis at an average price of $68 to $72 per MWh. To the extent that prices increase in the future, we will benefit from reselling
this power in the open market.

INFRASTRUCTURE

Overview

Our infrastructure operations are held primarily through our 30% economic ownership interest in BIP, which is listed on the New
York and Toronto Stock Exchanges and had an equity capitalization of $12 billion at December 31, 2016, based on public pricing.
BIP owns infrastructure businesses directly as well as through private funds that we manage. We also have direct investments in
sustainable resources operations.

BIP’s operations are organized as follows:

Utilities: consist of regulated distribution, regulated terminal and electricity transmission operations. These businesses typically
earn a predetermined return based on their asset base, invested capital or capacity and the applicable regulatory frameworks and
long-term contracts. Accordingly, the returns tend to be predictable and typically not impacted to any great degree by short-term
volume or price fluctuations.

Transport: are comprised of open access systems that provide transportation for freight, bulk commodities and passengers, for
which we are paid an access fee. Profitability is based on the volume and price achieved for the provision of these services. These
operations are comprised of businesses with regulated tariff structures, such as our rail and toll road operations, as well as unregulated
businesses, such as our ports. Approximately 80% of our transport operations are supported by long-term contracts or regulation.

Energy: consist of systems that provide energy transmission, distribution and storage services. Profitability is based on the volume
and price achieved for the provision of these services. These operations are comprised of businesses that are subject to light
regulation, such as our natural gas transmission business whose services are subject to price ceilings, and businesses that are
essentially unregulated like our district energy business.

Communications infrastructure: consists of a communication tower infrastructure operation located in France that provides
essential services and critical infrastructure to the telecom and media broadcasting sectors, for which we are paid fees. This
operation generates stable, inflation-linked cash flows underpinned by long-term contracts.
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The following table disaggregates segment FFO and common equity into the amounts attributable to our economic ownership
interest of BIP, directly held sustainable resources operations and realized disposition gains. We have provided additional detail,
where referenced, to explain significant movements from the prior period.

Funds from Operations Common Equity by Segment

EAI\/SIIIEEI(A)ESD)FOR THE YEARS ENDED DEC. 31 Ref 2016 2015 2016 2015
Brookfield Infrastructure Partners' ...........cocoovcovveerevrennn, i $ 254 $ 217 $ 1,934 § 1,585
Sustainable resources 25 28 763 618
Realized diSposition gains ...........ccecevereeeeenienieneneneseenene ii 95 7 — —
$ 374 § 252§ 2,697 $ 2,203

1. Brookfield’s interest in BIP consist of 108.4 million redemption-exchange units, 0.2 million limited partnership units and 1.6 million general partnership units
together representing an economic interest of 30% of BIP

i. Brookfield Infrastructure Partners

The following table disaggregates BIP’s FFO by business line to facilitate further analysis of the year-over-year variances in
segment FFO:

(icA)R THE g)EARs ENDED DEC. 31 2016 2015
UBIIEIES .evevveeeeetteetteeit et et ettt e et e et e s et e e bt e teebeesbeesseesbeessaasseessassseseesseenseesseenseesseessesssesssanseesseenseenseensenssas $ 399 § 387
TTANSPOIT...c.itiitiiiieiteit ettt et ettt a e s et st sa bttt a bbbt ebeeae et eanenesaesaesaesae et 423 398
EIEIZY ...ttt ae 175 90
Communications INFIASIITICIUTE ........ce.eeieieriertirtieteeieet ettt sttt eb et et e st e b bt ebeebe et et et e ntesaesbenaene 77 60
CorPOrate ANd OTNET ......ccueuiiiiiiirieieiee ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt eee (130) (127)
Attributable to BIP UNIthOIAETS. .......coueiiuiieiiiieieiee ettt 944 808
Non-controlling interests aNd ORI ..............ovueveveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeee e s s eeeseeeeseeeseseesseseeseseeseseeseens (690) (591)
BroOKSIEIA S INEETESE ...c..eueiinteiiitiieieteiirt ettt ettt sttt ettt eb e bene $ 254 $ 217

1. Includes incentive distributions paid to Brookfield of $80 million (2015 — $66 million) as the general partner of BIP

BIP recorded $944 million of FFO in the year of 2016, a 17% increase from the prior year, benefitting from an increased ownership
in a North American gas transmission operations and Brazilian toll roads, the contribution from new investments and internally
generated growth across the business, as FFO increased by 10% on a same-store, constant currency basis.

FFO from our utilities operations increased by $12 million over the prior year to $399 million. FFO benefitted from additional
connections activity and the contribution from smart meters in our U.K. operations, as well as inflation indexation and capital
commissioned into rate base across the portfolio. This was partially offset by foreign exchange, a lower regulated return from our
Australian operations in the second half of the year and the absence of FFO from two North American operations that were sold.

Transport FFO increased by $25 million to $423 million primarily driven by higher tariffs and volumes across a number of
operations, as well as contributions from investments, including recently acquired toll roads in India and Peru and a ports business
in Australia. These positive factors were partially offset by foreign exchange, and decreased volumes at our Brazilian rail operations.

FFO from our energy operations increased by $85 million to $175 million due primarily to strong volumes combined with lower
interest expense and increased ownership in our North American natural gas transmission business and contributions from our
recently acquired North American gas storage operations.

Our communications infrastructure FFO increased by $17 million to $77 million due to a full year contribution from our European
acquisition completed at the end of the first quarter of 2015. This was partially offset by an expected increase in interest expense
as a result of refinancing of short-term debt with long-term borrowings during the first half of the year.

Corporate and other FFO was a deficit of $130 million compared to a deficit of $127 million in the prior year due to higher base
management fees from increased market capitalization and increased borrowings used to fund new investments, partially offset
by higher investment income due to higher return on financial assets.
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ii. Realized Disposition Gains

Realized disposition gains in the current year include a $32 million gain on the sale of a Canadian utilities business, $43 million
on the sale of a European gas distribution business and a $20 million realized disposition gain (our proportionate share) on the
disposition of our toehold position in our Australian ports business during the year.

Common Equity by Segment

Common equity in our Infrastructure segment was $2.7 billion at December 31,2016 (2015 —$2.2 billion) and primarily represents
our net investment in infrastructure PP&E, as well as certain concessions. Infrastructure PP&E, which represents the majority of
assets in the segment, are recorded at fair value and revalued annually. Concessions are considered intangible assets under IFRS
and are recorded at historical cost and amortized over the term of the concession. Accordingly, a smaller portion of our equity is
impacted by revaluation than in our Property and Renewable Power segments. Segment common equity increased from
December 31,2015, as the contribution from earnings, positive PP&E revaluation and positive currency revaluation were partially
offset by distributions paid to us.

Outlook and Growth Initiatives

In the utilities operations, we expect to close the acquisition of the previously announced Brazilian gas transmission system in the
first half of 2017 and earn a return on incremental investments in our existing business that is consistent with our current return
on rate base. As at December 31, 2016 we have $1 billion of total capital to be commissioned into our rate base over the next two
to three years.

Within our transport businesses we intend to increase our investments in assets such as rail, ports and toll roads, as we see attractive
valuations. As at December 31, 2016 capital to be commissioned of $1.1 billion consists of expansion and upgrades to our Brazilian
rail business and projects to add additional capacity to our toll roads and ports. We also expect growth in the use of our systems
by our customers as we meet demand by expanding the capacity of our systems.

In our energy operations, we expect to benefit from forecasted increases in demand for energy and satisfying our customers’ growth
requirements by increasing the utilization of our assets and expanding capacity in a capital efficient manner. We continue to invest
in our North American natural gas infrastructure in order to adapt to shifts in supply and demand dynamics and in order to capture
future increases in prices and spreads.

Within our communications infrastructure business our objective is to benefit from the increased coverage requirements by mobile
network operators and to acquire towers and other infrastructure that are not core to such operators. We have reached agreement
to invest more than $650 million to acquire a portfolio 0f40,000 telecommunication towers in India, which represents approximately
10% of the country’s towers.

PRIVATE EQUITY

Our private equity operations are held primarily through our 75% interest in BBU. We distributed a 21% limited partnership
interest in BBU as a special dividend to shareholders on June 20, 2016. The value of the dividend, based on IFRS values, was
$441 million or $0.45 per common share. BBU is listed on the New York and Toronto Stock Exchanges and had an equity
capitalization of $2.6 billion at December 31, 2016. During the fourth quarter of 2016, BBU issued 16 million limited partnership
units, of which we acquired 8 million units, increasing our capital invested in BBU, and diluting our economic ownership interest
from 79% to 75%. We also own certain businesses directly, including a 41% interest in Norbord Inc., which is one of the world’s
largest producers of oriented strand board (“OSB”).

BBU'’s operations are principally organized as follows:

Construction services: We provide contracting services with a focus on high quality construction of large-scale and complex
landmark buildings and social infrastructure. Construction projects are generally delivered through contracts whereby we take
responsibility for design, program, procurement and construction at a defined price.

Other business services: Our business services operations consist primarily of commercial and residential real estate services and
facilities management for corporate and government clients. These services are typically provided under medium to long-term
contracts. Services activity is seasonal in nature and is affected by the general level of economic activity and related volume of
services purchased by our clients.

Energy: Our energy operations are primarily comprised of oil and gas exploration and production, principally through an offshore
oil and gas business in Western Australia and coal-bed methane operations in central Alberta, Canada. Our energy business also
includes energy-related service operations in Canada.
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Other industrial operations: Our industrial operations consist primarily of manufacturing and mining activities, which are made
up of capital intensive businesses with significant barriers to entry and requires technical expertise to build and operate profitably.
Our manufacturing activities include a leading manufacturer of graphite electrodes and a comprehensive range of infrastructure
products and engineered construction solutions. Our mining activities include interests in specialty metal and aggregates mining
operations in Canada.

The following table disaggregates segment FFO and common equity into the amounts attributable to the capital we have invested
in BBU, Norbord, and other investments as well as realized disposition gains. We have provided additional detail, where referenced,
to explain significant movements from the prior period.

Funds from Operations Common Equity by Segment

?NSHQI;I'ISIT:IISD)FOR THE YEARS ENDED DEC. 31 NOteS 2016 2015 2016 201 5
Brookfield Business Partners' ... i $ 177 $ 240 $ 1,865 §$ 1,787
INOIDOTA. ..t ii 133 21 276 224
Other INVESTIMENTS ......vveeiiieiiieeeeiee et 95 48 721 167
Realized disposition GaINS ..........ccecvveeeeverierieniereneneeeeeneas — 25 — —
$ 405 $ 334§ 2,862 $ 2,178

1. Prior period figures for assets that are included in BBU have been reclassified to reflect current presentation

i. Brookfield Business Partners

The following table disaggregates BBU’s FFO by business line to facilitate further analysis of the year-over-year variances in
segment FFO:

(FI%RL E%ENEEARS ENDED DEC. 31 2016 2015
COMSITUCEION. ...ttt ettt ettt ettt et eb e st ete b eseebeseebe s eseebeseebeeseseebesseseseseesessese s essesessesessessesenne $ 94 3 105
OthET DUSINESS SCIVICES. ..uvieuvreriereeteeteeteeteetesstesstesseesseesseesseesseasseesseassesssesssesssesssesseessesssesssessseessesssessses 54 43
BRIOIZY ettt h et h ettt b e bbbt bt h et et et et et et sbenae et 63 69
Other INAUSLIIAL OPETALIONS ......ouerveuiriiieiirteietertee ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt eb et et ae e sae e eaenee 6 14
COTPOTate AN ONET .....euveiiiieiiiieiieeceieie ettt ettt ettt et esteseessee st e st e s essasesseeseeseeseessensansensensessessanen an —
Attributable t0 BBU UNIthOIAETS........cceiiriieiieieieieieicteee ettt sttt e s e s e ssesaesresnens 200 231
NON-CONLIOIING TNTETESES -...euvveteneetiteiieteieterte ettt ettt ettt s et et e st st e st et es e et ese e b e e eseebeneeneneneanens 23) —
Segment reallocation and Other ...........coueriiiiiiiiiii e — 9
BrOOK IEIA"S INEEIEST ...c.vieuiiiiieiieieetie ettt ettt ettt e st e ste e be e beebeesbeesbeessessaessaesseesseenseesseenseensas $ 177 § 240

BBU generated $200 million of FFO, representing a $3 1 million decrease from the prior period primarily due to corporate expenses
incurred on its formation as a publicly traded partnership on June 20, 2016. Corporate expenses also include base management
fees and other administrative costs that were previously incurred by BAM.

Construction services FFO decreased by $11 million to $94 million as the prior year included incremental earnings upon finalization
of a large project in the U.K. in addition to the impact of a weaker British pound on U.K. earnings throughout 2016. We also
experienced lower margins on an Australian contract. These effects were partially offset by a positive contribution from a larger
level of work performed throughout the year compared to the prior year. Our backlog now stands at $7.3 billion across 106 projects,
representing nearly two years of activity.

FFO from other business services increased by $11 million due to reduced costs at our real estate services business. In addition,
FFO benefitted from a tuck-in acquisition closed in our facilities management business in the third quarter of 2016.

Our energy operations experienced a $6 million reduction in FFO as a result of weak commodity pricing in the first half of the
year that affected our Canadian operations. This decrease was partially offset by a gain of $8 million on the disposition of investment
securities and increased contribution from our Western Australian equity accounted operation as a result of hedging its oil exposure
which significantly insulated it from commodity price volatility in 2016.

FFO from our other industrial investments decreased by $8 million due primarily to lower FFO contributions from our graphite
electrode manufacturing operation. This decrease was partially offset by a realized gain of $9 million in relation to the sale of a
short-term securities investment as well as increased margins at our bath and shower manufacturing business.
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ii. Norbord

Our share of Norbord’s FFO increased by $112 million to $133 million as North American benchmark OSB prices have increased
from this time last year as U.S. housing starts, particularly for single-family homes, continue to recover and are increasing
OSB demand, a key product used in the residential construction industry. Average North American OSB prices increased by
33% to $245 per thousand square feet (“Msf”) compared to an average pricing of $184 per Msf'in 2015. FFO also benefitted from
a 7% increase in North American yearly volumes from 5.5 billion square feet to 5.9 billion square feet.

Common Equity by Segment

Common equity in our Private Equity segment increased by $684 million from December 31, 2015 to $2.9 billion due to
$926 million additional capital invested in these operations during the year. This was partially offset by the $441 million distribution
to shareholders of a 21% interest in BBU. Most of the assets held in the private equity operations are recorded at amortized cost,
with depreciation recorded on a quarterly basis.

Outlook and Growth Initiatives

BBU completed its first year as a publicly listed partnership following its spin-off in June 2016 and continues to make progress
across its operations through a number of strategic initiatives. In the construction services business, the focus continues to be on
key clients who are looking to build high quality residential, office, retail, and hotel projects. Within the business services segment,
we are executing our strategy to expand the global footprint and scale of the facilities management operations to increase efficiency
and value. In the energy segment, ongoing exploration and development initiatives are underway to enhance base production and
solidify future growth within Canada and Australia. In the industrials segment, we are focused on making continued operational
improvements to further reduce costs and increase efficiency.

BBU continues to pursue new opportunities and monetize businesses where capital can be redeployed into higher returning
opportunities. In partnership with our institutional partners, BBU entered into a definitive agreement to acquire a 70% controlling
stake in Odebrecht Ambiental (“OA”), Brazil’s largest private water distribution, collection, and treatment company, and an 85%
controlling stake in Greenergy Fuels Holdings Ltd (“Greenergy”), a leading U.K.-based road fuels distributor. Given these
businesses’ operational footprints and technical capabilities, we believe this acquisition will enable us to generate strong and stable
long-term returns in the future. Subsequent to year end, we sold our bath and shower manufacturing business (“Maax”), which
we acquired just prior to the U.S. housing and credit crisis and owned in a very challenging environment given the length and
severity of the crisis. We were able to manage the ensuing challenges by applying our operating expertise to drive improved
performance at Maax, culminating into a sale, which generated a strong multiple on our invested capital.

RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT
Our residential development businesses operate predominately in North America and Brazil.

Our North American business is conducted through Brookfield Residential Properties Inc., and is active in 10 principal markets
in Canada and the U.S., and controls approximately 100,000 lots in these markets. Our major focus is on entitling and developing
land for building homes or for the sale of lots to other builders.

Our Brazilian business includes land acquisition and development, construction, sales and marketing of a broad range of “for sale”
residential and commercial office units, with a primary focus on middle income residential units in Brazil’s largest markets,
primarily Sao Paulo and Rio de Janeiro.

The following table disaggregates segment FFO and common equity into the amounts attributable to our two principal operating
regions:

Funds from Operations Common Equity by Segment

ﬁléglégg) FOR THE YEARS ENDED DEC. 31 2016 2015 2016 2015
Residential

INOTTh AINETICA ..ot e e e e eaea e $ 160 $ 171  $§ 1,441 § 1,318

Brazil and other .........ooceeiviiiiinieineceee e 97 (36) 1,238 903

$ 63 $ 135 § 2,679 $ 2,221

FFO from our North American operations decreased by $11 million primarily due to a decrease of $31 million in land gross margins
arising from a shift in the mix of lots sold as well as an overall decrease in the number of lot closings as we continue to be affected
by the impact of depressed energy prices in western Canada. This was partially offset by an increase in housing gross margins by
$44 million as a result of 537 additional home closings, as eastern Canada and various U.S. markets have benefitted from strong
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market conditions. Furthermore, the average home selling prices in Canada increased by 12% from $328,000 to $368,000 due to
a larger proportion of higher priced homes closed throughout Ontario and in Calgary, where we have benefitted from increased
average selling prices attributable to homes built by our luxury home builder that we had acquired in the fourth quarter of 2015.
As at December 31, 2016, we have 29 (2015 — 31) active land communities and 85 (2015 — 68) active housing communities.

Our Brazilian operations delivered 41 projects during the year in comparison to 25 in 2015. Although deliveries were higher in
the current year, FFO was a loss of $97 million in the current year compared to a loss of $36 million in the prior year. This was
due to increased costs on certain projects and decreased pricing as a result of the weak economic environment in Brazil and its
impact on the residential market. We currently have 26 projects under development as compared to 63 at the start of 2016 and 101
at the start of 2015, as we have been focused on delivering our current inventory over the two past years.

Common Equity by Segment

Common equity in our residential development segment was $2.7 billion at December 31, 2016 (2015 — $2.2 billion) and consists
largely of residential development inventory. We invested $281 million in our Brazilian operations during the year. In Brazil, the
investment was used to repay high cost debt, lowering leverage and associated interest expense. Our residential businesses are
carried primarily at historical cost, or the lower of cost and market, notwithstanding the length of time that some of our assets
have been held and the value created through the development process.

Outlook and Growth Initiatives

We believe our North American activities will continue to perform well due to the improving market conditions in several regions
in which we operate. In Canada, we will continue to benefit from improved market conditions in eastern Canada, however, the
impact of low commodity prices on our energy driven housing markets may have some offsetting impacts. Net new home orders
increased 17% to 3,394 units in 2016, which increased the units and value of our backlog units by 15% and 37%, respectively,
over the prior year, with much of the increase occurring within our U.S. operations where prices and product mix are contributing
to higher margins. At the end of 2016, the North American backlog stood at 1,541 homes sold but not delivered, with a sales value
of $783 million, compared to 1,340 homes with a value of $573 million at the same time last year.

Brazil is currently experiencing lower growth, which is having a negative impact on current returns. Although the market in Brazil
remains challenging, consumer confidence levels are now rising, enhancing the value of our business and our ability to generate
stronger results over time. Evidence of this confidence is seen through our recent launch of new products, after two years of not
launching products into the market. We are continuing to restructure the company’s operations and refocus the company on higher
margin projects in select key markets.

CORPORATE ACTIVITIES

Our corporate activities primarily consist of allocating capital to our operating business groups, principally through our listed
partnerships (BPY, BEP, BIP and BBU) and directly held investments, as well as funding this capital through the issuance of
corporate borrowings and preferred shares. We also hold cash and financial assets as part of our liquidity management operations
and enter into financial contracts to manage our foreign currency and interest rate risks.

The following table disaggregates segment FFO and common equity into the principal assets and liabilities within our corporate
operations and associated FFO to facilitate analysis:

Funds from Operations Common Equity by Segment

f}?féﬂéﬁ’s}) FOR THE YEARS ENDED DEC. 31 2016 2015 2016 2015

Cash and financial assets, Net.........cecveviieriierieeiiieie e $ 151 $ 30 $ 1,207 $ 1,018
Corporate BOITOWINGS.........c.cvviriiuiiiiiieiiiiiecteec e (241) (224) (4,500) (3,936)
Preferred f:quity1 ................................................................................... — — (3,954) (3,739)

Corporate costs and taxes/net working capital..........ccccoceverenencnenee. (122) (116) 373) 606
$ 212) $ (310) $ (7,620) $ (6,051)

1. FFO excludes preferred share distributions of $133 million (2015 — $134 million)
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Our portfolio of cash and financial assets is generally recorded at fair value with changes recognized quarterly through net income,
unless the underlying financial investments are classified as available-for-sale securities, in which case changes in value are
recognized in other comprehensive income. Loans and receivables are typically carried at amortized cost. Our financial assets
consist of $1.4 billion of cash and other financial assets (2015 — $1.3 billion), which are partially offset by $190 million (2015 —
$280 million) of deposits and other liabilities.

FFO from these activities includes dividends and interests from our financial assets, mark-to-market gains or losses on our financial
asset portfolio and realized disposition gains or losses. FFO from our cash and financial asset portfolio was $151 million in the
current year, reflecting favourable market performance.

Corporate borrowings are generally issued with fixed interest rates and held at amortized cost. Many of these borrowings are
denominated in Canadian dollars and therefore the carrying value fluctuates with changes in the exchange rate. A number of these
borrowings have been designated as hedges of our Canadian dollar net investments within our other segments, resulting in the
majority of the currency revaluation being recognized in other comprehensive income. Preferred equity does not revalue under
IFRS. The FFO deficit from our corporate borrowings reflects the interest expense on those borrowings, which increased from
the prior year as a result of corporate debt issuances during the year.

We describe cash and financial assets, corporate borrowings and preferred equity in more detail within Part 4 — Capitalization and
Liquidity.

Common equity in our Corporate segment decreased by $1.6 billion to a deficit of $7.6 billion (2015 — $6.1 billion). The decrease
is attributable to additional corporate borrowing from the $872 million issuance of corporate notes during the year, partially offset
by repayment and weakening of Canadian dollars, as well as a repayment of a $632 million loan receivable from BPY that was
part of the net working capital as of the prior year end. Net working capital also includes corporate accounts receivable, accounts
payable, other assets and liabilities. These items are partly offset by net deferred income tax assets of $648 million (2015 —
$729 million). FFO includes corporate costs and cash taxes, which increased over the prior year due to a higher level of cash taxes
in the current quarter.
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PART 4 — CAPITALIZATION AND LIQUIDITY
FINANCING STRATEGY

The following are key elements of our capital strategy:

*  Match our long-life assets with long-duration financings with a diversified maturity schedule;

*  Provide recourse only to the specific assets being financed, with limited cross collateralization or parental guarantees;
*  Limit borrowings to investment-grade levels based on anticipated performance throughout a business cycle; and

»  Structure our affairs to facilitate access to a broad range of capital and liquidity at multiple levels of the organization.

Most of our borrowings are in the form of long-term, property-specific financings such as mortgages or project financings secured
only by the specific assets. We attempt to diversify our maturity schedule so that financing requirements in any given year are
manageable. Limiting recourse to specific assets or business group is intended to limit the impact of weak performance by one
asset or business group and our ability to finance the balance of our operations.

Most of our financings have investment-grade characteristics, which is intended to ensure that debt levels on any particular asset
or business can typically be maintained throughout a business cycle, and to enable us to limit covenants and other performance
requirements, thereby reducing the risk of early payment requirements or restrictions on the distribution of cash from the assets
being financed. Furthermore, our ability to finance at the corporate, operating unit and asset level on a private or public basis is
intended to lessen our dependence on any particular segment of the capital markets or the performance of any particular unit.

We maintain sufficient liquidity at the corporate level and within our key operating business groups to enable us to react to attractive
investment opportunities and deal with contingencies when they arise. Our primary sources of liquidity, which we refer to as core
liquidity, consist of our cash and financial assets, net of deposits and other associated liabilities, and undrawn committed credit
facilities.

We historically generate substantial liquidity within our operations on an ongoing basis through our operating cash flow, as well
as from the turnover of assets with shorter investment horizons and periodic monetization of our longer dated assets through
dispositions and refinancings. Accordingly, we believe we have the necessary liquidity to manage our financial commitments and
to capitalize on attractive investment opportunities.
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CAPITALIZATION

Overview

We review key components of our consolidated capitalization in the following sections. In several instances we have disaggregated
the balances into the amounts attributable to our operating segments in order to facilitate discussion and analysis.

The following table presents our capitalization on a consolidated corporate (i.e. deconsolidated), and proportionately consolidated
basis:

Consolidated' Corporate Proportionate’
iﬁfﬁflgﬁ‘éj“ 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Corporate borrowings .............eeevene $ 4,500 $ 3936 $ 4,500 $ 3936 $ 4,500 $ 3,936
Non-recourse borrowings
Property-specific mortgages ......... 52,502 46,474 — — 26,421 26,730
Subsidiary borrowings .................. 7,949 8,303 — — 5,231 5,303
64,951 58,713 4,500 3,936 36,152 35,969
Accounts payable and other............. 11,982 11,433 1,901 1,726 7,726 7,537
Deferred tax liabilities .................... 9,640 8,810 246 155 4,572 4,904
Subsidiary equity obligations .......... 3,565 3,331 — — 1,828 1,895
Equity
Non-controlling interests............ 43,235 31,920 — — — —
Preferred equity ... 3,954 3,739 3,954 3,739 3,954 3,739
Common equity ......c.ccceveevererennee 22,499 21,568 22,499 21,568 22,499 21,568
69,688 57,227 26,453 25,307 26,453 25,307
Total capitalization............cccceeuueeee. $ 159,826 $ 139,514 $§ 33,100 $ 31,124 $ 76,731 $ 75,612

1. Reflects liabilities associated with assets held for sale on a consolidated basis and proportionate basis according to the nature of the balance

Consolidated Capitalization

Consolidated capitalization reflects the full consolidation of wholly owned and partially owned entities. We note that in many
cases our consolidated capitalization includes 100% of the debt of the consolidated entities, even though in most cases we only
own a portion of the entity and therefore our pro rata exposure to this debt is much lower. In other cases, this basis of presentation
excludes the debt of partially owned entities that are equity accounted, such as our investments in General Growth Properties and
Canary Wharf and several of our infrastructure businesses.

Corporate Capitalization

Our corporate (deconsolidated) capitalization shows the amount of debt that has recourse to the Corporation. Common and preferred
equity totals $26.5 billion (2015 — $25.3 billion) and represents approximately 80% of our corporate capitalization.

Corporate borrowings are further described on page 60.
Proportionate Capitalization

Proportionate capitalization, which reflects our proportionate interest in the underlying entities, depicts the extent to which our
underlying assets are leveraged, which we believe is an important component of enhancing shareholder returns. We believe that
the levels of debt relative to total capitalization are appropriate given the high quality of the assets, the stability of the associated
cash flows and the level of financings that assets of this nature typically support, as well as our liquidity profile.
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Consolidated to Proportionate Capitalization Reconciliation

Proportionate capitalization is a non-IFRS measure that presents our share of debt and other obligations based on our ownership
of the related investments. We use this measure to enable analysis of our leverage levels relative to our common equity. This may
differ from our consolidated leverage because of the varying ownership that we have in our consolidated and equity accounted
investments.

The following table reconciles consolidated capitalization to proportionate capitalization:

Ao 2016 2015
Total consolidated capitaliZAtion...........coveerieiriirieiirieirieie ettt $ 159,826 139,514
Add: proportionate share of debt of investments in aSSOCIALES .......c.c.ervrveveeririereirrriererineereeneerereennene 8,396 9,026
Less: liabilities attributable to Non-controlling INtEIESTS .........ceveierieriereriiriieiieiieieieie e
NON-TECOUISE DOITOWIIIES ...ttt ettt b e ne e (37,146) (31,539)
Liabilities associated with assets held for sale ............cooooiiiiiiiiiiiiieeece (49) (231)
Accounts payable and OtHET........c..oueeiririieirieie ettt ettt (4,256) (3,896)
Deferred tax HaDIlItIES . ....co.eeierieirieiiteieee ettt (5,068) (3,906)
Subsidiary equity ODIIZALIONS .........c.eurririeieirinieriinirieein ettt ettt b et neaen (1,737) (1,436)
NON-CONIOLING IIEETESES ...ttt ettt ettt ettt sttt enene (43,235) (31,920)

Total proportionate capitalization. $ 76,731 § 75,612

Corporate Borrowings

Corporate borrowings at December 31, 2016 included term debt of $4.5 billion (2015 — $3.8 billion), which increased as a result
of issuances of C$500 million and $500 million during the year and a $76 million impact of foreign exchange on Canadian dollar
balances, partially offset by C$300 million repayment during the year. We had no commercial paper and bank borrowings
outstanding at December 31, 2016 (2015 — $156 million). Commercial paper and bank borrowings are pursuant to, or backed by,
$1.9 billion of committed revolving term credit facilities of which $1.5 billion have a five-year term, $170 million have a four-
year term and the remaining $300 million have a three-year term. As at December 31, 2016, approximately $61 million of the
facilities were utilized for letters of credit (2015 — $101 million).

Term debt consists of public bonds, all of which are fixed rate and have maturities ranging from April 2017 until 2035. These
financings provide an important source of long-term capital and an appropriate match to our long-term asset profile.

Our corporate term debt has an average term of eight years (2015 — eight years). The average interest rate on our corporate
borrowings was 4.8% at December 31, 2016 (2015 — 5.0%).

Property-Specific Borrowings

Aspart of our financing strategy, the majority of our debt capital is in the form of property-specific mortgages and project financings,
denominated in local currencies that have recourse only to the assets being financed and have no recourse to the Corporation.

Average Term Consolidated
&S@[Bgﬁsﬁl 2016 2015 2016 2015
PLOPEITY 1.vvieieieieiiiiete ettt nees 4 4 $ 34,322 $ 31,191
Renewable POWET .......c.coveiiiiiiinciccerc e 8 9 7,963 5,602
INTTASLIUCTUIE ...ttt 9 9 7,901 6,325
Private equity and Other ...........cccooeveiiiiiineee e 3 3 1,836 2,300
Residential development............ccveieriereneneninieieeeeeseeeeeeee 1 2 420 626
TOtal ..o 5 5 8 52,442 S 46,044

Property-specific borrowings increased by $6.4 billion during 2016 due to $5.2 billion of borrowings assumed on or issued in
conjunction with acquisitions offset by repayment of amounts previously drawn on revolving or term bank facilities. The additional
borrowings in our renewable power operations are primarily related to the acquisitions of hydroelectric facilities in Colombia and
the U.S. The additional borrowings in our infrastructure operations are also primarily related to acquisitions, including the
acquisitions of our Indian and Peruvian toll roads, North American gas storage operations and Australian ports business. Borrowings
are generally denominated in the same currencies as the assets they finance and therefore the overall decrease in the value of the
U.S. dollar during the period decreased the carrying value of our non-U.S. dollar borrowings.
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Subsidiary Borrowings

We endeavour to capitalize our principal subsidiary entities to enable continuous access to the debt capital markets, usually on an
investment-grade basis, thereby reducing the demand for capital from the Corporation and sharing financing costs equally among
equity holders in partially owned subsidiaries.

Average Term Consolidated
&SN?I{LDIB%'S})] 2016 2015 2016 2015
PLOPETLY vttt seaens 2 1 S 2,765 $ 2,864
ReENEWAbIE POWET ....c.veuiiiieiiieieieee et 6 6 2,029 1,736
INFTASIIUCIUTE ...ttt 3 4 1,002 1,491
Private equity and other ..........cccceveireniiineinee e 2 3 538 623
Residential development ...........ccooeirerieineieeeee e 6 7 1,615 1,589
TOUAL ...ttt 4 4 3 7,949 3 8,303

Subsidiary borrowings generally have no recourse to the Corporation but are recourse to its principal subsidiaries (primarily BPY,
BEP, BIP and BBU). Subsidiary borrowings decreased by $0.4 billion as our subsidiaries partially repaid their credit facilities
used to fund investments and growth initiatives in the prior year, offset by the C$500 million issuance in BEP during the third
quarter of 2016.

Subsidiary Equity Obligations

The following table disaggregates subsidiary equity obligations by type:

ASATDECS! 2016 2015
Subsidiary preferred eqUItY UIIES. ........coviirieiriiieiet ettt ettt ettt $ 1,574 $ 1,554
Limited life funds and redeemable fund Units..........ccoeoiriieiiinieiiee e 1,439 1,274
Subsidiary preferred Shares ..o 552 503

$ 3,565 § 3,331

Subsidiary preferred shares are mostly denominated in Canadian dollars and are classified as liabilities because the holders of the
preferred shares have the right, after a fixed date, to convert the shares into common equity of the issuer based on the market price
of the issuer common equity at that time unless they are previously redeemed by the issuer. The dividends paid on these securities
are recorded in interest expense.

Preferred Equity

Preferred equity is comprised of perpetual preferred shares and represents permanent non-participating equity that provides leverage
to our common equity. The shares are categorized by their principal characteristics in the following table:

Average Rate

&SN'[“I[BE)%S%‘ Term 2016 2015 2016 2015
FiXed rate-Te€S€t......ccueevveerieeeeieeeeeeeeeeeee e Perpetual 4.42% 4.63% $ 2,669 $ 2,506
Fixed rate ......oooovveeiiiieiicceeeee e Perpetual 4.82% 4.82% 753 753
Floating 1ate .........cccovvvvueieinieieiiiniieeieeeccseeeeees Perpetual 1.97% 1.92% 532 480
TOtAL ..o 4.17% 432% $ 3,954 $ 3,739

Fixed rate-reset preferred shares are issued with an initial fixed rate coupon that is reset after an initial period, typically between
five and seven years, at a predetermined spread over the Canadian five-year government bond yield. The average reset spread as
at December 31, 2016 was 282 basis points.

On November 18, 2016, the company issued 12.0 million Series 46 fixed rate-reset preferred shares with an initial dividend rate
of 4.80% for gross proceeds of C$300 million.

During the year we repurchased 258,487 of our fixed rate-reset preferred shares with a face value of $6.4 million.
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Non-controlling Interests

Non-controlling interests in our consolidated results consists primarily of public interests in BPY, BEP, BIP and BBU, and third-
party interests in their consolidated operating entities as well as other participating interests in our consolidated listed and unlisted
investments as follows:

&S[Ifaggg-)“ 2016 2015
Brookfield Property PArtiers ..........coovivirieieieieieieeceieee ettt ettt sae et sbe e e $ 18,790 $ 16,045
Brookfield Renewable Partners ..........cccoevieireiiinieirieeee ettt 8,879 5,358
Brookfield Infrastructure Partners ........c..coeieeieieiiiiniiicnnee ettt 7,710 5,591
Brookfield BUSINESs PAItners.........c.coucvvuirieiirieiriinieinicieientet sttt ettt n et enen 2,173 —
Other partiCipating INEEIESES. ......c.uevrterieuirteietertetieteiet ettt ettt es et ettt ettt et s b e e bt st et be e ebesaeneseenee 5,683 4,926

$ 43,235 § 31,920

The increase in non-controlling interests is the result of the spin-off of BBU which contributed $2.2 billion as well as acquisitions
made through private funds in the year, in particular the acquisition of a Colombian hydroelectric portfolio through a private fund
and with co-investors, which contributed $2.7 billion of the increase in non-controlling interests in BEP, as well as the acquisition
of self-storage operations, a U.S. retail mall portfolio, and a portfolio of student housing in our opportunistic real estate funds,
which are consolidated by BPY, and the acquisitions of our North American gas storage operations, a portion of our Australian
port operations and toll roads that are consolidated by BIP.

Class A Shares
Issued and Outstanding Shares

Changes in the number of issued and outstanding Class A common shares (“Class A shares”) during the years are as follows:

(FI\%RL THE \S’I)EARS ENDED DEC. 31 2016 2015
Outstanding, BeGINNING OF YEAT .......c.coviuiriiiiiieiciee ettt eeee 961.3 928.2

Issued (repurchased)

ISSUAICES. ...eceviietie ettt et eett ettt e et e et e e et e e etae e eteeeeteeesaseeebaeesseeaaseeesseeesseeasseeenseeesseessseeensaeeseeensseeans — 329

Repurchases........ccoevvevenenenenencnee. .7 (11.5)

Long-term share ownership plans' ... 1.3 114

Dividend reinvestment plan and Others............coeoeiiririreiiireeeee e 0.3 0.3
Outstanding, €Nd OF YEAT.......cc.ccoriiiiiiieieeee ettt 958.2 961.3
Unexercised options and other share-based plans’ ................cco.ccoovoiovooiivoeoeoeeeoeeceeeeeeeeee e 43.8 42.0
Total diluted shares, €Nd OF YEAT.......c.ccovvieuiririiieiiirecereeer ettt 1,002.0 1,003.3

1. Includes management share option plan and restricted stock plan

The company holds 27.8 million Class A shares (2015 — 26.3 million) purchased by consolidated entities in respect of long-term
share ownership programs, which have been deducted from the total amount of shares outstanding at the date acquired. Diluted
shares outstanding include 4.2 million (December 31, 2015 — 3.7 million) shares issuable in respect of these plans based on the
market value of the Class A shares at December 31,2016 and 2015, resulting in a net reduction 0f23.6 million (2015 —22.6 million)
diluted shares outstanding.

During 2016, 2,713,259 options were exercised, in which 2,290,097 were exercised on a net-settled basis, resulting in the
cancellation of 1,662,086 vested options.

The cash value of unexercised options is $901 million as at December 31,2016 (2015 — $828 million) based on the proceeds that
would be received on exercise of the options.

As of March 30, 2017, the Corporation had outstanding 958,869,814 Class A shares and 85,120 Class B shares.
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Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share

The components of basic and diluted earnings per share are summarized in the following table:

(FSFL THE SS-IARS ENDED DEC. 31 2016 2015
Net income attributable to SharehOLAETS .........c.couvveuioiririeriiiniiiecirctr et $ 1,651 $ 2,341
Preferred Share AIVIAEIAS .......eeeeeeeeeeeee ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e s et eeeeeeeeeesesaseessraaeaenenees (133) (134)
Net income available to ShAar€hOIdErS..........cvoivviiiiiiieieeee e eeaee e eaeeen $ 1,518 §$ 2,207
Weighted-average SRATES..........coeiiiiiiririe ettt sttt et et e be st sbesae e 959.0 949.7
Dilutive effect of the conversion of options and escrowed shares using

HTEASUTY SEOCK TENOA ..........oeieeeee ettt e et e e ee e e e e s ereseeeeeeee 17.6 26.0
Shares and Share EQUIVALENLS .........cvevirierieriererieteie ettt ettt et e e e steste e et et e e etensensebesseeneenes 976.6 975.7

1. Includes management share option plan and escrowed stock plan

INTEREST RATE PROFILE

As at December 31, 2016, our net floating rate liability position on a proportionate basis was $7.5 billion (2015 — $5.2 billion).
As aresult, a 50 basis-point increase in interest rates would decrease FFO by $37 million (2015 — $26 million). Notwithstanding
our practice of matching funding of long-term assets with long-term debt, we believe that the values and cash flows of certain
assets are more appropriately matched with floating rate liabilities. We utilize interest rate contracts to manage our overall interest
rate profile so as to achieve an appropriate floating rate exposure while preserving a long-term maturity profile.

The impact of a 50 basis-point increase in long-term interest rates on the carrying value of financial instruments recorded at market
value is estimated to increase FFO by $26 million, based on our positions at December 31, 2016 (2015 — $16 million).

We have continued to take advantage of low long-term rates to fix the coupons on floating rate debt and near-term maturities. This
has resulted in an increase in our current borrowing expense but we believe this will result in lower costs in the long term. We
completed approximately $31 billion of debt and preferred share financings during the year throughout our portfolio ($20 billion
on a proportionate basis). These refinancing activities have enabled us to extend or maintain our average maturity term at favourable
rates. Approximately $9 billion of the asset-specific financings and the $0.7 billion of preferred shares issued have fixed rate
coupons.

As at December 31, 2016, we held a $2.6 billion notional amount (2015 — $3.2 billion) of interest rate contracts, $1.7 billion on
a proportionate basis (2015 — $2.0 billion), to lock in the risk-free component of interest rates for projected debt refinancings over
the next three years at an average risk-free rate of 1.5% (2015 — 1.8%). The effective rate will be approximately 4.2% (2015 —
4.1%) at the time of issuance, which reflects the premium relating to the slope of the yield curve during this period. This represents
approximately 31% of expected issuance into the North American and U.K. markets (2015 — 38%) at our share in the next three
years. The value of these contracts is correlated with changes in the reference interest rate, typically the U.S. 10-year government
bond, such that a 50 basis-point increase in the interest rate would result in a $129 million positive mark to market (2015 —
$137 million), of which $85 million net to Brookfield (2015 — $95 million) would be recorded in other comprehensive income.

LIQUIDITY

Overview

As an asset manager, most of our investment transactions and funding activities occur within our private funds and listed
partnerships. We endeavour to structure these entities so that they are self-funding, preferably on an investment-grade basis, and
in almost all circumstances do not rely on financial support from the Corporation. Our share of capital commitments to private
funds are generally funded by the associated listed partnership, based on the investment strategy of each fund. From time to time,
we will invest additional capital in these listed partnerships through participation in equity issuances or alternatively may sell units
on a secondary basis.

Core Liquidity

Our principal sources of short-term liquidity are cash and financial assets together with undrawn committed credit facilities at the
corporate and listed partnership level, which we refer to collectively as core liquidity. We maintain cash and financial assets, as
well as undrawn credit facilities, to fund capital transactions. Our credit facilities are with a diversified range of major banking
institutions, typically have five year terms and we endeavour to renew and extend the term annually.
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The following table presents our core liquidity on a corporate and consolidated basis:

Corporate Principal Subsidiaries Total
g\ilﬁl—flgﬁgj}l 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Cash and financial assets, net $ 1207 $ 1018 $ 1385 § 428 $ 2,592 § 1,446
Undrawn committed credit facilities ..........c.ccccecereenee 1,869 1,673 4,506 5,848 6,375 7,521

$ 3076 $ 2691 $ 581 § 6276 $ 8967 $ 8967

As at December 31, 2016, core liquidity at the corporate level was $3.1 billion, consisting of $1.2 billion in cash and financial
assets, net of deposits and other liabilities, and $1.9 billion in undrawn credit facilities. Corporate level liquidity is readily available
for use without any material tax consequences. We expect to fund corporate transactions and financial commitments with existing
cash and financial asset balances and borrowing under corporate credit facilities as well as cash generated on an ongoing basis.

We also have the ability to raise additional liquidity through the issuance of securities and sale of holdings of listed investments
in our principal subsidiaries and other holdings including from those listed in the table below on this page. However, this is not
considered a core source of liquidity at the corporate level as we are generally able to finance our operations and capital requirements
through other means.

Our primary sources of recurring cash flows at the corporate level are fee related earnings from our asset management activities
and distributions from invested capital, in particular our listed partnerships. Recurring cash requirements at the corporate level
include: ongoing corporate operating costs; interest payments on corporate borrowings; payments related to financial instruments
such as interest rate and foreign currency contracts, to the extent that these are in a liability position; payments related to our
energy marketing initiatives, when realized prices on power sales are less than the contracted price paid to BEP; and preferred
and common share dividend payments declared by our Board of Directors.

Typical capital requirements for cash include debt principal repayments and preferred share redemptions, although we typically
refinance these in advance of maturity; capital calls from funds to which we have committed capital, which typically is at our
discretion as we manage the funds; discretionary investments to fund acquisitions and capital expansion projects, including
participation in equity issues by our principal investee companies.

During 2016 we earned $712 million of fee related earnings. We received $1.1 billion in distributions from our listed subsidiaries
during 2016 and have the ability to distribute surplus cash flow of controlled, privately held investments. In addition, income
generated by our financial asset portfolio was $151 million. Interest expense and preferred share distributions totalled $241 million
and $133 million, respectively, and corporate operating expenses and cash taxes totalled $122 million. We paid $500 million in
dividends on our common equity in 2016.

We hold much of the capital invested by the Corporation in the form of listed equity securities which provides us with an important
source of liquidity and ongoing cash distributions. The following table shows the quoted market value of the company’s listed
securities and annual cash distributions based on current distribution policies for each entity, excluding our cash and financial
asset portfolio:

?Ailﬁglgﬁg; 3E]x(z:(lzzi)éT PER UNIT AMOUNTS) Ownership % Units DIStII;lE:l)I‘uS$1t§ (%/igflee% DISt{i)rlllItlll(l);li
Brookfield Property Partners’..............ccooccoooovveevnnne 68.8% 4878 $ .18 § 11,992 § 652
Brookfield Renewable Partners.............ccccccveeveenneee. 61.3% 183.4 1.87 5,448 343
Brookfield Infrastructure Partners.............cc.ccueeu..e.. 29.6% 110.3 1.74 3,690 192
Brookfield Business Partners ...........c.cccocevvervennennee. 74.9% 80.9 0.28 1,946 20
Norbord 40.8% 35.0 0.30 884 11
Acadian Timber COrp. ........ccovveveririerrieiererieeereeenens 44.9% 7.5 0.74 100 6

$ 24,060 $ 1,224

1. Based on current distribution policies as announced in February 2017

2. Quoted value using December 31, 2016 public pricing

3. Quoted value includes $1,265 million of preferred shares and distributions includes $76 million of preferred distributions. Fully diluted ownership is 62%, assuming
conversion of convertible preferred shares held by a third party

We also receive capital distributions from time to time from asset sales by private funds that we hold direct interests in, such as
our private equity funds, and from the sale of directly held assets.
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The formation and spin-off of BBU has resulted in us providing a $500 million acquisition and liquidity facility to BBU to assist
in its liquidity requirements in the short term, which has not been drawn. Subsequently, BBU obtained a $150 million credit facility
from external lenders that is non-recourse to the Corporation. BBU now funds the commitments to our private equity private
funds, which will decrease the liquidity requirements on the Corporation over time as BBU becomes self-financing.

Consolidated core liquidity includes the core liquidity of our principal subsidiaries, which consist of BPY, BEP, BIP, and BBU,
and was $9.0 billion at the end of the period. This liquidity is available to fund ongoing investments in their respective areas of
expertise and, accordingly, we include the resources of these entities in assessing our overall liquidity. Our principal subsidiaries
are publicly listed limited partnerships that are able to repatriate cash to unitholders, including the Corporation, without the
imposition of material tax consequences on the partnerships themselves. As a unitholder, we receive distributions from these
subsidiaries, which are not taxable to us. We recognize income taxes based on our share of the partnerships’ taxable income and
we record this as part of our tax expense.

Capital Requirements and Commitments

On a consolidated basis, our two largest normal course capital requirements are the funding of acquisitions and debt maturities.
As a result of our financing strategy, the quality of our assets and emphasis on investment-grade borrowings and diversification
of capital sources, we have consistently refinanced maturities in the normal course, even in difficult capital market environments,
and frequently do so in advance of the scheduled maturity to lessen exposure to capital market disruptions.

As noted above, most of our acquisitions are completed by private funds or listed partnerships that we manage. In the case of
private funds, the necessary equity capital is obtained by calling on commitments made by the limited partners in each fund, which
include commitments made by us or our managed entities such as our listed partnerships. In the case of listed partnerships, capital
requirements are funded through their own resources and access to capital markets, which may be supported by us from time to
time through participation in equity offerings or bridge financings.

Our commitments to provide capital to the private funds that we manage are similar to the commitments that our clients make. In
the case of our property, infrastructure and private equity funds, these commitments are expected to be funded by our listed
partnerships, specifically BPY, BEP, BIP and BBU, although in certain circumstances the agreements provide that the Corporation
will fund any commitments that our listed entities fail to fund. As at December 31, 2016 the company had commitments of
$7.4 billion to funds, of which $7.0 billion is expected to be funded by managed entities and the balance of $468 million by the
Corporation. In addition, we had $19.9 billion of private fund commitments from third-party clients to fund qualifying transactions.
Investments and capital expansion projects are discretionary and require approval under our investment policies including, where
appropriate, our Board of Directors. The approval of these activities takes into consideration the availability of capital to fund
them.

We schedule ongoing capital expenditure programs to maintain the operating capacity of our assets at existing levels, which we
refer to as sustaining capital expenditures, and which are typically funded by, and represent a relatively small proportion of, the
operating cash flows within each business. The timing of these expenditures is discretionary, however we believe it is important
to maintain the productivity of our assets in order to optimize cash flows and value accretion and fund these expenditures with
operating cash flow.

As discussed further on pages 74 and 75, we enter into financial instruments such as interest rate, foreign currency and power
price contracts that require us to make or receive payments based on changes in value of the contracts, either to settle the contract
or as collateral. We carefully monitor potential liquidity requirements to ensure that they remain within a reasonable amount and
can easily be funded with core liquidity.

Over the medium to longer term, we believe that our strategy of holding most of the capital we invest in our property, renewable
power and infrastructure businesses through listed entities will significantly increase our aggregate capital resources and liquidity
and reduce our corporate level capital requirements with respect to future investing activities. Our strategy calls for most of the
capital invested in assets within these sectors, either directly or through commitments to private funds, to be funded by the listed
entities with their own capital resources. We may, however, from time to time enter into commitments to provide financing to
listed entities such as an equity subscription facility or loan facility. We may also underwrite the syndication of co-investments
and joint venture investment transactions by our listed issuers and private funds.

The core liquidity of our listed partnerships, including proceeds of asset dispositions, private fund distributions and financings,
is typically retained by each listed partnership and is not distributed to the Corporation or other unitholders. Should we, through
our controlling interest, choose to repatriate this liquidity, the Corporation would receive its proportionate share as a distribution
from the principal subsidiaries. Such repatriations would not have any material tax consequences to the Corporation.
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REVIEW OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

The following table summarizes the consolidated statements of cash flows within our consolidated financial statements:

(FISR THE \S’EARS ENDED DEC. 31 2016 2015
OPETALING ACLIVITIES ...ttt sttt ettt ettt ettt eb e b et eb et b et bttt et et eb et et a et et na e eeenee $ 3,083 $ 2,788
FINANCINE ACTIVITICS .. .ueteuietiteiieteiet ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt et e st et e et et e st et et ebeseeneeteneenennan 6,993 8,222
Investing activities (8,557) (11,064)
Change in cash and cash equivalents $ 1,519 § (54)

This statement reflects activities within our consolidated operations and therefore excludes activities within non-consolidated
entities such as our equity accounted investment in GGP.

Operating Activities

Cash flow from operating activities totalled $3.1 billion in 2016, a $295 million increase from 2015. These cash flows consist of
net income, including the amount attributable to co-investors, less non-cash items such as undistributed equity accounted income,
fair value changes, depreciation and deferred income taxes, and is adjusted for changes in non-cash working capital. Cash flow
from operating activities includes the net amount invested or recovered through the ongoing investment in, and subsequent sale
of, residential land, houses and condominiums, which represented an outflow of $243 million in 2016 (2015 — $128 million).
Operating cash flow prior to non-cash working capital and residential inventory was $3.8 billion during the current year, which
was $0.9 billion higher than 2015 due to the benefits of same-store growth from our existing operations and the contributions
from assets acquired over the last twelve months.

Financing Activities

The company generated $7.0 billion of cash flows from financing activities during 2016, as compared to $8.2 billion in 2015. Our
subsidiaries issued $23.8 billion (2015 — $15.6 billion) and repaid $20.4 billion (2015 — $11.5 billion) of property-specific and
subsidiary borrowings, for a net issuance of $3.4 billion (2015 — $4.1 billion) during the year. We raised $10.6 billion of capital
from our institutional private fund partners and other investors to fund their portion of acquisitions, including the repayment of
$1.7 billion of short-term borrowings backed by private fund commitments, and returned $5.1 billion to our clients in the form
of either distributions or return of capital. Most of the activity related to the acquisition of our Colombian hydroelectric portfolio
and acquisitions within our property and infrastructure funds. The corporation issued $0.9 billion of medium-term notes, the
proceeds of which were used to repay medium-term notes that came to maturity.

Investing Activities

During 2016, we invested $17.9 billion and generated proceeds of $9.4 billion from dispositions for net cash deployed in investing
activities of $8.4 billion. This compares to net cash investments of $12.8 billion in 2015. We acquired $9.4 billion of consolidated
subsidiaries across our various strategies. Disposition proceeds included over $4.0 billion from the sale of office properties. We
invested $3.7 billion in financial assets, such as debt and equity securities. Investing activities were higher in the prior year due
to particularly large investments in our property and private equity funds.
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CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

The following table presents the contractual obligations of the company by payment periods:

Payments Due by Period
Less than 1 1-3 4-5 After 5
AS AT DEC. 31, 2016 (MILLIONS) Year Years Years Years Total
Corporate DOTTOWINGS ....cc.eeuveureverienienierienienieneeeeeens $ 425 3§ 447 $ 260 $ 3,368 $ 4,500
Principal repayments
Non-recourse borrowings
Property-specific mortgages 7,655 13,965 13,467 17,355 52,442
Other debt of subsidiaries..........c.ccccveevreneecnennn 866 2,699 1,955 2,429 7,949
Subsidiary equity obligations...........ccccecveveverenene. 421 143 1,217 1,784 3,565
Accounts payable and other
Capital lease obligations..............cccccevvviiiiiiincninnns 27 6 2 1 36
OMhET ..ot 7,694 1,629 262 2,294 11,879
COMMUIMENTS ...eeoiinvvieiieiiiieeecteee e eeaaee e 695 431 29 301 1,456
Operating 1eases’ .............o.covveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeeeeeeens 105 222 28 447 802
Interest expense2
Corporate borrowings...........ccccevvviiiiiiiiiiineinnns 201 375 342 878 1,796
Non-recourse bOrroWings.........ceeeververeeeeeeereeneennan 2,776 4,549 3,219 4,378 14,922
Subsidiary equity obligations 198 376 318 378 1,270

1. Operating land leases with agreements largely expiring after the year 2065 totalled $4.4 billion as at December 31, 2016
2. Represents the aggregate interest expense expected to be paid over the term of the obligations. Variable interest rate payments have been calculated based on current
rates

Commitments of $1.5 billion (2015 — $0.9 billion) represent various contractual obligations of the company and its subsidiaries
assumed in the normal course of business. These included commitments to provide bridge financing, and letters of credit and
guarantees provided in respect of power sales contracts and reinsurance obligations. The Corporation is required under certain
circumstances to purchase BPY’s preferred equity units at redemption, as described below, accordingly, commitments in 2016
include $226 million, which represents the carrying value of the exchange option at the time of issuance in respect of BPY’s
subsidiary preferred units, and the remaining $1,574 million was recorded within subsidiary equity obligations. All other balances,
with the exception of interest expense incurred in future periods, are included in our consolidated balance sheet.

The Corporation entered into arrangements in 2014 with respect to $1.8 billion of exchangeable preferred equity units issued by
BPY, which are redeemable in equal tranches of $600 million in 2021, 2024 and 2026, respectively. The preferred equity units
are exchangeable into equity units of BPY at $25.70 per unit, at the option of the holder, at any time up to and including the
maturity date. BPY may redeem the preferred equity units after specified periods if the BPY equity unit price exceeds predetermined
amounts. At maturity, the preferred equity units will be converted into BPY equity units at the lower of $25.70 or the then market
price of a BPY equity unit. In order to provide the purchaser with enhanced liquidity, the Corporation has agreed to purchase the
preferred equity units for cash at the option of the holder, for the initial purchase price plus accrued and unpaid dividends. In order
to decrease dilution risk to BPY, the Corporation has agreed with the holder and BPY that if the price of a BPY equity unit is less
than 80% of the exchange price of $25.70 at the redemption date of the 2021 and 2024 tranches, the Corporation will acquire the
preferred equity units subject to redemption, at the redemption price, and to exchange these preferred equity units for preferred
equity units with similar terms and conditions, including redemption date, as the 2026 tranche.

The company and its consolidated subsidiaries execute agreements that provide for indemnifications and guarantees to third parties
in transactions or dealings such as business dispositions, business acquisitions, sales of assets, provision of services, securitization
agreements, and underwriting and agency agreements. The company has also agreed to indemnify its directors and certain of its
officers and employees. The nature of substantially all of the indemnification undertakings prevents the company from making a
reasonable estimate of the maximum potential amount the company could be required to pay third parties, as in most cases the
agreements do not specify a maximum amount, and the amounts are dependent upon the outcome of future contingent events,
the nature and likelihood of which cannot be determined at this time. Neither the company nor its consolidated subsidiaries have
made significant payments in the past, nor do they expect at this time to make any significant payments under such indemnification
agreements in the future.
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The company periodically enters into joint venture, consortium or other arrangements that have contingent liquidity rights in
favour of the company or its counterparties. These include buy sell arrangements, registration rights and other customary
arrangements. These agreements generally have embedded protective terms that mitigate the risk to us. The amount, timing and
likelihood of any payments by the company under these arrangements is, in most cases, dependent on either future contingent
events or circumstances applicable to the counterparty and therefore cannot be determined at this time.

Our wholly owned energy marketing group has committed to purchase power and other wind generation produced by 61% owned
BEP as previously described on page 50.

EXPOSURES TO SELECTED FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

As discussed elsewhere in this MD&A, we utilize various financial instruments in our business to manage risk and make better
use of our capital. The fair values of these instruments that are reflected on our balance sheets are disclosed in Note 6 to our
consolidated financial statements.
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PART 5 — OPERATING CAPABILITIES, ENVIRONMENT AND RISKS

In this section we discuss elements of our operating strategies as they relate to the execution of our business strategy, as well as
performance measurements. This section also contains a review of certain aspects of the business environment and risks that could
affect our performance.

OPERATING CAPABILITIES

We believe that we have the necessary capabilities to execute our business strategy and achieve our performance targets. To this
end, we strive for excellence and quality in each of our core operating business groups in the belief that this approach will produce
strong returns over the long term.

We endeavour to operate as a value investor and follow a disciplined investment approach. Our management team has considerable
capabilities in investment analysis, mergers and acquisitions, divestitures and corporate finance that enable us to acquire assets
for value, finance them effectively, and to realize the value created during our ownership.

Our operating business groups and depth of experience in managing these assets differentiate us from those competitors that have
shorter investment horizons and more of a speculative focus. These operating business groups have been established over the
course of many years and are fully integrated into our organization. This has required considerable investment in building
the management teams and the necessary resources; however, we believe these business groups enable us to optimize the cash
returns and values of the assets that we manage.

We have established strong relationships with a number of leading institutional investors and believe we are well positioned to
continue increasing the amount of capital managed for others on a fee bearing basis. We continue to invest our distribution
capabilities to encourage existing and potential clients to commit capital to our investment strategies. To achieve this, we are
continually expanding the breadth of resources we devote to these activities, and our efforts continue to be assisted by favourable
investment performance.

The diversification within our operations in terms of both asset classes and regions allows us to offer a broad range of products
and investment strategies to our clients, enabling us to pursue a wide range of investment opportunities while focusing on assets
and regions that offer the best value. We believe this is of considerable value to investors with large amounts of capital to deploy.
In addition, our commitment to transparency and ethical business conduct, as well as our position in the market as a well-capitalized
public company listed on major North American and European stock exchanges, positions us as a desirable long-term partner for
our clients. We also manage several flagship specialty issuers publicly listed on major North American stock exchanges and with
majority independent boards of directors, which further enhances the development of our business partnerships.

Finally, our commitment to invest a meaningful amount of capital alongside our investors creates a strong alignment of interest
between us and our investment partners and also differentiates us from many of our competitors. Accordingly, our strategy includes
maintaining considerable surplus financial resources. This capital also supports our ability to commit to investment opportunities
on our own account when appropriate or in anticipation of future syndications.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Managing risk is an integral part of Brookfield’s business and we have a disciplined and focused approach to risk management,
which includes a risk management framework for managing risks across the organization.

The assessment and management of risk is the responsibility of the company’s management. Given the diversified and decentralized
nature of our operations, we seek to ensure that risk is managed as close to its source as possible, and by the management teams
that have the most knowledge and expertise in the business or risk area.

As such, business specific risks are generally managed at the operating business group level, as the risks vary based on the
characteristics of each business. The specific manner and methodologies by which risks are addressed and mitigated vary based
upon, among other things, the nature of the risks and of the assets and operations to which they apply, the geographic location of
the assets, the economic, political and regulatory environment, and Brookfield’s assessment of the benefits to be derived from
such mitigation strategies.

At the same time, we utilize a co-ordinated approach among our corporate group and our operating business groups to risks that
can be more pervasive and correlated in their impact across the organization, such as liquidity, foreign exchange and interest rate
risks, and where we can bring together specialized knowledge to manage these risks. Management of strategic, reputational and
regulatory compliance risks are similarly co-ordinated to ensure consistent focus and implementation across the organization.
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The company’s Chief Financial Officer has ultimate responsibility for the risk management function and discharges the
responsibility with the assistance of the Risk Management Group, which works with various operational and functional groups
within Brookfield to co-ordinate the risk management program and to develop and implement risk mitigation strategies that are
appropriate for the company.

These efforts leverage the work conducted by management committees that have been formed to bring together required expertise
to manage and oversee key risk areas, and include:

e Risk Management Steering Committee to support the overall corporate risk management program, and co-ordinate risk
assessment and mitigation on an enterprise-wide basis;

*  Investment Committees to oversee the investment process as well as monitor the ongoing performance of investments;
*  Conflicts Committee to resolve potential conflict situations in the investment process and other corporate transactions;
*  Financial Risk Oversight Committee to review and monitor financial exposures;

»  Safety Steering Committee to focus on health, safety and environmental matters; and

*  Disclosure Committee to oversee the public disclosure of material information.

The Corporation’s Board of Directors has governance oversight for risk management with a focus on the more significant risks
we face, and builds upon management’s risk assessment and oversight processes. The Board of Directors has delegated
responsibility for the oversight of specific risks to board committees as follows:

¢ Risk Management Committee: Oversees the management of Brookfield’s significant financial and non-financial risk
exposures, including market, credit, operational, reputational, strategic, regulatory and business risks. These responsibilities
include reviewing risk assessment and risk management practices with management to ensure ongoing, effective mitigation
of key organizational risks, as well as confirming that the company has an appropriate risk taking philosophy and suitable
risk capacity.

e Audit Committee: Oversees the management of risks related to Brookfield’s systems and procedures for financial reporting
as well as for associated audit processes (internal and external). Part of the Audit Committee’s responsibilities is the review
and approval of the risk-based internal audit plan, which ensures alignment with risk management activities and organizational
priorities.

*  Management Resources and Compensation Committee: Oversees the risks related to Brookfield’s management resource
planning, including succession planning, proposed senior management appointments, executive compensation, and the job
descriptions and annual objectives of senior executives, as well as performance against those objectives.

*  Governance and Nominating Committee: Oversees the risks related to Brookfield’s governance structure, including the
effectiveness of board and committee activities and potential conflicts of interest, as well as with respect to related party
transactions.

BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT AND RISKS

The following is a review of certain risks that could adversely impact our financial condition, results of operations and the value
of our equity. Additional risks and uncertainties not previously known to the company, or that the company currently deems
immaterial, may also impact our operations and financial results.

a) Ownership of Class A Shares
The trading price of our Class A shares is subject to market volatility and cannot be predicted.

Our shareholders may not be able to sell their Class A shares at or above the price at which they purchased such shares due to
trading price fluctuations in the capital markets. The trading price could fluctuate significantly in response to factors both related
and unrelated to our operating performance and/or future prospects, including, but not limited to: (i) variations in our operating
results and financial condition; (ii) changes in government laws, rules or regulations affecting our businesses; (iii) material
announcements by our competitors; (iv) market conditions and events specific to the industries in which we operate; (v) changes
in general economic conditions; (vi) changes in the values of our investments or changes in the amount of distributions, dividends
or interest paid in respect of investments; (vii) differences between our actual financial and operating results and those expected
by investors and analysts; (viii) changes in analysts’ recommendations or earnings projections; (ix) changes in the extent of analysts’
interest in covering the Corporation and its publicly traded affiliates; (x) the depth and liquidity of the market for our Class A
shares; (xi) dilution from the issuance of additional equity; (xii) investor perception of our businesses and the industries in which
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we operate; (xiii) investment restrictions; (xiv) our dividend policy; (xv) the departure of key executives; (xvi) sales of Class A
shares by senior management or significant shareholders; and (xvii) the materialization of other risks described in this section.

b) Reputation

Actions or conduct that have a negative impact on clients’ or stakeholders’ perception of us could adversely impact our ability to
attract and/or retain client capital.

The growth of our asset management business relies on continuous fundraising for various private and public investment products.
We depend on our business relationships and our reputation for integrity and high-calibre asset management services to attract
and retain investors and advisory clients, and to pursue investment opportunities for us and the public and private entities we
manage. If we are unable to continue to raise capital from third-party investors, either privately, publicly or both, this could
materially reduce our revenue and cash flow and adversely affect our financial condition.

Poor performance of any kind could damage our reputation with current and potential investors in our managed entities, making
it more difficult for us to raise new capital. Investors may decline to invest in current and future managed entities and may withdraw
their investments from our managed entities as a result of poor performance in the entity in which they are invested, and investors
in our private funds may demand lower fees for new or existing funds, all of which would decrease our revenue.

Because of our various lines of businesses and investment products, some of which have overlapping mandates, we may be subject
to a number of actual, potential or perceived conflicts of interest than that to which we would otherwise be subject if we had just
one line of business or investment product. These conflicts may be magnified for an asset manager that has many different capital
sources available to pursue investment opportunities, including client capital and the Corporation’s own capital. In addition, the
senior management team of the Corporation and its affiliates has their own capital invested in Class A shares, directly and indirectly,
and may have financial exposures with respect to their own investments which could lead to potential conflicts if such investments
are similar to those made by the Corporation or on behalf of clients in entities managed by the Corporation. In addressing these
conflicts, we have implemented certain policies and procedures that may be ineffective at mitigating actual, potential or perceived
conflicts of interest, or reduce the positive synergies that we cultivate across our businesses. It is also possible that actual, potential
or perceived conflicts of the type outlined in this paragraph could give rise to investor dissatisfaction, litigation, regulatory
enforcement actions or other detrimental outcomes. Appropriately dealing with conflicts of interest for an asset manager like us
is complex and difficult and our reputation could be damaged if we fail, or appear to fail, to deal appropriately with actual, potential
or perceived conflicts of interest. There has been enhanced regulatory scrutiny of asset manager conflicts in the markets in which
we operate and in the U.S. in particular. Such regulatory scrutiny can lead to fines, penalties and other negative consequences.
Regulatory scrutiny of, or litigation in connection with, conflicts of interest could have a material adverse effect on our reputation,
business, financial condition or results of operations in a number of ways, including an inability to adequately capitalize
existing managed entities or raise new managed entities, including private funds, and a reluctance of counterparties to do business
with us.

The governing agreements of our private funds provide that, subject to certain conditions, third-party investors in these funds will
have the right to remove us as general partner or to accelerate the liquidation date of the fund for convenience. Any negative impact
to our reputation would be expected to increase the likelihood that a private fund could be terminated by investors for convenience.
Such an event, were it to occur, would result in a reduction in the fees we would earn from such fund, particularly if we are unable
to maximize the value of the fund’s investments during the liquidation process or in the event of the triggering of a “clawback”
for fees already paid out to us as general partner.

We could be negatively impacted if there is misconduct or alleged misconduct by our personnel or those of our portfolio companies
in which we and our managed entities invest. We may face increased risk of misconduct to the extent our capital allocated to
emerging markets increases. If we face allegations of improper conduct by private litigants or regulators, whether the allegations
are valid or invalid or whether the ultimate outcome is favourable or unfavourable to us, such allegations may result in negative
publicity and press speculation about us, our investment activities or the asset management industry in general, which could harm
our reputation and may be more damaging to our business than to other types of businesses.

We are subject to a number of obligations and standards arising from our asset management business and our authority over the
assets we manage. The violation of these obligations and standards by any of our employees may adversely affect our partners
and our business and reputation. Our business often requires that we deal with confidential matters of great significance to the
companies in which we may invest and to other third parties. If our employees were to improperly use or disclose confidential
information, we could suffer serious harm to our reputation, financial position and current and future business relationships. It is
not always possible to detect or deter employee misconduct, and the precautions we take in this regard may not be effective.

Implementation of new investment and growth strategies involves a number of risks that could result in losses and harm our
professional reputation, including the risk that the expected results are not achieved, that new strategies are not appropriately
planned for or integrated, that new strategies may conflict, detract from or compete against our existing businesses, and that the
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investment process, controls and procedures that we have developed will prove insufficient or inadequate. Furthermore, our
strategic initiatives may include joint ventures, in which case we will be subject to additional risks and uncertainties in that we
may be dependent upon and subject to liability, losses or reputational damage relating to systems, controls and personnel that are
not under our complete control or under the control of another.

¢) Asset Management

Investment returns could be lower than target returns due to inappropriate allocation of capital or ineffective investment
management, or growth in fee bearing capital could be adversely impacted by poor product development or marketing efforts.

Our value investing strategy focuses on acquiring high quality businesses on a value basis, executing operational improvements
and exiting through a competitive process that optimizes value. The successful execution of our investing strategy is uncertain as
it requires suitable opportunities, careful timing and business judgment, as well as the resources to complete asset purchases and
restructure them, if required, notwithstanding difficulties experienced in a particular industry.

Our approach to investing entails adding assets to our existing businesses when the competition for assets is weakest; typically,
when depressed economic conditions exist in the market relating to a particular entity or industry. Such an investing style carries
with it inherent risks when investments are made in either markets or industries that are undergoing some form of dislocation. In
addition, there is no certainty that we will be able to identify suitable or sufficient opportunities that meet our investment criteria
and be able to acquire additional high quality assets at attractive prices to supplement our growth in a timely manner, or at all. We
may fail to value opportunities accurately or to consider all relevant factors that may be necessary or helpful in evaluating an
opportunity; or we may underestimate the costs necessary to bring an acquisition up to standards established for its intended market
position or be unable to quickly and effectively integrate new acquisitions into our existing operations.

In addition, liabilities may exist that we or our managed entities do not discover in due diligence prior to the consummation of an
acquisition, or circumstances may exist with respect to the entities or assets acquired that could lead to future liabilities and, in
each case, we or our managed entities may not be entitled to sufficient, or any, recourse against the contractual counterparties to
an acquisition. The failure of a newly acquired business to perform according to expectations could have a material adverse effect
on our assets, liabilities, business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flow. Alternatively, we may be required to
sell a business before it has realized our expected level of returns for such business.

We pursue investment opportunities that involve business, regulatory, legal and other complexities. Our tolerance for complexity
presents risks, as such transactions can be more difficult, expensive and time consuming to finance and execute, and have a higher
risk of execution failure. It can also be more difficult to manage or realize value from the assets acquired in such transactions and
such transactions sometimes entail a higher level of regulatory scrutiny or a greater risk of contingent liabilities.

If any of our managed entities perform poorly, our fee-based revenue and cash flow would decline. Moreover, we could experience
losses on our own capital invested in our managed entities. Certain of our investments may be concentrated in particular asset
types or geographic regions, which could exacerbate any negative performance of one or more of our managed entities to the
extent those concentrated investments are in assets or regions that experience a market dislocation.

Competition from other asset managers for raising public and private capital is intense and poor investment performance could
hamper our ability to compete for these sources of capital or force us to reduce our management fees. If poor investment returns
prevent us from raising further capital from our existing partners, we may need to identify and attract new investors in order to
maintain or increase the size of our private funds, and there are no assurances that we can find new investors. If we cannot raise
capital from third-party investors, we may be unable to deploy capital into investments and collect management fees, and potentially
collect transaction fees or carried interest, which would materially reduce our revenue and cash flow and adversely affect our
financial condition.

In pursuing investment returns, we and our managed entities face competition from other investors. Each of our businesses is
subject to competition in varying degrees and our competitors may have certain competitive advantages over us. Some of our
competitors may have higher risk tolerances, different risk assessments, lower return thresholds, a lower cost of capital, or a lower
effective tax rate (or no tax rate at all), all of which could allow them to consider a wider variety of investments and to bid more
aggressively than us for investments. We may lose investment opportunities in the future if we do not match investment prices,
structures and terms offered by our competitors, some of whom may have synergistic businesses which allow them to consider
bidding a higher price than we can reasonably offer. Moreover, if we are forced to compete with other investment firms on the
basis of price, we may not be able to maintain our current asset management fee structures, including with respect to base
management fees, carried interest or other terms. These pressures could reduce investment returns and negatively affect our overall
revenues, operating cash flows and financial condition. While we attempt to deal with competitive pressures by leveraging our
asset management strengths and operating capabilities and compete on more than just price, there is no guarantee these measures
will be successful and we may have difficulty competing for investment opportunities, particularly those offered through auction
processes.
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d) Temporary Investments
We may be unable to syndicate, assign or transfer financial commitments entered into in support of our asset management franchise.

We periodically enter into agreements that commit us to acquire assets or securities in order to support our asset management
franchise. For example, we may acquire an asset suitable for a particular managed entity that we are fundraising and warehouse
that asset through the fundraising period before transferring the asset to the managed entity for which it was intended. Or, as
another example, for a particular acquisition transaction we may commit capital as part of a consortium alongside certain of our
managed entities with the expectation that we will syndicate or assign all or a portion of our own commitment to other investors
prior to, at the same time as, or subsequent to, the anticipated closing of the transaction. In all of these cases, our support is intended
to be of a temporary nature and we engage in this activity in order to further the growth and development of our asset management
franchise. By leveraging the Corporation’s financial position to make temporary investments we can execute on investment
opportunities prior to obtaining all third-party equity financing that we seek, and these opportunities may otherwise not be available
without the Corporation’s initial equity participation.

While it is often our intention in these arrangements that the Corporation’s direct participation be of a temporary nature, we may
be unable to syndicate, assign or transfer our interest as we intended and be required to take or keep ownership of an asset for an
extended period. This would increase the amount of our own capital deployed to certain assets and could have an adverse impact
on our liquidity, which may reduce our ability to pursue further acquisitions or meet other financial commitments.

e) Laws, Rules and Regulations
Failure to comply with regulatory requirements could result in financial penalties, loss of business, and/or damage to our reputation.

There are many laws, governmental rules and regulations and listing exchange rules that apply to us, our affiliates, our assets and
our businesses. Changes in these laws, rules and regulations, or their interpretation by governmental agencies or the courts, could
adversely affect our business, assets or prospects, or those of our affiliates, customers, clients or partners. The failure of us or our
publicly listed affiliates to comply with the rules and registration requirements of the respective stock exchanges on which we
and they are listed could adversely affect our reputation and financial condition.

Our asset management business, including our investment advisory and broker-dealer business, is subject to substantial and
increasing regulatory compliance and oversight, and this higher level of scrutiny may lead to more regulatory enforcement actions.
There continues to be uncertainty regarding the appropriate level of regulation and oversight of asset management businesses in
anumber of jurisdictions in which we operate. The introduction of new legislation and increased regulation may result in increased
compliance costs and could materially affect the manner in which we conduct our business and adversely affect our profitability.

Our asset management business is not only regulated in the United States, but also in other jurisdictions where we conduct operations
including the EU, the U.K., Canada, Brazil and Australia. Similar to the environment in the U.S., the current environment in
jurisdictions outside the U.S. in which we operate has become subject to further regulation. Governmental agencies around the
world have proposed or implemented a number of initiatives and additional rules and regulations that could adversely affect our
asset management business, and governmental agencies may propose or implement further regulations in the future. These
regulations may impact how we market our managed entities in these jurisdictions, and introduce compliance obligations with
respect to disclosure and transparency, as well as restrictions on investor distributions. Such regulations may also prescribe certain
capital requirements on our managed entities, and conditions on the leverage our managed entities may employ and the liquidity
these managed entities must have. Compliance with additional regulatory requirements will impose additional compliance burdens
and expense for us and could reduce our operating flexibility and fundraising opportunities.

We acquire and develop primarily property, renewable power, infrastructure, business services and industrial assets. In doing so,
we must comply with extensive and complex municipal, state or provincial, national and international regulations. These regulations
can result in uncertainty and delays, and impose on us additional costs, which may adversely affect our results of operations.
Changes in these laws may negatively impact us and our businesses or may benefit our competitors or their businesses.

Additionally, liability under such laws, rules and regulations may occur without our fault. In certain cases, parties can pursue legal
actions against us to enforce compliance as well as seek damages for non-compliance or for personal injury or property damage.
Our insurance may not provide sufficient coverage in the event that a successful claim is made against us.

Our broker-dealer business is regulated by the SEC, the various Canadian provincial securities commissions, as well as self-
regulatory organizations. These regulatory bodies may conduct administrative or enforcement proceedings that can result in
censure, fine, suspension or expulsion of a broker-dealer, its directors, officers or employees. Such proceedings, whether or not
resulting in adverse findings, can require substantial expenditures and can have an adverse impact on the reputation of a broker-
dealer.
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The advisors of certain of our managed entities are registered as investment advisors with the SEC. Registered investment advisors
are subject to the requirements and regulations of the Investment Advisors Act of 1940, which grants U.S. supervisory agencies
broad administrative powers, including the power to limit or restrict the carrying on of business for failure to comply with laws
or regulations. If such powers are exercised, the possible sanctions that may be imposed include the suspension of individual
employees, limitations on the activities in which the investment advisor may engage, suspension or revocation of the investment
advisor’s registration, censure and fines. Compliance with these requirements and regulations results in the expenditure of resources,
and a failure to comply could result in investigations, financial or other sanctions, and reputational damage.

The Investment Company Act of 1940 (the “40 Act”) and the rules promulgated thereunder provide certain protections to investors
and impose certain restrictions on entities that are deemed “investment companies” under the 40 Act. We are not currently nor do
we intend to become registered as an investment company under the 40 Act. To ensure that we are not deemed to be an investment
company, we may be required to materially restrict or limit the scope of our operations or plans and the types of acquisitions that
we may make; and we may need to modify our organizational structure or dispose of assets that we would not otherwise dispose
of. If we were required to register as an investment company, we would, among other things, be restricted from engaging in certain
business activities (or have conditions placed on our business activities) and issuing certain securities, be required to limit the
amount of investments that we make as principal, and face other limitations on our activities.

f) Governmental Investigations and Anti-Bribery and Corruption

Our policies and procedures designed to ensure compliance with applicable laws, including anti-bribery and corruption laws,
may not be effective in all instances to prevent violations and as a result we may be subject to related governmental investigations.

We are from time to time subject to various governmental investigations, audits and inquiries, both formal and informal
(“investigations”). These investigations, regardless of their outcome, can be costly, divert management attention, and damage our
reputation. The unfavourable resolution of such investigations could result in criminal liability, fines, penalties or other monetary
or non-monetary sanctions and could materially affect our business or results of operations.

There is an increasing global focus on the implementation and enforcement of anti-bribery and corruption legislation, and this
focus has heightened the risks that we face in this area, particularly as we expand our operations globally. We are subject to a
number of laws and regulations governing payments and contributions to public officials or other third parties, including restrictions
imposed by the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and similar laws in non-U.S. jurisdictions, such as the U.K. Bribery Act and
the Canadian Corruption of Foreign Public Officials Act. This increased global focus on anti-bribery and corruption enforcement
may also lead to more investigations, both formal and informal in this area, the results of which cannot be predicted.

Different laws and regulations that are applicable to us may contain conflicting provisions, making our compliance more difficult.
If we fail to comply with such laws and regulations, we could be exposed to claims for damages, financial penalties, reputational
harm, incarceration of our employees, restrictions on our operations and other liabilities, which could negatively affect our operating
results and financial condition. In addition, we may be subject to successor liability for violations under these laws and regulations
or other acts of bribery committed by entities in which we or our managed entities invest.

Instances of bribery, fraud, accounting irregularities and other improper, illegal or corrupt practices can be difficult to detect, and
fraud and other deceptive practices can be widespread in certain jurisdictions. We invest in emerging market countries that may
not have established stringent anti-bribery and corruption laws and regulations, where existing laws and regulations may not be
consistently enforced, or that are perceived to have materially higher levels of corruption according to international rating standards.
Due diligence on investment opportunities in these jurisdictions is frequently more challenging because consistent and uniform
commercial practices in such locations may not have developed or do not meet international standards. Bribery, fraud, accounting
irregularities and corrupt practices can be especially difficult to detect in such locations.

g) Foreign Exchange
Foreign exchange rate fluctuations could adversely impact our aggregate foreign currency exposure.

We have pursued and intend to continue to pursue growth opportunities in international markets, and often invest in countries
where the U.S. dollar is not the local currency. As a result, we are subject to foreign currency risk due to potential fluctuations in
exchange rates between foreign currencies and the U.S. dollar. A significant depreciation in the value of the currency utilized
in one or more countries where we have a significant presence may have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and
financial position. In addition, we are active in certain markets whose economic growth is dependent on the price of commodities
and the currencies in these markets can be more volatile as a result.

Our businesses are impacted by changes in currency rates, interest rates, commodity prices and other financial exposures. We
selectively utilize financial instruments to manage these exposures, including credit default swaps and other derivatives to hedge
certain of our financial positions. However, a significant portion of these risks may remain unhedged. We may also choose to
establish unhedged positions in the ordinary course of business.
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There is no assurance that hedging strategies, to the extent they are used, will fully mitigate the risks they are intended to offset.
Additionally, derivatives that we use are also subject to their own unique set of risks, including counterparty risk with respect to
the financial well-being of the party on the other side of these transactions and a potential requirement to fund mark-to-market
adjustments. Our financial risk management policies may not ultimately be effective at managing these risks.

The Dodd-Frank Act and similar laws in other jurisdictions impose rules and regulations governing oversight of the over-the-
counter derivatives market and its participants. These regulations may impose additional costs and regulatory scrutiny on us. If
our derivative transactions are required to be executed through exchanges or regulated facilities we will face incremental collateral
requirements in the form of initial margin, and require variation margin to be cash settled on a daily basis. Such an increase in
margin requirements (relative to bilateral agreements), were it to occur, perhaps combined with a more restricted list of securities
that qualify as eligible collateral, would require us to hold larger positions in cash and treasuries, which could reduce income.

We cannot predict the effect of changing derivatives legislation on our hedging costs, our hedging strategy or its implementation,
or the risks that we hedge. Regulation of derivatives may increase the cost of derivative contracts, reduce the availability of
derivatives to protect against operational risk and reduce the liquidity of the derivatives market, all of which may reduce our use
of derivatives and result in the increased volatility and decreased predictability of our cash flows.

h) Interest Rates

Rising interest rates could increase our interest costs.

A number of our long-life assets are interest rate sensitive. Increases in interest rates will, absent all else, decrease the value of an
asset by reducing the present value of the cash flows expected to be produced by such asset. As the value of an asset declines as
a result of interest rate increases, certain financial and other covenants under credit agreements governing such asset could be
breached, even if we have satisfied and continue to satisfy our payment obligations. Such a breach could result in negative
consequences on our financial performance and results of operations.

Additionally, any of our debt or preferred shares that are subject to variable interest rates, either as an obligation with a variable
interest rate or as an obligation with a fixed interest rate that resets into a variable interest rate in the future, are subject to interest
rate risk. Further, the value of any debt or preferred share that is subject to a fixed interest rate will be determined based on the
prevailing interest rates and, accordingly, this type of debt or preferred share is also subject to interest rate risk.

In addition, interest rates are at historically low levels in many jurisdictions. These rates may remain relatively low, but they may
rise significantly at some point in the future, either gradually or abruptly. A sudden or unexpected increase in interest rates may cause
certain market dislocations that could negatively impact our financial performance. Interest rate increases would also increase the
amount of cash required to service our obligations and our earnings could be adversely impacted.

i) Human Capital

Ineffective maintenance of our culture, or ineffective management of human capital could adversely impact our asset management
business.

In all of our markets, we face competition in connection with the attraction and retention of qualified employees. Our ability to
compete effectively in our businesses will depend upon our ability to attract new employees and retain and motivate our existing
employees. If we are unable to attract and retain qualified employees this could limit our ability to compete successfully and
achieve our business objectives, which could negatively impact our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our senior management team has a significant role in our success and oversees the execution of our value investing strategy. Our
ability to retain and motivate our management team or attract suitable replacements should any members of our management team
leave is dependent on, among other things, the competitive nature of the employment market and the career opportunities and
compensation that we can offer.

We may experience departures of key professionals in the future. We cannot predict the impact that any such departures will have
on our ability to achieve our objectives, and such departures could adversely impact our financial condition and cash flow.
Competition for the best human capital is intense and the loss of services from key members of the management team or a limitation
in their availability could adversely impact our financial condition and cash flow. Furthermore, such a loss could be negatively
perceived in the capital markets. Our human capital risks may be exacerbated by the fact that we do not maintain any key person
insurance.

Our senior management team possesses substantial experience and expertise and has strong business relationships with investors
in our managed entities and other members of the business communities and industries in which we operate. As a result, the loss
of these personnel could jeopardize our relationships with investors in our managed entities and other members of the business
communities and industries in which we operate and result in the reduction of our assets under management or fewer investment
opportunities. The conduct of our businesses and the execution of our strategy rely heavily on teamwork. Our continued ability
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to respond promptly to opportunities and challenges as they arise depends on co-operation and co-ordination across our organization
and our team-oriented management structure, which may not materialize in the way we expect.

A portion of the workforce in some of our businesses is unionized. If we are unable to negotiate acceptable collective bargaining
agreements with any of our unions, as existing agreements expire we could experience a work stoppage, which could result in a
significant disruption to the affected operations, higher ongoing labour costs and restrictions on our ability to maximize the
efficiency of our operations, all of which could have an adverse effect on our financial results.

j) Tax
Reassessments by tax authorities or changes in tax laws could create additional tax costs for us.

Our structure is based on prevailing taxation law and practice in the local jurisdictions in which we operate. Any change in tax
policy, tax legislation (including in relation to taxation rates), the interpretation of tax policy or legislation or practice in these
jurisdictions could adversely affect the return we earn on our investments, the level of capital available to be invested by us or
our managed entities, and the willingness of investors to invest in our managed entities. This risk would include any reassessments
by tax authorities on our tax returns if we were to incorrectly interpret or apply any tax policy, legislation or practice.

Taxes and other constraints that would apply to our operating entities in such jurisdictions may not apply to local institutions or
other parties such as state-owned enterprises, and such parties may therefore have a significantly lower effective cost of capital
and a corresponding competitive advantage in pursuing acquisitions. There are a number of factors that could increase our effective
tax rates, which would have a negative impact on our net income, including, but not limited to, changes in the valuation of our
deferred tax assets and liabilities, and any reassessment of taxes by a taxation authority.

Governments around the world are increasingly seeking to regulate multinational companies and their use of differential tax rates
between jurisdictions. This effort includes a greater emphasis by various nations to co-ordinate and share information regarding
companies and the taxes they pay. Governmental taxation policies and practices could adversely affect us and, depending on the
nature of such policies and practices, could have a greater impact on us than on other companies. As a result of this increased
focus on the use of tax planning by multinational companies, we could also face reputational risk as a result of negative media
coverage of our tax planning or otherwise.

The Corporation endeavours to be considered a “qualified foreign corporation” for U.S. federal income tax purposes and for the
Corporation’s dividends to therefore be considered generally eligible for “qualified dividend” treatment in the U.S. Whether
dividends paid by the Corporation will in fact be treated as “qualified dividends” for U.S. federal income tax purposes for a
particular shareholder of the Corporation will depend on that shareholder’s specific circumstances, including, but not limited to,
the shareholder’s holding period for shares of the Corporation on which dividends are received. The Corporation provides no
assurances that any or all of its dividends paid to shareholders will be treated as “qualified dividends” for U.S. federal income tax
purposes.

k) Financial and Liquidity

Cash may not be available to meet our financial obligations when due or enable us to capitalize on investment opportunities when
they arise.

We employ debt and other forms of leverage in the ordinary course of business to enhance returns to our investors and finance
our operations. We attempt to match the profile of any leverage to the associated assets. We are therefore subject to the risks
associated with debt financing and refinancing, including but not limited to the following: (i) our cash flow may be insufficient
to meet required payments of principal and interest; (ii) payments of principal and interest on borrowings may leave us with
insufficient cash resources to pay operating expenses and dividends; (iii) if we are unable to obtain committed debt financing for
potential acquisitions or can only obtain debt at an increased interest rate or on unfavourable terms, we may have difficulty
completing acquisitions or may generate profits that are lower than would otherwise be the case; (iv) we may not be able to
refinance indebtedness on our assets at maturity due to company and market factors such as the estimated cash flow produced by
our assets, the value of our assets, liquidity in the debt markets, and/or financial, competitive, business and other factors; and (v) if
we are able to refinance our assets, the terms of a refinancing may not be as favourable as the original terms of the related
indebtedness. If we are unable to refinance our indebtedness on acceptable terms, or at all, we may need to utilize available liquidity,
which would reduce our ability to pursue new investment opportunities, or we may need to dispose of one or more of our assets
on disadvantageous terms, or raise equity causing dilution to existing shareholders. Regulatory changes, including, for example,
standards for banks under Basel, may also result in higher borrowing costs and reduced access to credit.

The terms of our various credit agreements and other financing documents require us to comply with a number of customary
financial and other covenants, such as maintaining debt service coverage and leverage ratios, adequate insurance coverage and
certain credit ratings. These covenants may limit our flexibility in conducting our operations and breaches of these covenants
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could result in defaults under the instruments governing the applicable indebtedness, even if we have satisfied and continue to
satisfy our payment obligations.

A large proportion of our capital is invested in physical assets and securities that can be hard to sell, especially if market conditions
are poor. A lack of liquidity could limit our ability to vary our portfolio or assets promptly in response to changing economic or
investment conditions. Additionally, if financial or operating difficulties of other owners result in distress sales, such sales could
depress asset values in the markets in which we operate. The restrictions inherent in owning physical assets could reduce our
ability to respond to changes in market conditions and could adversely affect the performance of our investments, our financial
condition and results of operations.

Because there is significant uncertainty in the valuation of, or in the stability of the value of illiquid or non-public investments,
the fair values of such investments do not necessarily reflect the prices that would actually be obtained when such investments
are realized. Realizations at values significantly lower than the values at which investments have been recorded would result in
losses, a decline in asset management fees and the potential loss of carried interest and incentive fees.

We enter into financing commitments in the normal course of business, which we may be required to fund. Additionally, in the
ordinary course of business we guarantee the obligations of other entities that we manage and/or invest in. If we are required to
fund these commitments and are unable to do so, this could result in damages being pursued against us or a loss of opportunity
through default under contracts that are otherwise to our benefit.

1) Financial Reporting and Disclosures
Deficiencies in our public company financial reporting and disclosures could adversely impact our reputation.

As we expand the size and scope of our business, there is a greater susceptibility that our financial reporting and other public
disclosure documents may contain material misstatements and that the controls we maintain to attempt to ensure the complete
accuracy of our public disclosures may fail to operate as intended. The occurrence of such events could adversely impact our
reputation and financial condition.

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal controls over financial reporting to give our
stakeholders assurance regarding the reliability of our financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with international financial reporting standards. However, the process for establishing and maintaining
adequate internal controls over financial reporting has inherent limitations, including the possibility of human error. Our internal
controls over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements in our financial disclosures on a timely basis, or at all.
Some of these processes may be new for certain subsidiaries in our structure and may take time to be fully ingrained.

Our disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide assurance that information required to be disclosed by us in reports
filed or submitted under Canadian, U.S. and Dutch securities laws is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the
time periods specified. Our policies and procedures governing disclosures may not ensure that all material information regarding
us is disclosed in a proper and timely fashion, or that we will be successful in preventing the disclosure of material information
to a single person or a limited group of people before such information is generally disseminated.

m) Geopolitical

Political instability, changes in government policy, or unfamiliar cultural factors could adversely impact the value of our
investments.

We make investments in businesses that are based outside of North America and we may pursue investments in unfamiliar markets,
which may expose us to additional risks not typically associated with investing in North America. We may not properly adjust to
the local culture and business practices in such markets, and there is the prospect that we may hire personnel or partner with local
persons who might not comply with our culture and ethical business practices; either scenario could result in the failure of our
initiatives in new markets and lead to financial losses for us and our managed entities. There are risks of political instability in
several of our major markets from factors such as political conflict, income inequality, refugee migration, terrorism, the potential
break-up of political-economic unions (or the departure of a union member) and political corruption; the materialization of one
or more of these risks could negatively affect our financial performance.

Any existing or new operations may be subject to significant political, economic and financial risks, which vary by country, and
may include: (i) changes in government policies or personnel; (ii) changes in general economic conditions; (iii) restrictions on
currency transfer or convertibility; (iv) changes in labour relations; (v) political instability and civil unrest; (vi) less developed or
efficient financial markets than in North America; (vii) the absence of uniform accounting, auditing and financial reporting
standards, practices and disclosure requirements; (viii) less government supervision and regulation; (ix) a less developed legal or
regulatory environment; (x) heightened exposure to corruption risk; (xi) political hostility to investments by foreign investors;
(xii) less publicly available information in respect of companies in non-North American markets; (xiii) adversely higher or lower
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rates of inflation; (xiv) higher transaction costs; (xv) difficulty in enforcing contractual obligations and expropriation or confiscation
of assets; and (xvi) fewer investor protections.

Unforeseen political events in markets where we own and operate assets and may look to for further growth of our businesses,
such as the U.S. and European markets, may create economic uncertainty that has a negative impact on our financial performance.
Such uncertainty could cause disruptions to our businesses, including affecting the business of and/or our relationships with our
customers and suppliers, as well as altering the relationship among tariffs and currencies, including the value of the British pound
and the Euro relative to the U.S. dollar. Disruptions and uncertainties could adversely affect our financial condition, operating
results and cash flows. In addition, political outcomes in the markets in which we operate may also result in legal uncertainty and
potentially divergent national laws and regulations, which can contribute to general economic uncertainty. Economic uncertainty
impacting us and our managed entities could be exacerbated by near-term political events, including those in the U.S., Europe
and elsewhere.

n) Economic Conditions

Unfavourable economic conditions or changes in the industries in which we operate could adversely impact our financial
performance.

We are exposed to local, regional, national and international economic conditions and other events and occurrences beyond our
control, including, but not limited to, the following: credit and capital market volatility, business investment levels, government
spending levels, consumer spending levels, changes in laws, rules or regulations, trade barriers, commodity prices, currency
exchange rates and controls, national and international political circumstances (including wars, terrorist acts or security operations),
changes in interest rates, inflation rates, the rate and direction of economic growth, and general economic uncertainty. On a global
basis, certain industries and sectors have created capacity that anticipated higher growth, which has caused depressed commodity
prices and volatility across all markets, which may have a negative impact on our financial performance.

Unfavourable economic conditions could affect the jurisdictions in which our entities are formed and where we own assets and
operate businesses, and may cause a reduction in: (i) securities prices; (ii) the liquidity of investments made by us and our managed
entities; (iii) the value or performance of the investments made by us and our managed entities; and (iv) the ability of us and our
managed entities to raise or deploy capital, each of which could adversely impact our financial condition.

In general, a decline in economic conditions, either in the markets or industries in which we participate, or both, will result in
downward pressure on our operating margins and asset values as a result of lower demand and increased price competition for
the services and products that we provide. In particular, given the importance of the U.S. to our operations, an economic downturn
in this market could have a significant adverse effect on our operating margins and asset values.

Our private funds have a finite life that may require us to exit an investment made in a fund at an inopportune time. Volatility in
the exit markets for these investments, increasing levels of capital required to finance companies to exit, and rising enterprise
value thresholds to go public or complete a strategic sale can all contribute to the risk that we will not be able to exit a private
fund investment successfully. We cannot always control the timing of our private fund investment exits or our realizations upon
exit.

If global economic conditions deteriorate, our investment performance could suffer, resulting in, for example, the payment of less
or no carried interest to us. The payment of less or no carried interest to us could cause our cash flow from operations to decrease,
which could materially adversely affect our liquidity position and the amount of cash we have on hand to conduct our operations.
A reduction in our cash flow from operations could, in turn, require us to rely on other sources of cash (such as the capital markets
which may not be available to us on acceptable terms, or debt and other forms of leverage).

0) Health, Safety and the Environment

Inadequate or ineffective health and safety programs could result in injuries to employees or the public and, as with ineffective
management of environmental and sustainability issues, could damage our reputation, adversely impact our financial performance
and may lead to regulatory action.

The ownership and operation of our assets carry varying degrees of inherent risk or liability related to worker health and safety
and the environment, including the risk of government imposed orders to remedy unsafe conditions and contaminated lands, and
potential civil liability. Compliance with health, safety and environmental standards and the requirements set out in our licenses,
permits and other approvals are material to our businesses.

We have incurred and will continue to incur significant capital and operating expenditures to comply with health, safety and
environmental standards, to obtain and comply with licenses, permits and other approvals, and to assess and manage potential
liability exposure. Nevertheless, we may be unsuccessful in obtaining or maintaining an important license, permit or other approval
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or become subject to government orders, investigations, inquiries or other proceedings (including civil claims) relating to health,
safety and environmental matters, any of which could have a material adverse effect on us.

Health, safety and environmental laws and regulations can change rapidly and significantly and we may become subject to more
stringent laws and regulations in the future. The occurrence of any adverse health and safety or environmental event, or any
changes, additions to, or more rigorous enforcement of, health, safety and environmental standards, licenses, permits or other
approvals could have a significant impact on our operations and/or result in material expenditures.

As an owner and operator of real assets, we may become liable for the costs of removal and remediation of certain hazardous
substances released or deposited on or in our properties, or at other locations regardless of whether or not we were responsible
for the release or deposit of such hazardous materials. These costs could be significant and could reduce cash available for our
businesses. The failure to remove or remediate such substances, if any, could adversely affect our ability to sell our assets or to
borrow using these assets as collateral, and could potentially result in claims or other proceedings against us.

Certain of our businesses are involved in using, handling or transporting substances that are toxic, combustible or otherwise
hazardous to the environment and may be in close proximity to environmentally sensitive areas or densely populated communities.
If aleak, spill or other environmental incident occurred, it could result in substantial fines or penalties being imposed by regulatory
authorities, revocation of licenses or permits required to operate the business or the imposition of more stringent conditions in
those licenses or permits, or legal claims for compensation (including punitive damages) by affected stakeholders.

There is increasing stakeholder interest in environmental sustainability issues, including among the investors and potential investors
in our managed entities. If we are unable to successfully manage our environmental sustainability compliance, this could have a
negative impact on our ability to raise future public and private capital and could be detrimental to our economic value and the
value of our managed entities.

p) Catastrophic Event/Loss and Cyber Terrorism

Catastrophic events (or combination of events), such as earthquakes, tornadoes, floods, terrorism/sabotage, or fire, as well as
deliberate cyber terrorism, could adversely impact our financial performance.

Our assets under management could be exposed to effects of catastrophic events, such as severe weather conditions, natural
disasters, major accidents, acts of malicious destruction, sabotage or terrorism, which could adversely impact our operations.

Ongoing changes to the physical climate in which we operate may have an impact on our businesses. Changes in weather patterns
or extreme weather (such as floods, hurricanes and other storms) may impact hydrology and/or wind levels, thereby influencing
power generation levels, affect other of our businesses or damage our assets. Further, rising sea levels could, in the future, affect
the value of any low-lying coastal real assets that we may own or develop, result in the imposition of new property taxes, or
increase property insurance rates. Climate change may also give rise to changes in regulations and consumer sentiment that could
impact other areas of our operations. Climate change regulation at provincial or state, federal and international levels could have
an adverse effect on our business, financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Our commercial office portfolio is concentrated in large metropolitan areas, some of which have been or may be perceived to be
threatened by terrorist attacks. Furthermore, many of our properties consist of high-rise buildings, which may also be subject to
this actual or perceived threat. The perceived threat of a terrorist attack could negatively impact our ability to lease office space
in our real estate portfolio. Renewable power and infrastructure assets, such as roads, railways, power generation facilities and
ports, may also be targeted by terrorist organizations. Any damage or business interruption costs as a result of uninsured or
underinsured acts of terrorism could result in a material cost to us and could adversely affect our business, financial condition
or results of operation. Adequate terrorism insurance may not be available at rates we believe are reasonable in the future. All of
the risks indicated in this paragraph could be heightened by foreign policy decisions of the U.S. (where we have significant
operations) and other influential countries or general geopolitical conditions.

We rely on certain information technology systems which may be subject to cyber terrorism intended to obtain unauthorized access
to our proprietary information, destroy data or disable, degrade or sabotage our systems, through the introduction of computer
viruses, cyber attacks and other means, and could originate from a variety of sources including our own employees or unknown
third parties. There can be no assurance that measures implemented to protect the integrity of our systems will provide adequate
protection. If our information systems are compromised, we could suffer a disruption in one or more of our businesses. This could
have a negative impact on our operating results and cash flows, or result in reputational damage.
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q) Dependence on Information Technology Systems
The failure of our information technology systems could adversely impact our reputation and financial performance.

We operate in businesses that are dependent on information systems and technology. Our information systems and technology
may not continue to be able to accommodate our growth, and the cost of maintaining such systems may increase from its current
level, either of which could have a material adverse effect on us.

We rely on third-party service providers to manage certain aspects of our business, including for certain information systems and
technology, data processing systems, and the secure processing, storage and transmission of information. Any interruption or
deterioration in the performance of these third parties or failures of their information systems and technology could impair the
quality of our operations and could adversely affect our business and reputation.

r) Litigation

We and our affiliates may become involved in legal disputes in Canada, the U.S. and internationally that could adversely impact
our financial performance and reputation.

In the normal course of our operations, we become involved in various legal actions, including claims relating to personal injury,
property damage, property taxes, land rights and contract and other commercial disputes. The investment decisions we make in
our asset management business and the activities of our investment professionals on behalf of the portfolio companies of our
managed entities may subject us, our managed entities and our portfolio companies to the risk of third-party litigation. Further,
we have significant operations in the U.S. which may, as a result of the prevalence of litigation in the U.S., be more susceptible
to legal action than certain of our other operations.

Management of our litigation matters is generally handled by legal counsel in the business unit most directly impacted by the
litigation, and not by a centralized legal department. As a result, the management of litigation that we face may not always be
appropriate or effective.

The final outcome with respect to outstanding, pending or future litigation cannot be predicted with certainty, and the resolution
of such actions may have an adverse effect on our financial position or results of our operations in a particular quarter or fiscal
year. Any litigation may consume substantial amounts of our management’s time and attention, and that time and the devotion of
these resources to litigation may, at times, be disproportionate to the amounts at stake in the litigation. Even ifultimately unsuccessful
against us, any litigation has the potential to adversely affect our business, including by damaging our reputation.

s) Insurance
Losses not covered by insurance may be large, which could adversely impact our financial performance.

We carry various insurance policies on our assets. These policies contain policy specifications, limits and deductibles that may
mean that such policies do not provide coverage or sufficient coverage against all potential material losses. We may also self-
insure a portion of certain of these risks, and therefore the company may not be able to recover from a third-party insurer in the
event that the company, if it had asset insurance coverage from a third party, could make a claim for recovery. There are certain
types of risk (generally of a catastrophic nature such as war or environmental contamination) which are either uninsurable or not
economically insurable. Further, there are certain types of risk for which insurance coverage is not equal to the full replacement
cost of the insured assets. Should any uninsured or underinsured loss occur, we could lose our investment in, and anticipated
profits and cash flows from, one or more of our assets or operations.

We also carry directors and officers liability insurance, or D&O insurance, for losses or advancement of defense costs in the event
a legal action is brought against the company’s directors, officers or employees for alleged wrongful acts in their capacity as
directors, officers or employees. Our D&O insurance contains certain customary exclusions that may make it unavailable for the
company in the event it is needed; and in any case our D&O insurance may not be adequate to fully protect the company against
liability for the conduct of its directors, officers or employees. We may also self-insure a portion of our D&O insurance, and
therefore the company may not be able to recover from a third-party insurer in the event that the company, if it had D&O insurance
from a third-party insurer, could make a claim for recovery.

For economic efficiency and other reasons, the Corporation and its affiliates may enter into insurance policies as a group which
are intended to provide coverage for the entire group. Since they are group policies, any payments under a policy could have a
negative impact on other entities covered under the policy since they may not be able to access adequate insurance in the event it
is needed. While management attempts to design coverage limits under group policies to ensure that all entities covered under a
policy have access to sufficient insurance coverage, there are no guarantees that these efforts will be effective in obtaining this
result.
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t) Credit
Inability to collect amounts owing to us could adversely impact financial performance.

Third parties may not fulfill their payment obligations to us, which could include money, securities or other assets, thereby impacting
our operations and financial results. These parties include deal and trading counterparties, governmental agencies, portfolio
company customers and financial intermediaries. Third parties may default on their obligations to us due to bankruptcy, lack of
liquidity, operational failure or other reasons.

We have business lines whose model is to earn investment returns by loaning money to distressed companies, either privately or
via an investment in publicly traded debt securities. As a result, we actively take heightened credit risk in other entities from time
to time and whether we realize satisfactory investment returns on these loans is uncertain and may be beyond our control. If some
of these debt investments fail, our financial performance could be negatively impacted.

Investors in our private funds make capital commitments to these vehicles through the execution of subscription agreements.
When a private fund makes an investment, these capital commitments are then satisfied by our investors via capital contributions.
Investors in our private funds may default on their capital commitment obligations, which could have an adverse impact on our
earnings or result in other negative implications to our businesses such as the requirement to redeploy our own capital to cover
such obligations.

u) Property
We face risks specific to our property activities.

We invest in commercial properties and are therefore exposed to certain risks inherent in the commercial property business.
Commercial property investments are subject to varying degrees of risk depending on the nature of the property. These risks
include changes in general economic conditions (such as the availability and cost of mortgage capital), local conditions (such as
an oversupply of space or a reduction in demand for real estate in the markets in which we operate), the attractiveness of the
properties to tenants, competition from other landlords and our ability to provide adequate maintenance at an economical cost.

Certain expenditures, including property taxes, maintenance costs, mortgage payments, insurance costs and related charges, must
be made whether or not a property is producing sufficient income to service these expenses. Our commercial properties are typically
subject to mortgages which require debt service payments. If we become unable or unwilling to meet mortgage payments on any
property, losses could be sustained as a result of the mortgagee’s exercise of its rights of foreclosure or of sale.

Continuation of rental income is dependent on favourable leasing markets to ensure expiring leases are renewed and new tenants
are found promptly to fill vacancies. It is possible that we may face a disproportionate amount of space expiring in any one year.
Additionally, rental rates could decline, tenant bankruptcies could increase and tenant renewals may not be achieved, particularly
in the event of an economic slowdown.

Our retail property operations are susceptible to any economic factors that have a negative impact on consumer spending. Lower
consumer spending would have an unfavourable effect on the sales of our retail tenants, which could result in their inability or
unwillingness to make all payments owing to us, and on our ability to keep existing tenants and attract new tenants. Significant
expenditures associated with each equity investment in real estate assets, such as mortgage payments, property taxes and
maintenance costs, are generally not reduced when there is a reduction in income from the investment, so our income and cash
flow would be adversely affected by a decline in income from our retail properties. In addition, low occupancy or sales at our
retail properties, as a result of competition or otherwise, could result in termination of or reduced rent payable under certain of
our retail leases, which could adversely affect our retail property revenues.

Our hospitality and multifamily business are subject to a range of operating risks common to these industries. The profitability of
our investments in these industries may be adversely affected by a number of factors, many of which are outside our control. For
example, our hospitality business faces risks relating to hurricanes, earthquakes, tsunamis, and other natural and man-made
disasters, the potential spread of contagious diseases such as the Zika virus, and insect infestations more common to rental
accommodations. Such factors could limit or reduce the demand for or the prices our hospitality properties are able to obtain for
their accommodations, or could increase our costs and therefore reduce the profitability of our hospitality businesses. There are
numerous housing alternatives which compete with our multifamily properties, including other multifamily properties as well as
condominiums and single family homes. This competitive environment could have a material adverse effect on our ability to lease
apartment homes at our present properties or any newly developed or acquired property, as well as on the rents realized.
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v) Renewable Power
We face risks specific to our renewable power activities.

Our renewable power operations are subject to changes in the weather, hydrology and price, but also include risks related to
equipment or dam failure, counterparty performance, water rental costs, land rental costs, changes in regulatory requirements and
other material disruptions.

The revenues generated by our power facilities are correlated to the amount of electricity generated, which in turn is dependent
upon available water flows, wind and other elements beyond our control. Hydrology and wind levels vary naturally from year to
year and may also change permanently because of climate change or other factors. It is therefore possible that low water and wind
levels at certain of our power generating operations could occur at any time and potentially continue for indefinite periods.

A significant portion of our renewable power revenue is tied, either directly or indirectly, to the wholesale market price for
electricity, which is impacted by a number of external factors beyond our control. Additionally, a significant portion of the power
we generate is sold under long-term power purchase agreements, shorter-term financial instruments and physical electricity and
natural gas contracts, some or all of which may be above market. These contracts are intended to mitigate the impact of fluctuations
in wholesale electricity prices; however, they may not be effective in achieving this outcome.

In our renewable power operations there is a risk of equipment failure due to wear and tear, latent defect, design error or operator
error, among other things. The occurrence of such failures could result in a loss of generating capacity and repairing such failures
could require the expenditure of significant capital and other resources. Failures could also result in exposure to significant liability
for damages due to harm to the environment, to the public generally or to specific third parties.

In certain cases, some catastrophic events may not excuse us from performing our obligations pursuant to agreements with third
parties and we may be liable for damages or suffer further losses as a result.

w) Infrastructure
We face risks specific to our infrastructure activities.

Our infrastructure operations include utilities, transport, energy, communications infrastructure, timberlands and agriculture
operations. Our infrastructure assets include toll roads, telecommunication towers, electricity transmission systems, coal terminal
operations, electricity and gas distribution companies, rail networks and ports. The principal risks facing the regulated and
unregulated businesses comprising our infrastructure operations relate to government regulation, general economic conditions
and other material disruptions, counterparty performance, capital expenditure requirements and land use.

Many of our infrastructure operations are subject to forms of economic regulation, including with respect to revenues. If any of
the respective regulators in the jurisdictions in which we operate decide to change the tolls or rates we are allowed to charge, or
the amounts of the provisions we are allowed to collect, we may not be able to earn the rate of return on our investments that we
had planned or we may not be able to recover our initial cost.

General economic conditions affect international demand for the commodities handled and services provided by our infrastructure
operations and the goods produced and sold by our timberlands and agriculture businesses. A downturn in the economy generally,
or specific to any of our infrastructure businesses, may lead to bankruptcies or liquidations of one or more large customers, which
could reduce our revenues, increase our bad debt expense, reduce our ability to make capital expenditures or have other adverse
effects on us.

Some of our infrastructure operations have customer contracts as well as concession agreements in place with public and private
sector clients. Our operations with customer contracts could be adversely affected by any material change in the assets, financial
condition or results of operations of such customers. Protecting the quality of our revenue streams through the inclusion of take-
or-pay or guaranteed minimum volume provisions into our contracts, is not always possible or fully effective.

Our infrastructure operations may require substantial capital expenditures to maintain our asset base. Any failure to make necessary
expenditures to maintain our operations could impair our ability to serve existing customers or accommodate increased volumes.
In addition, we may not be able to recover investments in capital expenditures based upon the rates our operations are able to
charge.
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x) Private Equity
We face risks specific to our private equity activities.

The principal risks for our private equity businesses are potential loss of invested capital as well as insufficient investment or fee
income to cover operating expenses and cost of capital. In addition, these investments are typically illiquid and may be difficult
to monetize, limiting our flexibility to react to changing economic or investment conditions.

Unfavourable economic conditions could have a significant adverse impact on the ability of investee companies to repay debt and
on the value of our equity investments and the level of income that they generate. Even with our support, adverse economic or
business conditions facing our investee companies may adversely impact the value of our investments or deplete our financial
or management resources. These investments are also subject to the risks inherent in the underlying businesses, some of which
are facing difficult business conditions and may continue to do so for the foreseeable future.

Our private equity funds may invest in companies that are experiencing significant financial or business difficulties, including
companies involved in work-outs, liquidations, spin-offs, reorganizations, bankruptcies and similar transactions. Such an
investment entails the risk that the transaction in which the business is involved will be unsuccessful, will take considerable time
or will result in a distribution of cash or new securities the value of which may be less than the purchase price of the securities or
other financial instruments in respect of which such distribution is received. In addition, if an anticipated transaction does not
occur, the private equity business may be required to sell its investment at a loss. Investments in some of the businesses we target
may become subject to legal and/or regulatory proceedings and therefore our investment may be adversely affected by external
events beyond our control.

Our private equity businesses include industrial operations that are substantially dependent upon the prices we receive for the
resources we produce. Those prices depend on factors beyond our control, and commaodity price declines can have a significant
negative impact on these operations. Sustained depressed levels or future declines of the price of resources such as oil, gas,
limestone and palladium and other metals may adversely affect our operating results and cash flows.

We have several companies that operate in the highly competitive service industry. The revenues and profitability of these companies
are largely dependent on the awarding of new contracts, which may not materialize, and they face uncertainty related to contract
award timing. A wide variety of micro and macroeconomic factors affecting our clients and over which we have no control can
impact whether and when these companies receive new contracts. In our construction business, the ability of the private or public
sector to fund projects could adversely affect the awarding or timing of new contracts and margins. If an expected contract award
is delayed or not received, or if an ongoing contract is cancelled, our construction business could incur significant costs.

y) Residential Development
We face risks specific to our residential development activities.

Our residential homebuilding and land development operations are cyclical and significantly affected by changes in general and
local economic and industry conditions, such as consumer confidence, employment levels, availability of financing for homebuyers,
household debt, levels of new and existing homes for sale, demographic trends and housing demand. Competition from rental
properties and resale homes, including homes held for sale by investors and foreclosed homes, may reduce our ability to sell new
homes, depress prices and reduce margins for the sale of new homes.

Virtually all of our homebuilding customers finance their home acquisitions through mortgages. Even if potential customers do
not need financing, changes in interest rates or the unavailability of mortgage capital could make it harder for them to sell their
homes to potential buyers who need financing, resulting in a reduced demand for new homes. Rising mortgage rates or reduced
mortgage availability could adversely affect our ability to sell new homes and the prices at which we can sell them.

We hold land for future development and may in the future acquire additional land holdings. The risks inherent in purchasing,
owning and developing land increase as the demand for new homes decreases. Real estate markets are highly uncertain and the
value of undeveloped land has fluctuated significantly and may continue to fluctuate. In addition, land carrying costs can be
significant and can result in losses or reduced profitability. As a result, we hold certain land, and may acquire additional land, in
our development pipeline at a cost we may not be able to fully recover or at a cost which precludes profitable development.
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PART 6 - ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

Accounting Policies, Judgments and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to select appropriate accounting policies and to make judgments
and estimates that affect the carried amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
amounts could differ from those estimates.

In making judgments and estimates, management relies on external information and observable conditions, where possible,
supplemented by internal analysis as required. These estimates have been applied in a manner consistent with that in the prior
year and there are no known trends, commitments, events or uncertainties that we believe will materially affect the methodology
or assumptions utilized in this report.

For further reference on accounting policies, judgments and estimates, see our significant accounting policies contained in Note 2
of the December 31, 2016 consolidated financial statements.

i. Estimates

The significant estimates used in determining the recorded amount for assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
include the following:

a. Investment Properties

The assumptions and estimates used when determining the fair value of commercial properties include: the timing of rental income
from future leases reflecting current market conditions, less assumptions of future cash costs in respect of current and future leases;
maintenance and other capital expenditures; discount rates; terminal capitalization rates; and terminal valuation dates. Properties
under development are recorded at fair value using a discounted cash flow model which includes estimates in respect of the timing
and cost to complete the development.

b. Revaluation Method for Property, Plant and Equipment

When determining the carrying value of property, plant and equipment using the revaluation method, the company uses the
following assumptions and estimates: the timing of forecasted revenues; future sales prices and associated expenses; future sales
volumes; future regulatory rates; maintenance and other capital expenditures; discount rates; terminal capitalization rates; terminal
valuation dates; useful lives; and residual values. Determination of the fair value of property, plant and equipment under
development includes estimates in respect of the timing and cost to complete the development.

c. Sustainable Resources

The fair value of standing timber and agricultural assets is based on the following estimates and assumptions: the timing of
forecasted revenues and prices; estimated selling costs; sustainable felling plans; growth assumptions; silviculture costs; discount
rates; terminal capitalization rates; and terminal valuation dates.

d. Financial Instruments

Estimates and assumptions used in determining the fair value of financial instruments are: equity and commodity prices; future
interest rates; the credit worthiness of the company relative to its counterparties; the credit risk of the company’s counterparties;
estimated future cash flows; the amount of the liability and equity components of compound financial instruments; discount rates
and volatility utilized in option valuations.

e. Inventory

The company estimates the net realizable value of its inventory using estimates and assumptions about future selling prices and
future development costs.

f.  Inventory and Other

Other estimates and assumptions utilized in the preparation of the company’s consolidated financial statements are: the assessment
or determination of net recoverable amount; including oil and gas reserves; depreciation and amortization rates and useful lives;
estimation of recoverable amounts of cash-generating units for impairment assessments of goodwill and intangible assets; ability
to utilize tax losses and other tax measurements; fair value of assets held as collateral and the percentage of completion for
construction contracts.

84 BROOKFIELD ASSET MANAGEMENT



ii. Judgments

Management is required to make critical judgments when applying its accounting policies. The following judgments have the
most significant effect on the consolidated financial statements:

a. Control or Level of Influence

When determining the appropriate basis of accounting for the company’s investees, the company makes judgments about the
degree of influence that the company exerts directly or through an arrangement over the investees’ relevant activities. This may
include the ability to elect investee directors or appoint management. Control is obtained when the company has the power to
direct the relevant investing, financing and operating decisions of an entity and does so in its capacity as principal of the operations,
rather than as an agent for other investors. Operating as a principal includes having sufficient capital at risk in any investee and
exposure to the variability of the returns generated by the decisions of the company as principal. Judgment is used in determining
the sufficiency of the capital at risk or variability of returns. In making these judgments, the company considers the ability of other
investors to remove the company as a manager or general partner in a controlled partnership.

b. Investment Properties

When applying the company’s accounting policy for investment properties, judgment is applied in determining whether certain
costs are additions to the carrying amount of the property and, for properties under development, identifying the point at which
practical completion of the property occurs and identifying the directly attributable borrowing costs to be included in the carrying
value of the development property.

c. Property, Plant and Equipment

The company’s accounting policy for its property, plant and equipment requires critical judgments over the assessment of its
carrying value, whether certain costs are additions to the carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment as opposed to
repairs and maintenance, and for assets under development the identification of when the asset is capable of being used as intended
and identifying the directly attributable borrowing costs to be included in the asset’s carrying value.

For assets that are measured using the revaluation method, judgment is required when estimating future prices, volumes and
discount and capitalization rates. Judgment is applied when determining future electricity prices considering market data for years
that a liquid market is available and estimates of electricity prices from renewable sources that would allow new entrants into the
market in subsequent years.

d. Common Control Transactions

The purchase and sale of businesses or subsidiaries between entities under common control are not specifically addressed in the
IFRS and accordingly, management uses judgment when determining a policy to account for such transactions taking into
consideration other guidance in the IFRS framework and pronouncements of other standard-setting bodies. The company’s policy
is to record assets and liabilities recognized as a result of transfers of businesses or subsidiaries between entities under common
control at carrying value. Differences between the carrying amount of the consideration given or received and the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities transferred are recorded directly in equity.

e. Indicators of Impairment

Judgment is applied when determining whether indicators of impairment exist when assessing the carrying values of the company’s
assets, including: the determination of the company’s ability to hold financial assets; the estimation of a cash-generating unit’s
future revenues and direct costs; and the determination of discount and capitalization rates, and when an asset’s carrying value is
above the value derived using publicly traded prices which are quoted in a liquid market.

f.  Income Taxes

The company makes judgments when determining the future tax rates applicable to subsidiaries and identifying the temporary
difference that relate to each subsidiary. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply during the period when the assets are realized or the liabilities settled, using the tax rates and laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the consolidated balance sheet dates. The company measures deferred income taxes associated with its investment
properties based on its specific intention with respect to each asset at the end of the reporting period. Where the company has a
specific intention to sell a property in the foreseeable future, deferred taxes on the building portion of an investment property are
measured based on the tax consequences following from the disposition of the property. Otherwise, deferred taxes are measured
on the basis the carrying value of the investment property will be recovered substantially through use.
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g. Classification of Non-Controlling Interests in Limited-Life Funds

Non-controlling interests in limited-life funds are classified as liabilities (interests of others in consolidated funds) or equity (non-
controlling interests) depending on whether an obligation exists to distribute residual net assets to non-controlling interests on
liquidation in the form of cash or other financial assets or assets delivered in kind. Judgment is required to determine what the
governing documents of each entity require or permit in this regard.

h. Other

Other critical judgments include the determination of effectiveness of financial hedges for accounting purposes; the likelihood
and timing of anticipated transactions for hedge accounting and the determination of functional currency.

Adoption of Accounting Standards

The company has applied new and revised standards issued by the IASB that are effective for the period beginning on or after
January 1, 2016 as follows:

Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

1AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment (“1AS 16”) and IAS 38 Intangible Assets (“1AS 38”) were amended to clarify the appropriate
method of amortization for intangible assets. Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit entities from using a revenue-based depreciation
method for items of property, plant, and equipment; the amendments to IAS 38 introduces a rebuttable presumption that revenue
is not an appropriate basis for amortization of an intangible asset, with only limited circumstances where the presumption can be
rebutted. The company adopted the amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 on January 1, 2016, on a prospective basis, the adoption
did not have a significant impact on the company’s consolidated financial statements.

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements (“IFRS 107), and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures (2011) (“IAS 28”) address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10 and those in IAS 28,
in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments are
effective for transactions occurring in annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016 with earlier application permitted. The
impacts of the amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 on the consolidated financial statements are not significant.

Future Changes in Accounting Standards

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“IFRS 15”) specifies how and when revenue should be recognized as well as
requiring more informative and relevant disclosures. This standard supersedes IAS 18 Revenue, 1AS 11 Construction Contracts
and a number of revenue-related interpretations. Application of the Standard is mandatory and it applies to nearly all contracts
with customers: the main exceptions are leases, financial instruments and insurance contracts. The [ASB has tentatively deferred
mandatory adoption of IFRS 15 until periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018 with early application permitted. The company
is in the process to determine the impact of IFRS 15 on its consolidated financial statements.

Financial Instruments

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final publication of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“IFRS 9”), superseding IAS 39 Financial
Instruments. IFRS 9 establishes principles for the financial reporting of financial assets and financial liabilities that will present
relevant and useful information to users of financial statements for their assessment of the amounts, timing and uncertainty of an
entity’s future cash flows. This new standard also includes a new general hedge accounting standard which will align hedge
accounting more closely with risk management. It does not fully change the types of hedging relationships or the requirement to
measure and recognize ineffectiveness, however, it will allow more hedging strategies that are used for risk management to qualify
for hedge accounting and introduce more judgment to assess the effectiveness of a hedging relationship. The standard has a
mandatory effective date for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018 with early adoption permitted. The company
has not yet determined the impact of IFRS 9 on its consolidated financial statements.

Leases

In January 2016, the IASB published a new standard — IFRS 16 Leases (“IFRS 16”). The new standard brings most leases on
balance sheets, eliminating the distinction between operating and finance leases. Lessor accounting however remains largely
unchanged and the distinction between operating and finance leases is retained. IFRS 16 supersedes IAS 17 Leases and related
interpretations and is effective for periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019, with earlier adoption permitted if IFRS 15 has
also been applied. The company has not yet determined the impact of IFRS 16 on its consolidated financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

In January 2016, the IASB issued the amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows, eftective for annual periods beginning
January 1, 2017. The IASB requires that the following changes in liabilities arising from financing activities are disclosed (to the
extent necessary): (i) changes from financing cash flows; (ii) changes arising from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or
other businesses; (iii) the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair values; and (v) other changes. Since the
amendments are being issued less than one year before the effective date, the company is not required to provide comparative
information when it first applies the amendments. The company has not yet determined the impact of amendments on its
consolidated financial statements.

Income Taxes

The amendment to IAS 12, Income Taxes (“IAS 127) clarifies the following aspects: (i) unrealized losses on debt instruments
measured at fair value and measured at cost for tax purposes give rise to a deductible temporary difference regardless of whether
the debt instrument’s holder expects to recover the carrying amount of the debt instrument by sale or by use; (ii) the carrying
amount of an asset does not limit the estimation of probable future taxable profits; (iii) estimates for future taxable profits exclude
tax deductions resulting from the reversal of deductible temporary differences; (iv) an entity assesses a deferred tax asset in
combination with other deferred tax assets. The amendment to IAS 12 is effective for annual periods beginning January 1, 2017.
The amendment will not have any significant impact to the consolidated financial statements of the company.

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

IFRIC 22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration (“IFRIC 227) clarifies that the date of foreign currency
transactions for purposes of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or
part of it) is the date on which an entity initially recognizes the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
payment or receipt of advance consideration. The interpretation is effective for periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018 and
may be applied either retrospectively or prospectively. The company has not yet determined the impact of IFRIC 22 to its
consolidated financial statements.

Assessment and Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management has evaluated the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2016
and based on that assessment concluded that, as of December 31, 2016, our internal control over financial reporting was effective.
Refer to Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. There have been no changes in our internal control
over financial reporting during the year ended December 31, 2016 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to
materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in the applicable U.S. and Canadian securities laws) as of December 31, 2016. Based on that
evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that such disclosure controls and procedures were
effective as of December 31, 2016 in providing reasonable assurance that material information relating to the company and our
consolidated subsidiaries would be made known to them by others within those entities.

Declarations Under the Dutch Act of Financial Supervision

The members of the Corporate Executive Board, as defined in the Dutch Act of Financial Supervision (“Dutch Act”), as required
by section 5:25c¢, paragraph 2, under ¢ of the Dutch Act confirm that to the best of their knowledge:

*  The 2016 consolidated financial statements accompanied by this MD&A give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities,
financial position, and profit or loss of the company and the undertakings included in the consolidated financial statements
taken as whole; and

+  The management report included in this MD&A gives a true and fair review of the information required under the Dutch Act
regarding the company and the undertakings included in the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole as of
December 31, 2016, and of the development and performance of the business for the financial year then ended.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In the normal course of operations, we enter into transactions on market terms with related parties, including consolidated and
equity accounted entities, which have been measured at exchange value and are recognized in the consolidated financial statements,
including, but not limited to: manager or partnership agreements; base management fees, performance fees and incentive
distributions; loans, interest and non-interest bearing deposits; power purchase and sale agreements; capital commitments to private
funds; the acquisition and disposition of assets and businesses; derivative contracts; and the construction and development of
assets.

The following is a list of significant related party transactions of the Corporation during the years ended December 31, 2016 and
December 31, 2015:

In connection with our newly launched open-ended real estate fund, BPY contributed certain operating buildings and development
projects for net proceeds of approximately $500 million, which was received in the form of cash and limited partner interest in
the fund. The company is the general partner of the fund and will earn fees for the management of this fund. This fund is equity
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements of the company.

In April 2015, the Corporation issued 32.9 million Class A shares. Current officers, directors and shareholders of Brookfield, and
entities controlled by them, purchased an aggregate of 2.1 million Class A shares as part of this issuance. The aggregate gross
proceeds of the issuance was $1.2 billion.
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INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management of Brookfield Asset Management Inc. (Brookfield) is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal
control over financial reporting. Internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the
Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer and effected by the Board of Directors, management and other personnel
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board as defined in Regulation 240.13a-15(f) or 240.15d-15(%).

Management assessed the effectiveness of Brookfield’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2016, based
on the criteria set forth in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission. Based on this assessment, management concludes that, as of December 31, 2016, Brookfield’s
internal control over financial reporting is effective. Management excluded from its design and assessment of internal control over
financial reporting for Rouse, IFC Seoul, Simply Storage, City Point, U.K. Student Housing, Isagen, Holtwood, Rutas de Lima,
Niska and Linx which were acquired during 2016, and whose total assets, net assets, revenues and net income on a combined
basis constitute approximately 11%, 12%, 6% and 4%, respectively, of the consolidated financial statement amounts as of and for
the year ended December 31, 2016.

Brookfield’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2016, has been audited by Deloitte LLP, the Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm, who also audited Brookfield’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2016. As stated in the Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, Deloitte LLP expressed an
unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of Brookfield’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2016.

T2 Ol

J. Bruce Flatt Brian D. Lawson
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

March 31, 2017
Toronto, Canada
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Brookfield Asset Management Inc.

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Brookfield Asset Management Inc. and subsidiaries (the
"Company") as of December 31, 2016, based on the criteria established in /nternal Control-Integrated Framework (2013) issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. As described in Management’s Report on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting, management excluded from its assessment the internal control over financial reporting at Rouse,
IFC Seoul, Simply Storage, City Point, UK Student Housing, Isagen, Holtwood, Rutas de Lima, Niska and Linx, which were
acquired during 2016 and whose total assets, net assets, revenues and net income on a combined basis constitute approximately
11%, 12%, 6% and 4%, respectively, of the consolidated financial statement amounts as of and for the year ended December 31,
2016. Accordingly, our audit did not include the internal control over financial reporting at Rouse, IFC Seoul, Simply Storage,
City Point, UK Student Housing, Isagen, Holtwood, Rutas de Lima, Niska and Linx. The Company’s management is responsible
for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control
over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control
over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company’s principal
executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company’s board of directors,
management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December
31,2016, based on the criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (201 3) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards and the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31,
2016 of the Company and our report dated March 31, 2017 expressed an unmodified/unqualified opinion on those financial
statements.

Chartered Professional Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants

March 31, 2017
Toronto, Canada
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MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying consolidated financial statements and other financial information in this Annual Report have been prepared
by the company’s management which is responsible for their integrity, consistency, objectivity and reliability. To fulfill this
responsibility, the company maintains policies, procedures and systems of internal control to ensure that its reporting practices
and accounting and administrative procedures are appropriate to provide a high degree of assurance that is relevant and reliable
financial information is produced and assets are safeguarded. These controls include the careful selection and training of employees,
the establishment of well-defined areas of responsibility and accountability for performance, and the communication of policies
and code of conduct throughout the company. In addition, the company maintains an internal audit group that conducts periodic
audits of the company’s operations. The Chief Internal Auditor has full access to the Audit Committee.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards as
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and, where appropriate, reflect estimates based on management’s judgment.
The financial information presented throughout this Annual Report is generally consistent with the information contained in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Deloitte LLP, the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm appointed by the shareholders, have audited the consolidated
financial statements set out on pages 93 through 168 in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards and the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) to enable them to express to the board of directors
and shareholders their opinion on the consolidated financial statements. Their report is set out on the following page.

The consolidated financial statements have been further reviewed and approved by the Board of Directors acting through its Audit
Committee, which is comprised of directors who are neither officers nor employees of the company. The Audit Committee, which
meets with the auditors and management to review the activities of each and reports to the Board of Directors, oversees
management’s responsibilities for the financial reporting and internal control systems. The auditors have full and direct access to
the Audit Committee and meet periodically with the committee both with and without management present to discuss their audit
and related findings.

T2 O

J. Bruce Flatt Brian D. Lawson
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

March 31, 2017
Toronto, Canada
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Brookfield Asset Management Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Brookfield Asset Management Inc. and subsidiaries (the
“Company”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as at December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, and the
consolidated statements of operations, consolidated statements of comprehensive income, consolidated statements of changes in
equity, and consolidated statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits
in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards and the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement. An audit involves
performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company
as at December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, and their financial performance and their cash flows for the years then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

Other Matter

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2016, based on the criteria established in Internal Control
— Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our
report dated March 31, 2017 expressed an unqualified opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Chartered Professional Accountants

Licensed Public Accountants

March 31, 2017
Toronto, Canada
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Zﬁfﬁ&gﬁgj 31 Note 2016 2015
Assets
Cash and cash eqUIVALENILS............cciviiiiiiiieeieieie ettt nnas 6 $ 4,299 $ 2,774
Other fINANCIAL ASSELS ........eeeivieeeie ettt eeeee ettt e eeee e e e et eeseaeeeeaeeeaeeeeaeesesteeeseeseaeessaeeas 6 4,700 6,156
Accounts receivable and other 7 9,133 7,044
INVEIEOTY ..ottt ettt ettt et e e b e b e e be et e eteesaessessessebebebeeseeseeseensessensansas 8 5,349 5,281
Assets classified as held Or SALE ...........ooviiiiiiieieeeeeeeee e eaes 9 432 1,397
Equity accounted INVESTMENLS. ...........ccvevirieirieieriieeieieeeteeeseseee e eere s e s s e sseseesesseseesesees 10 24,977 23,216
INVESTMENT PTOPEITICS .....veveevieeierieiistiitieteeteeteettet et et et eeteeteeteeseesaessessessessessesseeseessessessensansas 11 54,172 47,164
Property, plant and equipment 12 45,346 37,273
INEANGIDIC @SSELS ....e.vcviiiiietiieiieteietet ettt es ettt b et et b e be s se b seese s seebenean 13 6,073 5,170
GOOAWILL ..ttt e s et ettt b et st besese s s esens s s esens 14 3,783 2,543
Deferred INCOME tAX @SSELS ......oeieeiiieieeeeeeeee et et e et e et eeeeeeeeaeeseaeeseteesaeeseneesereeeeneesanes 15 1,562 1,496
TOCAL ASSEES ...ttt e e et et ettt eeeeaeeeeeaeeee et et e reeeeeeeeeaeans $ 159,826 $ 139,514
Liabilities and Equity
Accounts payable and Other ..............ccoovoveiiiieiiiiecccee e 16 $ 11,915 $ 11,366
Liabilities associated with assets classified as held for sale ............ccccceviviiiiieiccieieieen, 9 127 522
COTPOTate DOTTOWINES .....ocvveviirieeririiricteeteeteeteet et eeteeteeteereeteessessessesesseeseeseeseeseessessensensensenas 17 4,500 3,936
Non-recourse borrowings

Property-specific MOTEZAZES . .....cc.ecuieeieeieeieieieieteet ettt ettt be b re s ssesseasansas 18 52,442 46,044

SUbSIAIATY DOITOWINGS........ccviiviivieiietieiieietecteet ettt ere ettt st et eveeteeseeas e s ensesesesseereens 18 7,949 8,303
Deferred income tax HabilitiES ...........c.coouiiiuiiieiiiieie et 15 9,640 8,785
Subsidiary equity ODIIGAtIONS........c.cceriieiierieiieieietestesteer ettt et es et essessesresreereeseessessessesens 19 3,565 3,331
Equity

Preferred equity 21 3,954 3,739

NON-CONLIOLIIING INTETESES ......cuvivirierierierieeicieteete et ere vt ere e et et esteeaeeveerseasesseseereereens 21 43,235 31,920

COMMON EUILY ....vvvievevitieietiteeeetee ettt ettt ereebeseeresseseebessesesseseesessesessessesessesesseseesassesessens 21 22,499 21,568

TOtAl EQUILY....ueitiieiieieieteec ettt ettt ettt e s e b e b e b e sbesbeeteeseeseesaessenaensens 69,688 57,227
Total Liabilities and EQUity..................ccoooooiiiiiiiiiceee e $ 159,826 $ 139,514
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DEC. 31
(MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

REVEIUES ...ttt ettt e e e b e et eese e sabesteessaesse e seesseenseenseenseensanes
DIHTECE COSES ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt s et e b s et st ebenenenes
Other INCOME aNd GAINS..........c.ocvevirieieriiereiteee ettt ettt se et ss s b seebe s eseesessenas
Equity acCoUNted INCOME .......cuiuiiiiieiiieieieiete ettt sttt ettt e s s s
Expenses

TIEETEST ...ttt ettt

COTPOTALE COSES .....viviiuiiuieaieiietieteeteeteeteeteestestessesesseeseeseeseeseeseessessessessesessesseessessessessensensens
Fair value ChaNgES..........cooviiviieieieictecece ettt ettt ettt ettt et easens s eneeans

Depreciation and amortization

TNCOMIE LAXES ...ttt ettt sttt ne
INEEINCOIMIC ...ttt ettt ettt b et a et s et s et enenn
Net income attributable to:

SRATCROLARTS ...ttt s ettt s e bt b et s e ebeneeseeeneas

NON-CONLIOIING INEETESTS ......eveeviieeieiiietieieiete ettt se b s s seesesseseeseseesensesens

Net income per share:
DAIULE ...
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Note 2016 2015
2 8 24,411 $ 19,913
23 (17,718) (14,433)

482 145

10 1,293 1,695
(3,233) (2,820)
92) (106)

24 (130) 2,166
(2,020) (1,695)
15 345 (196)
$ 3338 §$ 4,669

$ 1,651 $ 2,341

1,687 2,328

$ 3,338 $ 4,669
218 155 $ 2.26
21 1.58 2.32




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

E\CA)IIi THE SS-IARS ENDED DEC. 31 Note 2016 2015
INEE ATICOIIIE <.ttt ettt et eeeeeu e et et et et et e e e teeaeeeeeaeeaeeue et et et eeneeneesensenaenee 3,338 $ 4,669
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Items that may be reclassified to net income
Financial contracts and power sale agreements ..............cc.ecvevveruerrerreereereereeeeeenessesseenenes (113) (22)
Available-for-sale SECUTIHIES..........ceceiieeereiieteeteeeete ettt ereereeae e s s s s enas 649 (485)
Equity accounted INVEStMENTS .............cvcuirieeeriierierereeteiereeree et ss e s s s s v ssesseseseens 10 (52) 33)
Foreign currency translation...............c.cceeveieiiiiiiiiieiieiieeeee ettt 1,236 (3,461)
TNCOME tAXES.....uviiuiieeiiceie ettt ettt ettt e e te e teebeebeenseeabeeasesaneersaensesreas 15 (60) 31
1,660 (4,032)
Items that will not be reclassified to net income
Revaluations of property, plant and equipment...............cc.cevevveveerieeereereereeeeeeeeereereenene 824 2,144
Revaluation of pension ObligatiONS .............ccecviieririeiiriieieieeeteeesee e 16 (40) 32
Equity accounted INVESIMENES .............ceciiiiriiriiirietieteete et ettt eve s e ss s s s nas 10 482 548
TNCOME tAXES.....uviiviiceiiciieeie ettt ettt ettt e e te e teeebe e b e enbeeaseeasesaneesseenseneeas 15 (113) (417)
1,153 2,307
Other comprehensive iINCOME (10SS).......c.eceiieiiiieiiiiiieieeeceee ettt 2,813 (1,725)
ComMPIENENSIVE INCOME..........ccviriririerieteeteeteeeet ettt ete e eas e eeaeeseereeseeseereereeneenseesenseenas 6,151 $ 2,944
Attributable to:
Shareholders
INEEICOIMIE ...ttt ettt et ettt et e aeeae e e et et enseeseeseeaeeaeens 1,651 $ 2,341
Other comprehensive iNCOmME (10SS) .....c.ovevirveieriieriiieieeeee et 821 (780)
ComPrehenSiVe INCOME ..........c.ccuiiuieeieiierieieiecteet ettt ettt et e ebesteeaeeteeseessessessessesnens 2472 $ 1,561
Non-controlling interests
INEE ITICOIIIE ...t ettt et et eeeeeaeeeeeaeeae et et et e e eeseeseese et eeeeneeneesessenaenee 1,687 $ 2,328
Other comprehensive income (loss) ... 1,992 (945)
COmMPIENENSIVE INCOMME ......c.veveiisieeiieieeiieiieieiete et re e ete et e sesessessessessasseeseessessessensens 3,679 $ 1,383
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income

FOR THE

YEAR ENDED Common Non-

DEC. 31,2016 Share  Contributed Retained Ownership  Revaluation Currency Other Common Preferred controlling Total
(MILLIONS) Capital Surplus Earnings Changes' Surplus Translation Reserves® Equity Equity Interests Equity
Balance as at

December 31,2015...... $ 4378 § 192§ 11,045 $ 1,500 $ 6,787  $ (1,796) $ (538) $§ 21,568 $ 3,739 $ 31,920 $§ 57,227

Changes in year:

Netincome................... — — 1,651 — — — 1,651 — 1,687 3,338
Other comprehensive
INCOME.....veiniiiine — — — — 157 405 259 821 — 1,992 2,813
Comprehensive income — — 1,651 — 157 405 259 2,472 — 3,679 6,151
Shareholder
distributions
Common equity........ — — (997) — — 54 2 (941) — 441 (500)
Preferred equity........ — — (133) — — — (133) — — (133)
Non-controlling
INLETestS c.vvvevevernenns — — — — — — — — (2,163) (2,163)
Other items
Equity issuances, net
of redemptions ......... 12 (11) (125) — — — (124) 215 7,649 7,740
Share-based
compensation — 53 (25) — — — 28 — 7 35
Ownership changes .. — — 74 (301) (194) 81 31 (371 — 1,702 1,331
Total change in year..... 12 42 445 (301) 37) 540 230 931 215 11,315 12,461
Balance as at
December 31,2016...... $ 4390 $ 234 $ 1149 § 1,199 $ 6,750 $  (1,256) $ (308) $ 22499 $ 3954 $ 43235 § 69,688

1. Includes gains or losses on changes in ownership interests of consolidated subsidiaries
2. Includes available-for-sale securities, cash flow hedges, actuarial changes on pension plans and equity accounted other comprehensive income, net of associated
income taxes

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income

FOR THE

YEAR ENDED Common Non-

DEC. 31, 2015 Share Contributed Retained Ownership Revaluation Currency Othel; Common Preferred controlling Total
(MILLIONS) Capital Surplus Earnings Changes' Surplus Translation Reserves™ Equity Equity Interests Equity

Balance as at
December 31,2014...... $ 3,031 $ 185  § 9,702 $ 1,979 § 6,133 § (441) % (436) $ 20,153 $ 3549 $ 29545 $ 53247

Changes in year:

Net income.................... — — 2,341 — — — 2,341 — 2,328 4,669
Other comprehensive
INCOMe.....coueniiiann — — — — 631 (1,308) (103) (780) — (945) (1,725)
Comprehensive income — — 2,341 — 631 (1,308) (103) 1,561 — 1,383 2,944
Shareholder
distributions
Common equity........ — — (450) — — — (450) — — (450)
Preferred equity......... — — (134) — — — (134) — — (134)
Non-controlling
INLEIEStS coovvveverernenns — — — — — — — — (1,500) (1,500)
Other items
Equity issuances, net
of redemptions ......... 1,347 (32) (389) — — — 926 190 2,371 3,487
Share-based
compensation ........... — 39 (61) — — — (22) — 19 3)
Ownership changes .. — — 36 (479) 23 (47) 1 (466) — 102 (364)
Total change in year..... 1,347 7 1,343 (479) 654 (1,355) (102) 1,415 190 2,375 3,980
Balance as at
December 31, 2015...... $ 4378  $ 192§ 11,045 § 1,500 $ 6,787 $  (1,796) $ (538) $§ 21,568 $ 3739 $ 31,920 $ 57,227

1. Includes gains or losses on changes in ownership interests of consolidated subsidiaries
2. Includes available-for-sale securities, cash flow hedges, actuarial changes on pension plans and equity accounted other comprehensive income, net of associated
income taxes
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DEC. 31
(MILLIONS)

Operating activities
INEEINCOME ittt b e

Other income and gains

Share of undistributed equity accounted earnings ..

Fair value changes
Depreciation and amMOTtIZALION ..........ccueerieuirieuirieirieiinteitrtet ettt ettt ettt ettt sttt sttt e eenes
Deferred INCOME tAXES ....oviiiiiiiieiiiiiiiiieict bbb
Investments in residential INVENTOTY ......ccccoveirieirieiriiieiree ettt ettt

Net change in non-cash working capital balances ............ccccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiic e

Financing activities
Corporate borrowings arranged ..........ccoccciiieiiiriiiiiiiiiii
Corporate DOITOWINES TEPATA .....euvviieuiieiirieiirieirtct ettt ettt sttt ettt ettt sneneas
Commercial paper and bank DOITOWINGS, NEL ......c..ccivueiriiiriiiiiieeieereer ettt
Non-recourse borrowings arranged ..........ccoeeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiec e
Non-recourse bOrroWIngs rePAId ........c.coveuerueirieiriiirieietetetert ettt ettt ettt ettt ebe e esessesesaesesaenenne

Non-recourse credit facilities, net

Subsidiary equity obligations issued .

Subsidiary equity obligations redeemed ..o
Capital provided from non-controlling iNtEIESS ..........cceruerrueirieririerieienieereertee ettt
Capital repaid to non-controlling iNtEIESS ........ccceiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiic e
Preferred SqUILY ISSUANCE ..c.ovveiiiiiiiiiiieietee ettt ettt ettt
Preferred equity redemption ...

Common shares issued ...

Common shares repurchased
Distributions to non-controlling INtErEStS ..........ccocviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiciie s

Distributions to ShAreholdErS .......c.ceoiiiriiiirieirieier ettt

Investing activities
Acquisitions

Investment properties ...

Property, plant and equipment ...

Equity accounted investments

Financial assets and Other ..o

ACQUISIHION Of SUDSIAIATIES  ....veuvviieiiieiiiciirictrc ettt
Dispositions

Investment properties

Property, plant and equipment

Equity accounted investments ...

Financial assets and OThEr ...........ccocoiiiiiiiiiiinicicec ettt
DiSpoSition Of SUDSIAIATIES .....veuveviieriieiiieiirieiirietrt ettt ettt sttt

Restricted cash and dEPOSIS ....co.eerueuiriiiiiiiiiiieeee ettt

Cash and cash equivalents
Change in cash and cash equivalents
Foreign exchange revaluation ..o
Balance, beginning of YEar .........cccociiiiiiiiii s

Balance, end OF YEAT .....c.ooveiiiiiiiiiicieee ettt ettt

Supplemental cash flow disclosures
TNCOME tAXES PAIA .ovviiiiiiiiii e

TNLETESE PAIA ..evieiiiiieiic b

Note 2016 2015
3338 S 4,669
(482) (145)
(618) (1,215)
24 130 (2,166)
2,020 1,695
15 (558) 64
(243) (128)
(504) 14
3,083 2,788
869 776
(232) —
(171) (384)
23,826 15,645
(20,373) (11,549)
(1,690) 2,409
9 41
177) (110)
10,554 4,998
(2,905) (2,627)
219 185
(6) —
14 1,346
(148) (424)
(2,163) (1,500)
(633) (584)
6,993 8,222
(1,969) (2,918)
(1,472) (1,114)
(1,237) (4,136)
(3,747) (4,589)
9,442) (7,812)
4,014 2,544
65 196
1,050 1,842
3,955 2,823
360 347
(134) 1,753
(8,557) (11,064)
1,519 (54)
6 (332)
2,774 3,160
4299 $ 2,774
371§ 226
3,062 2,931
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Brookfield Asset Management Inc. (the “Corporation”) is a global alternative asset management company. References in these
financial statements to “Brookfield,” “us,” “we,” “our” or “the company” refer to the Corporation and its direct and indirect
subsidiaries and consolidated entities. The company owns and operates assets with a focus on property, renewable power,
infrastructure and private equity. The Corporation is listed on the New York, Toronto and Euronext stock exchanges under the
symbols BAM, BAM.A and BAMA, respectively. The Corporation was formed by articles of amalgamation under the Business
Corporations Act (Ontario) and is registered in Ontario, Canada. The registered office of the Corporation is Brookfield Place,
181 Bay Street, Suite 300, Toronto, Ontario, M5J 2T3.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a) Statement of Compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

These financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Board of Directors of the company on March 31, 2017.
b) Adoption of Accounting Standards

The company has applied new and revised standards issued by the IASB that are effective for the period beginning on or after
January 1, 2016 as follows:

i.  Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

1AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment (“1AS 16”) and IAS 38 Intangible Assets (“1AS 38”) were amended to clarify the appropriate
method of amortization for intangible assets. Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit entities from using a revenue-based depreciation
method for items of property, plant and equipment; the amendments to IAS 38 introduces a rebuttable presumption that revenue
is not an appropriate basis for amortization of an intangible asset, with only limited circumstances where the presumption can be
rebutted. The company adopted the amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 on January 1, 2016, on a prospective basis; the adoption
did not have a significant impact on the company’s consolidated financial statements.

ii. Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements (“IFRS 10), and 1AS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures (2011) (“IAS 28”) address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10 and those in IAS 28,
in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments are
effective for transactions occurring in annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016 with earlier application permitted. The
impacts of the amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 on the consolidated financial statements are not significant.

iii. Joint Arrangements

The company adopted the amendments to IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements (“IFRS11”) effective January 1, 2016. The amendments
add new guidance to IFRS 11 on accounting for the acquisition of an interest in a joint operation in which the activity of the joint
operation constitutes a business, as defined in IFRS 3, Business Combinations (“IFRS 3”). Acquirers of such interests are to apply
the relevant principles on business combination accounting in IFRS 3 and other standards, as well as disclosing the relevant
information specified in these standards for business combinations. The adoption of the amendments to this standard did not have
a significant impact on the partnership’s consolidated financial statements.

¢) Future Changes in Accounting Standards
i.  Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“IFRS 15”) specifies how and when revenue should be recognized as well as
requiring more informative and relevant disclosures. This standard supersedes IAS 18 Revenue, 1AS 11 Construction Contracts
and a number of revenue-related interpretations. Application of the Standard is mandatory and it applies to nearly all contracts
with customers: the main exceptions are leases, financial instruments and insurance contracts. The IASB has deferred mandatory
adoption of IFRS 15 until periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018 with early application permitted. The company is in the
process of determining the impact of IFRS 15 on its consolidated financial statements.
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ii. Financial Instruments

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final publication of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“IFRS 9”), superseding IAS 39 Financial
Instruments. IFRS 9 establishes principles for financial reporting of financial assets and financial liabilities that will present relevant
and useful information to users of financial statements for their assessment of the amounts, timing and uncertainty of an entity’s
future cash flows. This new standard also includes a new general hedge accounting standard which will align hedge accounting
more closely with risk management. It does not fully change the types of hedging relationships or the requirement to measure and
recognize ineffectiveness, however, it will allow more hedging strategies that are used for risk management to qualify for hedge
accounting and introduce more judgment to assess the effectiveness of a hedging relationship. The standard has a mandatory
effective date for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018 with early adoption permitted. The company is in the
process of determining the impact of IFRS 9 on its consolidated financial statements.

iii. Leases

In January 2016, the IASB published a new standard — IFRS 16 Leases (“IFRS 16”). The new standard brings most leases on
balance sheets, eliminating the distinction between operating and finance leases. Lessor accounting, however, remains largely
unchanged and the distinction between operating and finance leases is retained. IFRS 16 supersedes IAS 17 Leases and related
interpretations and is effective for periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019, with earlier adoption permitted if [IFRS 15 has
also been applied. The company is in the process of determining the impact of IFRS 16 on its consolidated financial statements.

iv. Statement of Cash Flows

In January 2016, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows (“1AS 7”), effective for annual periods beginning
January 1,2017. The IASB requires that the following changes in liabilities arising from financing activities are disclosed (to the
extent necessary): (i) changes from financing cash flows; (ii) changes arising from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or
other businesses; (iii) the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair values; and (v) other changes. Since the
amendments are being issued less than one year before the effective date, the company is not required to provide comparative
information when it first applies the amendments. The company is in the process of determining the impact of the amendments
on its consolidated financial statements.

v.  Income Tax

The amendment to IAS 12, Income Taxes (“I1AS 12”) clarifies the following aspects: (i) unrealized losses on debt instruments
measured at fair value and measured at cost for tax purposes give rise to a deductible temporary difference regardless of whether
the debt instrument’s holder expects to recover the carrying amount of the debt instrument by sale or by use; (ii) the carrying
amount of an asset does not limit the estimation of probable future taxable profits; (iii) estimates for future taxable profits exclude
tax deductions resulting from the reversal of deductible temporary differences; (iv) an entity assesses a deferred tax asset in
combination with other deferred tax assets. The amendment to IAS 12 is effective for annual periods beginning January 1, 2017.
The amendment will not have any significant impact to the consolidated financial statements of the company.

vi. Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

IFRIC 22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration (“IFRIC 22”) clarifies that the date of foreign currency
transactions for purposes of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or
part of it) is the date on which an entity initially recognizes the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
payment or receipt of advance consideration. The interpretation is effective for periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018 and
may be applied either retrospectively or prospectively. The company has not yet determined the impact of IFRIC 22 to its
consolidated financial statements.

d) Basis of Presentation
The consolidated financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.
i. Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the company and its subsidiaries, which are the entities over which
the company exercises control. Control exists when the company has the power to direct the relevant activities, exposure or rights
to variable returns from involvement with the investee, and the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of
its returns. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date the control is obtained, and continue to be consolidated until the date when
control is lost. The company continually reassesses whether or not it controls an investee, particularly if facts and circumstances
indicate there is a change to one or more of the control criteria previously mentioned. In certain circumstances when the company
has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights are sufficient to
give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The company considers all relevant facts
and circumstances in assessing whether or not the company’s voting rights are sufficient to give it power.
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Non-controlling interests in the equity of the company’s subsidiaries are included within equity on the Consolidated Balance
Sheets. All intercompany balances, transactions, unrealized gains and losses are eliminated in full.

Certain of the company’s subsidiaries are subject to profit sharing arrangements between the company and the non-controlling
equity holders, whereby the company is entitled to a participation in profits, as determined under the agreements. The attribution
of net income amongst equity holders in these subsidiaries reflects the impact of these profit sharing arrangements when the
attribution of profits as determined in the agreement is no longer subject to adjustment based on future events.

Gains or losses resulting from changes in the company’s ownership interest of a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions and are recorded within ownership changes as a component of equity. When control of a
subsidiary is lost, the difference between the carrying value and the proceeds from disposition is recognized within other income
and gains in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Transaction costs incurred in connection with the acquisition of control of a subsidiary are expensed immediately within fair value
changes in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Refer to Note 4 for additional information on subsidiaries of the company with significant non-controlling interests.
ii. Associates and Joint Ventures

Associates are entities over which the company exercises significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but without control or joint control over those policies. Joint ventures
are joint arrangements whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have the rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control over an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. The company accounts for associates and
joint ventures using the equity method of accounting within equity accounted investments on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Interests in associates and joint ventures accounted for using the equity method are initially recognized at cost. At the time of
initial recognition, if the cost of the associate or joint venture is lower than the proportionate share of the investment’s underlying
fair value, the company records a gain on the difference between the cost and the underlying fair value of the investment in net
income. If the cost of the associate or joint venture is greater than the company’s proportionate share of the underlying fair value,
goodwill relating to the associate or joint venture is included in the carrying amount of the investment. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the carrying value of the company’s interest in an associate or joint venture is adjusted for the company’s share of
comprehensive income and distributions of the investee. Profit and losses resulting from transactions with an associate or joint
venture are recognized in the consolidated financial statements based on the interests of unrelated investors in the investee. The
carrying value of associates or joint ventures is assessed for impairment at each balance sheet date. Impairment losses on equity
accounted investments may be subsequently reversed in net income. Further information on the impairment of long-lived assets
is available in Note 2(j).

iii. Joint Operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the assets,
and obligations for the liabilities, related to the arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of parties sharing control.
The company recognizes only its assets, liabilities and share of the results of operations of the joint operation. The assets, liabilities
and results of joint operations are included within the respective line items of the Consolidated Balance Sheets, Consolidated
Statements of Operations and Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income.

e) Foreign Currency Translation

The U.S. dollar is the functional and presentation currency of the company. Each of the company’s subsidiaries, associates, joint
ventures and joint operations determines its own functional currency and items included in the consolidated financial statements
of each subsidiary, associate, joint venture and joint operation are measured using that functional currency.

Assets and liabilities of foreign operations having a functional currency other than the U.S. dollar are translated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the reporting date and revenues and expenses at average rates during the period. Gains or losses on translation
are accumulated as a component of equity. On the disposal of a foreign operation, or the loss of control, joint control or significant
influence, the component of accumulated other comprehensive income relating to that foreign operation is reclassified to net
income. Gains or losses on foreign currency denominated balances and transactions that are designated as hedges of net investments
in these operations are reported in the same manner.

Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities of the company is translated using the rate of exchange prevailing
atthe reporting date and non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at fair value are translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at
the date when the fair value was determined. Revenues and expenses are measured at average rates during the period. Gains or

100 BROOKFIELD ASSET MANAGEMENT



losses on translation of these items are included in net income. Gains or losses on transactions which hedge these items are also
included in net income. Foreign currency denominated non-monetary assets and liabilities, measured at historic cost, are translated
at the rate of exchange at the transaction date.

f) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits and highly liquid short-term investments with original maturities
of three months or less.

g) Related Party Transactions

In the normal course of operations, the company enters into various transactions on market terms with related parties, which have
been measured at their exchange value and are recognized in the consolidated financial statements. Related party transactions are
further described in Note 28. The company’s subsidiaries with significant non-controlling interests are described in Note 4 and
its associates and joint ventures are described in Note 10.

h) Operating Assets
i.  Investment Properties

The company uses the fair value method to account for real estate classified as an investment property. A property is determined
to be an investment property when it is principally held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation, or both. Investment
properties also include properties that are under development or redevelopment for future use as investment property.
Investment property is initially measured at cost including transaction costs, or at fair values if acquired in a business combination.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are carried at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value
are included in net income during the period in which they arise. Fair values are primarily determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows of each property, generally over a term of 10 years, using discount and terminal capitalization rates reflective
of the characteristics, location and market of each property. The future cash flows of each property are based upon, among other
things, rental income from current leases and assumptions about rental income from future leases reflecting current conditions,
less future cash outflows relating to such current and future leases. The company determines fair value using internal valuations.
The company uses external valuations to assist in determining fair value, but external valuations are not necessarily indicative of
fair value.

ii. Revaluation Method for Property, Plant and Equipment

The company uses the revaluation method of accounting for certain classes of property, plant and equipment as well as certain
assets which are under development for future use as property, plant and equipment. Property, plant and equipment measured
using the revaluation method is initially measured at cost, or at fair values if acquired in a business combination, and subsequently
carried at its revalued amount, being the fair value at the date of the revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are performed on an annual basis at the end of each fiscal year, commencing
in the first year subsequent to the date of acquisition, unless there is an indication that assets are impaired. Where the carrying
amount of an asset increases as a result of a revaluation, the increase is recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity in revaluation surplus, unless the increase reverses a previously recognized impairment recorded through net income, in
which case that portion of the increase is recognized in net income.

Where the carrying amount of an asset decreases, the decrease is recognized in other comprehensive income to the extent of any
balance existing in revaluation surplus in respect of the asset, with the remainder of the decrease recognized in net income.
Depreciation of an asset commences when it is available for use. On loss of control or partial disposition of an asset measured
using the revaluation method, all accumulated revaluation surplus or the portion disposed of, respectively, is transferred into
retained earnings or ownership changes, respectively.

iii. Renewable Power Generation

Renewable power generating assets, including assets under development, are classified as property, plant and equipment and are
accounted for using the revaluation method. The company determines the fair value of its renewable power generating assets using
discounted cash flow analysis, which includes estimates of forecasted revenue, operating costs, maintenance and other capital
expenditures. Discount rates are selected for each facility giving consideration to the expected proportion of contracted to
uncontracted revenue and markets into which power is sold.

Generally, the first 20 years of cash flow are discounted with a residual value based on the terminal value cash flows. The fair
value and estimated remaining service lives are reassessed on an annual basis. The company determines fair value using internal
valuations with the assistance of external appraisers.
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Depreciation on renewable power generating assets is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated service lives of the
assets, which are as follows:

(YEARS) Useful Lives
DIAIMIS ...ttt a et e e be b e et e e b e et e etteatteeateta e beebeebeenbeerbeeaseeraeeaseasaeeaeereereens Upto 115
PRISEOCKS ...ttt h bttt h et h ettt b e ettt be s Up to 60
POWETIOUSES ...ttt bbbt b ettt s et b et e st e e bt b e a e e b et e st s e eme et et en e et e e e bt saeneebeneeneenenis Upto 115
Hydroelectric SENETrating UNILS...........c.cecieuieieieiierreeteereereereeteereeseesesessesteeseeseeseessessessesseeseeseeseesseseessessensensesensensas Upto 115
WiInNd ZENETALING UNIES.......c.eiviriitiietiitetetitetest ettt ee st ete st eseebe st eteeseseeseseesesseseesessesseseseesessesesseseesasseseeseseesesesesaneas Up to 30
ORI @SOS ....uvivitietietietieieiet et et e st e eteeteeteeteest et essebesbeeseeteessessessessassassesseaseeseeseeseessessensassassaseeseaseessessessessessessesens Up to 60

Cost is allocated to the significant components of power generating assets and each component is depreciated separately.

The depreciation of property, plant and equipment in our Brazilian renewable power operations is based on the duration of the
authorization or the useful life of a concession. The weighted-average remaining duration at December 31,2016 is 15 years (2015 —
18 years). Land rights are included as part of the concession or authorization and are subject to depreciation.

iv.  Sustainable Resources

Sustainable resources consist of standing timber and other agricultural assets and are measured at fair value after deducting the
estimated selling costs and are recorded in accounts receivable and other on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Estimated selling
costs include commissions, levies, delivery costs, transfer taxes and duties. The fair value of standing timber is calculated using
the present value of anticipated future cash flows for standing timber before tax and terminal dates of 30 years. Fair value is
determined based on felling plans, assessments regarding growth, timber prices and felling and silviculture costs. Changes in fair
value are recorded in net income in the period of change. The company determines fair value of its standing timber using external
valuations on an annual basis.

Harvested timber is included in inventory and is measured at the lower of fair value less estimated costs to sell at the time of
harvest and net realizable value.

Land under standing timber, bridges, roads and other equipment used in sustainable resources production are accounted for using
the revaluation method and included in property, plant and equipment. Bridges, roads and equipment are depreciated over their
useful lives, generally 3 to 30 years.

v.  Infrastructure

Utilities, transport and energy assets within our infrastructure operations as well as assets under development classified as property,
plant and equipment on the Consolidated Balance Sheets are accounted for using the revaluation method. The company determines
the fair value of'its utilities, transport and energy assets using discounted cash flow analysis, which includes estimates of forecasted
revenue, operating costs, maintenance and other capital expenditures. Valuations are performed internally on an annual basis.
Discount rates are selected for each asset, giving consideration to the volatility and geography of its revenue streams.

Depreciation on utilities and transport and energy assets is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated service lives of
the components of the assets, which are as follows:

(YEARS) Useful Lives
BUILAINES ...ttt ettt ettt e et e ettt st e seesb et et et e e beeaeeasessesbeasesb e b e ebeebeebeereereersensensentatenras Up to 70
Leasehold IMPIOVEIMENLS .........c..c.ccvievieriireireeeeeeeteeteeteeteeteeteereeseereeeseeseeseeseeseeseeseeseessensensenseeseeseeseessessersensensenseeseaseas Up to 50
District energy systems and gas STOTAZE ASSELS.......c.everererereeeeieiestestesseesiereeeeseessessessessessessessessessessesssessessessesses Up to 50
Machinery, equipment, network system, transmission stations and tOWETS .........c.cecveveruerierenererereneeeeeeneeneennes Up to 40
Rail and transSpOIt ASSELS ..........cooviiiiiiiiiii e Up to 40

The fair value and the estimated remaining service lives are reassessed on an annual basis.

Public service concessions that provide the right to charge users for a service in which the service and fee is regulated by the
grantor are accounted for as intangible assets.
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vi. Hospitality Assets

Hospitality operating assets within our property operations are classified as property, plant and equipment and are accounted for
using the revaluation method. The company determines the fair value for these assets by discounting the expected future cash
flows. The company determines fair value using internal valuations. The company uses external valuations to assist in determining
fair value, but external valuations are not necessarily indicative of fair value.

Depreciation on hotel assets is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the components of the assets,
which range from 7 to 50 years for buildings and 3 to 20 years for other equipment.

vii. Other Property, Plant and Equipment

The company accounts for its other property, plant and equipment using the revaluation method or the cost model, depending on
the nature of the asset and the operating segment. Other property, plant and equipment measured using the revaluation method is
initially measured at cost and subsequently carried at its revalued amount, being the fair value at the date of the revaluation less
any subsequent accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Under the cost method, assets are initially
recorded at cost and are subsequently depreciated over the assets’ useful lives, unless an impairment is identified requiring a write-
down to estimated fair value.

Oil and natural gas pre-licensing costs incurred before the legal right to explore a specific area have been obtained are expensed
in the period in which they are incurred. Once the legal right to explore has been acquired and development and exploration costs
commence, attributable costs are capitalized. The net carrying value of oil and gas properties is depleted using the production
method based on estimated proved plus probable oil and natural gas reserves.

viii. Residential Development

Residential development lots, homes and residential condominium projects are recorded in inventory. Residential development
lots are recorded at the lower of cost, including pre-development expenditures and capitalized borrowing costs, and net realizable
value, which the company determines as the estimated selling price of the inventory in the ordinary course of business in its
completed state, less estimated expenses, including holding costs, costs to complete and costs to sell.

Homes and other properties held for sale, which include properties subject to sale agreements, are recorded at the lower of cost
and net realizable value in inventory. Costs are allocated to the saleable acreage of each project or subdivision in proportion to
the anticipated revenue.

ix. Other Financial Assets

Other financial assets are classified as either fair value through profit or loss or available-for-sale based on their nature and use
within the company’s business. Changes in the fair values of financial instruments classified as fair value through profit or loss
and available-for-sale are recognized in net income and other comprehensive income, respectively. The cumulative changes in
the fair values of available-for-sale securities previously recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income are reclassified
to net income when the security is sold, or there is a significant or prolonged decline in fair value or when the company acquires
acontrolling or significant interest in the underlying investment and commences equity accounting or consolidating the investment.
Other financial assets are recognized on their trade date and initially recorded at fair value with changes in fair value recorded in
net income or other comprehensive income in accordance with their classification. Fair values for financial instruments are
determined by reference to quoted bid or ask prices, as appropriate. Where bid and ask prices are unavailable, the closing price
of the most recent transaction of that instrument is used.

The company assesses the carrying value of available-for-sale securities for impairment when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired. When objective evidence of impairment exists, the cumulative loss in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to net income.

Other financial assets also include loans and notes receivable which are recorded initially at fair value and, with the exception of
loans and notes receivable designated as fair value through profit or loss, are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less any applicable provision for impairment. A provision for impairment is established when there is
objective evidence that the company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables.
Loans and receivables designated as fair value through profit or loss are recorded at fair value, with changes in fair value recorded
in net income in the period in which they arise.

i) Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
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technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date.

Fair value measurement is disaggregated into three hierarchical levels: Level 1, 2 or 3. Fair value hierarchical levels are directly
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurement are observable. The levels are as follows:

Level 1 — Inputs are unadjusted, quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date.

Level 2 — Inputs (other than quoted prices included in Level 1) are either directly or indirectly observable for the asset or liability
through correlation with market data at the measurement date and for the duration of the asset or liability’s anticipated
life.

Level 3 — Inputs are unobservable and reflect management’s best estimate of what market participants would use in pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Consideration is given to the risk inherent in the valuation technique and
the risk inherent in the inputs in determining the estimate.

In determining the fair value of investment properties and property plant and equipment, management uses external information
and observable conditions, where possible, supplemented by internal analysis as required. The determination of fair value requires
the use of estimates, which have been applied in a manner consistent with that in the prior year. There are currently no known
trends, events or uncertainties that we reasonably believe could have a sufficiently pervasive impact across our businesses, which
is diversified by asset class, geography and market, to materially affect the methodologies or assumptions utilized to determine
the estimated fair values reflected in this report. Discount rates and capitalization rates are inherently uncertain and may be impacted
by, among other things, movements in interest rates in the geographies and markets in which the assets are located. Changes in
estimates across different geographies and markets, such as discount rates and terminal capitalization rates, often move
independently to one another and not necessarily in the same direction or to the same degree. Furthermore, impacts on our
estimated values from changes in discount rates / terminal capitalization rates and cash flows are usually inversely correlated as
the circumstances that typically give rise to increased interest rates (i.e. strong economic growth, inflation) usually give rise to
increased cash flows at the asset level.

Further information on fair value measurements is available in Notes 6, 7, 11 and 12.
j) Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

At each balance sheet date the company assesses whether its assets, other than those measured at fair value with changes in value
recorded in net income, have any indication of impairment. An impairment is recognized if the recoverable amount, determined
as the higher of the estimated fair value less costs of disposal and the discounted future cash flows generated from use and eventual
disposal from an asset or cash-generating unit, is less than their carrying value. Impairment losses are recorded as fair value changes
within the Consolidated Statements of Operations. The projections of future cash flows take into account the relevant operating
plans and management’s best estimate of the most probable set of conditions anticipated to prevail. Where an impairment loss
subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to the lesser of the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount and the carrying amount that would have been recorded had no impairment loss been recognized
previously.

k) Accounts Receivable

Trade receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method, less any allowance for uncollectability.

I) Intangible Assets

Finite life intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses, and are
amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Amortization is recorded within depreciation and amortization
in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Certain of the company’s intangible assets have an indefinite life, as there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the
asset is expected to generate cash flows. Indefinite life intangible assets are recorded at cost unless an impairment is identified
which requires a write-down to its recoverable amount.

Indefinite life intangible assets are evaluated for impairment annually or more often if events or circumstances indicate there may
be an impairment. Any impairment of the company’s indefinite life intangible assets is recorded in net income in the period in
which the impairment is identified. Impairment losses on intangible assets may be subsequently reversed in net income.
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m) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the price paid for the acquisition of an entity over the fair value of the net identifiable tangible
and intangible assets and liabilities acquired. Goodwill is allocated to the cash-generating unit to which it relates. The company
identifies cash-generating units as identifiable groups of assets that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets.

Goodwill is evaluated for impairment annually or more often if events or circumstances indicate there may be an impairment.
Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing if the carrying value of a cash-generating unit, including the allocated goodwill,
exceeds its recoverable amount determined as the greater of the estimated fair value less costs to sell and the value in use. Impairment
losses recognized in respect of a cash-generating unit are first allocated to the carrying value of goodwill and any excess is allocated
to the carrying amount of assets in the cash-generating unit. Any goodwill impairment is recorded in income in the period in which
the impairment is identified. Impairment losses on goodwill are not subsequently reversed. On disposal of a subsidiary, any
attributable amount of goodwill is included in determination of the gain or loss on disposal.

n) Subsidiary Equity Obligations

Subsidiary equity obligations include subsidiary preferred equity units, subsidiary preferred shares and capital securities, limited-
life funds and redeemable fund units.

Subsidiary preferred equity units and capital securities are preferred shares that may be settled by a variable number of common
equity units upon their conversion by the holders or the company. These instruments, as well as the related accrued distributions,
are classified as liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Dividends or yield distributions on these instruments are recorded
as interest expense. To the extent conversion features are not closely related to the underlying liability the instruments are bifurcated
into debt and equity components.

Limited-life funds represent the interests of others in the company’s consolidated funds that have a defined maximum fixed life
where the company has an obligation to distribute the residual interests of the fund to fund partners based on their proportionate
share of the fund’s equity in the form of cash or other financial assets at cessation of the fund’s life.

Redeemable fund units represent interests of others in consolidated subsidiaries that have a redemption feature that requires the
company to deliver cash or other financial assets to the holders of the units upon receiving a redemption notice.

Limited-life funds and redeemable fund units are classified as liabilities and recorded at fair value within subsidiary equity
obligations on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Changes in the fair value are recorded in net income in the period of the change.

0) Revenue Recognition
i. Asset Management

Asset management revenues consist of base management fees, advisory fees, incentive distributions and performance-based
incentive fees which arise from the rendering of services. Revenues from base management fees, advisory fees and incentive
distributions are recorded on an accrual basis based on the amounts receivable at the balance sheet date and are recorded within
revenues in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Revenues from performance-based incentive fees and profit sharing arrangements are recorded on the accrual basis based on the
amount that would be due under the formula established by the contract where it is no longer subject to adjustment based on future
events, and are recorded within revenues in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

ii. ~ Property Operations

Property revenues primarily consist of rental revenues from leasing activities and hospitality revenues and interest and dividends
from unconsolidated real estate investments.

Property rental income is recognized when the property is ready for its intended use. Office and retail properties are considered
to be ready for their intended use when the property is capable of operating in the manner intended by management, which generally
occurs upon completion of construction and receipt of all occupancy and other material permits.

The company has retained substantially all of the risks and benefits of ownership of'its investment properties and therefore accounts
for leases with its tenants as operating leases. Revenue recognition under a lease commences when the tenant has a right to use
the leased asset. The total amount of contractual rent to be received from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease; a straight-line or free rent receivable, as applicable, is recorded as a component of investment property
for the difference between the amount of rental revenue recorded and the contractual amount received. Rental revenue includes
percentage participating rents and recoveries of operating expenses, including property, capital and similar taxes. Percentage
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participating rents are recognized when tenants’ specified sales targets have been met. Operating expense recoveries are recognized
in the period that recoverable costs are chargeable to tenants.

Revenue from the sales of land and buildings not classified as investment properties is recognized at the time that the risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred, possession or title passes to the purchaser, all material conditions of the sales contract
have been met, and a significant cash down payment or appropriate security is received.

Revenue from hospitality operations are recognized when the services are provided and collection is reasonably assured.
iii. Renewable Power Operations

Renewable power revenues are derived from the sale of electricity and are recorded at the time power is provided based upon the
output delivered and capacity provided at rates specified under either contract terms or prevailing market rates. Costs of generating
electricity are recorded as incurred.

iv.  Sustainable Resources Operations

Revenue from timberland operations is derived from the sale of logs and related products. The company recognizes sales to external
customers when the product is shipped, title passes and collectability is reasonably assured. Revenue from agricultural development
operations is recognized at the time that the risks and rewards of ownership have transferred.

v.  Utility Operations

Revenue from utility operations is derived from the distribution and transmission of energy as well as from the company’s coal
terminal. Distribution and transmission revenue is recognized when services are rendered based upon usage or volume during that
period. Terminal infrastructure charges are charged at set rates per tonne of coal based on each customer’s annual contracted
tonnage and is then recognized on a pro rata basis each month. The company’s coal terminal also recognizes variable handling
charges based on tonnes of coal shipped through the terminal.

vi. Transport Operations

Revenue from transport operations consists primarily of freight and transportation services revenue. Freight and transportation
services revenue is recognized at the time of the provision of services.

vii. Energy Operations

Revenue from energy operations consists primarily of energy transmission, distribution and storage income. Energy revenue is
recognized when services are provided and are rendered based upon usage or volume throughput during the period.

viii. Private Equity Operations

Revenue from our private equity operations primarily consists of revenues from the sale of goods or products and rendering of
services. Sales are recognized when the product is shipped, title passes and collectability is reasonably assured. Service revenues
are recognized when the services are provided.

Revenues from construction contracts are recognized using the percentage-of-completion method once the outcome of the
construction contract can be estimated reliably, in proportion to the stage of completion of the contract, and to the extent to which
collectability is reasonably assured. The stage of completion is measured by reference to actual costs incurred as a percentage of
estimated total costs of each contract. When the outcome cannot be reliably determined, contract costs are expensed as incurred
and revenue is only recorded to the extent that the costs are determined to be recoverable. Where it is probable that a loss will
arise from a construction contract, the excess of total expected costs over total expected revenue is recognized as an expense
immediately.

ix. Residential Developments Operations

Revenue from residential land sales is recognized at the time that the risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred, which
is generally when possession or title passes to the purchaser, all material conditions of the sales contract have been met, and a
significant cash down payment or appropriate security is received.

Revenue from the sale of homes and residential condominium projects is recognized upon completion, when title passes to the
purchaser upon closing and at which time all proceeds are received or collectability is reasonably assured.

x. Investments in Financial Assets

Dividend and interest income from other financial assets are recorded within revenues when declared or on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method.
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Revenue from loans and notes receivable, less a provision for uncollectible amounts, is recorded on the accrual basis using the
effective interest method.

xi. Other Income and Gains

Other income and gains represent the excess of proceeds over carrying values on the disposition of subsidiaries, investments or
assets, or the settlement of liabilities for less than carrying values.

p) Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedge Accounting

The company selectively utilizes derivative financial instruments primarily to manage financial risks, including interest rate,
commodity and foreign exchange risks. Derivative financial instruments are recorded at fair value within the company’s
consolidated financial statements. Hedge accounting is applied when the derivative is designated as a hedge of a specific exposure
and there is assurance that it will continue to be effective as a hedge based on an expectation of offsetting cash flows or fair values.
Hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively when the derivative no longer qualifies as a hedge or the hedging relationship is
terminated. Once discontinued, the cumulative change in fair value of a derivative that was previously recorded in other
comprehensive income by the application of hedge accounting is recognized in net income over the remaining term of the original
hedging relationship. The assets or liabilities relating to unrealized mark-to-market gains and losses on derivative financial
instruments are recorded in accounts receivable and other or accounts payable and other, respectively.

i.  Items Classified as Hedges

Realized and unrealized gains and losses on foreign exchange contracts, designated as hedges of currency risks relating to a net
investment in a subsidiary or an associate, are included in equity. Gains or losses are reclassified into net income in the period in
which the subsidiary or associate is disposed of or to the extent that the hedges are ineffective. Where a subsidiary is partially
disposed and control is retained, any associated gains or costs are reclassified within equity to ownership changes. Derivative
financial instruments that are designated as hedges to offset corresponding changes in the fair value of assets and liabilities and
cash flows are measured at their estimated fair value with changes in fair value recorded in net income or as a component of equity,
as applicable.

Unrealized gains and losses on interest rate contracts designated as hedges of future variable interest payments are included in
equity as a cash flow hedge when the interest rate risk relates to an anticipated variable interest payment. The periodic exchanges
of payments on interest rate swap contracts designated as hedges of debt are recorded on an accrual basis as an adjustment to
interest expense. The periodic exchanges of payments on interest rate contracts designated as hedges of future interest payments
are amortized into net income over the term of the corresponding interest payments.

Unrealized gains and losses on electricity contracts designated as cash flow hedges of future power generation revenue are included
in equity as a cash flow hedge. The periodic exchanges of payments on power generation commodity swap contracts designated
as hedges are recorded on a settlement basis as an adjustment to power generation revenue.

ii. Items Not Classified as Hedges

Derivative financial instruments that are not designated as hedges are carried at their estimated fair value, and gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value are recognized in net income in the period in which the change occurs. Realized and unrealized
gains and losses on equity derivatives used to offset the change in share prices in respect of vested Deferred Share Units and
Restricted Share Units are recorded together with the corresponding compensation expense. Realized and unrealized gains on
other derivatives not designated as hedges are recorded in revenues, direct costs or corporate costs, as applicable. Realized and
unrealized gains and losses on derivatives which are considered economic hedges, and where hedge accounting is not able to be
elected, are recorded in fair value changes in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

q) Income Taxes

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be paid to tax authorities, net of recoveries, based
on the tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Current and deferred income tax relating to
items recognized directly in equity are also recognized in equity. Deferred income tax liabilities are provided for using the liability
method on temporary differences between the tax bases and carrying amounts of assets and liabilities. Deferred income tax assets
are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, and carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent
that it is probable that deductions, tax credits and tax losses can be utilized. The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent it is no longer probable that the income tax assets will be recovered.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is
realized or the liability settled, based on the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date.
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r) Business Combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of a business acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the fair values at the date of exchange of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued
in exchange for control of the acquiree. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities are recognized at
their fair values at the acquisition date, except for non-current assets that are classified as held-for-sale which are recognized and
measured at fair value less costs to sell. The interest of non-controlling shareholders in the acquiree is initially measured at the
non-controlling shareholders’ proportion of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
recognized.

To the extent the fair value of consideration paid exceeds the fair value of the net identifiable tangible and intangible assets, the
excess is recorded as goodwill. To the extent the fair value of consideration paid is less than the fair value of net identifiable
tangible and intangible assets, the excess is recognized in net income.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, previously held interests in the acquired entity are re-measured to fair value
at the acquisition date, which is the date control is obtained, and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognized in net income,
other than amounts transferred directly to retained earnings. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition
date that have previously been recognized in other comprehensive income are reclassified to net income. Transaction costs are
recorded as an expense within fair value changes in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

s) Other Items
i.  Capitalized Costs

Capitalized costs related to assets under development and redevelopment include all eligible expenditures incurred in connection
with the acquisition, development and construction of the asset until it is available for its intended use. These expenditures consist
of costs that are directly attributable to these assets.

Borrowing costs are capitalized when such costs are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset. A qualifying asset is an asset that takes a substantial period of time to prepare for its intended use.

ii. ~ Share-based Payments

The company issues share-based awards to certain employees and non-employee directors. The cost of equity-settled share-based
transactions, comprised of share options, restricted shares and escrowed shares, is determined as the fair value of the award on
the grant date using a fair value model. The cost of equity-settled share-based transactions is recognized as each tranche vests and
is recorded in contributed surplus as a component of equity. The cost of cash-settled share-based transactions, comprised of
Deferred Share Units and Restricted Share Units, is measured as the fair value at the grant date, and expensed on a proportionate
basis consistent with the vesting features over the vesting period with the recognition of a corresponding liability. The liability is
recorded as a provision within accounts payable and other and measured at each reporting date at fair value with changes in fair
value recognized in net income.

iii. Provisions

A provision is a liability of uncertain timing that is recognized when the company has a present obligation as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation. The company’s significant provisions consist of pensions and other long-term and post-employment
benefits, warranties on some products or services, obligations to retire or decommission tangible long-lived assets and the cost of
legal claims arising in the normal course of operations.

a. Pensions and Other Post-Employment Benefits

The company offers pension and other post-employment benefit plans to employees of certain of its subsidiaries, with certain of
these subsidiaries offering defined benefit plans. Defined benefit pension expense, which includes the current year’s service cost,
is included in Direct costs. For each defined benefit plan, we recognize the present value of our defined benefit obligations less
the fair value of the plan assets, as a defined benefit liability reported in accounts payable and other on our Consolidated Balance
Sheets. The company’s obligations under its defined benefit pension plans are determined periodically through the preparation of
actuarial valuations.

b. Other Long-Term Incentive Plans

The company provides long-term incentive plans to certain employees whereby the company allocates a portion of the amounts
realized through subsidiary profit sharing agreements to its employees. The cost of these plans is recognized over the requisite
service period, provided it is probable that the vesting conditions will be achieved, based on the underlying subsidiary profit
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sharing arrangement. The liability is recorded within accounts payable and other and measured at each reporting date with the
corresponding expense recognized in direct costs.

c.  Warranties, Asset Retirement, Legal and Other

Certain consolidated entities offer warranties on the sale of products or services. A provision is recorded to provide for future
warranty costs based on management’s best estimate of probable warranty claims.

Certain consolidated entities have legal obligations to retire tangible long-lived assets. A provision is recorded at each reporting
date to provide for the estimated fair value of the asset retirement obligation upon decommissioning of the asset period.

In the normal course of operations, the company may become involved in legal proceedings. Management analyzes information
about these legal matters and provides provisions for probable contingent losses, including estimated legal expenses to resolve
the matters. Internal and external legal counsel are used in order to estimate the probability of an unfavourable outcome and the
amount of loss.

t) Critical Judgments and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and judgments that affect the carried amounts of
certain assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
recorded during the period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

In making estimates and judgments, management relies on external information and observable conditions where possible,
supplemented by internal analysis as required. These estimates have been applied in a manner consistent with prior periods and
there are no known trends, commitments, events or uncertainties that the company believes will materially affect the methodology
or assumptions utilized in making these estimates in these consolidated financial statements.

i.  Critical Estimates

The significant estimates used in determining the recorded amount for assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
include the following:

a. Investment Properties

The critical assumptions and estimates used when determining the fair value of commercial properties are: the timing of rental
income from future leases reflecting current market conditions, less assumptions of future cash costs in respect of current and
future leases; maintenance and other capital expenditures; discount rates; terminal capitalization rates; and terminal valuation
dates. Properties under development are recorded at fair value using a discounted cash flow model which includes estimates in
respect of the timing and cost to complete the development.

Further information on investment property estimates is provided in Note 11.
b. Revaluation Method for Property, Plant and Equipment

When determining the carrying value of property, plant and equipment using the revaluation method, the company uses the
following critical assumptions and estimates: the timing of forecasted revenues; future sales prices and associated expenses; future
sales volumes; future regulatory rates; maintenance and other capital expenditures; discount rates; terminal capitalization rates;
terminal valuation dates; useful lives; and residual values. Determination of the fair value of property, plant and equipment under
development includes estimates in respect of the timing and cost to complete the development.

Further information on estimates used in the revaluation method for property, plant and equipment is provided in Note 12.
c. Financial Instruments

Estimates and assumptions used in determining the fair value of financial instruments are: equity and commodity prices; future
interest rates; the credit worthiness of the company relative to its counterparties; the credit risk of the company’s counterparties;
estimated future cash flows; the amount of the liability and equity components of compound financial instruments; discount rates
and volatility utilized in option valuations.

Further information on estimates used in determining the carrying value of financial instruments is provided in Notes 6, 25 and 26.
d. Inventory

The company estimates the net realizable value of its inventory using estimates and assumptions about future development costs,
costs to hold and future selling costs.
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e. Other

Other estimates and assumptions utilized in the preparation of the company’s consolidated financial statements are: the assessment
or determination of net recoverable amount; oil and gas reserves; depreciation and amortization rates and useful lives; estimation
of recoverable amounts of cash-generating units for impairment assessments of goodwill and intangible assets; ability to utilize
tax losses and other tax measurements; fair value of assets held as collateral and the percentage of completion for construction
contracts.

ii. ~ Critical Judgments

Management is required to make critical judgments when applying its accounting policies. The following judgments have the
most significant effect on the consolidated financial statements:

a. Control or Level of Influence

When determining the appropriate basis of accounting for the company’s investees, the company makes judgments about the
degree of influence that the company exerts directly or through an arrangement over the investees’ relevant activities. This may
include the ability to elect investee directors or appoint management. Control is obtained when the company has the power to
direct the relevant investing, financing and operating decisions of an entity and does so in its capacity as principal of the operations,
rather than as an agent for other investors. Operating as a principal includes having sufficient capital at risk in any investee and
exposure to the variability of the returns generated by the decisions of the company as principal. Judgment is used in determining
the sufficiency of the capital at risk or variability of returns. In making these judgments, the company considers the ability of other
investors to remove the company as a manager or general partner in a controlled partnership.

b. Investment Properties

When applying the company’s accounting policy for investment properties, judgment is applied in determining whether certain
costs are additions to the carrying amount of the property and, for properties under development, identifying the point at which
practical completion of the property occurs and identifying the directly attributable borrowing costs to be included in the carrying
value of the development property.

c. Property, Plant and Equipment

The company’s accounting policy for its property, plant and equipment requires critical judgments over the assessment of carrying
value, whether certain costs are additions to the carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment as opposed to repairs and
maintenance, and for assets under development the identification of when the asset is capable of being used as intended
and identifying the directly attributable borrowing costs to be included in the asset’s carrying value.

For assets that are measured using the revaluation method, judgment is required when estimating future prices, volumes and
discount and capitalization rates. Judgment is applied when determining future electricity prices considering market data for years
that a liquid market is available and estimates of electricity prices from renewable sources that would allow new entrants into the
market in subsequent years.

d. Common Control Transactions

The purchase and sale of businesses or subsidiaries between entities under common control are not specifically addressed in IFRS
and accordingly, management uses judgment when determining a policy to account for such transactions taking into consideration
other guidance in the IFRS framework and pronouncements of other standard-setting bodies. The company’s policy is to record
assets and liabilities recognized as a result of transfers of businesses or subsidiaries between entities under common control at
carrying value. Differences between the carrying amount of the consideration given or received and the carrying amount of the
assets and liabilities transferred are recorded directly in equity.

e. Indicators of Impairment

Judgment is applied when determining whether indicators of impairment exist when assessing the carrying values of the company’s
assets, including: the determination of the company’s ability to hold financial assets; the estimation of a cash-generating unit’s
future revenues and direct costs; the determination of discount and capitalization rates; and when an asset’s carrying value is above
the value derived using publicly traded prices which are quoted in a liquid market.

f.  Income Taxes

The company makes judgments when determining the future tax rates applicable to subsidiaries and identifying the temporary
difference that relate to each subsidiary. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected
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to apply during the period when the assets are realized or the liabilities settled, using the tax rates and laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the consolidated balance sheet dates. The company measures deferred income taxes associated with its investment
properties based on its specific intention with respect to each asset at the end of the reporting period. Where the company has a
specific intention to sell a property in the foreseeable future, deferred taxes on the building portion of an investment property are
measured based on the tax consequences following from the disposition of the property. Otherwise, deferred taxes are measured
on the basis the carrying value of the investment property will be recovered substantially through use.

g. Classification of Non-Controlling Interests in Limited-Life Funds

Non-controlling interests in limited-life funds are classified as liabilities (subsidiary equity obligations) or equity (non-controlling
interests) depending on whether an obligation exists to distribute residual net assets to non-controlling interests on liquidation in
the form of cash or another financial asset or assets delivered in kind. Judgment is required to determine what the governing
documents of each entity require or permit in this regard.

h. Other

Other critical judgments include the determination of effectiveness of financial hedges for accounting purposes; the likelihood
and timing of anticipated transactions for hedge accounting; and the determination of functional currency.

3. SEGMENTED INFORMATION
a) Operating Segments

Our operations are organized into five operating business groups in addition to our corporate and asset management activities,
which collectively represent seven operating segments for internal and external reporting purposes. We measure performance
primarily using Funds from Operations ("FFO") generated by each operating segment and the amount of capital invested by the
Corporation in each segment using common equity by segment.

Our operating segments are as follows:

i.  Asset management operations include managing our listed partnerships, private funds and public securities on behalf of our
clients and ourselves. We generate contractual base management fees for these activities as well as incentive distributions
and performance income, including performance fees, transaction fees and carried interest.

ii. Property operations include the ownership, operation and development of office, retail, industrial, multifamily, hospitality
and other properties.

iii. Renewable power operations include the ownership, operation and development of hydroelectric, wind and other power
generating facilities.

iv. Infrastructure operations include the ownership, operation and development of utilities, transport, energy, communications
and agricultural assets.

v.  Private equity operations include a broad range of industries, and are mostly focused on construction, other business services,
energy, and industrial operations.

vi. Residential development operations consist of homebuilding, condominium development and land development.

vii. Corporate activities include the investment of cash and financial assets, as well as the management of our corporate
capitalization, including corporate borrowings and preferred equity, which fund a portion of the capital invested in our other
operations. Certain corporate costs such as technology and operations are incurred on behalf of our operating segments and
allocated to each operating segment based on an internal pricing framework.

On June 20, 2016 we formed a listed issuer called Brookfield Business Partners L.P. (“BBU”) by way of a special dividend to
shareholders. BBU is the primary vehicle through which we own and operate businesses within our private equity business group.
In connection with the formation of BBU, we realigned the organizational and governance structure of these businesses and
changed how the company presents information for financial reporting and management decision making which resulted in a
change in the private equity and service activities segments. Specifically, our private equity reportable segment includes our
investments within BBU, Norbord Inc. and certain other directly held investments. Accordingly, effective the first quarter 2016,
we combined our private equity and service activities operating segments into a single operating segment, and a single reportable
segment, called Private Equity. The company has retrospectively applied this segment change for all periods presented.
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b) Segment Financial Measures

FFO is a key measure of our financial performance and our segment measure of profit and loss. We use FFO to assess operating
results and the performance of our businesses on a segmented basis. We define FFO as net income excluding fair value changes,
depreciation and amortization and deferred income taxes, net of non-controlling interests. When determining FFO, we include
our proportionate share of the FFO from equity accounted investments on a fully diluted basis. FFO also includes realized disposition
gains/losses, which are gains or losses arising from transactions during the reporting period, adjusted to include associated fair
value changes and revaluation surplus recorded in prior periods, taxes payable or receivable in connection with those transactions,
as well as amounts that are recorded directly in equity, such as ownership changes.

We use FFO to assess our performance as an asset manager and separately as an investor in our assets, as well as to understand
the financial impact of our operating decisions. FFO includes the fees that we earn from managing capital as well as our share of
revenues earned and costs incurred within our operations, which include interest expense and other costs. Specifically, FFO includes
the impact of contracts that we enter into to generate revenue, including asset management agreements, power sales agreements
and contracts that our operating businesses enter into such as leases and take or pay contracts, and sales of inventory. FFO also
includes the impact of changes in leverage or the cost of that financial leverage as well as other costs incurred to operate our
business.

We use realized disposition gains/losses within FFO in order to provide additional insight regarding the performance of investments
on a cumulative realized basis, including any unrealized fair value adjustments that were recorded in prior periods and not otherwise
reflected in current period FFO, and believe it is useful to investors to better understand variances between reporting periods.

We exclude depreciation and amortization from FFO, as we believe that the value of most of our assets typically increase over
time, provided we make the necessary maintenance expenditures, the timing and magnitude of which may differ from the amount
of depreciation recorded in any given period. In addition, the depreciated cost base of our assets is reflected in the ultimate realized
disposition gain or loss on disposal. As noted above, unrealized fair value changes are excluded from FFO until the period in
which the asset is sold. We also exclude deferred income taxes from FFO because the vast majority of the company’s deferred
income tax assets and liabilities are a result of the revaluation of our assets under IFRS. Cash taxes are included within FFO.

Our definition of FFO may differ from the definition used by other organizations, as well as the definition of FFO used by the
Real Property Association of Canada (“REALPAC”) and the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts, Inc.
(“NAREIT”), in part because the NAREIT definition is based on U.S. GAAP, as opposed to IFRS. The key differences between
our definition of FFO and the determination of FFO by REALPAC and/or NAREIT are that we include the following: realized
disposition gains or losses and cash taxes payable or receivable on those gains or losses, if any; foreign exchange gains or losses
on monetary items not forming part of our net investment in foreign operations; and foreign exchange gains or losses on the sale
of an investment in a foreign operation.

We illustrate how we derive funds from operations for each operating segment and reconcile total reportable segment FFO to net
income in Note 3 (c)(iv) of the consolidated financial statements. We do not use FFO as a measure of cash generated from our
operations.

We measure segment assets based on common equity by segment to review our deconsolidated balance sheet, which we consider
to be the amount of common equity allocated to each segment.

i.  Segment Balance Sheet Information

The company uses common equity by segment as its measure of segment assets, because it is utilized by the company's
Chief Operating Decision Maker for capital allocation decisions.

ii. Segment Allocation and Measurement

Segment measures include amounts earned from consolidated entities that are eliminated on consolidation. The principal adjustment
is to include asset management revenues charged to consolidated entities as revenues within the company’s asset management
segment with the corresponding expense recorded as corporate costs within the relevant segment. These amounts are based on
the in-place terms of the asset management contracts amongst the consolidated entities. Inter-segment revenues are determined
under terms that approximate market value.

The company allocates the costs of shared functions, which would otherwise be included within its corporate activities segment
such as information technology and internal audit, pursuant to formal policies.
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¢) Reportable Segment Measures

AS AT AND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
DEC. 31,2016 Asset Renewable Private Residential Corporate Total
(MILLIONS) Management Property Power  Infrastructure Equity  Development Activities Segments  Notes
External revenues ............ $ 348§ 6,324 $ 2474 $ 2414 $ 9,603 $ 3,019 $ 229§ 24,411
Inter-segment revenues.... 972 14 — 359 — 6 1,351 i
Segmented revenues........ 1,320 6,338 2,474 2,414 9,962 3,019 235 25,762
FFO from equity

accounted investments .. — 896 9 683 163 6 (6) 1,751 ii
Interest expense ............... — (1,736) (615) (409) (147) 1) (241) (3,239) il
Current income taxes....... — 21) (43) (35) (40) (51) (23) (213)
Funds from operations...... 866 1,561 180 374 405 63 (212) 3,237 iv
Common equity ............... 328 16,727 4,826 2,697 2,862 2,679 (7,620) 22,499
Equity accounted

investments.................... — 16,628 206 7,346 336 374 87 24,977
Additions to non-current

asSets' ... — 12,311 6,899 5,105 359 93 59 24,826

1. Includes equity accounted investments, investment properties, property, plant and equipment, sustainable resources, intangible assets and goodwill

T

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
DEC. 31, 2015 Asset Renewable Private Residential Corporate Total
(MILLIONS) Management Property Power  Infrastructure Equity  Development Activities Segments  Notes
External revenues ............ $ 178  $ 5431 $ 1,632 § 2,126 $ 8,167 § 2,329 $ 50 $ 19,913
Inter-segment revenues.... 743 13 — 413 — 28 1,197 i
Segmented revenues........ 921 5,444 1,632 2,126 8,580 2,329 78 21,110
FFO from equity

accounted investments .. — 759 20 539 99 21 ) 1,433 ii
Interest expense ............... — (1,559) (429) (378) (138) (118) (226) (2,848) il
Current income taxes....... — (37) (22) (19) (14) (23) (17) (132)
Funds from operations...... 528 1,387 233 252 334 135 (310) 2,559 iv
Common equity ............... 328 16,265 4,424 2,203 2,178 2,221 (6,051) 21,568
Equity accounted

investments...........c.oc.... — 17,494 197 4,690 412 358 65 23,216
Additions to non-current

asSets' ... — 19,016 1,444 2,527 3,092 114 352 26,545

1. Includes equity accounted investments, investment properties, property, plant and equipment, sustainable resources, intangible assets and goodwill

i. Inter-Segment Revenues

For the year ended December 31, 2016, the adjustment to external revenues, when determining segmented revenues, consists of
management fees and leasing revenues earned from consolidated entities totalling $986 million (2015 — $756 million), revenues
earned on construction projects between consolidated entities totalling $359 million (2015 — $413 million) and interest income
on loans between consolidated entities totalling $6 million (2015 — $28 million), which were eliminated on consolidation to arrive
at the company’s consolidated revenues.

ii. FFO from Equity Accounted Investments

The company determines FFO from its equity accounted investments by applying the same methodology utilized in adjusting net
income of consolidated entities. The following table reconciles the sum of FFO from equity accounted investments on a segmented
basis to the company’s consolidated equity accounted income:

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DEC. 31 2016 2015
Sum of FFO from equity accounted investments on a segmented basis.........coeceerrereirrrerecrenrenenes $ 1,751 § 1,433
Fair value changes and other non-FFO ItemS ...........cccocooiiiiniiriiinieiniicicncc e (458) 262
Equity acCOUNEd INCOME ......veuiiiiiiiiitiieicrieet ettt sttt ettt $ 1,293 § 1,695

iii. Interest Expense

For the year ended December 31, 2016, the adjustment to interest expense consists of interest on loans between consolidated
entities totalling $6 million (2015 — $28 million) that is eliminated on consolidation, along with the associated revenue.
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iv.  Reconciliation of Total Segment FFO to Net Income

The following table reconciles total segment FFO to net income:

(F]\(/?IRL THE SS-IARS ENDED DEC. 31 Note 2016 2015
Total Se@MENt FFO.......c.ciiiiiirieirieieire ettt $ 3,237 § 2,559
Realized disposition gains in fair value changes or prior periods...........cccccoeeuiinirecinnnes v (766) (847)
Non-controlling interests in FFO .........coccoviiiiiiiiiieeee e 2,917 2,288
Financial statement components not included in FFO
Equity accounted fair value changes and other non-FFO items.............cccccccoeviviiiinnnnn. (458) 262
Fair value Changes .......c.ccveueirrieieiniiecieceeee et (130) 2,166
Depreciation and amOTtiZation ............ccceivueirieieiinieinereiee et (2,020) (1,695)
Deferred INCOME tAXES........cueuiiviiuiiiiiiiieiiieicc e 558 (64)
INEE INCOIMIC ...ttt b et b et b bbbt e bbbt s e beneas $ 3,338 $ 4,669

V. Realized Disposition Gains

Realized disposition gains include gains and losses recorded in net income arising from transactions during the current period
adjusted to include fair value changes and revaluation surplus recorded in prior periods in connection with the assets disposed.
Realized disposition gains also include amounts that are recorded directly in equity as changes in ownership, as opposed to net
income, because they result from a change in ownership of a consolidated entity.

The realized disposition gains recorded in fair value changes or revaluation surplus were $766 million for the year ended
December 31, 2016 (2015 — $847 million), of which $732 million relates to prior periods (2015 — $537 million). There were no
realized disposition gains recorded directly in equity as changes in ownership.

d) Geographic Allocation

The company’s revenues by location of operations are as follows:

{ﬁﬁz{—({)}%\é)EARS ENDED DEC. 31 2016 201 5
UNTEEA STALES ...ttt ettt et ettt et e e et e e et e st e et e et e e e e et e eaeeeaeentesanesneesaeesneesaeesneenns $ 8,073 $ 6,621
(O 4 1o F SRRt 4,427 3,838
BUTOPDE bbbttt ettt b bbbt ettt b bbb bt b ene 3,323 2,776
AUSITALIA ...ttt et e et e et e et e et e et e e et e e e teeeeate e eteeeetaeeetteeeateeetaeeaaaeaas 3,843 3,577
BIAZIL ... ettt ettt e eeta e e et e e ereeeraeeeaaeaan 1,737 1,124
COLOMDIA ...ttt et e et s et et et et e beste st e eseese e st ensensens e seseeseeseessensensensansessessessesseeneans 975 154
(111 T=) RPNt 2,033 1,823

$ 24411 $ 19,913

The company’s consolidated assets by location of assets are as follows:

(MILLIONS) 2016 2015
UNTEEA STALES ...ttt etttk et et et e bt e et e e e s et eneeb e e e st et e e ebe s enenee $ 75,556 $ 68,438
CANAAA. ...ttt h ettt ettt b bt bt e a e e a et et e b bt e bt eh e e h e ea b et et e tentesbeebeebeeneens 19,324 18,805
20,200 20,762

12,920 13,549

12,807 9,968

7,296 676

11,723 7,316

$ 159,826 $ 139,514

114 BROOKFIELD ASSET MANAGEMENT



e) Revenues Allocation

Total external revenues within our operating segments are as follows:

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DEC. 31
(MILLIONS)

ASSEt MANAZEIMENL ...cvvieniieiieiieieeie ettt ettt et e st e et et e e abeeatesatesatesaeesbeenseenseenees

Property

COTE OFFICE .ttt ettt ettt be e eaean
OppOortunistic and OtHET .......ccuevuerieriirieiieieieee ettt st enean

Renewable power

HYATOCIECIIIC ...ttt
WINA CNCTEY.c ettt ettt st st sttt ettt et et e besbeebesneeneennenes

Co-generation and OtheT ..........ccocevirieieieieieeeeeee ettt eseenees

Infrastructure

UHIIEIES vttt ettt ettt ettt ettt et ete e beebeesbeesbeeabeeaseessesasenseeessenseenseenseenseas

Private equity

CONSITUCHION SEIVICES. .. uviieuvieetieeetieeeteeeeteeeetteeeteeeeteeeeteeeesaeeesesesseeesseseesesesseeessseeanes

Industrial and other OPErations ...........ceeeeeierienieniinineeeeeet e
Residential developmMENt ..........ccceierieriiiiiririeieeeeee et

COTPOTALE ACLIVITIES 1.uvivivierierienieiesiestestesteetesseeseessessessessesseeseeseeseessensessessessessessessanssenes

4. SUBSIDIARIES

2016 2015

$ 348 $ 178
2,170 2,519

4,154 2,912

2,055 1,232

373 366

46 34

825 864

892 649

398 342

299 271

4,028 3,420

2,006 1,691

441 390

3,128 2,666

3,019 2,329

229 50

$ 24411 $ 19,913

The following table presents the details of the company’s subsidiaries with significant non-controlling interests:

Voting Rights Held by Ownership Interest Held b;/
Non-Controlling Interests' Non-Controlling Interests

AS AT DEC. 31 Jurisdiction

(MILLIONS) of Formation 2015 2016 2015
Brookfield Property Partners L.P. (“BPY™)............ Bermuda —% 31.2% 32.1%
Brookfield Renewable Partners L.P. (“BEP”)........ Bermuda —% 38.7% 37.5%
Brookfield Infrastructure Partners L.P. (“BIP”)..... Bermuda —% 70.2% 70.4%
Brookfield Business Partners L.P. (“BBU”)* ......... Bermuda n/a 25.1% n/a

1. Control of the limited partnerships (BPY, BEP, BIP and BBU) resides with their respective general partners which are wholly owned subsidiaries of the company. The

company’s general partner interest is entitled to earn base management fees and incentive distribution rights

2. The company’s ownership interest in BPY, BEP, BIP and BBU includes holding a combination of redemption-exchange units (REUs), Class A limited partnership units,
special limited partnership units and general partnership units in each subsidiary, where applicable. Each of BPY, BEP, BIP and BBU’s partnership capital includes its
Class A limited partnership units whereas REUs and general partnership units are considered non-controlling interests for the respective partnerships. REUs share the
same economic attributes in all respects except for the redemption right attached thereto. The REUs and general partnership units participate in earnings and distributions

on a per unit basis equivalent to the per unit participation of the Class A limited partnership units of the subsidiary

3. BBU was formed during 2016 through a special dividend of approximately 19 million limited partnership units, equivalent to a 20.7% economic interest in BBU, to the

shareholders of the company’s Class A shares and Class B shares

During 2016, BEP, BIP and BBU completed equity issuances which the company participated in. The BEP and BBU issuance
decreased the company’s interest by 1.1% and 4.4%, respectively, as the company participated at a lower interest than its ownership
at the time of issuance. The BIP issuance had minimal impact on the company’s interest as the company participated at its

proportionate interest.
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The table below presents the exchanges on which the company’s subsidiaries with significant non-controlling interests were
publicly listed as of December 31, 2016:

TSX NYSE
BPY.UN BPY
BEP.UN BEP

BIP.UN BIP
BBU.UN BBU

The following table outlines the composition of accumulated non-controlling interests presented within the company’s consolidated
financial statements:

f}?ﬁflgﬁg;“ 2016 2015
$ 18,790 $ 16,045

8,879 5,358

7,710 5,591

2,173 —

5,683 4,926

$ 43,235 $ 31,920

All publicly listed entities are subject to independent governance. Accordingly, the company has no direct access to the assets of
these subsidiaries. Summarized financial information with respect to the company’s subsidiaries with significant non-controlling
interests are set out below. The summarized financial information represents amounts before intra-group eliminations:

BPY BEP BIP BBU

E“*NSH*L‘EIQESD)FORTHE YEARS ENDED DEC. 31 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Current assets $ 4198 § 3,064 $ 907 $§ 600 $ 1,632 $ 1,553 $ 4,076 § —
Non-current assets .......coceceeereeereecereneene 73,929 68,802 26,830 18,907 19,643 16,182 4,117 —
Current Habilities ........ccoeveveeererererererennnn 8,276) (11,964) (1,733) (1,245) (1,515) (1,210)  (2,556) —
Non-current liabilities........c.cccecereeerennene (35,690) (28,969) (13,332) (9,499) (10,116) (9,349  (1,599) —
Non-controlling interests ..........c.cc.ceenee.e. (18,790) (16,045)  (8,879)  (5,358)  (7,710)  (5,591) (2,173) —
Equity attributable to Brookfield............. $15371 $14,888 §$ 3,793 § 3405 $ 1,934 $ 1,585 § 1,865 $ —
REVENUES ....ooeeveeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeees e eeesseeeee $ 5352 $ 4853 $ 2516 $ 1,750 $ 2,115 $ 1,855 $ 7,960 §  —
Net income attributable to: -

Non-controlling interests............coeunene $ 1,501 $ 1,795 $ 97 $ 95 § 408 $ 260 $ (170) § —

Shareholders......c...coeveernereininereinennes 1,216 1,971 (57) 8 120 131 32) —

Other comprehensive (loss) income
attributable to:

Non-controlling interests...............cc..... $ (36) $ (416) $ 915 § 26 $ 426 $ (166) $ 101 S —
Shareholders..........coceeervrecinnercinnnee (210) (265) 414 (124) 150 (36) 32 —
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The summarized cash flows of the company’s subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests are as follows:

BPY BEP BIP BBU

fﬁi{}gﬁ\fgfﬂs ENDED DEC. 31 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Cash flows from (used in):

Operating activities ..........coevrrererrrrinnnne $ 745 $ 590 $ 632 § 588 $ 753 $§ 632 § 229 § _

Financing activities ........c.ccoceeeverveuenene. 2,906 3,178 2,709 (33) 899 1,764 586 —

Investing activities ........cccoeererereeennencne (3,234) (3,934 (3,191 (623)  (1,058)  (2,346) (96) —
Distributions paid to non-controlling

interests in common equity .................... $ 250 $§ 202 $ 201 § 170 $ 383 § 340 8§ 2 9 —

5. ACQUISITIONS OF CONSOLIDATED ENTITIES

The company accounts for business combinations using the acquisition method of accounting, pursuant to which the cost of
acquiring a business is allocated to its identifiable tangible and intangible assets and liabilities on the basis of the estimated fair
values at the date of acquisition.

a) Completed During 2016

The following table summarizes the balance sheet impact as a result of business combinations that occurred in the year ended
December 31, 2016. No material changes were made to the provisional allocations:

Renewable Infrastructure

(MILLIONS) Property Power and Other Total
Cash and cash equivalents..........cccoccoeveneeinineincnnienenceeee $ 119 $ 117 °$ 155 §$ 391
Accounts receivable and other .............ccccoeeeeeiiciccicciece e, 155 177 672 1,004
INVENLOTY .eeviiieiieiieieieee ettt be b s enas 10 15 39 64
Equity accounted INVESMENtS........c.covveueerererirereereerenrereenennenes — — 115 115
Investment Properties .........cceeveerieieerieirierieeneee e 9,234 — — 9,234
Property, plant and equipment............cocccveevvecinineenenieeneenene 652 5,741 1,067 7,460
INtanGIble ASSELS ....cvevververeiriiriieiieieiertee e 2 — 1,225 1,227
GOOAWILL.....oiiiiiciiiiccc e 17 799 470 1,286
Deferred inCOMe taX aSSetS........cceveeerereeirienieerieeneneeeseeeeneees 2 — 12 14
Total assets 10,191 6,849 3,755 20,795
Less:
Accounts payable and Other..........ccocevverereriineneneecee, (413) (385) (318) (1,116)
Non-recourse BOITOWINES ......cc.ccvvverveuerremrenreenierneeeeeneenenens (2,859) (1,130) (1,161) (5,150)
Deferred income tax liabilities .........ccoceveereeierierienierieeeeeeee, (3%5) (1,020) (263) (1,318)
Non-controlling interests’ ...........ovevevereeeeeeeeeeeseceeeeesenes (33) (1,417) (1,402) (2,852)
(3,340) (3,952) (3,144) (10,436)
Net assets ACqUITEA ......evueererierienienieriereeeecece et $ 6,851 $ 2,897 $ 611 $ 10,359
CONSIAETALION ... ee s s e s s e seseeseereeens $ 6,824 $ 2,897 $ 611 $ 10,332

1. Includes non-controlling interests recognized on business combinations measured as the proportionate share of fair value of the assets and liabilities on the date of
acquisition
2. Total consideration, including amounts paid by non-controlling interests that participated in the acquisition

Brookfield recorded $1.7 billion of revenue and $223 million of net income from the acquired operations as a result of the

acquisitions made during the year. If the acquisitions had occurred at the beginning of the year, they would have contributed an
additional $3.0 billion and $230 million to total revenue and net income, respectively.
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The following table summarizes the balance sheet impact as a result of significant business combinations that occurred in 2016:

Property Renewable Power Infrastructure
IFC Simply City Student
(MILLIONS) Rouse Seoul Storage Point  Housing Isagen Holtwood Rutas Niska Linx
Cash and cash
equivalents............ $ 32 3 25 8 16 $ 1 S 33§ 113 $ — S 115 8 15 8 12
Accounts receivable
and other............... 94 13 28 5 3 174 1 121 99 232
Inventory.......ccccceuene o o 2 o o 15 o _ 39 o
Equity accounted
investments........... — — — — — — — — — 115
Investment properties 3 919 1,911 1,044 742 608 — — — — —
Property, plant and
equipment.............. 13 303 — — — 4,772 859 6 825 229
Intangible assets........ _ 2 — — 1 — — 973 — 69
Goodwill — — — 12 5 799 — 139 82 210
Deferred income tax
asSetS.....ccirverennnen — 2 — — — — — — — —
Total assets................ 3,149 2,256 1,090 760 650 5,873 860 1,354 1,060 867
Less:
Accounts payable
and other ............ (231) (107) (12) (6) (49) (381) (1) 7 (71) (148)
Non-recourse
borrowings.......... (1,840) — (592) — (202) (1,130 — (441) (337) (181)
Deferred income
tax liabilities ...... — (35) — — — (1,019) — (153) 7 (33)
Non-controlling
interests' ............ (15) — (15) — 2) (1,417) — (626) (348) (360)
(2,086) (142) (619) (6) (253)  (3,947) @ 1,227 (833) (722)

Net assets acquired ... § 1,063 $ 2,114 $ 471  § 754§ 397§ 1,926 § 859 § 127 § 227§ 145

Consideration” .......... $ 1,063 $ 2114 $ 471 $ 754 $ 397 $§ 1926 $ 859 $ 127 $ 227 $ 145

1. Includes non-controlling interests recognized on business combinations measured as the proportionate share of fair value of the assets and liabilities on the date of
acquisition
2. Total consideration, including amounts paid by non-controlling interests

Significant acquisitions completed in 2016 are as follows:

InJanuary 2016, a subsidiary of the company acquired an initial 57.6% interest in Isagen S.A. E.S.P. (“Isagen”) from the Colombian
government for total consideration of $1.9 billion with a cash contribution of $510 million funded by non-recourse borrowings
and $1.2 billion from the subsidiary's institutional partners. Isagen is Colombia’s third-largest power generation company which
owns and operates a 3,032 megawatt (“MW”) portfolio, consisting predominantly of six, largely reservoir-based, hydroelectric
facilities.

Following the acquisition, the subsidiary of the company was required to conduct two mandatory tender offers (the “MTOs”) for
the remaining publicly held shares at the same price per share paid for the 57.6% controlling interest. The first MTO closed in
May 2016, in which the subsidiary acquired an additional 26% of economic interest for $929 million. The second MTO closed
in September 2016 with total consideration of $605 million, and the subsidiary effectively owns 99.64% of Isagen as of September
30, 2016 after giving effect to the initial acquisition and the two MTOs. The company is accounting for the initial acquisition of
the 57.6% controlling interest and the MTOs as separate transactions. The acquisition resulted in $799 million of goodwill due to
the recognition of a deferred tax liability because the tax bases of the Isagen net assets are significantly lower than their acquisition
date fair value. Total revenue and net income that would have been recorded if the transaction had occurred at the beginning of
the year would have been $886 million and $120 million, respectively.

In March 2016, a subsidiary of the company completed the acquisition of a self-storage (“Simply Storage”) operation for total
consideration of $471 million with a cash contribution of $372 million. Total revenue and net income that would have been
recorded if the transaction had occurred at the beginning of the year would have been $105 million and $71 million, respectively.
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In April 2016, a subsidiary of the company completed the acquisition of a portfolio of student housing assets (“Student Housing”)
for total consideration of $397 million with a cash contribution of $209 million. Total revenue and net income that would have
been recorded if the transaction had occurred at the beginning of the year would have been $42 million and $5 million, respectively.

In April 2016, a subsidiary of the company completed the acquisition of hydroelectric facilities in Pennsylvania (“Holtwood”) for
total cash consideration of $859 million. Total revenue and net loss that would have been recorded if the transaction had occurred
at the beginning of the year would have been $46 million and $1 million, respectively.

In June 2016, a subsidiary of the company completed the acquisition of a portfolio of toll roads in Peru (“Rutas”) for total
consideration of $127 million with a cash contribution of $118 million. Total revenue and net loss that would have been recorded
if the transaction had occurred at the beginning of the year would have been $122 million and $6 million, respectively.

In July 2016, a subsidiary of the company completed the acquisition of a North American gas storage business (“Niska”) for total
consideration of $227 million with a cash contribution of $67 million and senior notes already owned by the subsidiary. The
subsidiary remeasured its existing senior notes to fair value of $141 million at the acquisition date with a remeasurement gain of
$24 million recorded in the income. Total revenue and net income that would have been recorded if the transaction had occurred
at the beginning of the year would have been $136 million and $29 million, respectively.

In July 2016, a subsidiary of the company completed the acquisition of a retail mall business (“Rouse”) for total consideration of
$1.1 billion with a cash contribution of $587 million. The subsidiary accounted for the acquisition as a step acquisition, and
remeasured its existing 33% equity interest in Rouse to fair value of $354 million at the acquisition date with no material
remeasurement gain or loss. Total revenue and net loss that would have been recorded if the transaction had occurred at the
beginning of the year would have been $335 million and $58 million, respectively.

In August 2016, a subsidiary of the company completed the acquisition of an Australia port business (“Linx”) for total consideration
of $145 million, comprising $13 million in cash and a portion of the subsidiary’s previously existing interest with an acquisition
date fair value of $132 million. Total revenue and net income that would have been recorded if the transaction had occurred at the
beginning of the year would have been $504 million and $12 million, respectively.

In December 2016, a subsidiary of the company completed the acquisition of a mixed-use property in South Korea (“IFC Seoul”)
and an office tower in U.K. (“City Point”) for total consideration of $2.1 billion with a cash contribution of $875 million and
$754 million with a cash contribution of $147 million, respectively. The subsidiary accounts for the City Point acquisition as a
step acquisition and remeasured its existing loan interest to fair value at acquisition date of $93 million with a remeasurement loss
of $34 million. If the transactions had occurred at the beginning of the year, total revenue and net loss for IFC Seoul would have
been $170 million and $18 million, whereas total revenue and net loss for City Point would have been $49 million and $35 million.
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b) Completed During 2015

The following table summarizes the balance sheet impact as a result of business combinations that occurred in 2015. No material
changes were made to the provisional allocation disclosed in the 2015 consolidated financial statements:

Renewable Private
(MILLIONS) Property Power Equity Other Total
Cash and cash equivalents ..........ccccoocevereencinceenienienienenne. $ 90 $ 19 $ 41 S 27 $ 177
Accounts receivable and other 169 41 309 125 644
INVENLOTY ..t 5 — 405 135 545
Equity accounted investments ..........c.cocceeeevreerenecnnennns 71 — — 3 74
Investment Properties.........ovveereereeneeereeereeeeeeseeeeeeneene 4,120 — — — 4,120
Property, plant and equipment............cccceeeeecieienienienene 2,622 1,160 1,767 5 5,554
Intangible aSSELS........coevueiruirieirieiriiieereeeecee e 1,099 — 160 203 1,462
GOOAWILL ...cviiniiciiiiciceccte s 941 — 173 188 1,302
Deferred income tax asSets........ccceververveerieeeieienierienienne 22 — 36 4 62
TOtal ASSELS....cvieeieeieeieeieiieietee et 9,139 1,220 2,891 690 13,940
Less:
Accounts payable and other..........c.ccccceeveiiiiiinnnns (370) 41 (441) (161) (1,013)
Non-recourse borrowings (2,457) (391) (483) 39) (3,370)
Deferred income tax liabilities..........ccccovevererercinenee (519) (28) (140) (24) (711)
Non-controlling interests' ............coo.corvvrrrrerieeriernrnenn. (10) (16) — — (26)
(3,356) (476) (1,064) (224) (5,120)
Net assets aCqUITEd ......ooveuiveeeeuirieirieeeeeee e $ 5783 $ 744 $ 1,827 % 466 *$ 8,820
Consideration’...........co.coovvveveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 5780 $ 744 $ 1,656 $ 266 $ 8,446

1. Includes non-controlling interests recognized on business combinations measured as the proportionate share of fair value of the assets and liabilities on the date of
acquisition

2. Includes previously held $200 million equity accounted investment

3. Total consideration, including amounts paid by non-controlling interests

Brookfield recorded $1.5 billion of revenue and $221 million of net income from the acquired operations as a result of the
acquisitions made during the year. If the acquisitions had occurred at the beginning of the year, they would have contributed
$3.5 billion and $91 million to total revenue and net income, respectively.
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The following table summarizes the balance sheet impact as a result of significant business combinations that occurred in 2015:

Renewable
Property Power Private Equity
Brazil
Center Office Brazil
(MILLIONS) Parcs AEC Properties Renewables GrafTech  Clearwater
Cash and cash equivalents...............c........... $ 72 % 11 $ 1 3 19 $ 25 % —
Accounts receivable and other .................... 46 72 36 32 161 —
INVentory ......ocoeeviviiiniiiie 5 — — — 347 —
Equity accounted investments.... — 71 — — — —
Investment properties ........cccecvevvevvererenenne — 2,468 626 — — —
Property, plant and equipment..................... 2,618 — — 854 644 806
Intangible assets .........coeeererreerieirenieine 1,099 — — — 158 —
GOOAWIll.....oveuiiicriiinieciecreccces 941 — — — 170 —
Deferred income tax assets 20 — — — 36 —
Total @SSEtS ....coveverveirieieerieieereeeeeeenee 4,801 2,622 663 905 1,541 806
Less:
Accounts payable and other...................... (254) 61) 20 20 (214) o7
Non-recourse borrowings .............cceeenee (2,139) — 177 (280) (387) —
Deferred income tax liabilities ................. (450) — (69) — (86) 57
Non-controlling interests' — ?2) — (16) — —
(2,843) (63) (267) 317) (687) (154)
Net assets acquired........ccoeeveeeeeeneeenieennnne $ 1,958 % 2,559 3% 396 $ 588 $ 854 $ 652
CONSIAETAON? ..o $ 1,958 $ 2,559 § 396 $ 588 % 854 §$ 481

1. Includes non-controlling interests recognized on business combinations measured as the proportionate share of fair value of the assets and liabilities on the date of
acquisition
2. Total consideration, including amounts paid by non-controlling interests

In January 2015, a subsidiary of the company completed the acquisition of a natural gas production operation (“Clearwater”) for
total consideration of $481 million. A bargain purchase gain that arose based on the difference between the fair value of net assets
acquired and the consideration paid was recorded in fair value changes in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. The
identifiable net assets acquired primarily consisted of natural gas reserves, net of the associated decommissioning liability. Total
revenue and net income that would have been recorded if the transaction had occurred at the beginning of the year would have
been $163 million and $78 million, respectively. The subsidiary also completed the acquisition of a facilities management business
in February 2015 and accounted for the acquisition as a step acquisition, and remeasured its existing equity interest to fair value
at acquisition date of $200 million with a remeasurement gain of $101 million recorded in net income.

In March 2015, a subsidiary of the company completed the acquisition of a renewable power generation portfolio in Brazil (“Brazil
Renewables”). Total consideration of R$1,867 million ($588 million) included cash consideration of R$1,717 million
($541 million) and a deferred consideration amount. Total revenue and net income that would have been recorded if the transaction
had occurred at the beginning of the year would have been $93 million and $7 million, respectively. The purchase price allocation
has been completed on a preliminary basis.

In August 2015, a subsidiary of the company acquired 100% of the voting equity interests in a U.S. multifamily properties company
(“AEC”) for consideration of $2,559 million. Total revenue and net income that would have been recorded if the transaction had
occurred at the beginning of the year would have been $192 million and $63 million, respectively.

InAugust2015, asubsidiary of the company completed the acquisition of a U.K. resort operation (“Center Parcs”) fora consideration
of $1,958 million with a cash contribution of $1.5 billion. Total revenue and net income that would have been recorded if the
transaction occurred at the beginning of the year would have been $629 million and $35 million, respectively.

In August 2015, a subsidiary of the company completed the acquisition of an industrial operation (“GrafTech”) for total
consideration of $854 million. Total revenue and net loss that would have been recorded if the transaction occurred at the beginning
of the year would have been $685 million and $147 million, respectively.
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In November 2015, a subsidiary of the company acquired a portfolio of office properties in Brazil (“Brazil Office Properties”) for
total cash consideration of $396 million. Total revenue and net income that would have been recorded if the transaction occurred
at the beginning of the year would have been $42 million and $20 million, respectively.

6. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The following tables list the company’s financial instruments by their respective classification as at December 31,2016 and 2015:

a) Financial Instrument Classification

Fair Value )  Loans and
ARiTBEg, 20 Profitand Los A tSale  Financial Liablites
MEASUREMENT BASIS (Fair Value) (Fair Value) (Amortized Cost) Total
Financial assets’
Cash and cash equivalents............ccc........ $ — 3 — 3 4299 $ 4,299
Other financial assets
Government bonds ..........ccceeevereeenencne 22 32 — 54
Corporate bonds........coceeceveeeeeeneenennene 13 342 — 355
Fixed income securities and other......... 170 335 — 505
Common shares and warrants ............... 1,630 952 — 2,582
Loans and notes receivable.................... 62 — 1,142 1,204
1,897 1,661 1,142 4,700
Accounts receivable and other” ............... 1,501 — 5,298 6,799
$ 3,398 $ 1,661 $ 10,739 $ 15,798
Financial liabilities
Corporate bOrrowings ..........cceevevververeenens $ — 3 — 3 4,500 $ 4,500
Property-specific mortgages..................... — — 52,442 52,442
Subsidiary borrowings..........c.ceceevevnenee — — 7,949 7,949
Accounts payable and other” ................... 2,019 — 9,896 11,915
Subsidiary equity obligations ... 1,439 — 2,126 3,565
$ 3458 $ — 3 76,913 $ 80,371
1. Total financial assets include $2.5 billion of assets pledged as collateral
2. Includes derivative instruments which are elected for hedge accounting, totalling $1.0 billion included in accounts receivable and other and $528 million included in

accounts payable and other, for which changes in fair value are recorded in other comprehensive income
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Loans and

s e 1.0t T Dot and L A t-Sale  Financial Lisbiltes
MEASUREMENT BASIS (Fair Value) (Fair Value) (Amortized Cost) Total
Financial assets’'
Cash and cash equivalents....................... $ — 3 — 3 2,774 $ 2,774
Other financial assets
Government bonds ...........cceeeveeieneennnnns 100 22 — 122
Corporate bonds........ccceeeeeeeereenienennns 16 1,258 — 1,274
Fixed income securities and other......... 188 208 — 396
Common shares and warrants 1,588 1,397 — 2,985
Loans and notes receivable.................... 82 — 1,297 1,379
1,974 2,885 1,297 6,156
Accounts receivable and other* ............... 1,241 — 4,327 5,568
$ 3,215 $ 2,885 $ 8,398 $ 14,498
Financial liabilities
Corporate borrowings...........c.cceeeveeenenn. $ — 3 — 3 3936 $ 3,936
Property-specific mortgages — — 46,044 46,044
Subsidiary borrowings............ccceeererenne — — 8,303 8,303
Accounts payable and other? v, 2,279 — 9,087 11,366
Subsidiary equity obligations 1,274 — 2,057 3,331
$ 3,553 $ — 3 69,427 $ 72,980
1. Total financial assets include $2.2 billion of assets pledged as collateral
2. Includes derivative instruments which are elected for hedge accounting, totalling $831 million included in accounts receivable and other and $874 million included

in accounts payable and other, for which changes in fair value are recorded in other comprehensive income

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of fair value through profit and loss ("FVTPL") financial assets are presented
in the Consolidated Statements of Operations in the period in which they arise. Dividends on FVTPL and available-for-sale financial
assets are recognized when the company’s right to receive payment is established. Interest on available-for-sale financial assets
is calculated using the effective interest method.

Available-for-sale securities are recorded on the balance sheet at fair value, and are assessed for permanent impairment at each
reporting date. As at December 31, 2016, the unrealized gains and losses relating to the fair value of available-for-sale securities
amounted to $286 million (2015 — $102 million) and $28 million (2015 — $575 million), respectively.

During the year ended December 31, 2016, $391 million of net deferred loss (2015 — $12 million of net deferred gain) previously
recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income were reclassified to net income as a result of the disposition or impairment
of available-for-sale financial assets.

Included in cash and cash equivalents is $3.8 billion (2015 — $2.3 billion) of cash and $454 million (2015 — $450 million) of short-
term deposits as at December 31, 2016.

2016 ANNUAL REPORT 123



b) Carrying and Fair Value

The following table provides the carrying values and fair values of financial instruments as at December 31, 2016 and 2015:

2016 2015
fﬁlﬁl%%%)n Car\l}zllll:% Fair Value Cal’\r]};ll&% Fair Value
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents............ccoeeverereriecieieieeesee e $ 4,299 § 4,299 $ 2,774 $ 2,774
Other financial assets
Government BONAS.........cvevveriererieieeeieeeeeeeeesie e se e eeeeeeas 54 54 122 122
Corporate DONAS.......ceuerueeieieieienieneeeeieeeet e 355 355 1,274 1,274
Fixed income securities and other...........cccccceevveeciieireieeiennnnn, 505 505 396 396
Common shares and Warrants.............c.ceceeeveeeeeeeneeseeseesneenne 2,582 2,582 2,985 2,985
Loans and notes receivable...........ooovvevviiiiieiiiiiciieceeeeeens 1,204 1,204 1,379 1,379
4,700 4,700 6,156 6,156
Accounts receivable and other ...........ccoocvevviiiviviiieeieeceeee, 6,799 6,799 5,568 5,568
$ 15,798 $ 15,798 $ 14,498 $ 14,498
Financial liabilities
Corporate DOITOWINGS........ceeeeeierierierierienieseeeeeeeeteaesessesseeseenas $ 4,500 $ 4,771 $ 3,936 $ 4,229
Property-specific MOrtgages.......cevvevververrerieieieieieiesie e seseens 52,442 53,512 46,044 47,081
Subsidiary BOIrTOWINGS. ......cveuerueeetirieieieieiirieeeeeeie e 7,949 8,103 8,303 8,376
Accounts payable and other ...... 11,915 11,915 11,366 11,366
Subsidiary equity obligations 3,565 3,567 3,331 3,331
$ 80,371 $ 81,868 $ 72,980 $ 74,383
The current and non-current balances of other financial assets are as follows:
(MILLIONS) 2016 2015
CUITENME ...ttt ettt ettt ete et e eabeeabeeaseetseesseeaseess e ssese e seenseesseeaseesseesseessesssanseesssenseessenseenseenseensens $ 3,229 §$ 1,194
Non-current ... 1,471 4,962
1 7Y U U U SUOPRUPUPUPTRRRSRRN $ 4,700 $ 6,156
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¢) Fair Value Hierarchy Levels

The following table categorizes financial assets and liabilities, which are carried at fair value, based upon the fair value hierarchy
levels:

2016 2015
ﬁﬁlgg‘;}“ Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets
Other financial assets
Government bonds............coeevveeiiiiiiiiiiinenen, $ 11 $ 43 $ — 3 74 % 48 $ —
Corporate bonds.........cccceeeeveeerencincrcnenecnn 175 173 7 9 1,263 2
Fixed income securities and other .................. 36 178 291 67 152 177
Common shares and warrants.............c..ce.c..... 1,309 — 1,273 1,613 — 1,372
Loans and notes receivables ...........c.cccveencne — 51 11 — 70 12
Accounts receivable and other...........c.cccoceeenene 2 1,342 157 4 1,109 128

Financial liabilities
Accounts payable and other..............ccoceceveennene

Subsidiary equity obligations

During the year ended December 31, 2016, there were no transfers between Level 1, 2 or 3. During the year ended December 31,
2015, $769 million of financial assets were transferred from Level 1 to Level 2 due to the elimination of an active market for those
financial assets.

Fair values for financial instruments are determined by reference to quoted bid or ask prices, as appropriate. Where bid and ask
prices are unavailable, the closing price of the most recent transaction of that instrument is used. In the absence of an active market,
fair values are determined based on prevailing market rates for instruments with similar characteristics and risk profiles or internal
or external valuation models, such as option pricing models and discounted cash flow analysis, using observable market inputs.

The following table summarizes the valuation techniques and key inputs used in the fair value measurement of Level 2 financial
instruments:

(MILLIONS) Carrying Value

Type of Asset/Liability Dec. 31,2016 Valuation Technique(s) and Key Input(s)

Derivative assets/Derivative $ 1,342/ Foreign currency forward contracts — discounted cash flow model — forward
liabilities (accounts receivable/ 1.859 exchange rates (from observable forward exchange rates at the end of the
accounts payable)............c....... (1,859) reporting period) and discounted at credit adjusted rate

Interest rate contracts — discounted cash flow model — forward interest rates
(from observable yield curves) and applicable credit spreads discounted at a
credit adjusted rate

Energy derivatives — quoted market prices, or in their absence internal
valuation models corroborated with observable market data
Redeemable fund units 52 Aggregated market prices of underlying investments
(subsidiary equity obligations)

Other financial assets................... 445  Valuation models based on observable market data

Fair values determined using valuation models require the use of unobservable inputs (Level 3 financial assets and liabilities),
including assumptions concerning the amount and timing of estimated future cash flows and discount rates. In determining those
unobservable inputs, the company uses observable external market inputs such as interest rate yield curves, currency rates, and
price and rate volatilities, as applicable, to develop assumptions regarding those unobservable inputs.
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The following table summarizes the valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement

Level 3 financial instruments:

(MILLIONS)
Type of Asset/Liability

Significant

Unobservable Input(s)

Relationship of Unobservable
Input(s) to Fair Value

Fixed income securities and

Warrants (common shares and
WAITANES) ...veneverenrenirenennenes

Limited-life funds (subsidiary
equity obligations)................

Derivative assets/Derivative
liabilities (accounts
receivable/payable)..............

Carrying Value Valuation
Dec. 31,2016 Technique(s)
291 Discounted cash
flows
1,273  Black-Scholes
model
1,387 Discounted cash
flows
157/ Discounted cash
(62) flows

Future cash flows

Discount rate

Volatility

Future cash flows

Discount rate

Terminal
capitalization rate

Investment horizon

Future cash flows

Forward exchange
rates (from
observable forward
exchange rates at the
end of the reporting
period)

Discount rate

* Increases (decreases) in
future cash flows increase
(decrease) fair value

Increases (decreases) in
discount rate decrease
(increase) fair value

Increases (decreases) in
volatility increase (decrease)
fair value

Increases (decreases) in
future cash flows increase
(decrease) fair value

Increases (decreases) in
discount rate decrease
(increase) fair value

Increases (decreases) in
terminal capitalization

rate decrease (increase) fair
value

Increases (decreases) in the
investment horizon increase
(decrease) fair value

Increases (decreases) in
future cash flows increase
(decrease) fair value

Increases (decreases) in the
forward exchange rate
increase (decrease) fair value

¢ Increases (decreases) in
discount rate decrease
(increase) fair value

The following table presents the change in the balance of financial assets and liabilities classified as Level 3 as at December 31,

2016 and 2015:
Financial Financial
Assets Liabilities
{ﬁﬁg{(‘)ﬁ\l‘gf“‘s ENDED DEC. 31 2016 2015 2016 2015
Balance, beginning of Year...........cccveoirireireiinirereeee e $ 1,691 § 3,627 $ 1,261 § 1,429
Fair value changes in Net iNCOME ........c.ccovrereuirinieueerinieierirerieieereerereeseneenenens (102) 134 48 (50)
Fair value changes in other comprehensive INCOME oo, 12) 2) 35 (104)
Additions, net 0f dISPOSALS.....c.couerieirieiriirieirieeee e 162 (2,068) 105 (14)
Balance, end of YEar ........ccueviiiiiiriririceee e $ 1,739 § 1,691 $ 1,449 §$ 1,261

1. Includes foreign currency translation
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The following table categorizes liabilities measured at amortized cost, but for which fair values are disclosed:

2016 2015
f}jlﬁlgﬁgﬂ Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Corporate DOTTOWINGS......ccvevververririeieieieienienee $ 4,771 $ — 3 — S 4229 $ — 3 —
Property-specific mortgages........c.cocvveverereruenne 1,360 16,724 35,428 583 14,205 32,293
Subsidiary borrowings............ccecveveeververuenvennene 2,872 2,451 2,780 3,246 2,252 2,878
Subsidiary equity obligations ........c..cccceevevvenenne. — — 2,128 — — 2,057

Fair values for Level 2 and Level 3 liabilities measured at amortized cost but for which fair values are disclosed are determined
using valuation techniques such as adjusted public pricing and discounted cash flows.

d) Hedging Activities

The company uses derivatives and non-derivative financial instruments to manage or maintain exposures to interest, currency,
credit and other market risks. For certain derivatives which are used to manage exposures, the company determines whether hedge
accounting can be applied. When hedge accounting may be applied, a hedge relationship may be designated as a fair value hedge,
cash flow hedge or a hedge of foreign currency exposure of a net investment in a foreign operation. To qualify for hedge accounting,
the derivative must be highly effective inaccomplishing the objective of offsetting changes in the fair value or cash flows attributable
to the hedged risk both at inception and over the life of the hedge. If it is determined that the derivative is not highly effective as
a hedge, hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively.

i.  Cash Flow Hedges

The company uses the following cash flow hedges: energy derivative contracts to hedge the sale of power; interest rate swaps to
hedge the variability in cash flows or future cash flows related to a variable rate asset or liability; and equity derivatives to hedge
long-term compensation arrangements. For the year ended December 31, 2016, pre-tax net unrealized gains of $149 million (2015
— $197 million) were recorded in other comprehensive income for the effective portion of the cash flow hedges. As at December 31,
2016, there was an unrealized derivative asset balance of $260 million relating to derivative contracts designated as cash flow
hedges (2015 — $86 million liability). The unrealized gains on cash flow hedges are expected to be realized in net income by 2025.

ii. Net Investment Hedges

The company uses foreign exchange contracts and foreign currency denominated debt instruments to manage its foreign currency
exposures arising from net investments in foreign operations. For the year ended December 31, 2016, unrealized pre-tax net gains
of $129 million (2015 — $75 million) were recorded in other comprehensive income for the effective portion of hedges of net
investments in foreign operations. As at December 31, 2016, there was an unrealized derivative asset balance of $236 million
relating to derivative contracts designated as net investment hedges (2015 — $31 million).

e) Netting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset with the net amount reported in the Consolidated Balance Sheets where the company
currently has a legally enforceable right to offset and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

The company enters into derivative transactions under International Swaps and Derivatives Association (ISDA) master netting
agreements. In general, under such agreements the amounts owed by each counterparty on a single day are aggregated into a single
net amount that is payable by one party to the other. The agreements provide the company with the legal and enforceable right to
offset these amounts and accordingly the following balances are presented net in the consolidated financial statements:

Accounts Receivable Accounts Payable

and Other and Other
Eﬁlfglggg-)“ 2016 2015 2016 2015
Gross amounts of financial instruments before netting ...........cecceeeevverieneninienenieeeene $ 1,625 $ 1,429 $ 1,186 $ 2310
Gross amounts of financial instruments set-off in Consolidated Balance Sheets........... (124) (188) (154) (165)
Net amount of financial instruments in Consolidated Balance Sheets............cccceeneeeee. $ 1,501 $ 1241 $ 1,032 $ 2145

No financial instruments that were subject to master netting agreements or for which collateral has been posted were not set off
in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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7. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER

fﬁléglgﬁgfl Note 2016 2015
ACCOUNLS TECEIVADIE ....ovivieiiiieictieeeetcee ettt re e (a) $ 4,294 $ 3,384
Prepaid expenses and other asSets........c.coveveriririeieiieiieesesesereeeetee e (a) 3,448 2,361
Restricted cash (b) 1,004 944
Sustainable resources (c) 387 355
TOtAL ...t $ 9,133 $ 7,044

The current and non-current balances of accounts receivable and other are as follows:

f‘,\jléglgﬁg‘)“ 2016 2015
CUITENE ..ttt ettt ettt et et et e st e st e et e e teebeeseeseesbessassa s e saeseesaessessessessessessessasseaseeseassessessessansassassanns $ 6,490 $ 4,746
INODECUITENE ...ttt ettt e et e et e e et e e ete e e etteeeateeeteeeeseeeeaseeeseeeesseeesseeeseeeseeens 2,643 2,298
TOLALL ..ottt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt e e beeteeteeteeteesb e st e b et et et e beeaeeateatent et ensereete e $ 9,133 $ 7,044

a) Accounts Receivable and Other Assets

Acquisitions throughout the year increased the balance by $1.0 billion, particularly from our Colombian hydro plants, North
American gas storage business and our Peruvian toll roads. Our private equity operations increased approximately $300 million
primarily due to increased project volumes in our construction services and facilities management business. Accounts receivable
includes $302 million (2015 — $207 million) of unrealized mark-to-market gains on energy sales contracts and $663 million (2015
— $322 million) of completed contracts and work-in-progress related to contracted sales from the company’s residential
development operations.

b) Restricted Cash

Restricted cash primarily relates to the company’s property, renewable power, private equity and residential development financing
arrangements including defeasement of debt obligations, debt service accounts and deposits held by the company’s insurance
operations.

¢) Sustainable Resources

The company held 1.7 million acres of consumable freehold timberlands at December 31,2016 (2015 — 1.7 million), representing
40.8 million cubic metres (2015 — 34.6 million) of mature timber and available for harvest. Additionally, the company provides
management services to approximately 1.3 million acres (2015 — 1.3 million) of licensed timberlands.

The following table presents the change in the balance of timberlands and other agricultural assets:

(iczﬁ THE SSZARS ENDED DEC. 31 2016 2015
Balance, beginning Of YEAT .....c..ccuiiuiriiriiiiieieeeet ettt sttt nee e $ 355 § 446
Additions, Net OF dISPOSALS......cueriiriirtiriietieieietet ettt sttt ettt e e 58 7
Fair value adjuStMENntS ........cccieiiriiriiiiieeieteecee ettt ettt b e et e e e s eaensennens 30 34
DeCrease dUE 10 NATVEST ....cueiieieieietietietieteeet ettt ettt e besbesseeseesaesaeseesaensensensansens (76) (68)
FOreign CUITENCY CRANZES .....eveuiiiiieiiieiieieiet ettt ettt ebe s 20 (64)
Balance, €nd OF YEAT .......c.oiuiiiiieiiie ettt $ 387 § 355
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The carrying values are based on external appraisals that are completed annually as at December 31. The appraisals utilize a
combination of the discounted cash flow and sales comparison approaches to arrive at the estimated value. The significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3) included in the discounted cash flow models used when determining the fair value of standing
timber and agricultural assets include:

Valuation Significant Relationship of Unobservable Input(s)
Technique(s) Unobservable Input(s) to Fair Value Mitigating Factors
Discounted  Future cash flows * Increases (decreases) in future cash ¢ Increases (decreases) in cash flows tend to
cash flow flows increase be accompanied by increases (decreases) in
analysis discount rates that may offset changes in
fair value from cash flows
* Timber/Agricultural * Increases (decreases) in price increase * Increases (decreases) in discount rates tend
prices (decrease) fair value to be accompanied by increases (decreases)
in cash flows that may offset changes in fair
value from discount rates
* Discount rate/ * Increases (decreases) in discountrateor ¢ Decreases  (increases) in  terminal
terminal terminal capitalization rate decrease capitalization rates tend to be accompanied
capitalization rate (increase) fair value by increases (decreases) in cash flows that

may offset changes in fair value from
terminal capitalization rates

Key valuation assumptions include a weighted-average discount and terminal capitalization rate of 5.9% (2015 — 5.9%), and
terminal valuation dates of 30 years (2015 — 30 years). Timber and agricultural asset prices were based on a combination of forward
prices available in the market and price forecasts.

8. INVENTORY

G\,S[I*L“Elggg-) 31 2016 2015
Residential properties under deVelOPMENL...........c.cviruerierieriiriieieieieteteiest e e e re e saeaesennens $ 2,215 $ 1,837
Land held for development 1,609 1,806
Completed residential PrOPETLIES ...........ceeveeeeeeieereeteeteete ettt et et e e s et e e eteete e ere s eseseeseeseereens 952 747
Industrial products and OthET ..........c.ccceciiiiiiieriiiiireceeeetee ettt et reese e esaessensens 573 891
TOTAL. ...ttt ettt e ettt ettt r ettt ne et ea e nenean $ 5349 $ 5,281
The current and non-current balances of inventory are as follows:

ﬁlfglgﬁg-)“ 2016 2015
(1 1s (o | SRR $ 2,987 $ 3,198
INODIECUITENE ...ttt et e ettt e et e enaeeeeaeeeeateeenaeeseaeeeenseesnseeeseeeeneeesnseessneens 2,362 2,083
TOAL. ..ttt t ettt et et ae et ettt at et e bt b et ete e ene b e et ete s ere et et ete s ereebe s enis $ 5349 $ 5,281

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the company recognized as an expense $4.7 billion (2015 — $4.0 billion) of inventory
relating to cost of goods sold and $85 million (2015 — $83 million) relating to impairments of inventory. The carrying amount of
inventory pledged as security at December 31, 2016 was $2.4 billion (2015 — $2.3 billion).
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9. HELD FOR SALE

The following is a summary of the assets and liabilities that were classified as held for sale as at December 31, 2016 and
December 31, 2015:

Private Equity 2016 2015
?Ailﬁ[lgﬁg}zl Property and Other Total Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents........c..cocceceeieieiienenenenenne e $ — 3 8 $ 8 3 8
Accounts receivables and Other .........eeeeeeeeeeeeeie e 1 133 134 70
Investment properties 146 19 165 775
Property, plant and equipmMent.........c.coceveveerreereirnrerecenneecnenereeenes — 58 58 542
Other 1ong-term aSSELS.......c.ccuvuiuiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiccrceeee — 67 67 2
Assets classified as held for sale........ooeveriereniriniieieieeeeeeee $ 147 $ 285 $ 432 3 1,397
Liabilities -
Accounts payable and other $ 1 3 66 $ 67 $ 69
Property-specific mortgages 60 — 60 430
Deferred income tax Habilities .........ccooveireiiiinieineecieeseeee — — — 23

Liabilities associated with assets classified as held for sale ................. $ 61 $ 66 $ 127 $ 522

The company classified the following significant asset groups or investments as held for sale:
a) Property

As at December 31, 2016 a subsidiary of the company classified two industrial assets in France, a portfolio of multifamily
assets in the United States and seven triple net lease assets in the United States, as held for sale assets. The company intends
to sell controlling interests in these properties to third parties in the next 12 months.

b) Private Equity

As at December 31, 2016, assets held for sale by our private equity operations included a bath and shower manufacturer. In January
2017, together with its institutional partners, the company sold the 100% interest for gross proceeds of approximately $400 million
before transaction and other costs.
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10. EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTMENTS

The following table presents the voting interests and carrying values of the company’s investments in associates and joint ventures,
all of which are accounted for using the equity method:

Investment Voting Interest Carrying Value
f}\,sllfglggg-)“ Type 2016 2015 2016 2015
Property
General Growth Properties.........ccoouevveviiiiiiininiiiiiiiiicics Associate 29% 29% $ 7453 § 7,215
Canary Wharf ..........cooiiiiiiic Joint Venture 50% 50% 2,866 3,400
Manhattan West, New YOrk! ......coooverurrereerrieeeeceeeiesecees e Joint Venture 56% 56% 1,214 1,073
Other property joint Ventures' ........c..coouevevvrieverrieissserssresesnnen. Joint Venture 12-90% 13 —83% 3,651 3,929
Other property NVEStMENtS' ........c.covververieriereiseeieeriseeiseeiseeieeeiees Associate 19-90% 23 -90% 1,444 1,877
16,628 17,494
Renewable power
Other renewable pOWer INVEStMENLS «....c.coveveverueerrienieeniereieeeaeaes Associate 14-50% 14—-50% 206 197
Infrastructure
Brazilian toll road' Associate 57% 49% 1,703 944
South American transmission OPerations ...........c.eeeeveeveeveereeneennnne. Associate 28% 28% 699 651
North American natural gas transmission operations..................... Joint Venture 50% 50% 806 425
Brazilian rail and port Operations ...........ccccoeevrereeereieeneeneeenens Associate 27% 27% 901 622
European communications business..........ccceevevevvevievieiiniiiiinnnns Associate 45% 31% 1,313 1,106
Australian ports OPEration .........c.cceevriiiiiiiiiiinienieicie s Associate 50% — 693 —
Other infrastructure investments Associate 11-50% 11-50% 1,231 942
7,346 4,690
Other joint VEIIUTES vt Joint Venture 15-95% 17 -95% 631 769
Other INVESIMENtS' .......ovuuriiereiicciiceceecese s Associate 9-89% 28-50% 166 66
TOAL vvververever v s esses et s s s s s s bbb bbbt $ 24977 $ 23216

1. Includes investments in which the company’s ownership interest is greater than 50% represent investments in equity accounted joint ventures or associates where control
is either shared or does not exist resulting in the investment being equity accounted

The following table presents the change in the balance of investments in associates and joint ventures:

FQEI%ENE;EARS ENDED DEC. 31 2016 2015
Balance, beginning Of YEAT.........cceeiririiueiinirieieiirccereect ettt $ 23,216 $ 14,916
Additions, net of disposals (including reclassifications to and from held for sale) 660 7,503
Acquisitions through business COmbINAtIONS ..........c.ccivirieiiiiiriiiiiiiereeeeee e 115 74
SNATE OF NET INCOMIE......eveeiieiieiieieietesteet ettt ettt e e e e teeteesae b essessessesseeseeseeseessessessessensesseeseessessenes 1,293 1,695
Share of other comprehensive IMNCOME ..........ccoeuirieiriiiiiiiieireeere et 430 515
DIStIDULIONS TECEIVEA .....euiiiinieiirieiiiteieee sttt ettt ettt ettt sttt eaes (675) (480)
FOI@IZN €XCRANEE ... .cviuieiiieiiitiie ettt ettt b et b e b e ee (62) (1,007)
Balance, €Nd Of YA .......c.ooiiiiiiriieiiiiriec ettt bbbt $ 24,977 $ 23,216
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The following table presents current and non-current assets as well as current and non-current liabilities of the company’s
investments in associates and joint ventures:

2016 2015
Non- Non- Non- Non-
AS AT DEC. 31 Current Current Current Current Current Current Current Current
(MILLIONS) Assets Assets  Liabilities  Liabilities Assets Assets  Liabilities  Liabilities
Property
General Growth Properties................ $ 1,547 $38460 $ 2,540 $ 12,656 $ 2,390 $ 44,126 $ 1,130 $ 21,544
Canary Wharf ... 776 11,641 461 6,224 853 12,643 896 5,799
Manhattan West, New York.............. 244 3,374 733 718 251 2,681 71 945
Other property joint ventures and
TVESHMENTS o vvvveveeeeeeeeveeeeeeeeereesians 657 20,986 2,119 6,908 1,223 24,962 2,110 9,407
Renewable power
Other renewable power investments . 45 934 42 532 45 913 37 533
Infrastructure
Brazilian toll road........c.ccocceeneninnnee 263 4,977 823 1,665 230 3,745 656 1,636
South American transmission
OPETAtIONS ....vevvviriiiiciciceicicn 221 5,519 142 3,234 148 5,150 333 2,814
North American natural gas
transmission operations................... 122 5,767 1,353 2,925 136 5,565 226 4,623
Brazilian rail and port operations ...... 460 5,265 674 1,645 512 3,386 164 1,324
European communications business.. 328 5,437 443 2,528 416 4,790 370 2,421
Australian ports operation ................. 171 2,166 66 1,229 — _ _ _
Other infrastructure investments ....... 360 4,378 515 1,827 284 3,586 212 1,738
Other.....oovoieiieiiceeeece e 1,640 3,909 775 3,571 1,846 3,394 1,152 3,328

$ 6,834 $112,813 $ 10,686 §$ 45,662 § 8334 $114941 $ 7357 § 56,112

Certain of the company’s investments in associates are subject to restrictions over the extent to which they can remit funds to the
company in the form of cash dividends, or repayment of loans and advances as a result of borrowing arrangements, regulatory
restrictions and other contractual requirements.
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The following table presents total revenues, net income, and other comprehensive income (“OCI”) of the company’s investments
in associates and joint ventures and dividends received by the company from these investments:

2016 2015

{I\?&H_(I)%\I\SIEARS ENDEDDEC. 31 Revenue Incol\rlrftte OCI Revenue IncoI\rIr::et OCI
Property

General Growth PrOperties .......coeeeucueuevriiueueiriniecuenrececuennenes $ 2427 $ 1,735 $ 4 $ 3208 $ 1857 § (12)

Canary Wharf.........occociviviinininciiiecceeeneeecee e 654 19 “) 606 1,004 (102)

Manhattan West, New York......ccoevveeveeveeriieneenennne 78 188 — 12 21 _

Other property joint ventures and investments..............cccco..... 1,727 1,110 34 2,054 3,050 168
Renewable power

Other renewable power INVeStments.........c.occeveeevevieevveennennnn. 74 — 18 89 19 76
Infrastructure

Brazilian toll road ..........coovveiiiiiiiiiiniiiie 766 185 382 758 (12) 4

South American transmission operations. 433 38 217 432 75 229

North American natural gas transmission operations.............. 573 133 5 522 (29) —

Brazilian rail and port Operations ............coceeeeveieieveiiieieeninnnn 1,024 70 976 1,074 136 313

European communications business ..........ccecevveveeveeiieiiencnienns 767 121 376 579 62 72

Australian ports Operation............cceeueeeiviiiciiiiniiiinieecnnes 164 31 (81) _ _ _

Other infrastructure iNVEStMENts. ........ccvevevveviiieeerinieiiieiencens 1,091 54 280 947 94 212
OBNET .ttt 1,595 174 (136) 933 (106) 199
TOTAL .ttt $11,373 $ 3,796 $ 2,071 $ 11214 § 6,171 $ 1,159

The following table presents distributions from equity accounted investments by operating segments:

{ﬁﬁz{—({)}%\l\é)EARS ENDED DEC. 31 2016 2015
PIOPEILY ..ttt ettt ettt ettt a e sa e st sae et ene $ 508 $ 270
RENEWADIE POWET ...t 6 19
INETASIIUCTUTE ...ttt ettt ettt ettt e e e e b e bt eb e eatesten s et ensesestessesseeneeneans 85 126
Private equity and Other .........oouiiiiiiiiiiee ettt 76 65

$ 675 $ 480

Certain of the company’s investments are publicly listed entities with active pricing in a liquid market. The fair value based on
the publicly listed price of these equity accounted investments in comparison to the company’s carrying value is as follows:

2016 2015
&S{Ifglggg')}l Public Price Car{’):;llllllge Public Price Car\r/}:ﬁl%:
General Growth Properties..........ccoeveereineneineeeneceeeees $ 6,379 $ 7,453 $ 6,948 $ 7,215
ROUSE PrOPerties.......cc.cevuiieuirieiiiiieiiieeieeeeeceeseeeee e — — 282 380
OMhET .. 44 — 39 2
$ 6,423 § 7453 $ 7,269 $ 7,597

At December 31, 2016, the company performed a review to determine whether there is any objective evidence that the investment
in GGP is impaired. As a result of this review, management determined that there is no objective evidence of impairment of GGP
at December 31, 2016.
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11. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The following table presents the change in the fair value of investment properties, all of which are considered Level 3 within the
fair value hierarchy:

fﬁIRL THE \S’§EARS ENDED DEC. 31 2016 2015
Fair value, beginning Of YEAT ..........ccceciiiirieiiiiieiiieesteeteete ettt b e s se b seane $ 47,164 $ 46,083
AUQAIEIONS ...ttt ettt ettt s bt s et e b e s et et s etes e e b et ese s esese st st et en s es s e s ene s esenenesene 1,576 2,812
Acquisitions through business COMDINALIONS............c.ccoevievierierieierieieeteereere e ere e ere e eeeeseereeseereereereennas 9,234 4,120
Disposals and reclassified to assets held for Sale............cooiiieiicieieeeccecececeeeeeeeee e (4,612) (5,924)
Fair value ChANGES ......ccicuiiuieiicieieeeeeee ettt ettt ettt et et e s teeteeseeseesbessebebesbesseeseeseas 960 2,275
Foreign currency transSlation ..............ccoceeuieuieeeeeiceiciteeteeteeteete ettt et ereereereereeseess e s eseesesseeseereereenean (150) (2,202)
Fair value, €Nd O YEAT ........ccveiiiiieiiicieicee ettt b et b s b sa s sese s ssesenee $ 54,172 $ 47,164

Investment properties include the company’s office, retail, multifamily, industrial and other properties as well as higher-and-better-
use land within the company’s sustainable resource operations. Investment properties generated $4.1 billion (2015 — $3.8 billion)
inrental income, and incurred $1.6 billion (2015 —$1.6 billion) in direct operating expenses. Our investment properties are pledged
as collateral for the non-recourse mortgages at their respective properties.

The following table presents our investment properties measured at fair value:

ﬁléglgﬁgﬂ 2016 2015
Core office
United States $ 16,529 $ 17,580
(4 Ta TR OPPRRRPRON 4,613 4,340
AUSITALIA ..ottt et e e e et e et e e at e e et e e et e s ae e e et e e et e e sate e et e e saeesaaeeeaaaeeaas 2,112 2,504
BUTODEC. ...ttt et ettt et e et eete e ete e be et e e beebeeabeerbe et e e aeeeteeereeaaeeas 1,830 2,027
BIAZIL ...t b et b et b et b ettt eneaaene 315 224

Opportunistic and other

Opportunistic office 5,853 2,565
OPPOTTUNISTIC TEEALL.....cuvetitieiietieiietet ettt et et et et e st e e teetaesaessessessessessaeseeseeseessensensensensensas 4,217 916
TIAUSIIIAL. ...ttt et e et e et eeeat e e eateeeateseateesaseesaeesenaeesaseeseseesenneesnaeesnes 2,678 2,377
IMIUTEFAIMILY ¢ttt ettt ettt b e e eaenes 3,574 4,458
TEIPLE NEL LEASC......eivieieiiiceietcece ettt ettt ettt b et et et ete b e st ese s essesessete s eseesens 4,790 4,608
Self-storage 1,624 —
STUACNE NOUSING ......cvvievieiiictectecteet ettt ettt ettt et ea et et e et eteeteeteeas et et e eseeseessersessersensensensenseerearens 649 —
Other INVESMENT PIOPEITIES ......cvivivieriieriererietiiereeteeetestereete e esesseseesessesessessesessesessessesesessesessesessesessenes 5,388 5,565

$ 54,172 S 47,164
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Significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) are utilized when determining the fair value of investment properties. The significant

Level 3 inputs include:

Valuation

Technique(s) Input(s)

Significant Unobservable

Relationship of

Unobservable Input(s) to
Fair Value

Mitigating Factor(s)

Discounted cash
flow analysis

 Discount rate

+ Future cash flows
primarily driven by net
operating income

* Increases (decreases) in

» Terminal capitalization

rate

future cash flows increase
(decrease) fair value

Increases (decreases) in
discount rate decrease
(increase) fair value

Increases (decreases) in
terminal capitalization rate
decrease (increase) fair

* Increases (decreases) in cash flows tend to be

accompanied by increases (decreases) in
discount rates that may offset changes in fair
value from cash flows

Increases (decreases) in discount rates tend to
be accompanied by increases (decreases) in
cash flows that may offset changes in fair value
from discount rates

Decreases (increases) in terminal
capitalization rates tend to be accompanied by
increases (decreases) in cash flows that may
offset changes in fair value from terminal
capitalization rates

In addition to the above, the company’s investment properties are diversified across asset type, asset class, geography and markets.
As such, there may be mitigating factors, such as changes to these assumptions that vary in direction and magnitude across these

geographies and markets.

The following table presents our investment properties measured at fair value:

AS AT DEC. 31
Core office
United States

Opportunistic and other

Opportunistic office .........ccccceneene
Opportunistic retail .......................

Industrial

Multifamily .......ccooeeiiieieieiennns
Triple net lease.........cccoceeeveennene
Self-Storage ........ccovveervevrreeerenns
Student housing..........cccccecvevennenne.

Other investment properties

2016 2015

Terminal Terminal
Capitalization Investment Capitalization Investment
Discount Rate Rate Horizon (years) Discount Rate Rate Horizon (years)
6.8% 5.6% 12 6.9% 5.7% 12
6.2% 5.5% 10 6.1% 5.5% 10
7.3% 6.1% 10 7.6% 6.2% 10
6.0% 5.0% 12 6.0% 5.1% 12
9.3% 7.5% 10 9.3% 7.5% 10
9.9% 7.6% 7 11.5% 8.3% 6
10.2% 8.1% 12 11.3% 8.5% 10
7.4% 6.6% 10 7.6% 6.8% 10
4.9% n/a n/a 5.1% n/a n/a
6.1% n/a n/a 6.3% n/a n/a
6.2% n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
5.9% n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
5.4% n/a n/a 5.3% n/a n/a
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The company’s property, plant and equipment relates to the operating segments as shown below:

Renewable Private Equity
Power (a) Infrastructure (b) Property (c) and Other (d) Total
AT DEG 31 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
COSLS eovveereeererresereersesnees $18,031 $10950 $ 8,045 $ 6,725 $ 5783 $ 5300 $ 5268 $ 5309 $37,127 $ 28,284
Accumulated fair value
changes ...........ccocueue. 12,298 11,650 2,690 2,513 694 612 (243) (231) 15,439 14,544
Accumulated
depreciation ................ (3,776)  (2.862)  (1,190) (900) (825) (596)  (1,429)  (1,197)  (7,220)  (5,555)
Total v $26,553 $19,738 $ 9,545 $ 8338 $ 5652 $ 5316 $ 3,596 $ 3,881 $45,346 $ 37,273

1. The accumulated fair value changes for private equity and other represent accumulated impairment charges, as assets in these segments are carried at amortized cost

Renewable Power, Infrastructure and Property segments carry property plant and equipment assets at fair value, classified as Level
3 in the fair value hierarchy due to the use of significant unobservable inputs when determining fair value. Private Equity and
other segments carry property plant and equipment assets at amortized cost. As at December 31, 2016, $29.6 billion (2015 —
$25.1 billion) of property, plant and equipment were pledged as collateral for the property debt at their respective properties.

a) Renewable Power

Our renewable power property, plant and equipment consists of the following:

Hydroelectric
and Other Wind Energy Total
gﬁlﬁagﬁgf' 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Cost, beginning of YEar .........ccccerveieririeiireierieeetee e $ 7,738 §$ 7,997 $ 3,212 $ 3,079 $10,950 $11,076
Additions, net of disposals and assets reclassified as held for sale.. 267 191 65 623 332 814
Acquisitions through business combinations.............c..cocveveveernennnn 5,731 537 10 (238) 5,741 299
Foreign currency translation ...........cccceevevverienenieieeeiecieiesieseniens 1,006 987) 2 (252) 1,008 (1,239)
Cost, €Nd OF YEAL .....cviiiviiictietieteeeeet et 14,742 7,738 3,289 3,212 18,031 10,950
Accumulated fair value changes, beginning of year ....................... 11,089 10,877 561 657 11,650 11,534
Fair value changes...........cccoceeveeiieuiericicicceeeeeee e 133 1,283 184 41 317 1,324
Dispositions and assets reclassified as held for sale ............c........... — — — 4) — @)
Foreign currency translation and other ............cccoccvevvevievievievenenenns 309 (1,071) 22 (133) 331 (1,204)
Accumulated fair value changes, end of year.............ccccoevvevveenennenn. 11,531 11,089 767 561 12,298 11,650

Accumulated depreciation, beginning of year (2,298) (2,187) (564) (453)  (2,862) (2,640)

Depreciation EXPENSES........c.eeveeueereereeeeierreereereeseeseeseeseesesessessessenns (603) (411) (200) (201) (803) (612)

Dispositions and assets reclassified as held for sale ............c........... 13 — 1 37 14 37
Foreign currency translation and other ............cccccvevvevieviecienienenenns (125) 300 — 53 (V)] 353
Accumulated depreciation, end of year.............cccceeeeievievieviennennenns (3,013) (2,298) (763) (564) (3,776) (2,862)
Balance, end of Year........ccooeeiririeeiieeee e $23,260 $16,529 $ 3,293 § 3,209 $26,553 $19,738
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The following table presents our renewable power property, plant and equipment measured at fair value:

z*h/sﬂfglgﬁg}“ 2016 2015
INOTTR AINIETICA. ...ttt et e e et e et e e e e e e s e e e eaeeeeaeeeeaeesseeeeaeeesneesseesensesssseesineesanes $ 17,132 § 16,339
2,893 2,198
5275 —
1,253 1,201

$ 26,553 $ 19,738

1. Colombian property, plant and equipment were acquired in 2016 and are carried at the acquisition value less depreciation; thus, Colombia has been excluded from all
valuation-related tables below.

Renewable power assets are accounted for under the revaluation model and the most recent date of revaluation was December 31,
2016. Valuations utilize significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) when determining the fair value of renewable power assets. The
significant Level 3 inputs include:

Valuation Significant Relationship of Unobservable Input(s)
Technique(s) Unobservable Input(s)  to Fair Value Mitigating Factor(s)
Discounted cash * Future cash flows — * Increases (decreases) in future cash ¢ Increases (decreases) in cash flows
flow analysis primarily driven by flows increase (decrease) fair value tend to be accompanied by increases
future electricity price (decreases) in discount rates that may
assumptions offset changes in fair value from cash
flows
* Discount rate * Increases (decreases) in discount rate ¢ Increases(decreases)indiscountrates
decrease (increase) fair value tend to be accompanied by increases
(decreases) in cash flows that may
offset changes in fair value from
discount rates
* Terminal * Increases (decreases) in terminal ¢ Decreases (increases) in terminal
capitalization rate capitalization rate decrease (increase) capitalization rates tend to be
fair value accompanied by increases

(decreases) in cash flows that may
offset changes in fair value from
terminal capitalization rates

The company’s estimate of future renewable power pricing is based on management’s estimate of the cost of securing new energy
from renewable sources to meet future demand by 2023 (Dec. 31, 2015 — 2023), which will maintain system reliability and
provide adequate levels of reserve generations.

Key valuation metrics of the company’s hydro and wind generating facilities at the end of 2016 and 2015 are summarized below.

North America Brazil Europe
AS AT DEC. 31 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Discount rate
Contracted .......coceevereerreenene 4.8% —5.5%  4.7% —5.4% 9.2% 92% 4.1% —-5.0% 5.0%
Uncontracted .........coceerernnnene. 6.6% —7.2%  6.4%—-17.1% 10.5% 10.5% 5.9% —6.8% 6.8%
Terminal capitalization rate' ..... 6.3% —-6.9%  6.3%—-6.9% n/a n/a n/a n/a
Exitdate ......cooeeiveeeieiieiee 2036 2035 2031 2033 2031 2031

1. Terminal capitalization rate applies only to hydroelectric assets in in North America

Terminal values are included in the valuation of hydroelectric assets in the United States and Canada. For the hydroelectric assets
in Brazil, cash flows have been included based on the duration of the authorization or useful life of a concession asset without
consideration of potential renewal value. The weighted-average remaining duration at December 31, 2016 is 15 years (2015 —
18 years). Consequently, there is no terminal value attributed to the hydroelectric assets in Brazil.
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The following table summarizes the percentage of total generation contracted under power purchase agreements, the power prices
from long-term power purchase agreements that are linked specifically to the related power generating assets and the estimates
of future electricity prices:

Power Prices from Long-

Total Generation Contracted Term Power Purchase Estimates of Future
under Power Purchase Agreements Electricity Prices
Agreements (weighted average) (weighted average)
AS AT DECEMBER 31,2016 I-10years 11-20years 1—10years 11-20years 1—10years 11-20 years
North America (prices in US$/MWh). 37% 18% 93 104 69 127

Brazil (prices in R$/MWh)
Europe (prices in €/MWh)

b) Infrastructure

Our infrastructure property, plant and equipment consists of the following:

Sustainable
Utilities (i) Transport (i) Energy (i) Resources (ii) Total

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DEC. 31
(MILLIONS) 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Cost, beginning of year.............cccocevvevererrieereerennns $2,945 $3,122 $1,953 $2,187 $1,487 $1,653 $ 340 $ 480 $6,725 $7,442
Additions, net of disposals and assets reclassified

as held forsale.........coooveiiiviieciceieecceee 367 127 78 134 89 (72) 5 4 539 193
Acquisitions through business combinations........... — — 242 — 825 — — — 1,067 —
Foreign currency translation ..............ccccccoevevevennen. (418) (304) 88 (368) (19) (94) 63 (144) (286) 910)

Cost, end Of YEar ........ccccuvieeririiciirccence e 2,894 2945 2,361 1,953 2,382 1,487 408 340 8,045 6,725

Accumulated fair value changes, beginning of year 946 729 973 725 209 210 385 519 2,513 2,183

Fair value changes.............ccccoveevnicicnnccrenccennes 184 392 25 62 123 180 56 20 388 654
Dispositions and assets reclassified as held for sale — (111) — — — (150) — — — (261)
Foreign currency translation and other .................... (86) (64) (216) 186 19 (31) 72 (154) (211) (63)
Accumulated fair value changes, end of year .......... 1,044 946 782 973 351 209 513 385 2,690 2,513
Accumulated depreciation, beginning of year......... (291) (214) (418) (210) 172) (118) 19) (22) (900) (564)
Depreciation Xpense............cevvereevevvereereererveeenenns (128) (138) 126) (110) 99) (82) 19) ®) 372) (338)
Dispositions and assets reclassified as held for sale 1 48 1 — — 53 1 2 3 103
Foreign currency translation and other .................... 34 13 26 98) 13 (25) 6 9 79 (101)
Accumulated depreciation, end of year ................... (384) (291) (517)  (418) (258) (172) @3y (19) (@1,190)  (900)
Balance, end of year..........ccccooeernicennccenccennes $3,554 $3,600 $2,626 $2,508 $2,475 $1,524 $ 890 § 706 $9,545 $8,338

i.  Infrastructure — Utilities, Transport and Energy

Infrastructure's PP&E assets are accounted for under the revaluation model, and the most recent date of revaluation was
December 31, 2016. The company determined fair value to be the current replacement cost. The company’s utility assets consist
of terminals and energy transmission and distribution networks, which are operated primarily under regulated rate base
arrangements. In the company’s transport operations, the PP&E assets consist of railroads, toll roads and ports. For PP&E in the
energy operations, the assets are comprised of energy transmission, distribution and storage and district energy assets.
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Valuations for infrastructure's utilities, transport and energy assets utilize significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) when

determining the fair value of utility assets. The significant Level 3 inputs include:

Valuation
Technique(s)

Significant
Unobservable Input(s)

Relationship of Unobservable Input(s)
to Fair Value

Mitigating Factor(s)

Discounted cash * Future cash flows

flow analysis

* Increases (decreases) in future cash
flows increase (decrease) fair value

 Discount rate * Increases (decreases) in discount rate

decrease (increase) fair value

» Terminal
capitalization rate

* Increases (decreases) in terminal
capitalization rate decrease (increase)
fair value

* Investment horizon * Increases (decreases) in the investment

horizon decrease (increase) fair value

ii. Infrastructure — Sustainable Resources

* Increases (decreases) in cash flows
tend to be accompanied by increases
(decreases) in discount rates that may
offset changes in fair value from cash
flows

* Increases (decreases) in discount rates
tend to be accompanied by increases
(decreases) in cash flows that may
offset changes in fair value from
discount rates

» Decreases (increases) in terminal
capitalization rates tend to be
accompanied by increases
(decreases) in cash flows that may
offset changes in fair value from
terminal capitalization rates

* Increases (decreases) in the
investment horizon tend to be
the result of changing cash flow
profiles that may result in higher
(lower) growth in cash flows prior to
stabilizing in the terminal year

Sustainable resources assets represent timberlands and other agricultural land. Investment properties within our sustainable resource
operations are accounted for under the revaluation model and the most recent date of revaluation was December 31, 2016.

Valuations utilize significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) when determining the fair value of sustainable resource assets. The

significant Level 3 inputs include:

Valuation Significant Relationship of Unobservable Input(s)
Technique(s) Unobservable Input(s)  to Fair Value Mitigating Factor(s)
Discounted cash * Future cash flows — * Increases (decreases) in future cash ¢ Increases (decreases) in cash flows

flow analysis primarily driven by
avoided cost or future

replacement value

flows increase (decrease) fair value

 Discount rate * Increases (decreases) in discount rate

decrease (increase) fair value

» Terminal * Increases (decreases) in terminal

capitalization rate capitalization rate decrease (increase)
fair value

+ Exit date * Increases (decreases) in the exit date

decrease (increase) fair value

tend to be accompanied by increases
(decreases) in discount rates that may
offset changes in fair value from cash
flows

* Increases (decreases) in discount rates
tend to be accompanied by increases
(decreases) in cash flows that may
offset changes in fair value from
discount rates

» Decreases (increases) in terminal
capitalization rates tend to be
accompanied by increases
(decreases) in cash flows that may
offset changes in fair value from
terminal capitalization rates

* Increases (decreases) in the exit date
tend to be the result of changing cash
flow profiles that may result in higher
(lower) growth in cash flows prior to
stabilizing in the terminal year
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Key valuation metrics of the company’s utilities, transport, energy and sustainable resource assets 2016 and 2015 are summarized
below.

Utilities Transport Energy Sustainable Resources

AS AT DEC. 31 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Discount rates .............. 7% -12% 8% —12% 10%-17% 11%-15% 9% -14% 10%—15% 6% 6%'
Terminal capitalization

multiples ......ccceeueeene. 7x — 18x 8x — 17x 8x — 14x 10x — 14x 10x — 12x Tx —12x n/a n/a
Investment horizon /

Termination valuation

date (years) ................ 10-20 10-20 10-20 10-20 10 10 3-30 3-20

1. Based on weighted-average discount rate

¢) Property

Accumulated Fair Accumulated
Cost Value Changes Depreciation Total

fﬁ&g&g?’ms ENDED DEC. 31 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Balance, beginning of year...............cccccoenene. $ 5300 $ 2859 $ 612 $§ 455 $ (596) $ (442) $ 5316 $ 2,872
Additions/(dispositions)1, net of assets

reclassified as held for sale.............c.coo..... 254 15 — — 6) — 248 15
Acquisitions through business combinations .. 652 2,622 — — — — 652 2,622
Foreign currency translation............................ (423) (196) — @) 21 35 402) (165)
Fair value changes...........ccccoeveevieieienrcneenene. — — 82 161 — — 82 161
Depreciation eXpense .............ceeveeerveeereeennns — — — — (244) (189) (244) (189)

Balance, end of year..........ccccceveeeinniercccnennen $ 5783 $ 5300 $ 694 $ 612 $ (825) $§ (596) $ 5,652 § 5316

1. For accumulated depreciation, (additions)/dispositions

The company’s property assets include hotel assets accounted for under the revaluation model, with the most recent revaluation
as at December 31, 2016. The company determines fair value for these assets by discounting the expected future cash flows using
internal valuations. Valuations utilize significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) when determining the fair value of property assets.
The significant Level 3 inputs include:
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Valuation Significant Relationship of Unobservable Input(s)

Technique(s) Unobservable Input(s)  to Fair Value Mitigating Factor(s)
Discounted cash * Future cash flows — * Increases (decreases) in future cash ¢ Increases (decreases) in cash flows
flow analysis primarily driven by flows increase (decrease) fair value tend to be accompanied by increases
pricing, volumes and (decreases) in discount rates that may
direct operating costs offset changes in fair value from cash

flows

* Discount rate * Increases (decreases) in discount rate ¢ Increases (decreases) in discount
decrease (increase) fair value rates tend to be accompanied by

increases (decreases) in cash flows
that may offset changes in fair value
from discount rates

* Terminal * Increases (decreases) in terminal < Decreases (increases) in terminal
capitalization rate capitalization rate decrease (increase) capitalization rates tend to be
fair value accompanied by increases

(decreases) in cash flows that may
offset changes in fair value from
terminal capitalization rates

+ Investment horizon * Increases (decreases) in the investment e+ Increases (decreases) in  the
horizon decrease (increase) fair value investment horizon tend to be the
result of changing cash flow profiles
that may result in higher (lower)
growth in cash flows prior to
stabilizing in the terminal year

Key valuation assumptions included a weighted-average discount rate of 10.2% (2015 — 10.0%), terminal capitalization rate of
7.4% (2015 — 7.4%), and investment horizon of six years (2015 — seven years).

d) Private Equity and Other

Other property, plant and equipment includes assets owned by the company’s private equity and residential development operations
held directly or consolidated through funds. These assets are accounted for under the cost model, which requires the assets to be
carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. The following table presents the changes
to the carrying value of the company’s property, plant and equipment assets included in these operations:

Accumulated Fair Accumulated
Cost Value Changes® Depreciation Total

fgﬁE%EN‘ngRS ENDED DEC. 31 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Balance, beginning of year.............ccccceceenenen. $ 5309 $ 390 $ (231) $ (1949 $(1,197) $(1,052) $ 3,881 §$ 2,714
Additions/(Dispositions)', net of assets

reclassified as held for sale..............cccueeneeee. (101) 59 4 2 125 56 28 117
Acquisitions through business combinations .. — 1,772 — — — — — 1,772
Foreign currency translation.............c.ccccceeev.e. 60 (482) (16) 28 (14) 136 30 (318)
Depreciation eXpense ..........ccoceeveereereereereeneene — — — — (343) (337) (343) (337)
Impairment charges ...........cccooevevieveviveceeenennn, — — — 67) — — — 67)

Balance, end of year $ 5309 $ (243) $ (231) $ (1,429) $(1,197) $ 3,596 $ 3,881

1. For accumulated depreciation, (Additions)/Dispositions
2. The ending balance of accumulated fair value changes represent accumulated impairment charges, as assets in these segments are carried at amortized cost
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13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The following table presents the breakdown of, and changes to, the balance of the company’s intangible assets:

Accumulated
Amortization and
Cost Impairment Total
(FT\S[’}‘LE%%EARS ENDED DEC. 31 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Balance, beginning of year $ 5764 $ 4864 $ (594) $ 537) $ 5170 $ 4,327
Additions, net of disposals (36) 49 91 7 55 56
Acquisitions through business combinations............ 1,227 1,462 — — 1,227 1,462
AMOTHIZALION ...ttt — — (166) (119) (166) (119)
Foreign currency translation ..............cocecvevevevennenn. (222) (611) 9 55 (213) (556)
Balance, end of year............c.ccooeveveievevecieeeeeee $ 6733 § 5764 $ 660) $ 594) $ 6,073 $ 5,170
The following table presents intangible assets by geography:
fﬁléglggg)“ 2016 2015
UNIEEA STALES .....vvvviieieietete ettt ettt bttt b et b bt bbb bbb bbb b s bbb s s s nas s s enans $ 340 S 394
L T . SO U RSP USTRTRSRRT 230 264
AAUSITALIA ...ttt ettt ettt e et s ettt s et e bt e s et s et e st b et Rt s e s s st eten s st esene s esenentsene 1,945 1,927
BUTOPC ...ttt ettt e e e et e s aa e s at e bt e te e b e e b e eabeerbeeabaeaeeetaeteeteereenns 1,273 1,499
CRLE ..ttt ettt et h et h Rttt n et ettt t b sttt n et et aenn 1,054 1,040
POTUL ..ttt ettt ettt ettt s et ettt s ettt e et s ettt R bR st s e ke st s b e s e Attt e s e sttt et en s es et esene s esene e s ene 1,050 —
Brazil @nd OtheT........coouiiiiiieicee ettt ettt b ettt s et et eb et et seneenan 181 46
$ 6,073 $ 5,170

Intangible assets are allocated to the following operating segments:

G\%ﬁagﬁgj 31 Note 2016 2015
INFrastructure — ULIHEIES. .....ccuoiii ittt e e s e s e eeeeeaeens (a) $ 1,817 $ 1,840
INfrastructure — TTANSPOTT.......c.ccuierieiieiieiieiieiet ettt ettt ettt ettt et eas s e s e b e ssesbesreereens (b) 2,504 1,357
PIOPCILY ..ottt ettt ettt et a e ettt et ae et e e ebeebeebe e b e eareeaneeneans () 1,141 1,321
PrIVALE @QUILY .ouveiiieieciecie ettt ettt te ettt et et st et e sbeebeese e st essessessebessessanransaens 426 453
OBRET ...ttt ettt b ettt s et b et st b et se b bt e st e s bt as st e s s b sese s betene b ene 185 199

$ 6,073 $ 5,170

a) Infrastructure — Utilities

The company’s Australian regulated terminal operation has access agreements with the users of the terminal which entails 100%
take or pay contracts at a designated tariff rate based on the asset value. The concession arrangement has an expiration date of
2051 and the company has an option to extend the arrangement an additional 49 years. The aggregate duration of the arrangement
and the extension option represents the remaining useful life of the concession.

b) Infrastructure — Transport

The company’s toll road concession provides the right to charge a tariff to users of the road over the term of the concession. The
Chilean, Peruvian and Indian concession arrangements have an expiration date of 2033, 2043 and 2027, respectively, which is
the basis for the company’s determination of its remaining useful life. Also included within the company’s transport operations
is $265 million (2015 — $316 million) of indefinite life intangible assets which represent perpetual conservancy rights associated
with the company’s U.K. port operation.
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c¢) Property

The company's intangible assets in its Property segment are attributable to indefinite life trademarks associated with its hospitality
assets, primarily Center Parcs in the U.K. The Center Parcs trademark assets have been determined to have an indefinite useful
life as the company has the legal right to operate these trademarks exclusively in certain territories and in perpetuity. The business
model of Center Parcs is not subject to technological obsolescence or commercial innovations in any material way.

Intangible assets, including trademarks, concession agreements and conservancy rights, are recorded at amortized cost and are
tested for impairment using a discounted cash flow valuation annually or when an indicator of impairment is identified. This
valuation utilizes the following significant unobservable inputs assumptions:

Valuation
Technique

Significant
Unobservable Input(s)

Relationship of Unobservable Input(s)
to Fair Value

Mitigating Factor(s)

Discounted cash « Future cash flows

flow models

¢ Discount rate

» Terminal capitalization
rate

« Exit date

* Increases (decreases) in future cash

flows will increase (decrease) the
recoverable amount

Increases (decreases) in discount rate
will decrease (increase) the recoverable
amount

Increases (decreases) in terminal
capitalization rate will decrease
(increase) the recoverable amount

Increases (decreases) in the exit date
will decrease (increase) the recoverable
amount

* Increases (decreases) in cash flows

tend to be accompanied by increases
(decreases) in discount rates that may
offset changes in fair value from cash
flows

Increases (decreases) in discount
rates tend to be accompanied by
increases (decreases) in cash flows
that may offset changes in fair value
from discount rates

Increases (decreases) in terminal
capitalization rates tend to be
accompanied by increases
(decreases) in cash flows that may
offset changes in fair value from
terminal capitalization rates

Increases (decreases) in the exit date
tend to be the result of changing cash
flow profiles that may result in higher
(lower) growth in cash flows prior to
stabilizing in the exit date
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14. GOODWILL

The following table presents the breakdown of, and changes to, the balance of goodwill:

Accumulated
Cost Impairment Total
(FI\(Z}‘LE%F}\]‘S’EARS ENDED DEC. 31 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Balance, beginning of year..............cccoovevevieveverennee. $ 2806 $ 1,579 $ 263) $ (173) $ 2,543 § 1,406
Acquisitions through business combinations............. 1,286 1,302 — — 1,286 1,302
DISPOSALS ..ot — ) — — — @)
IMpPairment 10SSES..........eveuevrieeeeirieeeereee e — — (65) (112) (65) (112)
Foreign currency translation and other' ..................... 70 (68) (51 22 19 (46)
Balance, end of year...........cccoceeinieinieieeieceee $ 4162 $ 2806 $ 379) $ (263) $ 3,783 § 2,543
1. Includes adjustment to goodwill based on final purchase price allocation
The following table presents goodwill by geography:
A5 ATpRc 2016 2015
UNIEEA SEALES ...ttt ettt ettt e sttt e s et sesesen e s et e st e s et es e s esesesesesesenensesesanen $ 388 § 366
CANAAA ...ttt ettt ettt h bbb es b et st e st b et st ehen e b et es et ent et et es e etentebe s eneesennenea 192 91
AUSITATIA . ...ttt b bbb bttt n e bt enene 950 764
Colombia 907 10
BIAZIL...cee ettt bttt a bt s b n e h et s e b et b et ene b et eseebeneenan 123 103
BULOPC ..ot ettt et et et e et e e ae e te et ebeeae et e beeabeeabeetb e e et e aaeeaeeereeeaeenrs 894 1,015
ORET <.ttt b et st bttt s bbb et b et b et e a ek et ettt et et st et e e enen 329 194
$ 3,783 § 2,543
Goodwill is allocated to the following operating segments:
zﬁﬁﬂgﬁgj 3 Note 2016 2015
PrIVALE ©QUILY ..vivveiiiieietiieeiit ettt ettt re bt se b ssesessete s essenens (a) $ 1,155 § 1,127
ReENEWADIE POWET .......eiiiiceiciieeiciicteetee ettt ettt ettt sbeebeeaeees (b) 896 —
PLOPEILY ..ttt ettt et a ettt et ettt ettt et et eaeene (c) 780 906
INTIASTIUCTULC. ... ...veveceeceeceeeeeee ettt ettt ettt et e eteeteereereeseeneente s eereereereereeneens (d) 502 79
328 328
122 103
$ 3,783 § 2,543

a) Private Equity

Goodwill in our Private Equity segment is primarily attributable to our construction business. Goodwill in our construction business
is tested for impairment using a discounted cash flow analysis to determine the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount for
the year ended 2016 and 2015 were determined to be in excess of its carrying value. The valuation assumptions used to determine
the recoverable amount are a discount rate of 12% (2015 — 15%), terminal growth rate of 4% (2015 — 5%) and terminal year of
2021 for cash flows included in assumption (2015 — 2020). The discount rate represents the market-based weighted-average cost
of capital adjusted for risks specific to each operating regions and the terminal growth rate represents the regional five-year
forecasted average growth rate from leading industry organizations, weighted by our geographic exposure which can vary
year over year.
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b) Renewable Power

Goodwill in our Renewable Power segment relates to the acquisition of Isagen by a subsidiary of Brookfield in 2016, and is due
to the recognition of a deferred tax liability arising from the acquisition because the tax bases of the Isagen net assets are significantly
lower than their acquisition date fair value. The purchase price allocation for this acquisition has been completed on a preliminary
basis.

¢) Property

Goodwill in our Property segment is primarily attributable to Center Parcs. Goodwill impairment is tested annually by assessing
ifthe carrying value of the cash-generating unit, including the allocated goodwill, exceeds its recoverable amount determined
as the greater of the estimated fair value less costs to sell or the value in use. The recoverable amount for the year ended 2016
was determined to be in excess of its carrying value (2015 was excluded from testing as Center Parcs was acquired during that
year). The valuation assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount are a discount rate of 8.3%, based on a market-based-
weighted-average cost of capital, and a long-term growth rate of 2.25%.

d) Infrastructure

In 2016, a subsidiary of Brookfield completed several acquisitions, including a port business, gas storage business and toll roads,
and allocated $431 million of the purchase price of these acquisitions to goodwill, which makes up the majority of the goodwill
balance attributable to our Infrastructure segment. The purchase price allocation for these acquisitions has been completed on a
preliminary basis.

The recoverable amounts used in goodwill impairment testing are calculated using discounted cash flow models based on the
following significant unobservable inputs:

Valuation Significant Relationship of Unobservable Input(s)
Technique Unobservable Input(s) to Fair Value Mitigating Factor(s)
Discounted cash * Future cash flows * Increases (decreases) in future cash <« Increases (decreases) in cash flows
flow models flows will increase (decrease) the tend to be accompanied by increases
recoverable amount (decreases) in discount rates that may
offset changes in fair value from cash
flows
* Discount rate * Increases (decreases) in discount rate ¢ Increases (decreases) in discount
will decrease (increase) the recoverable rates tend to be accompanied by
amount increases (decreases) in cash flows

that may offset changes in fair value
from discount rates

» Terminal capitalization + Increases (decreases) in terminal < Increases (decreases) in terminal
rate capitalization rate will decrease capitalization rates tend to be
(increase) the recoverable amount accompanied by increases
(decreases) in cash flows that may
offset changes in fair value from

terminal capitalization rates

 Exit date/terminal year + Increases (decreases) in the exit date/ < Increases (decreases)in the exit date/

of cash flows terminal year of cash flows will terminal year of cash flows tend to be
decrease (increase) the recoverable the result of changing cash flow
amount profiles that may result in higher

(lower) growth in cash flows prior to
stabilizing in the exit date
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15. INCOME TAXES

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015 are set out below:

fﬁﬁ{ﬂ)ﬁ\]\é;ﬁARs ENDED DEC. 31 2016 2015
CUITENE INCOIMNIE TAXES .e.vvvenietetetiaereeteaeseetetesestesetesesssseseseeesesesessesesesesesesenesesesenssesasensasesesensssesesensasesasen $ 213§ 132
Deferred income tax expense/(recovery)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences .............ccoovveveieviivieieieeceeeceeeeee e 384 537
Recovery arising from previously unrecognized tax aSSELS .......ccevererrerereeieieiesiesiesiesesseseseseeseens 27 13
Change of tax rates and new 1e@iSIation...........ccceoiiiieiiiiieee e (969) (486)
Total deferred income taxes (558) 64
$ (345) $§ 196

IIICOIMIE TAXES ..ottt ettt e e e et e e st e e e abe e eta e e aaeeeabesesbaeeasseeenseeesneensseeensesesaeennnens

The company’s Canadian domestic statutory income tax rate has remained consistent at 26% throughout both of 2016 and 2015.
The company’s effective income tax rate is different from the company’s domestic statutory income tax rate due to the following

differences set out below:

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DEC. 31 2016 2015
StatutOry INCOME tAX TALE ......eeveiviireireerieteereeteeee et et eeteeteeteeteeteeteeasesseseeseeseeseereeseeseessessensensensesseeseessensene 26 % 26 %
Increase (reduction) in rate resulting from:
Change in tax rates and New le@iSIatioN...........ccucvievieriiieiiiiiceceeeeet et s e sbesresaeeaeereens 35) (11)
International operations subject to different tax rates...........covevveeevievieeierieieeeeeeee e Q) @)
Taxable income attribute to NoN-coNtrolling INtErEStS..........ocvecirveieirieiiriieereeee e ?2) (6)
Portion of gains subject to different taX Tates..........ccecieeeieieiierieriesectece ettt sve e ereereens (€] —
Recognition of previously unrecorded deferred taX assets ..........ccceveeveeiereerierieieciesieeeeeere e 1 —
Non-recognition of the benefit of current year’s tax losses ... 6 4
OBNICT ...ttt ettt ettt ettt e bt e sttt e s e s et e s et e st s s e s ea sk e ettt s e At s et e st b et en st esene s esenennesene ?) 2)
EffeCtiVe INCOME TAX TALE ......ccviiviieiiiee ettt ettt et e e et e ete e eaeeete e e e enteenaeeneeeaeeeaseeneeeeeenseenees 12)% 4 %
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities as at December 31, 2016 and 2015 relate to the following:
AT DEC 31 2016 2015
Non-capital 10SSES (CANAARA) ........ccvevvivvierieriirieteeeeeet ettt ere ettt eeeeaeereereeseereete e ersenseeseeseeteeseensensens $ 814 $ 720
Capital losses (Canada) 100 105
L0SSES (UL S.) ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt e e be ettt et st et e b e ebeeteeteessensers e b e bebeereereereeneas 492 472
L08SES (INTETNAtIONAL) .....vecviiviieiiercreetecee ettt ettt ettt ettt e eteeveereerserseneenseseeseeseeseeseereenean 481 381
DIFFETENCE 1N DASIS ....cuviiveieeete ettt ettt et e et e et e ete e eaeeteeaeenteenaeensesaeeesseeseeeseenseennes (9,965) (8,967)
Total net deferred tax lHabIlitieS ........c.ociiuicieieieieiecieete ettt ettt ettt re et eas e s e sesbeebeereereeneens $ 8,078) $ (7,289)

The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries for which deferred tax liabilities have
not been recognized as at December 31, 2016 is approximately $5 billion (2015 — approximately $6 billion).

The company regularly assesses the status of open tax examinations and its historical tax filing positions for the potential for
adverse outcomes to determine the adequacy of the provision for income and other taxes. The company believes that it has
adequately provided for any tax adjustments that are more likely than not to occur as a result of ongoing tax examinations or

historical filing positions.

The dividend payment on certain preferred shares of the company results in the payment of cash taxes in Canada and the company
obtaining a deduction based on the amount of these taxes.
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The following table details the expiry date, if applicable, of the unrecognized deferred tax assets:

321?{181%%31 2016 2015
One year from rePOrting AALC.........c.ocvivvierierierieieieeiecteete ettt ete ettt ettt ereeaeetseaseaseseeseereereereereeneens $ 26 $ 20
Two years from reporting date.... — 6
Three years from repOrting dale...........ccecicieiecieiierieriestese ettt ettt ettt e reeteereessessesessessessesseesaeseens 59 9
After three years from reporting date ............ccvevevveviiiriirieriereereee ettt ere e ere e e ere e ereeve e ereeneas 555 642
DO NOL EXPITE ...ttt ettt ettt ettt s e et et te b eseete s ese s esaesesseseesessesesseseesessesessessesessesessessesessesenis 845 671
TOUAL ...ttt ettt ettt ettt et s et bt a et b et a e bt n bbb n bt esea e b s et en e b b e s ent st ene e s esenn $ 1,485 § 1,348

The components of the income taxes in other comprehensive income for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 are set out
below:

{ﬁﬁ_{{(‘)‘%\]\é;EARS ENDED DEC. 31 2016 2015
Revaluation of property, plant and €qUIPMENT.............c.ccveviieirieiiriieisieeetee et ere e $ 120 § 414
Financial contracts and pOWer Sale a@reeMENLtS.............cecveereerieierieriesresreeteeteereeseeseeeessessessessesseeseesseneas 37 17
AVAILable-fOr-SAlE SECUITLICS. .......ccvievierieeiceeceieteeeee ettt ettt ettt et et e eteeteereereessessesse s e eseeseeseeseeseensensan 38 37)
Foreign currency translation ..............c.cceeveieuirieriereietitceetee ettt se st ese s seese s eseesessesesseseesessesens 59 51
Revaluation of pension OblIZAtiON ...........ccceeieiiriiriiitictietceteeteet ettt te e ese e e e s e s e aesbeeseeseessennas @) 3
Total deferred tax in other comprehensive INCOME.............ceereeeiceieeieiieeiereeteeteee et eve e ereenens $ 173 $ 448

16. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER

MILLIONS). Note 2016 2015
Accounts payable... $ 6,028 $ 5,050
PLOVISIONS ...ttt ettt ettt ettt e et e et e et eseateesateesateseatesaaseesntesaaaeesneesas (a) 1,427 883
Other HADILIEIES .....euiveeeiiieieiceet ettt ettt ee 4,460 5,433
TOMAL....e ettt a ettt ettt et et et se et e $ 11,915 $ 11,366

The current and non-current balances of accounts payable and other liabilities are as follows:

AT e 2016 2015
$ 7,721 $ 7,560

4,194 3,806

TOLAL ...ttt ettt et ettt ettt et et e eteer e ereere et et et et et e eteeaeertent et et eereereereereereeneens $ 11915 § 11,366

a) Post-Employment Benefits

The company offers pension and other post-employment benefit plans to employees of certain of its subsidiaries. The company’s
obligations under its defined benefit pension plans are determined periodically through the preparation of actuarial valuations.
The benefit plans’ in-year valuation change was a decrease of $40 million (2015 — $32 million). The discount rate used was 4%
(2015 — 5%) with an increase in the rate of compensation of 3% (2015 — 3%), and an investment rate of 4% (2015 — 4%)).

AS AT D31 2016 2015
PLAIN ASSELS ...ttt eaen $ 592 $ 576
Less accrued benefit obligation:

Defined benefit Pension PIAN .........c.cceiiiiiiiiiiiiiicieeie ettt ettt eas sttt eeteeteereereens (790) (736)

Other post-employment DENETILS ..........c.ociiuiiiiiiieeeeccrece ettt e ereereereereereens (88) (76)
INEE THADILIEY ©.venteteeeie ettt ettt ettt b et s et e et s e s e e e s e se st s esesentsaeseneneeseseneneas (286) (236)
Less: net actuarial Gains (IOSSES).....c.cceeuiiiiuieierieiiiieitieteeteereereere et et eseeseeseereeteessessessessesessessesseeseeseeseas 2 6
AcCCTUEd DENETIt HHADIIILY .......cueevieieeiiveicreeecceeeeteee ettt ettt ettt ere et ensereeseneesenseseesensenn $ 284) $ (230)
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17. CORPORATE BORROWINGS

ohons;”! Maturity Annual Rate Currency 2016 2015
Term debt
Public — Canadian............................ Sept. 8, 2016 5.20% C$ $ — 3 217
Public —U.S. ... Apr. 25,2017 5.80% US$ 239 239
Public — Canadian............c.cccceeeenee Apr. 25,2017 5.29% C$ 186 180
Public — Canadian........................... Apr. 9,2019 3.95% C$ 447 435
Public — Canadian.............c.ccoeuvenen. Mar. 1, 2021 5.30% C$ 260 253
Public — Canadian..............c............ Mar. 31, 2023 4.54% C$ 448 436
Public — Canadian.............cccooeueee Mar. 8, 2024 5.04% C$ 372 362
Public —U.S. ... Jan. 15,2025 4.00% US$ 500 500
Public — Canadian..............c............ Jan. 28, 2026 4.82% C$ 646 629
Public —U.S. ..o Jun. 2, 2026 4.25% UsS$ 495 —
Public — Canadian...............ccoeuvenee Mar. 16, 2027 3.80% C$ 372 —
Public = U.S. .o Mar. 1, 2033 7.38% US$ 250 250
Public — Canadian Jun. 14, 2035 5.95% C$ 313 304
4,528 3,805
Commercial paper and bank borrowings............cccceeeeuenee —% US$/C$ — 156
Deferred fINANCINE COSES ... vveveereeeeeeeeee e eeee e eeeees e eeeeeeeeeeeseseeeseesese e seseeseseesesseesseseeseeseesseseee (28) (25)
TOLAL ...ttt ettt sttt a et e et ne et e s $ 4,500 $ 3,936

1. Deferred financing costs are amortized to interest expense over the term of the borrowing following the effective interest method

Corporate borrowings have a weighted-average interest rate of 4.8% (2015 — 4.8%), and include $3,044 million (2015 —
$2,917 million) repayable in Canadian dollars of C$4,093 million (2015 — C$4,036 million).

18. NON-RECOURSE BORROWINGS
a) Property-Specific Mortgages

Principal repayments on property-specific mortgages due over the next five calendar years and thereafter are as follows:

Renewable Residential

(MILLIONS) Property Power Infrastructure  Private Equity Development Total
$ 5418 3 1,048 $ 307 $ 639 $ 243§ 7,655

4,984 300 510 350 106 6,250

6,298 552 537 270 58 7,715

4,130 1,021 716 238 8 6,113

5,743 933 648 26 4 7,354

7,749 4,109 5,183 314 — 17,355

Total — Dec. 31, 2016..... $ 34,322 § 7,963 $ 7,901 $ 1,837 $ 419 $ 52,442
Total — Dec. 31, 2015..... $ 31,191 $ 5,602 $ 6,325 $ 2,300 $ 626 $ 46,044

The weighted-average interest rate on property-specific mortgages as at December 31, 2016 was 4.9% (2015 — 4.6%).

The current and non-current balances of property-specific mortgages are as follows:

3\/511[25181%% 31 2016 2015
CULTENE ..ottt e et et e et et e et et e e e s e s e e e eeeeeeeeeeeeeaeeae e e e e eeeeeeeeeeeneeae et et eeseeseeseeaeseeseesaeeeens $ 7,655 $ 9,426
INOTIECUITENE ...ttt e e ettt e e ee e e eeeaae e e e e eaaeeeeeeaaeeeeeeesseeeeeeaaeeeeeenseeeeesasseseeeenssseeeeesseseeennseseesaes 44,787 36,618
0] 7: OO $ 52,442 §$ 46,044
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Property specific borrowings by currency include the following:

(MILLIONS) 2016 Local Currency 2015 Local Currency
U.S. dollars .......coevririereieniereeiereieen 31,804 USS 31,804 $ 30,184 US$ 30,814
British pounds.........coccceovieinnnecee 5,251 £ 4,250 4,622 £ 3,137
Canadian dollars ..........cccccceeeveeeveeeeennennen. 4,427 C$ 5,951 4,168 C$ 5,767
Australian dollars............cccccoeeevveveneennnnnn. 3,066 AS 4,260 3,215 A$ 4,412
Colombian pesos.........ccceeveeveeererireerenenenes 1,693 COP$ 5,086,971 126 COP$ 400,155
Brazilian reais...........cccoeveeveeeecveeneennne. 1,569 RS 5,117 1,381 RS 5,469
Korean won 1,317 w 1,589,450 — W —
European Union euros 1,217 €3 1,157 1,271 €3 1,171
Chilean unidades de fomento................... 901 UF$ 23 861 UF$ 24
Indian rupees.........ceceeveeveieieieieeieienns 715 Rs 48,603 216 Rs 14,312
Peruvian nuevo soles ..........ccoevvveennnen. 435 S 1,459 — S —
New Zealand dollars............cccoevveurnnen. 47 NZD$ 60 — NZD$ —
Total. ..o 52,442 $ 46,044
b) Subsidiary Borrowings
Principal repayments on subsidiary borrowings due over the next five calendar years and thereafter are as follows:
Renewable Residential
(MILLIONS) Property Power Infrastructure ~ Private Equity Development Total
2017 e $ 558 — 3 295 § 13 8 — 3 866
2018 i 861 149 93 301 — 1,404
2019 e 1,295 — — — — 1,295
2020 .0 6 346 279 222 595 1,448
2021 o 45 462 — — — 507
Thereafter .........c.ccoev... — 1,073 335 — 1,021 2,429
Total — Dec. 31, 2016..... $ 2,765 2,030 $ 1,002 536 $ 1,616 $ 7,949
Total — Dec. 31, 2015..... $ 2,364 1,736 $ 1,491 3 623 $ 1,589 § 8,303
The weighted-average interest rate on subsidiary borrowings as at December 31, 2016 was 4.1% (2015 — 4.0%).
The current and non-current balances of subsidiary borrowings are as follows:
ailé]:rlgﬁgj 31 2016 2015
CUITEIE ...ttt et e e e e et e et e et e et e et e eaee e et e eae e e e eeeeaaesaaeemaesetesatesetesatesesenseeseeenneenees $ 866 $ 1,839
INOIIECUITEIIE .. ...ttt ettt e e e ettt e e ettt e e e aaaeeeeenaeeeesesaateesesnaaeeessnassessannsseesssnseeessnnnnes 7,083 6,464
TOLAL ...ttt h ettt b sttt ettt tenen $ 7,949 $ 8,303
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Subsidiary borrowings by currency include the following:

f‘Nstglgﬁg-)“ 2016 Local Currency 2015 Local Currency
U.S. dOlIars....ccoveeeeiereeeeeee s $ 4,441 US$ 4,441 $§ 4,859 US$ 4,859
Canadian dollars 3,364 Cs 4,525 3,185 CS$ 4,407
Australian dollars ............cooeeeiriereeiinieeeeeees 143 A$ 200 146 A$ 200
European Union UIoS.............cceveeereeereereeererneresneneenns 1 €3 1 — €3 —
Brazilian reais — R$ — 84 RS 326
British pounds — £ — 29 £ 20
TOtAL..ceee s $ 7,949 $ 8303
19. SUBSIDAIRY EQUITY OBLIGATIONS
Subsidiary equity obligations consist of the following:
f}ilf‘glgﬁ% 3 Note 2016 2015
Subsidiary preferred eqUILY UNILS.........ccvevierieriisrieieeeeeiee et ettt re e s e s sse s eeeeeas (@ $ 1,574 § 1,554
Limited-life funds and redeemable fund UnitS............ccceeveuiiieieeeieeeeieeeee e 1,439 1,274
(b) 552 503
$ 3,565 $ 3,331

a) Subsidiary Preferred Equity Units

In 2014, BPY issued $1,800 million of exchangeable preferred equity units in three $600 million tranches redeemable in 2021,
2024 and 2026, respectively. The preferred equity units are exchangeable into equity units of BPY at $25.70 per unit, at the option
of the holder, at any time up to and including the maturity date. BPY may redeem the preferred equity units after specified periods
if the BPY equity unit price exceeds predetermined amounts. At maturity, the preferred equity units will be converted into BPY
equity units at the lower of $25.70 or the then market price of a BPY equity unit. The preferred equity units represent a compound
financial instrument. The Corporation is required under certain circumstances to purchase the preferred equity units at their
redemption value in equal amounts in 2021 and 2024 and may be required to purchase the 2026 tranche, as further described in
Note 29(a).

AS AT DEC. 31 Shares Cumulative

(MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE INFORMATION) Outstanding  Dividend Rate  Local Currency 2016 2015
SErIES 1 .ovivieiiieiieieieeereee e 24,000,000 6.25% Uss $ 541 $ 532
SETICS 2 it 24,000,000 6.50% US$ 522 516
SETICS 3ot 24,000,000 6.75% US$ 511 506
TOAL .ttt ettt b sttt et b st e a et s st e b ete s es s ke se st b e st seese st be s eseeseneerens S 1,574 § 1,554
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b) Subsidiary Preferred Shares

Preferred shares are classified as liabilities if the holders of the preferred shares have the right, after a fixed date, to convert the
shares into common equity of the issuer based on the market price of the common equity of the issuer at that time unless they are
previously redeemed by the issuer. The dividends paid on these securities are recorded in interest expense. As at December 31,
2016 and 2015, the balance are obligations of BPY and its subsidiaries.

AS AT DEC. 31
(MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE INFORMATION)

BPO Class AAA preferred shares................

Series K

Brookfield Property Split Corp
(“BOP Split”) senior preferred shares

SEIIES 1o
SEIIES 2 .o

Series 3

Series 4
Rouse Series A preferred shares

BSREP II Vintage Estate Partners LLC
(“Vintage Estates”) preferred shares.........

The BPO Class AAA preferred shares, Series H were redeemed during the year.

Shares Cumulative
Outstanding  Dividend Rate  Local Currency 2016 2015
3,236,308 5.25% uss § 81 84
— —% C$ — 128
6,592,443 5.00% C$ 122 125
4,995,414 5.20% C$ 93 90
924,390 5.25% Us$ 24 23
699,165 5.75% C$ 14 18
913,194 5.00% C$ 17 17
984,586 5.20% C$ 18 18
5,600,000 5.00% Uss$ 143 —
10,000 5.00% Us$ 40 —
$ 552§ 503

The BPO Class AAA preferred shares and BOP Split senior preferred shares are redeemable at the option of either the issuer or
the holder, at any time after the following dates:

BPO Class AAA preferred shares

SETIES Gttt

SEIIES J oottt

BOP Split senior preferred shares

SEIIES 1ttt e e

SETIES 3.ttt ettt ettt ettt ennan

SEIIES 4 ..ottt

Earliest Permitted Company’s  Holder’s Conversion
Redemption Date Conversion Option Option
Jun. 30, 2011 Jun. 30, 2011 Sep. 30, 2015
Jun. 30,2010 Jun. 30,2010 Dec. 31,2014
Dec. 31, 2012 Dec. 31, 2012 Dec. 31, 2016
Jun. 30,2014 Jun. 30,2014 Sep. 30, 2015
Dec. 31,2014 Dec. 31, 2014 Dec. 31, 2015
Jun. 30,2014 Jun. 30,2014 Dec. 31,2014
Dec. 31,2015 Dec. 31,2015 Dec. 31,2016

Subsidiary preferred shares include $143 million at December 31, 2016 (December 31, 2015 — $nil) of preferred equity
interests held by a third-party investor in Rouse Properties, L.P., which have been classified as a liability, rather than as
non-controlling interests, due to the fact that the interests have no voting rights and are mandatorily redeemable on/or after
November 12, 2025 for a set price per unit plus any accrued but unpaid distributions; distributions are capped and accrue

regardless of available cash generated.

Subsidiary preferred shares also include $40 million at December 31, 2016 (December 31, 2015 — $nil) of preferred equity
interests held by a co-investor in Vintage Estates, which have been classified as a liability, rather than as non-controlling
interests, due to the fact that the preferred equity interests are mandatorily redeemable on April 26, 2023 for cash at an
amount equal to the outstanding principal balance of the preferred equity plus any accrued but unpaid dividend.
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20. SUBSIDIARY PUBLIC ISSUERS AND FINANCE SUBSIDIARY

Brookfield Finance Inc. (“BFI”) is an indirect 100% owned subsidiary of the Corporation that may offer and sell debt securities.
Any debt securities issued by BFI will be fully and unconditionally guaranteed by the company. On May 25, 2016, BFI issued
$500 million of 4.25% notes due in 2026.

The company provided a full and unconditional guarantee of the Class 1 Senior Preferred shares, Series A issued by its wholly
owned subsidiary, Brookfield Investments Corporation (“BIC”), other than those held by the Corporation or its affiliates. As at
December 31,2016, C$42 million of these senior preferred shares were held by third-party shareholders, and are retractable at the
option of the holder.

On February 6, 2017, the company formed Brookfield Finance LLC (“BFL”), a Delaware limited liability company and an indirect
100% owned subsidiary of the Corporation. BFL is a “finance subsidiary”, as defined in Rule 3-10 of Regulation S-X, that will
be used as the issuer in potential debt financings for the company. Any debt securities issued by BFL will be fully and
unconditionally guaranteed by the company. BFL has no independent activities, assets or operations other than in connection with
any debt securities it may issue. On March 10, 2017, BFL issued $750 million of 4.00% notes due 2024, which were fully and
unconditionally guaranteed by the Corporation.

The following tables contain summarized financial information of the Corporation, BFI, BIC and non-guarantor subsidiaries:

Subsidiaries of
the Corporation

AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DEC. 31, 2016 The other than ~ Consolidating ~ The Company
(MILLIONS) Corporation BFI BIC BFI and BIC Adjustments’ Consolidated
Revenues........cccooevevenenencnieeeeee, $ 148 $ 13 S 3 3 24,326 $ 79 $ 24,411
Net income attributable to shareholders .. 1,651 — 66 1,857 (1,923) 1,651
Total ASSELS.....vevvveereeeeereereereeee e 47,505 507 2,974 163,437 (54,597) 159,826
Total liabilities..........ccoovvevveeeiiieeirieenieenn, 21,052 497 1,411 103,411 (36,233) 90,138
Subsidiaries of
the Corporation o
AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DEC. 31, 2015 The other than  Consolidating  The Company
(MILLIONS) Corporation BFI BIC BFI and BIC Adjustments Consolidated
Revenues........coooeveneninnniceiccne. $ 312 $ — 3 30 $ 19,876 $ (305) $ 19,913
Net income attributable to shareholders .. 2,341 — 220 2,398 (2,618) 2,341
Total aSSets.....c.evererieieieeeeeieiee e 33,325 — 2,625 143,552 (39,988) 139,514
Total liabilities .......coeevverveenreirirccnene 8,017 — 1,095 80,236 (7,061) 82,287

1. This column accounts for investments in all subsidiaries of the corporation under the equity method
2. This column accounts for investments in all subsidiaries of the corporation other than BFI and BIC on a combined basis
3. This column includes the necessary amounts to present the company on a consolidated basis

21. EQUITY

Equity consists of the following:

f}ilﬁﬂgﬁﬁa“ 2016 2015
PrEfEITEA EQUILY ..o oveeeeeeeeee ettt ettt et et a et ee et s et e s e s e e s et eseseaeaenen et esean e esene $ 3,954 $ 3,739
INON-CONLIOLIING TNLETESS .....veeveevieerieriricteeteeteeteee et et et e eteeteereesseseeaeseeseeseeseeseeseessessensenseeseeseessensensens 43,235 31,920
COMIMON EQUILY ... everteeieeteettestetetetessesseeseeseeseessessessessessessessassesseessessessassesesseeseaseessessessessessessessessensansenns 22,499 21,568

$ 69,688 $ 57,227

152 BROOKFIELD ASSET MANAGEMENT



a) Preferred Equity
Preferred equity includes perpetual preferred shares and rate-reset preferred shares and consists of the following:

Average Rate

fﬁlﬁzlgﬁgj“ 2016 2015 2016 2015
Perpetual preferred shares
FLOAtING TALE .....cuveviiiiiicieeieeieceeeieeeetet ettt 1.97% 1.92% $ 532 480
FIXEA TALE ..ottt 4.82% 4.82% 753 753
3.65% 3.69% 1,285 1,233
Fixed rate-reset preferred shares............ccoceeveeveeierieieciecieceeeeeeene 4.42% 4.63% 2,669 2,506
4.17% 432% $ 3,954 3,739
Further details on each series of preferred shares are as follows:
Issued and Outstanding
S\/SH[L\EIgI%g; EXCEPT PER SHARE INFORMATION) Rate 2016 2015 2016 2015
Class A preferred shares
Perpetual preferred shares
SEIIES 2 ..ot 70% P 10,465,100 10,465,100 $ 169 § 169
SEries 4 ....ovvvieieieieicieieieieeeeeenes 70% P/8.5% 2,800,000 2,800,000 45 45
SEries 8" ..o Variable up to P 2,479,585 1,652,394 43 29
Series 13 ..o 70% P 9,297,700 9,297,700 195 195
Series 15 ..o B.A.+40 b.p.? 2,000,000 2,000,000 42 42
Series 17 c.cucvevevereueeeierereieiereieieierenenes 4.75% 8,000,000 8,000,000 174 174
Series 18 ..o 4.75% 8,000,000 8,000,000 181 181
e ST R S T-Bill + 230 b.p.2 1,533,133 — 38 —
4.85% 8,000,000 8,000,000 201 201
4.90% 8,000,000 8,000,000 197 197
1,285 1,233
Rate-reset preferred shares®
SeTies 9" oo 3.80% 1,519,115 2,346,606 21 35
Series 247 ......vveerveserene e 3.01% 9,394,250 10,997,000 230 269
Series 26 4.50% 9,903,348 10,000,000 243 245
Series 28 4.60% 9,394,373 9,397,200 235 235
Series 30 4.80% 9,950,452 10,000,000 245 247
Series 32 ...cveveverereiererereiererereierenenenes 4.50% 11,982,568 12,000,000 303 304
Series 34 ...oovveveiiieieiereieieeieeeeieies 4.20% 9,977,889 10,000,000 255 256
Series 38 ......coeieeueieieieieeeeeeenes 4.40% 8,000,000 8,000,000 181 181
Series 40 ....c.oeveveueuererererererererererenenes 4.50% 12,000,000 12,000,000 275 275
SIS 42 ..o 4.50% 12,000,000 12,000,000 269 269
Series 447 .......ovveerrvesrrenerenrin. 5.00% 10,000,000 10,000,000 190 190
Series 46°......ovverreeerrreeeereeeer. 4.80% 12,000,000 — 222 —
2,669 2,506
TOLALL ..ttt h ettt b ettt ee $ 3954 §$ 3,739

1. 827,191 shares were converted from Series 9 to Series 8 on November 1, 2016
2. Rate determined quarterly

3. 1,533,133 shares were converted from Series 24 to Series 25 on July 1, 2016
4

. Dividend rates are fixed for five to six years from the quarter end dates after issuance, June 30, 2011, March 31, 2012, June 30, 2012, December 31, 2012,

September 30, 2013, March 31, 2014, June 30, 2014, December 31, 2014, December 31, 2015, and December 31, 2016, respectively and reset after five to six years to

the 5-year Government of Canada bond rate plus between 180 and 417 basis points
. Issued on October 2, 2015
. Issued on November 18, 2016
- Prime Rate, B.A. - Bankers’ Acceptance Rate, b.p. - Basis Points

g W
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The company is authorized to issue an unlimited number of Class A preferred shares and an unlimited number of Class AA preferred
shares, issuable in series. No Class AA preferred shares have been issued.

The Class A preferred shares are entitled to preference over the Class A and Class B Limited Voting Shares (“Class A and B shares”)
on the declaration of dividends and other distributions to shareholders. All series of the outstanding preferred shares have a par
value of C$25 per share.

b) Non-controlling Interests

Non-controlling interests represent the common and preferred equity in consolidated entities that are owned by other shareholders.

gjﬁ‘agggj 31 2016 2015
COMIMON CQUILY ......veivieriereereeseeeeteteeseeteeteeteeseessesseseeseeseeseeseesseseessensenseeseeseeseesesssessensensesessesseereereeseereens $ 39974 §$ 29,158
PrefeITed qUILY.....oviiitietieeeeitete ettt ettt ettt ettt tb et esb e b e b e ebeeteesseseeseessesbebebebeeteereeneas 3,261 2,762
TOLAL ...ttt ettt ettt ettt et e ettt e ee e ea e e a s et et et et et eaeeateat et et et e eteeteeteereenseneans $ 43,235 $ 31,920

Further information on non-controlling interests is provided in Note 4, Subsidiaries.
¢) Common Equity

The company’s common equity is comprised of the following:

f\]\jlﬁlgﬁg»}“ 2016 2015
COMIMON SRATES ...ttt ettt ettt et e bbb e bt e bt eb e ea b et et e aestesbesbeebeebeens $ 4390 $ 4,378
Contributed SUIPIUS .......coviiiiiiiiiiiice e 234 192
ReEtAINEA CAIMINES ......eveiitiieiiieeiee ettt bbbttt sttt et se st et et enesaeeenen 11,490 11,045
OWNEIShIP CHANZES ......cuiiiiiiicic ettt 1,199 1,500
Accumulated other COMPrehenSiVe INCOME ........coueeuieeireeieieieienierte sttt etete e ste e sbesbesseeneeneens 5,186 4,453

Common equity $ 22499 § 21,568

The company is authorized to issue an unlimited number of Class A shares and 85,120 Class B shares, together referred to as
common shares. The company’s common shares have no stated par value. The holders of Class A shares and Class B shares rank
on parity with each other with respect to the payment of dividends and the return of capital on the liquidation, dissolution or
winding up of the company or any other distribution of the assets of the company among its shareholders for the purpose of winding
up its affairs. Holders of the Class A shares are entitled to elect one-half of the Board of Directors of the company and holders of
the Class B shares are entitled to elect the other one-half of the Board of Directors. With respect to the Class A and Class B shares,
there are no dilutive factors, material or otherwise, that would result in different diluted earnings per share between the classes.
This relationship holds true irrespective of the number of dilutive instruments issued in either one of the respective classes of
common stock, as both classes of shares participate equally, on a pro rata basis, in the dividends, earnings and net assets of the
company, whether taken before or after dilutive instruments, regardless of which class of shares are diluted.

Total dividends paid to Class A shares during 2016 amounted to $500 million (2015 — $450 million) or $0.52 per share (2015 —
$0.47 per share).

On June 20, 2016, the company paid a special dividend of approximately 19 million limited partnership units of a newly created
subsidiary, Brookfield Business Partners L.P. (“BBU”), to the holders of the company’s Class A and B shares. This was a common
control transaction and as such the special dividend of $441 million reflected in equity was based on the IFRS carrying value of
the 21% interest in BBU distributed to shareholders on June 20, 2016.
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The number of issued and outstanding common shares and unexercised options are as follows:

AS AT DEC. 31 2016 2015
Class A shares' 958,083,297 961,205,719
Class B shares 85,120 85,120
SRATES OULSTANAINE! oottt 958,168,417 961,290,839
Unexercised options and other share-based plans? ... 43,798,733 41,978,628
TOtal AITULEA SRATES ......cviieiiiieee ettt et et e et e st e et e eaeeeaeeeaeeeeennean 1,001,967,150 1,003,269,467

1. Net of 27,846,452 (2015 — 26,260,617) Class A shares held by the company in respect of long-term compensation agreements
2. Includes management share option plan and escrowed stock plan

The authorized common share capital consists of an unlimited number of shares. Shares issued and outstanding changed as follows:

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DEC. 31 2016 2015
Outstanding, BEGINNING OF YEAT .- vvrrvvrriveriiversisersssessssessssessss s s 961,290,839 928,227,520
Issued (repurchased)
ISSUAMCES ...ttt ettt e et e e bt e e it e e e ab e e e bt e e nbeeenb e e e nteeenteeenteas — 32,901,133
REPUICRASES .....uiiiiiiiii e 4,707,132) (11,504,163)
Long-term share OWnership Plans? ... 1,312,463 11,409,312
Dividend reinvestment plan and Others .........c..cooviriiiiiiiiiiieee e 272,247 257,037
OULSLANAING, EN OF YEAI! rrvvvvrvorrsvesssesssessseesssses s 958,168,417 961,290,839
1. Netof 27,846,452 (2015 — 26,260,617) Class A shares held by the company in respect of long-term compensation agreements
2. Includes management share option plan and restricted stock plan
i.  Earnings Per Share
The components of basic and diluted earnings per share are summarized in the following table:
5\(25 THE \é])-IARS ENDED DEC. 31 2016 2015
Net income attributable to Shareholders.........cceveririiiiirieieeee e $ 1,651 $ 2,341
Preferred share divIdends...........cccoeiiiriiiiiii e (133) (134)
Net income available to shareholders . $ 1,518 § 2,207
Weighted average — COMMON SHATES............eoiiuiriiiiieieiirieietet ettt 959.0 949.7
Dilutive effect of the conversion of options and escrowed shares using treasury stock method......... 17.6 26.0
Common shares and common share eqUIVALENES ........c.ccccceeereiririeineiniere e 976.6 975.7
ii. Share Based Compensation
The expense recognized for stock-based compensation is summarized in the following table:
(ic/I)IRL THE g-:ARs ENDED DEC. 31 2016 2015
Expense arising from equity-settled share-based payment transactions.............c.ceceeeevreereererieeeerennnns $ 64 3 67
Expense arising from cash-settled share-based payment transactions............cccoceeveeeeereererirenrereerennene 32 73
Total expense arising from share-based payment transactions 96 140
Effect of hed@ing PrOSram .........cccoeiiiriiiriiiic ettt ettt 27 (70)
Total expense included in consolidated INCOME..........ceruirieiriiiiiiieeeee e $ 69 $ 70

The share-based payment plans are described below. There have been no cancellations or modifications to any of the plans during

2016 and 2015.

2016 ANNUAL REPORT 155



1) Equity-settled Share-based Awards
a) Management Share Option Plan

Options issued under the company’s Management Share Option Plan (“MSOP”) vest over a period of up to five years, expire
10 years after the grant date, and are settled through issuance of Class A shares. The exercise price is equal to the market price at
the grant date.

The changes in the number of options during 2016 and 2015 were as follows:

Number of Weighted- Number of Weighted-
Options Average Options Average
(000’s)"! Exercise Price (000’s)>  Exercise Price
Outstanding at January 1, 2016..........cccoevveveeieeereeeeeeneenene 9,427 C$ 17.07 $ 28,488 USS$S 24.98
Granted.........ocooiiviiieiecie e — — 4,363 30.59
EXEICISCA ...c.viiieiciiciieiecceteteeeeteet ettt (1,743) 23.44 970) 22.00
Cancelled........ooveieieieeecece e e — — (398) 31.25
Outstanding at December 31, 2016.........cccoevevrivierieieeeerenee 7,684 C$ 15.63 31,483 USS 25.77
1. Options to acquire TSX listed Class A shares
2. Options to acquire NYSE listed Class A shares
Number of Weighted- Number of Weighted-
Options Average Optiong Average
(000’s)!  Exercise Price (000’s) Exercise Price
Outstanding at January 1, 2015 ........ccccooveivriieiieieeeen 21,283 C$ 16.50 $ 29,012 US$ 20.82
GIanted .........ocueiieiiiieie ettt e — — 6,293 35.76
EXEICISEA ....vovieviieiiiiicieieetee ettt (10,660) 16.32 (6,512) 16.73
Cancelled........ooiiiiieicieeeeee e — — (305) 27.63
Converted” (1,196) 13.61 — —
Outstanding at December 31, 2015 9,427 C$ 17.07 28,488 US$ 24.98

1. Options to acquire TSX listed Class A shares
2. Options to acquire NYSE listed Class A shares
3. Options converted to restricted shares at maturity

The cost of the options granted during the year was determined using the Black-Scholes valuation model, with inputs to the model
as follows:

YEARS ENDED DEC. 31 Unit 2016 2015'

Weighted-average share price................. US$ 30.59 35.76
Weighted-average fair value per option US$ 5.29 7.18
AVErage term t0 EXEICISC .....cueutrueurruirrerierenretiretenreeeteeetesaeseeseeesesaesnesennene Years 7.5 7.3
Share price VOLAIILY .............covveererreeeeeeeeeeeesseeseeeseeeseseeee e % 28.0 28.1
Liquidity diSCOUNL.......ccocvueriiiiiieiticiieiecieeteee ettt % 25.0 25.0
Weighted-average annual dividend yield... % 1.6 1.3
RISK-TTEE TALE ...ttt % 1.6 1.8

1. Adjusted to reflect the three-for-two stock split effective May 12, 2015
2. Share price volatility was determined based on historical share prices over a similar period to the average term to exercise
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At December 31, 2016, the following options to purchase Class A shares were outstanding:

Options Outstanding (000's)

Weighted-Average

Exercise Price Remaining Life Vested Unvested Total
COLLTT et 2.2 years 4,885 — 4,885
CS$18.20 —C$23.63 ... 1.1 years 2,159 — 2,159
C826.02 ..o 0.1 years 640 — 640
US$15.45 ... 3.2 years 5,153 — 5,153
US$16.83 —US$23.37 ..... 4.8 years 5,626 890 6,516
US$25.21 —USS$30.59 ..o 7.5 years 4,692 9,143 13,835
US$33.75 = US$36.32 ..ovvirieieces 8.1 years 949 5,030 5,979

24,104 15,063 39,167

At December 31, 2015, the following options to purchase Class A shares were outstanding:

Options Outstanding (000's)’

Weighted-Average

Exercise Price’ Remaining Life Vested Unvested Total
CSILT7T et 3.2 years 4,897 — 4,897
C818.20 — C$23.63 ..o 1.8 years 2,771 — 2,771
C826.02 ..o 1.1 years 1,759 — 1,759
US$15.45 4.2 years 5,290 — 5,290
US$16.83 —USS$23.37 v, 5.8 years 4,484 2,541 7,025
US8$25.21 —US$36.32 ..o 8.2 years 2,876 13,297 16,173

22,077 15,838 37,915

1. Adjusted to reflect the three-for-two stock split effective May 12, 2015

b)  Escrowed Stock Plan

The Escrowed Stock Plan (the “ES Plan”) provides executives with indirect ownership of Class A shares. Under the ES Plan,
executives are granted common shares (the “ES Shares”) in one or more private companies that own Class A shares. The Class A
shares are purchased on the open market with the purchase cost funded with the proceeds from preferred shares issued to
the company. The ES shares vest over one to five years and must be held until the fifth anniversary of the grant date. At a date
no less than five years, and no more than 10 years, from the grant date, all outstanding ES shares will be exchanged for Class A shares
issued by the company, based on the market value of Class A shares at the time of the exchange. The number of Class A shares
issued on exchange will be less than the Class A shares purchased under the ES Plan resulting in a net reduction in the number of
Class A shares issued by the company.

During 2016, 3.3 million Class A shares were purchased in respect of ES shares granted to executives under the ES Plan (2015 —
6.3 million Class A shares) during the year. For the year ended December 31, 2016, the total expense incurred with respect to the
ES Plan totalled $25.8 million (2015 — $27.6 million).
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The cost of the escrowed shares granted during the year was determined using the Black-Scholes model of valuation with inputs
to the model as follows:

YEARS ENDED DEC. 31 Unit 2016 2015'
Weighted-average share price............ooveveeeeveeieereeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeene e USS$ 30.59 35.52
Weighted-average fair value per share............cccoeveveeveeieieiieieieienesene US$ 5.29 6.51
AVErage term t0 EXCTCISC .. c.vevemeerirrerietirieuieteietinteseeteeesesteseesensesesbeneeseaseneas Years 7.5 6.3
Share Price VOIAtIILY ...........oveveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e % 28.0 272
Liquidity diSCOUNL........cecuiieiieriieticieteetee ettt nens % 25.0 25.0
Weighted-average annual dividend yield...........cccoooveininiininnieneien % 1.6 1.3
RISK-T@E TALE .....oveviieiieieieieeetee ettt % 1.6 1.6

1. Adjusted to reflect the three-for-two stock split effective May 12, 2015
2. Share price volatility was determined based on historical share prices over a similar period to the average term to exercise

The change in the number of ES shares during 2016 and 2015 was as follows:

Weighted-

Number of Average

Units (000’s) Exercise Price

Outstanding at January 1, 2016, .......c.ccoovivriiieiericeeeeeeeceeereete ettt ettt et e eas s nenne 20,938 $ 27.33
Granted 3,250 30.59
EXETCISEU ...ttt ettt ettt e et e e e et e eae e eteeeaeeeteeeteeeaeenteereereenreenreens (21) 21.74
Outstanding at December 31, 2016........c.ccieuieieriiieieieieeiecte ettt e ne e 24,167 $ 27.77
Weighted-

Number of Average

Units (000’s) Exercise Price

Outstanding at January 1, 2015 14,625 $ 23.80
GIANLEA" ..ot 6,313 35.52
Outstanding at December 31, 20151 ... ..ot see e 20,938 §$ 27.33

1. Adjusted to reflect the three-for-two stock split effective May 12, 2015

¢) Restricted Stock Plan

The Restricted Stock Plan awards executives with Class A shares purchased on the open market (“Restricted Shares”). Under the
Restricted Stock Plan, Restricted Shares awarded vest over a period of up to five years, except for Restricted Shares awarded in
lieu of a cash bonus, which may vest immediately. Vested and unvested Restricted Shares must be held until the fifth anniversary
of the award date. Holders of vested Restricted Shares are entitled to vote Restricted Shares and to receive associated dividends.
Employee compensation expense for the Restricted Stock Plan is charged against income over the vesting period.

During 2016, Brookfield granted 449,110 Class A shares (2015 — 347,403) pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Restricted
Stock Plan, resulting in the recognition of $11 million (2015 — $9 million) of compensation expense.

2) Cash-settled Share-based Awards
a) Restricted Share Unit Plan

The Restricted Share Unit Plan provides for the issuance of the Deferred Share Units (“DSUs”), as well as Restricted Share Units
(“RSUs”). Under this plan, qualifying employees and directors receive varying percentages of their annual incentive bonus or
directors’ fees in the form of DSUs. The DSUs and RSUs vest over periods of up to five years, and DSUs accumulate additional
DSUs at the same rate as dividends on common shares based on the market value of the common shares at the time of the dividend.
Participants are not allowed to convert DSUs and RSUs into cash until retirement or cessation of employment. The value of the
DSUs, when converted to cash, will be equivalent to the market value of the common shares at the time the conversion takes place.

158 BROOKFIELD ASSET MANAGEMENT



The value of the RSUs, when converted into cash, will be equivalent to the difference between the market price of equivalent
number of common shares at the time the conversion takes place and the market price on the date the RSUs are granted. The
company uses equity derivative contracts to offset its exposure to the change in share prices in respect of vested and unvested
DSUs and RSUs. The fair value of the vested DSUs and RSUs as at December 31, 2016 was $777 million (2015 — $706 million).

Employee compensation expense for these plans is charged against income over the vesting period of the DSUs and RSUs. The
amount payable by the company in respect of vested DSUs and RSUs changes as a result of dividends and share price movements.
All of the amounts attributable to changes in the amounts payable by the company are recorded as employee compensation expense
in the period of the change, and for the year ended December 31,2016, including those of operating subsidiaries, totalled $5 million

(2015 — $3 million), net of the impact of hedging arrangements.

The change in the number of DSUs and RSUs during 2016 and 2015 was as follows:

DSUs RSUs
Weighted-
Number Number Average
of Units of Units Exercise
(000’s) (000’s) Price
Outstanding at January 1, 2016..........ccccoeveerieieieieieciceeeeeeeve e 13,793 10,920 C$ 9.09
Granted and reinvested 1,264 — _
Exercised and canceled (71) — —
Outstanding at December 31, 2016..........c..cceeveeeeeviivieereeeeeeereeeeeeeean 14,986 10,920 CS$ 9.09
DSUs RSUs
Weighted-
Number Number Average
of Units of Units Exercise
(000’s) (000’s) Price
Outstanding at January 1, 2015" ..o eeen 13,712 10,920 C$ 9.09
Granted and reinvested' 491 — —
Exercised and canceled' (410) — —
Outstanding at December 31, 2015" ..o 13,793 10,920 C$ 9.09
1. Adjusted to reflect the three-for-two stock split effective May 12, 2015
The fair value of DSUs is equal to the traded price of the company’s common shares.
Unit Dec. 31, 2016 Dec. 31, 2015
Share price on date of measurement C$ 44.30 43.65
Share price on date of measurement Us$ 33.01 31.53
The fair value of RSUs was determined primarily using the following inputs:
Unit Dec. 31, 2016 Dec. 31, 2015
Share price on date of MEASUTEMENL...........cceeieieieieiereee e C$ 44.30 43.65
Weighted-average fair value of a unit C$ 35.21 34.56

22. REVENUES

Revenues include $14.7 billion (2015 — $12.0 billion) from the sale of goods, $8.4 billion (2015 — $7.2 billion) from the rendering

of services and $1.3 billion (2015 — $774 million) from other activities.
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23. DIRECT COSTS

Direct costs include all attributable expenses except interest, depreciation and amortization, taxes and fair value changes and
primarily relate to cost of sales and compensation. The following table lists direct costs for 2016 and 2015 by nature:

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DEC. 31

(MILLIONS) 2016 2015
COSE OF SALES ..ottt ettt et e et et et et et et e e eeeeea e e et eaeeae et et et eese s eeseeaeeneseeseeaeeas $ 12,487 $ 9,988
COMPENSALION........cvveereereereereereeteeteeteeseesteeseeseeteeseeseessessesseseesseseeseeseeseaseeseessessensensenseeseereereersereens 2,039 1,686
Selling, general and administrative expenses.... 1,544 1,264
Property taxes, sales taxes and OtheT............c.oceeviiviiriirieeieiceiceeee ettt 1,648 1,495

$ 17,718 § 14,433

24. FAIR VALUE CHANGES

Fair value changes recorded in net income represent gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of assets and liabilities,
including derivative financial instruments, accounted for using the fair value method and comprise the following:

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DEC. 31

(MILLIONS) 2016 2015
INVESTMENT PIOPEITIES ...ttt ene $ 9260 $ 2,275
General Growth Properties Warrants..............coeeiiiviiiiniiiiininccceseecnee e (110) (30)
Investment in Canary WRarf ..........cocooviiiii e — 150
Private equity INVEStMENTS' ............oovuerveeeeeeeeeeeeseseeeseeeceeeseee s s es e (665) (120)
Redeemable UNILS ...........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e (40) )
Transaction related AINS........coeoiiuiriiiiriiiie ettt ettt ene — 232
Impairments and other 275) (339)
$ (130) $ 2,166

1. Includes a loss of $447 million reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income to net income

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk (i.e. currency risk, interest rate risk, and
other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The company selectively uses derivative financial instruments principally to manage

these risks.

The aggregate notional amount of the company’s derivative positions at December 31, 2016 and 2015 is as follows:

AS AT DEC. 31

($ MILLIONS) Note 2016 2015
Foreign exchange (a) $ 21,782 $ 18,192
IIEETESE TALES ...t ettt ettt e e e et e e e et e e e teeeeraeesaaeeesaeeesnteesnseesaseeesnaeessseesnes (b) 17,092 15,699
Credit defatlt SWAPS .....ceoviivierieiiceeceee ettt ettt ettt et eve et b et e ereeaeereereens (c) 182 870
EQUILY AETIVALIVES ....eoveiveieeceeitictecteete ettt e ete et e seeneereereeveeteeteene et ensenteeseeseersenis (d) 2,583 2,170
CommOAity INSIIUMENLS ........covievierierierierieieeeiteeteereereereeteesseseteeseeseeteeseersessessesseesesseereereens (e) 2016 2015

Energy (GWh) 15,904 36,679

Natural gas (MMBEU — 00078) .....c.ccveiiieriiriiitiirietieeeeetet ettt eee e reeeessessessesvesseeseas 9,150 10,295
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a) Foreign Exchange

The company held the following foreign exchange contracts with notional amounts at December 31,2016 and December 31, 2015:

Notional Amount

(U.S. Dollars) Average Exchange Rate
(MILLIONS) 2016 2015 2016 2015
Foreign exchange contracts
BritiSh pOUNAS ........ouoiieiieieeeeeceeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 6,231 $ 4,596 $ 126 $ 1.49
Australian dollars...........c.ccoveeinniernee e 5,022 3,017 0.74 0.73
European Union @UIOS...........cveeeeereeereeireeeieereeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeveeeneens 1,855 1,641 1.11 1.11
Canadian dollars 1,405 493 0.75 0.77
Brazilian Teais ........ccovueueiririeeeirrieicenseeeeeee e 511 379 3.15 4.00
KOT@AN WOM .....couviiiieiiiieieceee et 485 0 1,152.60 —
ChiNESE YUAN......cviiiiirictietietieeiee ettt ettt a s ss e saeeeas 252 308 7.06 6.70
JAPANESE YOM.....uviiiiiceiiciieciiecteeeteete ettt re et et 203 12 116.35 110.00
INAIAN TUPCES....ovvieevieeeectieeeeeete ettt et e ene e 186 — 69.83 —
Cross currency interest rate swaps
Canadian dolIars...........cocovueeiririeirenrieeesee e 2,269 2,679 0.82 0.82
Australian dolIars...........ccoooevvieeiiiiiieeieeeeeeeeeeee e 1,484 1,503 0.99 0.99
European Union €UIO0S............ceceeieieriirriirieriereeeeeeeeesessessesseenens 530 — 1.06 —
BritiSh pOUNAS .....c..oovieiiieiciiciececeeeeeee e e 249 296 1.49 1.48
COoloMDbIAN PESOS ....cuvieevieeeeereeceeeeteeete ettt ete e eere et ereeaees 125 — 3,056 —
Foreign exchange options
Australian dollars...........c.ccoveiinneernee e — 1,443 — 0.81
BritiSh pOUNAS .......ccvieiiiieiiciicceceecce e — 1,312 — 1.41
ChiNESE YUAN......ccviiiiitictietietieiieit ettt ettt s s ssesae e — 500 — 6.75
Brazilian Teais ........cccovueveirinieieinriee e — 14 — 3.77
Japanese yen 975 — 118 —

Included in net income are unrealized net losses on foreign currency derivative contracts amounting to $62 million (2015 —
$98 million) and included in the cumulative translation adjustment account in other comprehensive income are gains in respect
of foreign currency contracts entered into for hedging purposes amounting to $893 million (2015 — $1,155 million).

b) Interest Rates

At December 31, 2016, the company held interest rate swap contracts having an aggregate notional amount of $6.6 billion (2015
— $7.8 billion), interest rate swaptions with an aggregate notional amount of $4.1 billion (2015 — $2.6 billion), and interest rate
cap contracts with an aggregate notional amount of $6.4 billion (2015 — $5.3 billion).

¢) Credit Default Swaps

As at December 31, 2016, the company held credit default swap contracts with an aggregate notional amount of $182 million
(2015 — $870 million). Credit default swaps are contracts which are designed to compensate the purchaser for any change in the
value of an underlying reference asset, based on measurement in credit spreads, upon the occurrence of predetermined credit
events. The company is entitled to receive payments in the event of a predetermined credit event for up to $100 million (2015 —
$800 million) of the notional amount and could be required to make payments in respect of $82 million (2015 — $70 million) of
the notional amount.

d) Equity Derivatives

At December 31, 2016, the company held equity derivatives with a notional amount of $2,583 million (2015 — $2,170 million)
which includes $988 million (2015 — $799 million) notional amount that hedges long-term compensation arrangements. The
balance represents common equity positions established in connection with the company’s investment activities. The fair value
of these instruments was reflected in the company’s consolidated financial statements at year end.
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e) Commodity Instruments

The company has entered into energy derivative contracts primarily to hedge the sale of generated power. The company endeavours
to link forward electricity sale derivatives to specific periods in which it expects to generate electricity for sale. All energy derivative
contracts are recorded at an amount equal to fair value and are reflected in the company’s consolidated financial statements. The
company has purchased 10,820,000 MMBtu’s of natural gas financial contracts and sold 10,040,000 MMBtu’s of natural gas
financial contracts as part of its electricity sale price risk mitigation strategy.

Other Information Regarding Derivative Financial Instruments

The following table classifies derivatives elected for hedge accounting during the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 as
either cash flow hedges or net investment hedges. Changes in the fair value of the effective portion of the hedge are recorded in
either other comprehensive income or net income, depending on the hedge classification, whereas changes in the fair value of the
ineffective portion of the hedge are recorded in net income:

2016 2015
Effective Ineffective Effective  Ineffective
F}S{RLE%%\]?)EARS FNDED DECEMBER 31 Notional Portion Portion Notional Portion Portion
Cash flow hedges' ........oo.ovovorreoreerrereerrn, $ 11,998 § 149 § (13) $ 13,210 $ 197 $ (1)
Net investment hedges..........c.ccoeeeviereeneennn. 13,973 129 — 8,447 75 —
$ 25971 § 278 $ 13) $ 21,657 $ 272 $ @))

1. Notional amount does not include 8,561 GWh and 9,119 GWh of commodity derivatives at December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively

The following table presents the change in fair values of the company’s derivative positions during the years ended December 31,
2016 and 2015, for derivatives that are fair valued through profit or loss, and derivatives that qualify for hedge accounting:

Unrealized Unrealized

Gains During Losses Net Change Net Change
(MILLIONS) 2016 During 2016  During 2016 During 2015
Foreign exchange derivatives.............cccoeveveeveveeveeereeeeeereeeennes $ 55 $ a7 s ©62) $ 199
Interest rate deriVatiVES ........c.cocvieveeeeieieeeeereeeeeere et 120 (10) 110 (61)
Credit default SWaPS......c.ccevvievierierieiieieieiececre et — 5) Q)] 2
EqQUIty deriVAtiVES .......cceevierereieeteete et eve e eeeenens 110 (119) ) 61
Commodity derivatives... 41 32) 9 54

$ 326 $ (283) $ 43 3 255

162 BROOKFIELD ASSET MANAGEMENT



The following table presents the notional amounts underlying the company’s derivative instruments by term to maturity as at
December 31, 2016 and the comparative notional amounts at December 31, 2015, for derivatives that are classified as fair value
through profit or loss, and derivatives that qualify for hedge accounting:

2016 2015

&SR?I{B%%S%I <1 Year 1to5 Years >5 Years Total NA(:SSSI?: Total Ii(ﬁgﬁﬁi
Fair value through profit or loss
Foreign exchange derivatives $ 2,610 $ 2,009 $ 446 $ 5,065 $ 6,911
Interest rate derivatives ............ccevvevevennne 5,521 2,262 55 7,838 5,342
Credit default SWapS........ccoeeevieeeereeennennn. 100 82 — 182 870
Equity derivatives........c.ccoeeereereerrerreneennene. 1,854 706 — 2,560 2,151
Commodity instruments .................cocevenene

Energy (GWh) ..ccoovivviiieeee 2,207 5,136 — 7,343 27,560

Natural gas (MMBtu — 000’s).................. 4,965 4,185 — 9,150 10,295
Elected for hedge accounting
Foreign exchange derivatives.. $ 13,452 § 1,576 $ 1,689 $ 16,717 $ 11,281
Interest rate derivatives ............cocoevevevennene. 4,127 4,294 833 9,254 10,357
Equity derivatives.........c.cocoevveeereeeeeeeennnn. — 24 — 24 19
Commodity instruments ............cc.ceceeereeene

Energy (GWh) ...ccooeiiiviiiiieeeee 5,302 3,259 — 8,561 9,119

26. MANAGEMENT OF RISKS ARISING FROM HOLDING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The company is exposed to the following risks as a result of holding financial instruments: market risk (i.e. interest rate risk,
currency risk and other price risk that impact the fair value of financial instruments); credit risk; and liquidity risk. The following
is a description of these risks and how they are managed:

a) Market Risk

Market risk is defined for these purposes as the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument held by the
company will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk includes the risk of changes in interest rates, currency
exchange rates and changes in market prices due to factors other than interest rates or currency exchange rates, such as changes
in equity prices, commodity prices or credit spreads.

The company manages market risk from foreign currency assets and liabilities and the impact of changes in currency exchange
rates and interest rates, by funding assets with financial liabilities in the same currency and with similar interest rate characteristics,
and holding financial contracts such as interest rate and foreign exchange derivatives to minimize residual exposures.

Financial instruments held by the company that are subject to market risk include other financial assets, borrowings, and derivative
instruments such as interest rate, currency, equity and commodity contracts.

i.  Interest Rate Risk

The observable impacts on the fair values and future cash flows of financial instruments that can be directly attributable to interest
rate risk include changes in the net income from financial instruments whose cash flows are determined with reference to floating
interest rates and changes in the value of financial instruments whose cash flows are fixed in nature.

The company’s assets largely consist of long-duration interest-sensitive physical assets. Accordingly, the company’s financial
liabilities consist primarily of long-term fixed-rate debt or floating-rate debt that has been swapped with interest rate derivatives.
These financial liabilities are, with few exceptions, recorded at their amortized cost. The company also holds interest rate caps to
limit its exposure to increases in interest rates on floating rate debt that has not been swapped, and holds interest rate contracts
to lock in fixed rates on anticipated future debt issuances and as an economic hedge against the values of long duration interest
sensitive physical assets that have not been otherwise matched with fixed rate debt.

The result of a 50 basis-point increase in interest rates on the company’s net floating rate financial assets and liabilities would
have resulted in a corresponding decrease in net income before tax of $45 million (2015 — $46 million) on an annualized basis.
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Changes in the value of fair value through profit or loss interest rate contracts are recorded in net income and changes in the value
of contracts that are elected for hedge accounting are recorded in other comprehensive income. The impact of a 50 basis-point
parallel increase in the yield curve on the aforementioned financial instruments is estimated to result in a corresponding increase
in net income of $26 million (2015 — $23 million) and an increase in other comprehensive income of $72 million (2015 —
$124 million), before tax for the year ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015.

ii. Currency Exchange Rate Risk

Changes in currency rates will impact the carrying value of financial instruments denominated in currencies other than the
U.S. dollar.

The company holds financial instruments with net unmatched exposures in several currencies, changes in the translated value of
which are recorded in net income. The impact of a 1% increase in the U.S. dollar against these currencies would have resulted in
an $38 million (2015 — $24 million) increase in the value of these positions on a combined basis. The impact on cash flows from
financial instruments would be insignificant. The company holds financial instruments to limit its exposure to the impact of foreign
currencies on its net investments in foreign operations whose functional and reporting currencies are other than the U.S. dollar.
A 1% increase in the U.S. dollar would increase the value of these hedging instruments by $133 million (2015 — $66 million) as
at December 31, 2016, which would be recorded in other comprehensive income and offset by changes in the U.S. dollar carrying
value of the net investment being hedged.

iii. Other Price Risk

Other price risk is the risk of variability in fair value due to movements in equity prices or other market prices such as commodity
prices and credit spreads.

Financial instruments held by the company that are exposed to equity price risk include equity securities and equity derivatives.
A 5% decrease in the market price of equity securities and equity derivatives held by the company, excluding equity derivatives that
hedge compensation arrangements, would have decreased net income by $161 million (2015 — $79 million) and decreased other
comprehensive income by $48 million (2015 — $70 million), prior to taxes. The company’s liability in respect of equity
compensation arrangements is subject to variability based on changes in the company’s underlying common share price. The
company holds equity derivatives to hedge almost all of the variability. A 5% change in the common equity price of the company
in respect of compensation agreements would increase the compensation liability and compensation expense by $52 million (2015
— $46 million). This increase would be offset by a $52 million (2015 — $45 million) change in value of the associated equity
derivatives of which $51 million (2015 — $45 million) would offset the above mentioned increase in compensation expense and
the remaining $1 million (2015 — $1 million) would be recorded in other comprehensive income.

The company sells power and generation capacity under long-term agreements and financial contracts to stabilize future revenues.
Certain of the contracts are considered financial instruments and are recorded at fair value in the consolidated financial statements,
with changes in value being recorded in either net income or other comprehensive income as applicable. A 5% increase in energy
prices would have decreased net income for the year ended December 31, 2016 by approximately $15 million (2015 — $16 million)
and decreased other comprehensive income by $16 million (2015 — $17 million), prior to taxes. The corresponding increase in
the value of the revenue or capacity being contracted, however, is not recorded in net income until subsequent periods.

The company held credit default swap contracts with a total notional amount of $182 million (2015 —$870 million) at December 31,
2016. The company is exposed to changes in the credit spread of the contracts’ underlying reference asset. A 50 basis-point increase
in the credit spread of the underlying reference assets would have decreased net income by $2.4 million (2015 — $1.8 million
increase) for the year ended December 31, 2016, prior to taxes.

b) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss due to the failure of a borrower or counterparty to fulfill its contractual obligations. The company’s
exposure to creditrisk inrespect of financial instruments relates primarily to counterparty obligations regarding derivative contracts,
loans receivable and credit investments such as bonds and preferred shares.

The company assesses the credit worthiness of each counterparty before entering into contracts and ensures that counterparties
meet minimum credit quality requirements. Management evaluates and monitors counterparty credit risk for derivative financial
instruments and endeavours to minimize counterparty credit risk through diversification, collateral arrangements, and other credit
risk mitigation techniques. The credit risk of derivative financial instruments is generally limited to the positive fair value of the
instruments, which, in general, tends to be a relatively small proportion of the notional value. Substantially all of the company’s
derivative financial instruments involve either counterparties that are banks or other financial institutions in North America, the
United Kingdom and Australia, or arrangements that have embedded credit risk mitigation features. The company does not expect
to incur credit losses in respect of any of these counterparties. The maximum exposure in respect of loans receivable and credit
investments is equal to the carrying value.
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¢) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company cannot meet a demand for cash or fund an obligation as it comes due. Liquidity risk
also includes the risk of not being able to liquidate assets in a timely manner at a reasonable price.

To ensure the company is able to react to contingencies and investment opportunities quickly, the company maintains sources of
liquidity at the corporate and subsidiary level. The primary source of liquidity consists of cash and other financial assets, net
of deposits and other associated liabilities, and undrawn committed credit facilities.

The company is subject to the risks associated with debt financing, including the ability to refinance indebtedness at maturity. The
company believes these risks are mitigated through the use of long-term debt secured by high quality assets, maintaining debt
levels that are in management’s opinion relatively conservative, and by diversifying maturities over an extended period of time.
The company also seeks to include in its agreements terms that protect the company from liquidity issues of counterparties that
might otherwise impact the company’s liquidity.

The following tables present the contractual maturities of the company’s financial liabilities at December 31, 2016 and 2015:

Payments Due by Period
?&(ﬁ[@ﬁ%‘z MBER 31,2016 <1 Year 1to 3 Years 4to5 Years  After 5 Years Total
Principal repayments
Corporate borrowings............cc.eveveveenens $ 425 § 447 $ 260 $ 3,368 $ 4,500
Property-specific mortgages.... 7,655 13,965 13,467 17,355 52,442
Other debt of subsidiaries..............c.c........ 866 2,699 1,955 2,429 7,949
Subsidiary equity obligations .................. 421 143 1,217 1,784 3,565
Interest expensel
Corporate borrowings............cceevevevennens 201 375 342 878 1,796
Non-recourse borrowings ........................ 2,776 4,549 3,219 4,378 14,922
Subsidiary equity obligations .................. 198 376 318 378 1,270

1. Represents the aggregated interest expense expected to be paid over the term of the obligations. Variable interest rate payments have been calculated based on current
rates

Payments Due by Period
fﬁI[L\EIgI%g?MBER 32018 <l Year 1to 3 Years 4to 5 Years After 5 Years Total
Principal repayments
Corporate borrowings..........c.eceevevevennens $ 217 $ 419 $ 591 $ 2,709 $ 3,936
Property-specific mortgages.................... 9,426 11,991 8,622 16,005 46,044
Other debt of subsidiaries............c.ccc...... 1,839 2,010 2,253 2,201 8,303
Subsidiary equity obligations .................. 501 — — 2,830 3,331
Interest expense1
Corporate borrowings...........cccceeeveueneencns 188 322 284 826 1,620
Non-recourse borrowings ........................ 2,128 3,426 2,438 3,684 11,676
Subsidiary equity obligations 123 234 234 437 1,028

1. Represents the aggregated interest expense expected to be paid over the term of the obligations. Variable interest rate payments have been calculated based on current
rates
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27. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The capital of the company consists of the components of equity in the company’s consolidated balance sheet (i.e. common and
preferred equity). As at December 31, 2016, the recorded values of these items in the company’s consolidated financial statements
totalled $26.5 billion (2015 — $25.3 billion).

The company’s objectives when managing this capital are to maintain an appropriate balance between holding a sufficient amount
of capital to support its operations, which includes maintaining investment-grade ratings at the corporate level, and providing
shareholders with a prudent amount of leverage to enhance returns. Corporate leverage, which consists of corporate debt as well
as subsidiary obligations that are guaranteed by the company or are otherwise considered corporate in nature, totalled $4.5 billion
based on carrying values at December 31,2016 (2015 — $3.9 billion). The company monitors its capital base and leverage primarily
in the context of its deconsolidated debt-to-total capitalization ratios. The ratio as at December 31, 2016 was 14% (2015 — 13%).

The consolidated capitalization of the company includes the capital and financial obligations of consolidated entities, including
long-term property-specific financings, subsidiary borrowings, capital securities as well as common and preferred equity held by
other investors in these entities. The capital in these entities is managed at the entity level with oversight by management of the
company. The capital is managed with the objective of maintaining investment-grade levels in most circumstances and is, except
in limited and carefully managed circumstances, without any recourse to the company. Management of the company also takes
into consideration capital requirements of consolidated and non-consolidated entities that it has interests in when considering the
appropriate level of capital and liquidity on a deconsolidated basis.

The company is subject to limited covenants in respect of its corporate debt and is in full compliance with all such covenants as
at December 31, 2016 and 2015. The company is also in compliance with all covenants and other capital requirements related to
regulatory or contractual obligations of material consequence to the company.

28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
a) Related Parties

Related parties include subsidiaries, associates, joint arrangements, key management personnel, the Board of Directors
(“Directors”), immediate family members of key management personnel and Directors, and entities which are, directly or indirectly,
controlled by, jointly controlled by or significantly influenced by key management personnel, Directors or their close family
members.

b) Key Management Personnel and Directors

Key management personnel are those individuals who have the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling
the company’s activities, directly or indirectly, and consist of the company’s Senior Managing Partners. The company’s Directors
do not plan, direct or control the activities of the company directly; they provide oversight over the business.

The remuneration of Directors and other key management personnel of the company during the years ended December 31, 2016
and 2015 was as follows:

fﬁﬁ{ﬂ)ﬁ\]\é;ﬁARS ENDED DEC. 31 2016 2015
Salaries, incentives and Short-term DENETItS ...........cc.ooiiiiiiiiiiiicece et $ 19 $ 19
Share-based PAYIMENLS.........cc.ccuiviiriiiiiiiietiereeeeet ettt ettt ettt eae e b e b e b e st e steeteeseeseessessessessesessesseessessens 50 55

$ 69 § 74

The remuneration of Directors and key executives is determined by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors having
regard to the performance of individuals and market funds.

¢) Related Party Transactions

In the normal course of operations, the company executes transactions on market terms with related parties, which have been
measured at exchange value and are recognized in the consolidated financial statements, including, but not limited to: base
management fees, performance fees and incentive distributions; loans, interest and non-interest bearing deposits; power purchase
and sale agreements; capital commitments to private funds; the acquisition and disposition of assets and businesses; derivative
contracts; and the construction and development of assets.
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The following table lists the related party balances included within the consolidated financial statements as at and for the years
ended December 31, 2016 and 2015:

?&IQEISEIS))FOR THE YEARS ENDED DEC. 31 2016 2015
FINANCIAL @SSELS ...ttt ettt et et et e e e e e e eeeeeeeaeeueeet et e s e s eeseeneeseseeeeeeeteeeeeseesenaeneeeeeeneeeenen $ 1,254 § 1,364
INVeStMEnt and OThEeT TOSSES ..........cieviiviirieeeieeee ettt ettt ettt e e ereete e te e ens et et e teeseeaeensersens (110) (30)
Management fEES TECEIVEA. ......cuiviirieriirieiieeeeeeeetete ettt et et et esse b essesteeteeseeseessessessessesessessesseeseas 56 28

As at December 31, 2016, financial assets of $1.3 billion (2015 — $1.4 billion) represents warrants that BPY holds which are
convertible into common shares of GGP.

In connection with our newly launched open-ended real estate fund, BPY contributed certain operating buildings and development
projects for net proceeds of approximately $500 million, which was received in the form of cash and limited partner interest in
the fund. The company is the general partner of the fund and will earn fees for the management of this fund. This fund is equity
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements of the company.

In April 2015, the Corporation issued 32.9 million Class A shares. Current officers, directors and shareholders of Brookfield, and
entities controlled by them, purchased an aggregate of 2.1 million Class A shares as part of this issuance. The aggregate gross
proceeds of the issuance was $1.2 billion.

29. OTHER INFORMATION
a) Commitments, Guarantees and Contingencies

In the normal course of business, the company enters into contractual obligations which include commitments to provide bridge
financing, letters of credit, guarantees and reinsurance obligations. At the end of 2016, the company has $2.6 billion (2015 —
$906 million) of such commitments outstanding. The company also had $5.2 billion of future operating lease obligations at
December 31, 2016, of which $4.4 billion relates to land leases with agreements largely expiring after the year 2065.

In addition, the company executes agreements that provide for indemnifications and guarantees to third parties in transactions or
dealings such as business dispositions, business acquisitions, sales of assets, provision of services, securitization agreements, and
underwriting and agency agreements. The company has also agreed to indemnify its directors and certain of its officers
and employees. The nature of substantially all of the indemnification undertakings prevents the company from making a reasonable
estimate of the maximum potential amount the company could be required to pay third parties, as in most cases, the agreements
do not specify a maximum amount, and the amounts are dependent upon the outcome of future contingent events, the nature and
likelihood of which cannot be determined at this time. Neither the company nor its consolidated subsidiaries have made significant
payments in the past nor do they expect at this time to make any significant payments under such indemnification agreements in
the future.

The company periodically enters into joint ventures, consortium or other arrangements that have contingent liquidity rights in
favour of the company or its counterparties. These include buy sell arrangements, registration rights and other customary
arrangements. These agreements generally have embedded protective terms that mitigate the risk to us. The amount, timing and
likelihood of any payments by the company under these arrangements is, in most cases, dependent on either further contingent
events or circumstances applicable to the counterparty and therefore cannot be determined at this time.

The company is contingently liable with respect to litigation and claims that arise in the normal course of business. It is not
reasonably possible that any of the ongoing litigation as at December 31, 2016 could result in a material settlement liability.

The company has up to $4 billion of insurance for damage and business interruption costs sustained as a result of an act of terrorism.
However, a terrorist act could have a material effect on the company’s assets to the extent damages exceed the coverage.

The company, through its subsidiaries within the residential properties operations, is contingently liable for obligations of its
associates in its land development joint ventures. In each case, all of the assets of the joint venture are available first for the purpose
of satisfying these obligations, with the balance shared among the participants in accordance with predetermined joint venture
arrangements.

The Corporation has entered into arrangements with respect to the $1.8 billion of exchangeable preferred equity units issued by
BPY discussed in Note 19, which are redeemable in equal tranches of $600 million in 2021, 2024 and 2026, respectively.
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The preferred equity units are exchangeable into equity units of BPY at $25.70 per unit, at the option of the holder, at any time
up to and including the maturity date. BPY may redeem the preferred equity units after specified periods if the BPY equity unit
price exceeds predetermined amounts. At maturity, the preferred equity units will be converted into BPY equity units at the lower
of $25.70 or the then market price of a BPY equity unit. In order to provide the purchaser with enhanced liquidity, the Corporation
has agreed to purchase the preferred equity units for cash at the option of the holder, for the initial purchase price plus accrued
and unpaid dividends. In order to decrease dilution risk to BPY, the Corporation has agreed with the holder and BPY that if the
price of a BPY equity unit is less than 80% of the exchange price of $25.70 at the redemption date of the 2021 and 2024 tranches,
the Corporation will acquire the preferred equity units subject to redemption, at the redemption price, and to exchange these
preferred equity units for preferred equity units with similar terms and conditions, including redemption date, as the 2026 tranche.

b) Insurance

The company conducts insurance operations as part of its corporate activities. As at December 31,2016, the company held insurance
assets of $77 million (2015 — $88 million) in respect of insurance contracts that are accounted for using the deposit method which
were offset in each year by an equal amount of reserves and other liabilities. During 2016, net underwriting losses on reinsurance
operations were $9 million (2015 — gains of $9 million) representing $nil (2015 — $1 million) of premium and other revenues and
$8 million (2015 — recoveries of $8 million) of reserves and other expenses.

¢) Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Sustaining capital expenditures in the company’s renewable power operations were $67 million (2015 —$60 million), in its property
operations were $300 million (2015 — $294 million) and in its infrastructure operations were $390 million (2015 — $156 million).

During the year, the company has capitalized $229 million (2015 — $331 million) of interest primarily to investment properties
and residential inventory under development.
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS AND
INFORMATION

This Annual Report contains “forward-looking information” within the meaning of Canadian provincial securities laws and
“forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended, Section 21E of
the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, “safe harbour” provisions of the United States Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995 and in any applicable Canadian securities regulations. Forward-looking statements include statements that
are predictive in nature, depend upon or refer to future events or conditions, include statements regarding the operations, business,
financial condition, expected financial results, performance, prospects, opportunities, priorities, targets, goals, ongoing objectives,
strategies and outlook of the Corporation and its subsidiaries, as well as the outlook for North American and international economies
for the current fiscal year and subsequent periods, and include words such as “expects,” “anticipates,” “plans,” “believes,”
“estimates,” “seeks,” “intends,” “targets,” “projects,” “forecasts” or negative versions thereof and other similar expressions, or
future or conditional verbs such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “would” and “could.”

EEINT3

EENT3 EEIT3

Although we believe that our anticipated future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by the forward-looking
statements and information are based upon reasonable assumptions and expectations, the reader should not place undue reliance
on forward-looking statements and information because they involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors,
many of which are beyond our control, which may cause the actual results, performance or achievements of the Corporation to
differ materially from anticipated future results, performance or achievement expressed or implied by such forward-looking
statements and information.

Factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those contemplated or implied by forward-looking statements
include, but are not limited to: the impact or unanticipated impact of general economic, political and market factors in the countries
in which we do business; the behaviour of financial markets, including fluctuations in interest and foreign exchange rates; global
equity and capital markets and the availability of equity and debt financing and refinancing within these markets; strategic actions
including dispositions; the ability to complete and effectively integrate acquisitions into existing operations and the ability to attain
expected benefits; changes in accounting policies and methods used to report financial condition (including uncertainties associated
with critical accounting assumptions and estimates); the ability to appropriately manage human capital; the effect of applying
future accounting changes; business competition; operational and reputational risks; technological change; changes in government
regulation and legislation within the countries in which we operate; governmental investigations; litigation; changes in tax laws;
ability to collect amounts owed; catastrophic events, such as earthquakes and hurricanes; the possible impact of international
conflicts and other developments including terrorist acts and cyber terrorism; and other risks and factors detailed from time to
time in our documents filed with the securities regulators in Canada and the United States.

We caution that the foregoing list of important factors that may affect future results is not exhaustive. When relying on our forward-
looking statements, investors and others should carefully consider the foregoing factors and other uncertainties and potential
events. Except as required by law, the Corporation undertakes no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking
statements or information, whether written or oral, that may be as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.
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BROOKFIELD’S COMMITMENT TO CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Across Brookfield, we recognize that our success depends on the long-term health of the communities in which we conduct
business and the environment in which we operate. Around the world, we invest in real assets that are essential to the global
economy, and we operate these assets with the view that we will own them forever. That long-term approach dictates both our
investment strategy and our commitment to corporate social responsibility. We believe that the pursuit of shareholder value and
sustainable development are complementary goals.

Brookfield’s Board of Directors, management and operating employees strive for excellence in all our operations. We seek to
ensure the well-being and safety of our employees and the public by meeting or exceeding all applicable labour laws and standards
of the jurisdictions in which we operate by offering competitive wages to employees, providing safe work environments, and
implementing non-discriminatory hiring practices. Furthermore, we aim to mitigate the impact of our operations on the
environment, to be actively engaged in the communities in which we operate and always work to be good corporate citizens.
Finally, we conduct our business according to the highest ethical and regulatory standards. Below are some examples of the
different initiatives across our organization.

Employee Well-being

Because our employees are integral to our success, our management teams maintain high standards with respect to employee
welfare. Safety training and protocols are constantly refined, and health and safety metrics are reviewed regularly. Our goal is to
have zero serious safety incidents by following a robust set of health and safety principles that are applied across our organization.

For example, in our office property portfolio, we foster a safe environment by offering our security and fire and life safety teams
as a resource to tenants as they develop their individual security and preparedness plans, organizing and managing not only the
required fire and shelter-in-place drills, but being able to create and facilitate other safety drills at tenant requests.

Within our infrastructure business, we have worked with our operating businesses on a number of initiatives to improve the health
and safety of our operating professionals. In an attempt to decrease roadside incidents of our roadside workers and tollbooth
operators, our Brazilian toll roads business has installed concrete barriers, constructed pedestrian overpasses, and installed speed
radars at job sites. This business also introduced electro-mechanical ‘flagmen robots’ to stand in place of road workers, an industry
first.

Environmental Stewardship

Across our portfolio of long-life, high quality assets, we are committed to improving energy efficiency and minimizing any
environmental impact of our operations.

For example, in our office property portfolio, we judge our performance against standards that include the Global Real Estate
Sustainability Benchmark (GRESB), an independently run assessment of the environmental performance of commercial properties.
In 2016, we have been identified as a GRESB Survey Green Star for the fourth straight year, ranking in the 87th percentile of all
GRESB respondents. This survey rates our operations on seven sustainability standards, and we have ranked well above both our
peer group and the global GRESB average.

Within our renewable power business, 53 of Brookfield Renewable’s North American hydro facilities are now certified by the
Low Impact Hydropower Institute (LIHI). LIHI is a non-profit organization dedicated to reducing the impact of hydropower
generation through the certification of hydropower projects that have avoided or reduced their environmental impacts, such as
water quality protection, upstream and downstream fish passages, and threatened and endangered species protection.

Our Canadian District Energy operator, which is part of our infrastructure business, offers the world’s largest lake-source cooling
system, a $250 million project that resulted in a 90% reduction in energy usage for the Toronto heat exchange system.

Lastly, our private equity group operates a global construction business that received the 2016 Most Sustainable Construction and
Demolition Project award for adopting innovative environmental practices throughout the demolition and construction phases of
a commercial office project in the U.K. A key initiative ensured that more than 340 tonnes of glass facade was processed and
recycled into new glass products, preventing 227,000 kg of CO2 being released into the atmosphere — the equivalent of energy
needed to power 133 homes for a year.

Community Engagement

We believe that building strong partnerships with local and national stakeholders is good business. To ensure our interests are
aligned, we continually look to involve our local communities and other stakeholders in both our existing businesses and our new
investments.
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In 2016, our arts and events program, Arts Brookfield, staged more than 500 free cultural events, attracting thousands of visitors.
One such event, I Never Saw Another Butterfly, was presented in partnership with the Holocaust Museum of Houston. For over
20 years, the Museum has collected 1.5 million handmade butterfly artworks as part of its Butterfly Project, each representing the
1.5 million children who perished in the Holocaust. The Arts Brookfield-sponsored exhibit at the Allen Center gathered more than
200 additional butterflies from the community to expand upon the display.

In addition, we regularly engage with the communities in which we operate to ensure their interests are appropriately integrated
into our business decisions. For example, sourcing both labour and materials locally is important to us. In the case of our Australian
regulated terminal operator, one of the largest employers in the region, policies are in place to help award significant contracts to
local businesses where appropriate. Furthermore, our Colombian Regulated Electricity Distribution business regularly engages
in community outreach programs and advertising campaigns to educate the community on the public safety risks associated with
electricity infrastructure.

Corporate Citizenship

We encourage and support a culture of philanthropy and volunteerism among our employees around the world. Through our people,
we are a leader in communities, and our commitment shows in everyday activities — that are both in support of charities and in
exceptional contributions we make during times of need.

All of our employees are encouraged to participate in community activities and fundraising, and our executives hold leadership
positions on the boards and capital campaigns at major charities and public institutions, such as hospitals and universities. Many
of our philanthropic and volunteer initiatives are global in scope, but local in focus. For example, we are long-time sponsors of a
program that provides education assistance to gifted students from low income neighbourhoods in Rio de Janeiro. And we stage
charity stair climbing challenges at our office buildings in major financial centres, for causes such as the United Way.

Brookfield’s Commitment to Corporate Governance

On behalf of all shareholders, the Board of Directors and management of Brookfield are committed to excellence in corporate
governance at all levels of the organization. We believe Brookfield’s directors are well equipped to represent the interests of the
Corporation and its shareholders, with an independent chair leading a Board that features global business experience, diversity
and proven governance skills. We continually strive to ensure that we have sound governance practices to maintain investor
confidence. We constantly review our approach to governance in relation to evolving legislation, guidelines and best practices.
Our Board of Directors is of the view that our corporate governance policies and practices, and our disclosure in this regard are
appropriate, effective and consistent with the guidelines established by Canadian and U.S. securities regulators.

Our Board of Directors believes that communication with shareholders is a critical element of good governance and the Board
encourages all shareholders to express their views, including by way of an advisory shareholder resolution on executive
compensation which is voted on annually by holders of Class A shares.

Brookfield outlines its commitment to good governance in the Statement of Corporate Governance Practices (the Statement),
published each year in the Corporation’s Management Information Circular and mailed to shareholders who request it. The
Statement is also available on our website, www.brookfield.com, at “Shareholders / Brookfield Asset Management / Corporate
Governance / Governance Documents.”

Shareholders can also access the following documents that outline our approach to governance on our website: the Board of
Directors Charter, the Charter of Expectations for Directors, the Charters of the Board’s four Standing Committees (Audit,
Governance and Nominating, Management Resources and Compensation and Risk Management), Board Position Descriptions,
our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics and our Corporate Disclosure Policy.

An Ongoing Commitment

We are proud of our track record of leadership in corporate social responsibility, but we recognize that we can always do more,
and are committed to continuous improvement in this regard.
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Shareholder Enquiries

Shareholder enquiries should be directed to our Investor Relations
group at:

Brookfield Asset Management Inc.

Suite 300, Brookfield Place, Box 762, 181 Bay Street

Toronto, Ontario M5J 2T3

T: 416-363-9491 or toll free in North America: 1-866-989-0311
F: 416-363-2856

bam.brookfield.com

enquiries@brookfield.com

Shareholder enquiries relating to dividends, address changes and share
certificates should be directed to our Transfer Agent:

CST Trust Company

P.O. Box 700, Station B

Montreal, Quebec H3B 3K3

T: 416-682-3860 or toll free in North America: 1-800-387-0825
F: 1-888-249-6189

www.canstockta.com

enquiries@canstockta.com

Stock Exchange Listings

Symbol Stock Exchange

Class A Limited Voting Shares BAM New York
BAM.A Toronto
BAMA Euronext — Amsterdam

Class A Preference Shares

Series 2 BAM.PR.B Toronto

Series 4 BAM.PR.C Toronto

Series 8 BAM.PR.E Toronto

Series 9 BAM.PR.G Toronto

Series 13 BAM.PR.K Toronto

Series 17 BAM.PRM Toronto

Series 18 BAM.PR.N Toronto

Series 24 BAM.PR.R Toronto

Series 25 BAM.PR.S Toronto

Series 26 BAM.PR.T Toronto

Series 28 BAM.PR.X Toronto

Series 30 BAM.PR.Z Toronto

Series 32 BAM.PF.A Toronto

Series 34 BAM.PF.B Toronto

Series 36 BAM.PF.C Toronto

Series 37 BAM.PF.D Toronto

Series 38 BAM.PF.E Toronto

Series 40 BAM.PF.F Toronto

Series 42 BAM.PF.G Toronto

Series 44 BAM.PF.H Toronto

Series 46 BAM.PF.I Toronto

Dividend Record and Payment Dates

Security’' Record Date?

Investor Relations and Communications

We are committed to informing our shareholders of our progress through
our comprehensive communications program which includes publication
of materials such as our annual report, quarterly interim reports and news
releases. We also maintain a website that provides ready access to these
materials, as well as statutory filings, stock and dividend information and
other presentations.

Meeting with shareholders is an integral part of our communications
program. Directors and management meet with Brookfield’s shareholders
at our annual meeting and are available to respond to questions.
Management is also available to investment analysts, financial advisors
and media.

The text of our 2016 Annual Report is available in French on request from
the company and is filed with and available through SEDAR at
www.sedar.com.

Annual Meeting of Shareholders

Our 2017 Annual Meeting of Shareholders will be held at 10.30 a.m. on
Friday, June 16, 2017 at the Design Exchange, 234 Bay Street, Toronto,
Ontario, Canada.

Dividends

The quarterly dividend payable on Class A shares is declared in U.S.
dollars. Registered shareholders who are U.S. residents receive their
dividends in U.S. dollars, unless they request the Canadian dollar
equivalent. Registered shareholders who are Canadian residents receive
their dividends in the Canadian dollar equivalent, unless they request to
receive dividends in U.S. dollars. The Canadian dollar equivalent of the
quarterly dividend is based on the Bank of Canada daily average exchange
rate exactly two weeks (or 14 days) prior to the payment date for the
dividend.

Dividend Reinvestment Plan

The Corporation has a Dividend Reinvestment Plan which enables
registered holders of Class A Shares who are resident in Canada and the
United States to receive their dividends in the form of newly issued Class A
shares.

Registered shareholders of our Class A shares who are resident in the
United States may elect to receive their dividends in the form of newly
issued Class A shares at a price equal to the volume-weighted average price
(in U.S. dollars) at which the shares traded on the New York Stock
Exchange based on the average closing price during each of the five trading
days immediately preceding the relevant dividend payment date (the
“NYSE VWAP”).

Registered shareholders of our Class A shares who are resident in Canada
may also elect to receive their dividends in the form of newly issued Class A
shares at a price equal to the NYSE VWAP multiplied by an exchange
factor which is calculated as the average of the daily average exchange
rates as reported by the Bank of Canada during each of the five trading
days immediately preceding the relevant dividend payment date.

Our Dividend Reinvestment Plan allows current shareholders of the
Corporation who are resident in Canada and the United States to increase
their investment in the Corporation free of commissions. Further details
on the Dividend Reinvestment Plan and a Participation Form can be
obtained from our Toronto office, our transfer agent or from our website.

Payment Date®

Class A and Class B shares
Class A Preference shares
Series 2, 4, 13, 17, 18, 24, 25, 26, 28, 30
32, 34,36, 37, 38, 40, 42, 44 and 46
Series 8 Last day of each month

Series 9

Last day of February, May, August and November

15th day of March, June, September and December

15th day of January, April, July and October

Last day of March, June, September and December

Last day of March, June, September and December
12th day of following month
First day of February, May, August and November

1. All dividend payments are subject to declaration by the Board of Directors

2. Ifthe Record Date is not a business day, the Record Date will be the previous business day
3. Ifthe Payment Date is not a business day, the payment will be made on the next business day (other than where December 31st is not a business day, in which case the

Payment Date will be the prior business day)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

M. Elyse Allan, c.m.
President and Chief Executive Officer,
GE Canada

Jeffrey M. Blidner
Senior Managing Partner,
Brookfield Asset Management Inc.

Angela Braly

Former Chair of the Board, President and
Chief Executive Officer, Wellpoint, Inc.
(now Anthem, Inc.)

Jack L. Cockwell, c.m.
Corporate Director

Marcel R. Coutu

Former President and

Chief Executive Officer,
Canadian Oil Sands Limited

J. Bruce Flatt
Chief Executive Officer,
Brookfield Asset Management Inc.

Robert J. Harding, c.m., F.CA.
Past Chairman,
Brookfield Asset Management Inc.

Maureen Kempston Darkes, o.c., 0.0NT.
Former President, Latin America, Africa
and Middle East, General Motors
Corporation

David W. Kerr
Chairman, Halmont Properties Corp.

Philip B. Lind, c.m.
Co-Founder, Vice Chairman and Director,
Rogers Communications Inc.

Hon. Frank J. McKenna, r.c.,0.c., O.N.B.
Chair, Brookfield Asset Management Inc.
and Deputy Chair, TD Bank Group

Youssef A. Nasr

Former Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of HSBC Middle East Ltd. and
former President of HSBC Bank Brazil

Lord O’Donnell
Chairman,
Frontier Economics

Seek Ngee Huat

Former Chairman of the Latin American
Business Group, Government of Singapore
Investment Corporation

Diana L. Taylor
Vice Chair,
Solera Capital LLC

George S. Taylor
Corporate Director

Details on Brookfield’s directors are provided in the Management Information Circular and on Brookfield’s website at

www.brookfield.com.

CORPORATE OFFICERS
J. Bruce Flatt, Chief Executive Officer
Brian Lawson, Chief Financial Officer

A.J. Silber, Corporate Secretary

Brookfield incorporates sustainable development practices with our Corporation.
This document was printed in Canada using vegetable-based inks on FSC stock.
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BROOKFIELD ASSET MANAGEMENT INC.

brookfield.com

NYSE: BAM
TSX: BAM.A
EURONEXT: BAMA

CORPORATE OFFICES

United States
Brookfield Place
250 Vesey Street
15th Floor

New York, NY
10281-1023
+1.212.417.7000

REGIONAL OFFICES

North America
Calgary

Chicago
Houston

Los Angeles
Mexico City
Vancouver

Canada

Brookfield Place

181 Bay Street

Suite 300

Bay Wellington Tower
Toronto, ON M5J 2T3
+1.416.363.9491

South America
Bogota

Lima

S&o Paulo

United Kingdom
99 Bishopsgate
2nd Floor

London EC2M 3XD
+44.20.7659.3500

Europe &
Middle East
Dubai
Madrid

Australia

Level 22

135 King Street
Sydney, NSW 2001
+61.2.9322.2000

Asia
Mumbai
New Delhi
Hong Kong
Seoul
Shanghai
Singapore
Tokyo

Brazil

Avenida Antonio
Gallotti s/n

Edificio Pacific Tower
BL 2, 2° andar

Barra da Tijuca

Rio de Janeiro - RJ
22775-029
+55.21.3725.7800





